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Preface

The Public Accounts of Alberta are prepared in accordance with the Financial Administration Act and
the Government Accountability Act. The Public Accounts consist of the annual report of the
Government of Alberta and the annual reports of each of the 24 Ministries.

The annual report of the Government of Alberta released June 24, 2010 contains the Minister of
Finance and Enterprise’s accountability statement, the consolidated financial statements of the
Province and The Measuring Up report, which compares actual performance results to desired
results set out in the government's business plan.

This annual report of the Ministry of Finance and Enterprise contains the Minister's
accountability statement, the audited consolidated financial statements of the Ministry and a
comparison of actual performance results to desired results set out in the Ministry business
plan. This Ministry annual report also includes:

° the financial statements of entities making up the Ministry including the Department of
Finance and Enterprise, regulated funds, provincial agencies and Crown-controlled
corporations for which the Minister is responsible,

° other financial information as required by the Financial Administration Act and
Government Accountability Act, either as separate reports or as a part of the financial
statements, to the extent that the Ministry has anything to report, and

e financial information relating to trust funds.
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Minister’s Accountability Statement

The Ministry’s annual report for the year ended March 31, 2010, was prepared under my direction in
accordance with the Government Accountability Act and the government’s accounting policies. All
of the government’s policy decisions as at September 10, 2010 with material economic or fiscal
implications of which | am aware have been considered in the preparation of this report.

"Original signed by"

Ted Morton
Minister of Finance and Enterprise
September 10, 2010
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Message from the Minister

The 2009-10 year continued to present economic challenges to Alberta and to
governments around the world. As a resource-based economy, Alberta continued
to feel the effects of volatile commodity prices.

The Alberta government continued to follow its four point plan to ready the
province for economic recovery. This, combined with the actions taken in the
last 15 years, which included paying off accumulated debt and putting aside
savings in the Sustainability Fund and other endowment funds, allowed for a
measured approach. Rather than making deep and damaging cuts, government
drew on the Sustainability Fund to protect priority public programs. At the same time, government
carefully managed spending and invested significantly in infrastructure to support jobs.

As the year progressed and signs of economic recovery began to appear, the province’s revenue
outlook began to improve. In the end, the 2009-10 deficit was $1 billion on the Fiscal Plan basis,
considerably smaller than the budget forecast of $4.7 billion.

Over the past year, government developed and coordinated Budget 2010. This budget protected
core programs such as health, education, and supports for seniors and vulnerable Albertans, while
maintaining the lowest tax regime in Canada.

Each government ministry took action in 2009 by looking internally at ways to more efficiently
provide services to Albertans. The collective savings resulting from those efforts helped lower the
deficit and improve the government's fiscal position.

Government also moved ahead with a challenge to the federal move to create a national securities
regulator. Reference questions were filed with the Alberta Court of Appeal, and Alberta also
intervened in a similar challenge by the Québec government to the Québec Court of Appeal.

The Ministry developed and drafted several pieces of legislation which included helping to ensure
Alberta remains competitive on the global economic stage and further strengthening existing
securities laws to bring Alberta in line with international reporting practices.

The Ministry saved taxpayers hundreds of millions of dollars over the long term, by borrowing
almost $1.2 billion to repay money owed to the post-1992 Teachers’ Pension Plan which had been
borrowed to pay pension benefits related to pre-1992 service. Had the government not opted to
borrow the money, it would have continued to pay interest for over 30 years at a prescribed
interest rate set currently at 6.75 per cent rather than paying about 4 per cent - the rate at which
funds were borrowed

Tax and Revenue Administration’s audits recovered $95 million in commodity and corporate tax
programs in 2009-10. Audit continues to work cooperatively within TRA and with tax
administrations across Canada to ensure compliance with Alberta’s tax laws.

Ministry of Finance and Enterprise employees have provided quality service to Albertans. | am
proud to lead such a dedicated team. Looking ahead, we will continue our work to help build a
strong and competitive Alberta.

"Original signed by"

Honourable Ted Morton
Minister of Finance and Enterprise
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Management’'s Responsibility for Reporting

The Ministry of Finance and Enterprise includes:

Department of Finance and Enterprise

Alberta Cancer Prevention Legacy Fund

Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research Endowment Fund
Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund

Alberta Heritage Scholarship Fund

Alberta Heritage Science and Engineering Research Endowment Fund
Alberta Risk Management Fund

Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Reserve Fund
Supplementary Retirement Plan Reserve Fund

Alberta Capital Finance Authority

Alberta Insurance Council

Alberta Investment Management Corporation

Alberta Local Authorities Pension Plan Corp.

Alberta Pensions Services Corporation

Alberta Securities Commission

ATB Financial

ATB Insurance Advisors Inc.

ATB Investment Management Inc.

ATB Investment Services Inc.

ATB Securities Inc.

Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation

N.A. Properties (1994) Ltd.

Gainers Inc.

The executives of the individual entities within the Ministry have the primary responsibility and
accountability for the respective entities. Collectively, the executives ensure the Ministry complies
with all relevant legislation, regulations and policies.

Ministry business plans, annual reports, performance results and the supporting management
information are integral to the government’s fiscal and business plans, annual report, quarterly
reports and other financial and performance reporting.

Responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial statements and
performance results for the Ministry rests with the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. Under the
direction of the Minister, | oversee the preparation of the Ministry’s annual report, including
consolidated financial statements and performance results. The consolidated financial statements
and the performance results, of necessity, include amounts that are based on estimates and
judgments. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles for the public sector as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. The performance measures
are prepared in accordance with the following criteria:

o Reliability — Information agrees with the underlying data and the sources used to prepare it.
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e Understandability and Comparability — Actual results are presented clearly and consistently
with the stated methodology and presented on the same basis as targets and prior years’
information.

o Completeness — Performance measures and targets match those included in Budget 2009.
Actual results are presented for all measures.

As Deputy Minister, in addition to program responsibilities, | establish and maintain the Ministry’s
financial administration and reporting functions. The Ministry maintains systems of financial
management and internal control which give consideration to costs, benefits, and risks that are
designed to:

e provide reasonable assurance that transactions are properly authorized, executed in
accordance with prescribed legislation and regulations, and properly recorded so as to
maintain accountability of public money;

e provide information to manage and report on performance;
o safeguard the assets and properties of the Province under Ministry administration;

e provide Executive Council, Treasury Board, the Minister of Finance and Enterprise any
information needed to fulfill their responsibilities; and

e facilitate preparation of Ministry business plans and annual reports required under the
Government Accountability Act.

In fulfilling my responsibilities for the Ministry, | have relied, as necessary, on the executives of the
individual entities within the Ministry.

"Original signed by"

Tim Wiles, C.A.
Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise
September 10, 2010
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Organization Chart

Honourable Ted Morton

Minister of Finance
and Enterprise

Tim Wiles
Deputy Minister

Bart Johnson
Director, Communications

Rodney Drarwin Bozek Rick Sloan Jane Clerk Dennis Gartner | | Stephen LeClalr | | RBod Matheson
Yaremchuk AN, AL, ADM, ADM, ADM, ADR,
AlExecutive
Director, Strategic and Enterprise Tax and Financial Budget and Treasury
Business {ENT) Revenue Sector Fiscal and Risk
Human Services Administration Regulation Planning Management
Resource {585} (TRAI and Policy {BFP) (TRM)
Services (ESRP)

{HR}
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Ministry Vision, Mission, Core Businesses and Goals

Vision

Financial and Economic Leadership that Strengthens Alberta

Mission

Provide expert economic, financial, and fiscal policy advice to government and effective tax and
regulatory administration to enhance Alberta’s present and future prosperity.

Core Businesses and Goals

Core Business: Fiscal Planning and Economic Analysis
Goal 1 — Strong and sustainable government finances

Goal 2 — Sound tax and economic policy

Core Business: Enterprise

Goal 3 — Alberta has a competitive and productive economy

Core Business: Tax and Revenue Management
Goal 4 — Revenue programs are administered fairly, efficiently and

effectively

Core Business: Investment, Treasury and Risk Management

Goal 5 — Sound investment, treasury and risk management

Core Business: Financial Sector and Pensions
Goal 6 — Effective regulation of financial products and services
Goal 7 — Sustainable public sector pension plans in Alberta

Goal 8 — Accessible financial services for Albertans and local authorities
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Operational Overview

Terrace Building Haultain Building Commerce Place

- 9515 — 107 Street 9811 — 109 Street 10155 — 102 Street  1100-715-5th Avenue SW
Edmonton, Alberta Edmonton, Alberta Edmonton, Alberta  Calgary, Alberta

. T5K2C3 T5K 2L5 T5J 4L5 T2P 2X6

Budget and Fiscal Planning Division (BFP)

The Budget and Fiscal Planning division is responsible for advising the government on overall
fiscal, economic and tax issues. Its major output is the province’s annual budget. In 2009-10, BFP
had four branches: Budget Planning and Integration, Economics, Demography and Public Finance,
Tax Policy and Strategic Resource Allocation. During the course of 2009-10, the Strategic
Resource Allocation branch was disbanded and its core functions were transferred to the Budget
Planning and Integration (BPI) and Economics, Demography and Public Finance (EDPF) branches.

Tax and Revenue Administration Division (TRA)

The Tax and Revenue Administration division administers tax and related programs under the
Alberta Corporate Income Tax, Tourism Levy, Fuel Tax, Tobacco Tax and Unclaimed Personal
Property and Vested Property Acts on behalf of the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. TRA also
administers the Alberta Scientific Research and Experimental Development tax credit program and
contributes to the development of Alberta tax policy. The focus of TRA’s activity is to ensure a fair,
efficient and effective provincial tax and revenue system.

TRA has five branches: Tax Services, Revenue Operations, Audit, Strategic and Client Services
and Business Technology Management.

Treasury and Risk Management Division (TRM)

Treasury Management (TM) is responsible for management of short-term borrowing and
investments, banking and cash forecasting, arranging financing for the government and provincial
corporations and monitoring and managing loans and guarantees. TM is also responsible for
providing investment policy advice to the Minister and portfolio planning and evaluation for the
investments of the General Revenue Fund and the government endowment funds. The division
provides financial and banking advice to other government departments including active
involvement in the Province’s Public Private Partnership (P3) projects. TM is divided into the
following two areas: Capital Markets and Banking and Cash Forecasting.

Risk Management and Insurance (RMI) collaborates with ministries and agencies throughout
government to assist them with identifying, measuring, controlling and financing the risk of
accidental loss. The program is responsible for all “participants” subject to the Financial
Administration Act. RMI is divided into two areas: Risk Management Operations and Claims
Management.
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Financial Sector Regulation and Policy Division (FSRP)

The Financial Sector Regulation and Policy division is responsible for the regulation and oversight
of credit unions, loan and trust corporations, insurance companies and private sector pension
plans. It also provides policy support and analysis to the Minister of Finance and Enterprise in these
areas, as well as for ATB Financial, public sector pension plans, capital markets and the Canada
Pension Plan.

Enterprise Division (ENT)

The Enterprise division and its entities work with industry and communities to enhance sustainable
economic development by improving their competitiveness, innovation and productivity. The
Enterprise division has staff working throughout the province. The division:

. advocates and is a catalyst for new investment, increased competitiveness, value-added
industry development, and improved productivity within Alberta’s key manufacturing and
service sectors;

. co-ordinates economic development policy efforts and resources;

. provides Alberta’s regions and communities with information and support to achieve regional
economic viability and enhanced prosperity;

. supports the Alberta Economic Development Authority, Northern Alberta Development

Council, and Regional Economic Development Alliances.

Regulatory Review Secretariat (RRS)

The Regulatory Review Secretariat is a three member MLA committee established to lead
regulatory reform within the Government of Alberta. To ensure the regulatory environment remains
effective, efficient and responsive to the needs of business stakeholders and citizens, the RRS
provides oversight for the ongoing review of regulations. The Regulatory Review Secretariat
provides support to ministries to identify areas for regulatory improvement, and encourages
stakeholder engagement and coordination between ministries. The RRS supports departments
through a consultative, capacity-building approach to assist with the comprehensive assessment of
regulatory impacts.

Strategic and Business Services Division (SBS)

Strategic and Business Services is responsible for supporting the ministry’s business and continuity
planning (leadership and support for strategic and business plans, annual report, and coordinating
the ministry’s response to pandemics and continuity/disaster recovery), financial services (full range
of financial advisory, planning, accounting and reporting services to the ministry and the Pension
Plan Boards), corporate technology services, administrative and information services (including
facilities management, information and records management and administration of Freedom of
Information and Protection of Privacy processes).
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Human Resource Services (HR)

Human Resource Services plans, develops and delivers strategic human resource programs as
well as day-to-day human resource services. The division’s responsibilities include: promoting
strategic HR planning in alignment with business goals and objectives; supporting the attraction and
engagement of high caliber staff; and building employee capacity to achieve business plan goals.
HR provides service and guidance in the areas of staffing, classification, recognition, wellness,
learning and development, compensation and employee relations.

Communications

Communications provides advice and support to the Minister and the Ministry on providing clear
and timely information to the public about key initiatives, programs, and services of Alberta Finance
and Enterprise. Communications also provides consulting services in issues management,
strategic planning, media relations, writing, publishing, and website content.
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Summary of Key Activities in the Past Year

13

Developed and coordinated Budget 2010: Striking the Right Balance, which protects
programs and competitiveness with fiscal strength during turbulent times. Despite fiscal
challenges, this budget saw an increase in funding for health, basic education and supports
for seniors and vulnerable Albertans, while maintaining the lowest tax regime in Canada.
This is thanks, in part, to cost savings found across government that were reinvested in these
key areas.

Maintained a strong position for recovery with nearly $15 billion in emergency savings to
protect and provide the things that matter most to Albertans, including health care, education,
the environment and support for those who need it.

Challenged the federal move to create a national securities regulator by filing reference
questions with the Alberta Court of Appeal to test the constitutional soundness of the federal
plan. The government also intervened in a similar reference filed by Québec with the Québec
Court of Appeal and in the federal government’s recent reference to the Supreme Court of
Canada.

Drafted several pieces of legislation, including the Alberta Competitiveness Act, 2010, to help
promote a more competitive provincial economy. Other legislation included the Tobacco Tax
Amendment Act, 2009, the Tourism Levy Amendment Act, 2009, and the Alberta Corporate
Tax Amendment Act, 2009. Existing securities law was further strengthened, by introducing
the Securities Amendment Act, 2010, to bring Alberta in line with international reporting
practices.

Worked with the federal, provincial and territorial governments to review the retirement
income and savings system. Significant analysis was completed in preparation for a meeting
of all finance ministers in June 2010.

Identified government-wide actions to reduce the costs of doing business in Alberta with the
implementation of regulatory reform activities in several sectors such as energy, agriculture
and transportation.

Developed the Bitumen Royalty in Kind program along with Alberta Energy, including the
Request for Proposals for processing up to 75,000 barrels per day of the Crown’s bitumen
royalty volumes. After participating in an evaluation process, the government decided to
proceed with negotiations on a commercial agreement with Northwest Upgrading Inc. This
negotiation process, which is being led by Alberta Energy, is expected to be completed in
2010.

Launched ProductivityAlberta.ca, a web portal to connect Alberta industry to a set of tools,
resources, and services that will assist them in improving their productivity and
competitiveness. It includes the Productivity Assessment Tool, a made-in-Alberta
assessment system to help businesses find their productivity strengths and identify
opportunities for improvement.
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The Ministry saved taxpayers hundreds of millions of dollars over the long term, by borrowing
almost $1.2 billion to repay money owed to the post-1992 Teachers’ Pension Plan which had
been borrowed to pay pension benefits related to pre-1992 service. Had the government not
opted to borrow the money, it would have continued to pay interest for over 30 years at a
prescribed interest rate set currently at 6.75 per cent rather than paying about 4 per cent - the
rate at which funds were borrowed.

Budget 2009 announced a three year plan to borrow $3.3 billion for capital purposes. During
2009-10, about $1.5 billion of this amount was raised primarily by borrowing in the Canadian
capital markets. The amount borrowed also included $79 million which was raised by selling
Alberta Capital Bonds to Albertans in February 2010. The province is not borrowing to
support operating expense.

Collected a total of $6.6 billion in revenue through the work of Tax and Revenue
Administration, from sources like the tourism levy, as well as fuel, tobacco, insurance, and
corporate income taxes. Corporate and commodity returns processed exceeded 275,000
and more than 29,000 benefit claims were processed in the same period.

Through audits of commodity and corporate tax programs the Ministry recovered $95 million
in 2009-10. Audit continues to work cooperatively with tax administrations across Canada to
ensure compliance with Alberta’s tax laws.

Implemented the Scientific Research and Experimental Development tax credit program and
the Unclaimed Personal Property and Vested Property Act.
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Ministry Financial Highlights

15

W e S

Revenue Budget Actual Actual
(millions of dollars) 15,183 18,355 13,183

Revenue for the Ministry was $5,172 million, or 39 per cent, higher than 2008-09.
(Actual — Actual)

Personal income taxes were lower than last year by $831 million due to lower personal income
and lower than expected assessments for the base 2008 tax year.

Corporate income tax revenue was $502 million higher than 2008-09, primarily due to
unexpectedly strong cash receipts from the oil and gas sector.

Other taxes were lower by $8 million in 2009-10. Tobacco tax increased by $36 million due to
higher tax rates. Fuel tax decreased by $17 million due to lower consumption associated with
weaker economic and population growth. Insurance taxes were $13 million lower as a result of
lower premiums written and the tourism levy decreased by $14 million due to fewer tourists.
Transfers from the Government of Canada increased by $17 million as a result of the funding
received from the Federal Community Development Trust.

Increased optimism and recovery of the global financial markets contributed to an increase of
$5,374 million in investment income primarily within the endowment funds and the Department.
Net income from commercial operations was $122 million higher mainly attributed to a

$121 million increase of ATB Financial net income. In the prior year ATB Financial reported a
$224 million provision for asset backed commercial paper not required this year. In the current
year there was an increase of $38 million in operating expenses, a $16 million increase for
credit provisions, the $38 million payment in lieu of taxes to Alberta Finance and Enterprise,
and $11 million in reduced operating revenue. Overall a net change of $122 million from the
prior year.

For premiums, fees and licenses, there was a $37 million increase due to a $38 million
payment in lieu of taxes from ATB Financial.

Internal government transfers decreased $56 million as lottery revenues were lower than the
prior year.

Revenue for the Ministry was $3,172 million, or 21 per cent, over budget.
(Budget — Actual)

Personal income tax revenue was $682 million lower than budget due to lower personal income
and lower than expected assessments for the base 2008 tax year.

Corporate income tax (CIT) revenue was $2,307 million higher than budget. A high portion of
CIT revenue is collected in the last two months of the fiscal year. Over the last seven years
collections in February to March have averaged about 40 per cent of total fiscal year collection.
Given the recession experienced in 2009 and the large drop in forecasted corporate profits, net
CIT collections which were strong during the first part of the year were expected to weaken
considerably over the last three months of 2009-10. Instead they came in at record high levels.
The unexpected strength in CIT was attributable to the oil and gas sector, where net CIT
revenue increased by 57 per cent from the previous year to reach a level of nearly $2.0 billion.
Net CIT from all other industries declined by 12.4 per cent.

Other taxes were $109 million lower than budget as sales were less than anticipated, and a
decrease in consumption was realized with a weakening economy.

Investment returns were $1,654 million higher than budget. The stabilization and recovery of
global markets contributed to the higher investment returns.
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e Net income from commercial operations was $19 million under budget as ATB Financial paid
$38 million to the Ministry in lieu of taxes.
e Premiums, fees and licences were $39 million over budget. This is primarily attributed to ATB
Financial's $38 million payment in lieu of taxes.
e Lower than expected lottery revenues resulted in internal government transfers of $1 million
less than budget.
e  Other revenue was $15 million under budget. Refunds of expenditures and other miscellaneous
revenue was $13 million lower than budget, service revenue was lower than budgeted by
$3 million, and pension administration revenue $2 million less than budget. These reduced
revenues were partially offset by increases in securities settlements and insurance services.
A 200910 .
Expenses Budget Actual Actual
(millions of dollars) 2,389 1,730 3,170

Ministry expenses were $1,440 million, or 45 per cent, lower than in 2008-09.

(Actual — Actual)

¢ Investment, treasury and risk management expenses were $15 million higher than prior year
due to an increase in investment management costs for the endowment funds and AIMCo fees.

e Financial Sector and Pensions expenses were $93 million lower than last year caused by a
decrease in Alberta Capital Finance Authority borrowing costs of $100 million over the prior
year, partially offset by a $3 million increase in pension administration costs and a $4 million
increase in regulatory costs.

e The Teachers’ Pension liability funding was $99 million higher than the prior year since
commencing September 1, 2009 payments were made based on pension benefits rather than
set contributions from the prior year.

e Valuation adjustments are $1,465 million lower as the pension obligation balance was lower
than last year due to repayment towards the Teachers’ Pension Plan liability.

e Debt servicing costs were $4 million higher than the prior year due to the issuance of bonds to
repay the Teachers’ Pension Plan unfunded liability and the issuance of Alberta Capital Bonds.

Expenses for the Ministry were $659 million, or 28 per cent, under budget.

(Budget — Actual)

e Investment, treasury and risk management expenses were $42 million lower than budget:
$24 million lower than budget due to lower investment management fees than anticipated,
$12 million less in transfers from endowment funds than anticipated and $6 million due to
reduced expense in the Risk Management Fund.

e Financial Sector and Pensions expenses were $165 million lower compared to budget. Of this,
$152 million is due to a decrease in Alberta Capital Finance Authority’s interest expense due to
a change from fixed to floating interest rate debt. The Alberta Securities Commission had lower
operating expenses of $9 million due to staff vacancies.

e The Teachers’ Pension liability funding was $15 million lower than budgeted due to lower than
expected retirements and benefits payable as a result of the slower economic conditions.

e Valuation adjustments are $444 million under budget as the recovery of global financial
markets resulted in pension plan deficits not increasing to the extent expected, thus the change
in pension plans obligations was not as high as budgeted.

e Debt servicing costs were $5 million higher than budget due to issuance of bonds to repay the
Teachers’ Pension Plan pre-92 unfunded liability and the issuance of Alberta Capital Bonds.
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

Review Engagement Report
To the Members of the Legislative Assembly

I have reviewed the performance measures identified as “Reviewed by Auditor General”
included in the Ministry of Finance and Enterprise’s 2009-10 Annual Report. These performance
measures are prepared based on the following criteria:

o Reliability — Information agrees with the underlying data and with sources used to prepare
1t.

o Understandability and Comparability — Actual results are presented clearly and
consistently with the stated methodology and presented on the same basis as targets and
prior years’ information.

o Completeness — performance measures and targets match those included in Budget 2009.
Actual results are presented for all measures.

My review was made in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review
engagements and, accordingly, consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical procedures and
discussion related to information supplied to my office by the Ministry. My review was not
designed to provide assurance on the relevance of these performance measures.

A review does not constitute an audit and, consequently, I do not express an audit opinion on
these performance measures.

Based on my review, nothing has come to my attention that causes me to believe that the
“Reviewed by Auditor General” performance measures in the Ministry’s 2009-10 Annual Report
are not, in all material respects, presented in accordance with the criteria of reliability,
understandability, comparability, and completeness as described above. However, my review
was not designed to provide assurance on the relevance of these performance measures.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]

Edmonton, Alberta Auditor General

September 3, 2010
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Performance Measures Summary Table

Core Businesses/Goals/Performance Measure(s)

Note: for Methodology, Source and Notes see Appendix

Prior Years’ Results

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09
CORE BUSINESS: FISCAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS
1. Strong and Sustainable Government Finances
1.a* Alberta’s credit AAA AAA AAA AAA
rating (blended
credit rating
domestic debt)
1b  Sustainable Operating NA 069
operating spending not comparable 07
spending growth growth
(operating .
spending relative et .
to population plus 5.2%
CP|)— (new measure
2009-12 BP)
2. Sound Tax and Economic Policy
2.a* Provincial and municipa| tax Lowest in Lowest in Lowest in LOYVeSt
load as a percentage of the Canada Canada Canada c in
. anada
Canadian average
(interprovincial rank)-
(new measure 2009-12 BP)
2b Provincial tax load on Second- Lowest in Fourth Second-
; lowest in Canada Lowest in lowest in
businesses Canada Canada Canada
CORE BUSINESS: ENTERPRISE
3. Alberta has a competitive and productive economy
3.a  Real Domestic GDP $31.1 $33.4 $34.3 $34.6
Product of - billion billion billion billion
manufacturing and
business and % 7.5% 7.4% 3.0% 0.8%
commercial services change
3.b* Manufacturing and
service industry Capital $13.5 $15.8 $17.1 $19.2
investment: the value o or™  yillion(r) billion(r) billion(r)  billion(r)
of new capital
expenditures on %
construction and Change 16.1%(r) 17.6%(r) 7.7%(r) 12.2%(r)

machinery and
equipment in Alberta’s
manufacturing and
services industry
(excludes utilities)'

! (r) These results have been revised. Please refer to the Appendix for further details.
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Target

AAA

Equal to or
less than
CPI+
Pop.

Lowest in
Canada

Lowest in
Canada

$36.6
billion

4.0%

$18.6
billion{r)

+2.0%(r)

Current
Actual
2009-10

AAA

4.4%

2.1%

Lowest in
Canada

Lowest in
Canada

$31.3
billion

-9.5%

$15.2
billion{r)

-20.7%(r)
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Prior Years’

2005-06 2006-07

Results

2007-08 2008-09

CORE BUSINESS: TAX AND REVENUE MANAGEMENT

4 Revenue Programs are Administered Fairly, Efficiently and Effectively

4 a* Ratio of amounts added to net 12:1 15:1
revenue to costs of
administration (as a measure of
efficiency)

4.b Percentage of revenue 93.7% 92.8%
obtained through self-
compliance (as a measure of
effectiveness)

13:1

94.2%

251

88.1%

CORE BUSINESS: INVESTMENT, TREASURY AND RISK MANAGEMENT

5. Sound investment, treasury and risk management

5.a* The Alberta Heritage Savings
Trust Fund will earn a five-year
annualized rate of return of CPI
plus 4.5 per cent.

N/A
not comparable

5.b  Value-added through active Over 2 pension Over
investment management, for target under rest target
the endowment and pension over target
funds, annualized over a five
year period’

5.0 Client satisfaction with the N/A 86% N/A
services provided by the Risk
Management and Insurance
Division (survey issued every
two years)

1Pension funds not included in this measure in 2005-06 and 2007-08

CORE BUSINESS: FINANCIAL SECTOR AND PENSIONS

6. Effective regulation of financial products and services

6.a* Percentage of private sector 99% 98% 99%
pension plans that meet
minimum funding standards

6.b Inter-provincial/territorial Phase One Amend- Phase
securities regulatory system of the ], me”(tjst T\;Vr? of
(new measure 2009-12 BP) passpo passedto e

system enable Passport
implement- Phase Two System
ted of the implement
Passport -ed for
system issuers

2.9%

(3.5%
below
target)

Under
target

86%

99%

Full
Implement-
ation of
Phase Two
of the
Passport
System
deferred to
fall 2009/10

Target

12:1

92%

6.3%
(CPI
+4.5%)

Bench-
mark plus
1%
target

N/A

100%

Continu
-ation of
develop
-ment
and
enact-
ment of
highly
harmon
-ized
secure-
ties
laws

Current
Actual
2009-10

121

95%

4.7%

(1.6%
below
target)

Under
target

N/A

99.9%

Memorand-
um of
Understand
-ing
committed
participat-
ing
provincial/
territorial
govern-
ents to
implement
and
maintain
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Prior Years’ Results Current

Actual
2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 Target 2009-10
highly
harmonized
securities
laws.
7. Sustainable public sector pension plans in Alberta
7.a Improved pension plan Governance review ongoing throughout Phasell ~ Governa-  Operating
the vear of the nce review protocols
governance Y Govern-  complete in place.
ance Develop-
review is ment of
deferred Mandate
to (2009/ and Roles
10) documents
ongoing.
8. Accessible financial services for Albertans and local authorities
8.a ATB Financial return on 1.20% 1.44% 0.14% 0.03% 0.53% 0.62%
average assets
8.b* Cost to Alberta local authorities Met Met Met Met Lowest of Met
of borrowing from ACFA (in both (in both (in both (inboth  compara-
compared to other cases cases cases cases ble cases
municipality/aggregating compared)  compared)  compared) com-
agencies for a comparable loan pared)

* These performance measures were selected for Office of the Auditor General (OAG) review by ministry management based
on the following criteria established by government.
1. Enduring measures that best represent the goal and mandated initiatives,
2. Measures that have well established methodology and data reporting,
3. Measures that have outcomes over which the government had a greater degree of influence, and

Note: For additional detail please refer to the appendix
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Discussion and Analysis of Results
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GOAL 1 Linked to Core Business 1 - Fiscal Planning and Economic Analysis

Strong and Sustainable Government Finances

A major component of Alberta’s fiscal planning and budgeting is the legislated fiscal framework,
enshrined mainly in the Fiscal Responsibility Act (FRA). The fiscal framework reflects the rules and
limitations the government places on itself for budgeting purposes. Responsibility for the framework
rests with Alberta Finance and Enterprise.

The fiscal framework was amended in 2009-10 to provide flexibility to deal with the global economic
downturn and to simplify the operation of the Sustainability Fund.

Alberta Finance and Enterprise worked with Treasury Board, Energy and other ministries on a
number of initiatives. Assistance was provided in developing the Capital Plan, including advice on
alternative financing proposals such as Public-Private Partnerships. The fiscal planning perspective
was articulated on various changes being proposed to public sector accounting standards. For the
first year, the Government of Alberta’s annual report included the consolidation of the financial
results of the SUCH sector (schools, universities, colleges and health board) and Alberta Innovates
on a line-by-line basis. The ministry also provided economic and fiscal advice to, for example, A
Framework to Improve Alberta’s Conventional Natural Gas & Oil Competitiveness, Land Use
Framework, Aging Population Policy Framework, and climate change and carbon capture and
storage policy issues.

The volatility of Alberta’s revenue base presents a unique challenge in maintaining the sustainability
and stability of government finances. This continued to be the case in 2009-10. Revenue was

$4 billion higher than originally forecast in Budget 2009 and there were large changes in a number
of major revenue sources. Land sales, oil and oil sands royalties, investment income, and
corporate income taxes were significantly higher than originally forecast, while natural gas royalties
were significantly lower.

Operating expense increased 4.4 per cent in 2009-10 compared to population plus inflation growth
of 2.1 per cent. However, growth in total expense was essentially zero as the $1.3 billion increase
in operating expense was almost entirely offset by a $1.1 billion decrease in capital grants and a
$0.2 billion decrease due to the expiration of the natural gas rebate program. Emergency and
disaster spending was essentially flat.

GOAL 2 Linked to Core Business 1 - Fiscal Planning and Economic Analysis

Sound Tax and Economic Policy

The tax system must be fair and promote self-reliance. The system must also be competitive with
those in other provinces and countries in order to attract investment and skilled workers to Alberta.
The government’s policy of broad tax bases with low tax rates promotes strong economic growth.
Overall, Alberta has the lowest taxes of all provinces with a low single-rate personal income tax, low
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corporate tax rates and the lowest tax on gasoline. Alberta also has no capital tax or general payroll
tax, and is the only province without a general provincial sales tax.

Alberta’s low tax regime leaves more money in the hands of Albertans and Alberta businesses to
spend and invest. Alberta continues to have the lowest relative provincial and municipal tax load
(performance measure 2a).

In 2009, the province cut education property tax rates by about 16 per cent, marking the 16"
consecutive year that rates have either been frozen or fallen. The province also increased the small
business threshold to $500,000 on April 1, 2009. Tobacco taxes were also raised by eight per cent
to further support the Alberta Tobacco Reduction Strategy.

GOAL 3 Linked to Core Business 2 - Enterprise

Alberta has a competitive and productive economy

In 2009-10, the Enterprise division successfully implemented strategies to support Alberta Finance
and Enterprise’s core business. This was accomplished through various activities including the
continued development of value-added goods and service industries; collaboration with Regional
Economic Development Alliances (REDAs) and the Northern Alberta Development Council (NADC)
to promote regional and northern economic development opportunities; and work with multiple
stakeholders to encourage productivity and competitiveness both at the firm level and in
government policy development. Economic information products were developed to help our
government and Alberta companies make sound business decisions based on emerging economic
information.

The Ministry of Finance and Enterprise promotes innovation and value-added economic
development to create more jobs, diversify its economy and strengthen its fiscal position. In 2009,
the Ministry partnered with Alberta Energy to develop the Bitumen Royalty in Kind program,
including the request for proposals program for processing up to 75,000 barrels per day of the
Crown's bitumen royalty volumes. The Ministry also participated in the proposal’s evaluation
process which led to the government decision to proceed with negotiations on a commercial
agreement with a private company.

In order to increase Alberta’s productivity, the Ministry launched ProductivityAlberta.ca, a web portal
to connect Alberta industry to a set of tools, resources, and services that will assist them in
improving their productivity and competitiveness. The web portal includes the Productivity
Assessment Tool, a made-in-Alberta assessment system to help businesses find their productivity
strengths and identify opportunities for improvement. In addition, the Ministry worked with the
Alberta Economic Development Authority, industry, businesses, communities, and the Regional
Economic Development Alliances and Northern Alberta Development Council to make Alberta
globally competitive in priority sectors by competency and productivity.

In terms of promoting regional development, the Ministry developed a Renewable Energy Toolkit for
Economic Development, which provides communities with a tool to evaluate the potential costs and
benefits of renewable energy projects. The Ministry also participated in interdepartmental initiatives
such as the ongoing discussion on Land-use Framework’s (LUF) regional plans for Lower
Athabasca and South Saskatchewan, and the LUF’s cumulative effects management strategy.
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In 2009, the real gross domestic product (GDP) for manufacturing and business and commercial
services was $31.3 billion. The measure did not meet the established target of 4 per cent as it
declined by 9.5 per cent from the 2008 result, because of the global economic crisis. The
manufacturing sector declined by 16.5 per cent due to the global recession, U.S. housing crisis, the
slowdown in investment in Alberta’s oil sands and in residential housing, and the strong value of the
Canadian dollar.

The hardest hit manufacturing sectors were machinery, fabricated metals and non-metallic mineral
products (oil sands slowdown and for the latter sector also the Alberta residential housing
slowdown), wood products, such as lumber and oriented strand board (OSB) (U.S. housing crisis),
and plastics and chemicals (global recession). GDP for business and commercial services fell by
3.5 per cent in Alberta, as the Alberta economy was also in recession in 2009 (hardest hit sector
was professional, scientific and technical services which includes engineering services — hard hit by
the large decline in investment in Alberta, e.g. oil sands investment).

For a comparative frame of reference, Alberta’s overall GDP declined by an estimated 5.1 per cent
in 2009.

Goal 4 Linked to Core Business 3 - Tax and Revenue Management

Revenue Programs are Administered Fairly, Efficiently and
Effectively

The Ministry of Finance and Enterprise designs tax and revenue programs, collects revenue owing
to the province, administers tax and revenue laws, makes payments of refunds and rebates, and
provides information to stakeholders, taxpayers and claimants.

«  The Ministry collected a total of $6.6 billion in revenue through the work of Tax and Revenue
Administration, from sources like the tourism levy, as well as fuel, tobacco, insurance, and
corporate income taxes. Corporate and commodity returns processed exceeded 275,000 and
more than 29,000 benefit claims were processed in the same period;

* The Tobacco Tax Amendment Act, 2009, the Tourism Levy Amendment Act, 2009, and the
Alberta Corporate Tax Amendment Act, 2009 were passed in the 2009 spring session. The
Alberta Corporate Tax Amendment Act, 2010 was passed in 2010 spring session;

« Tax and Revenue Administration’s audits recovered $95 million in commodity and corporate tax
programs in 2009-10. Audit continues to work cooperatively with tax administrations across
Canada to ensure compliance with Alberta’s tax laws; and

+ TRA implemented the Scientific Research and Experimental Development tax credit program
and the Unclaimed Personal Property and Vested Property Act.

Goal 5 Linked to Core Business 4 - Investment, Treasury and Risk Management

Sound investment, treasury and risk management
The Minister of Finance and Enterprise sets the long term asset allocation policies and guidelines
for the funds under his administration, based on advice from the Treasury and Risk Management

division and Alberta Investment Management Corporation (AIMCo). It is expected that the asset
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allocation decision will be responsible for most of the funds’ returns. AIMCo implements these
policies through a wide range of investment products that they have developed to meet their clients’
needs with respect to returns and risk tolerances. AIMCo will add incremental returns through its
tactical asset allocation and security selection decisions.

Due to direct borrowing for capital purposes and to repay an outstanding loan to the Teacher’s
Pension Plan, the un-matured debt of the Province increased by $2.76 billion at March 31, 2010.
Consequently, the associated debt servicing costs increased by $6 million to $214 million in
2009-10.

Other activity in the Investment, Treasury and Risk Management business included:

- Maintained a strong position for recovery with nearly $15 billion in emergency savings to protect
and provide the things that matter most to Albertans, including health care, education, the
environment, and support for those who need it;

*  The Ministry saved taxpayers hundreds of millions of dollars over the long term, by borrowing
almost $1.2 billion to repay money owed to the post-1992 Teacher’s Pension Plan which had
been borrowed to pay pension benefits related to pre-1992 service. Had the government not
opted to borrow the money, it would have continued to pay interest for over 30 years at a
prescribed interest rate set currently at 6.75 per cent rather than paying about 4 per cent - the
rate at which funds were borrowed,;

«  Budget 2009 announced a three year plan to borrow $3.3 billion for capital purposes. During
2009-10, about $1.5 billion of this amount was raised primarily by borrowing in the Canadian
capital markets. The amount borrowed also included $79 million which was raised by selling
Alberta Capital Bonds to Albertans in February 2010. The province is not borrowing to support
operating expense;

+  Transfers of $48.4 million to Advanced Education for the Access to the Future Fund; and

« A $21.9 million transfer from the Alberta Cancer Legacy Prevention Fund to Health.

Goal 6 Linked to Core Business 5 - Financial sector and pensions

Effective regulation of financial products and services
Albertans need to know the financial services and products they receive are secure.

Alberta Finance and Enterprise currently monitors 784 private sector pension plans. Of these, 694
are active, 10 are in the process of being registered, five are suspended, and 75 are in the process
of winding up. These plans have 241,775 active members. Total contributions for the year were
approximately $2.3 billion and the total market value of assets was approximately $25.6 billion for
the year ended March 31, 2010.

During 2009-10, significant analysis was completed, in collaboration with all Canadian
governments, regarding pension and retirement income system reform. Alberta public consultations
were also opened to elicit input on improvements to the Canadian retirement savings system.

In addition, Alberta initiated a reference to the Alberta Court of Appeal regarding the
constitutionality of the federal government’s proposal for a single national securities regulator, and

joined Québec as an intervener in a similar reference to the Québec Court of Appeal. Alberta also
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intervened in the federal government’s reference to the Supreme Court of Canada to determine the
validity of its draft securities legislation.

Goal 7 Linked to Core Business 5 - Financial sector and pensions

Sustainable public sector pension plans in Alberta

Finance and Enterprise provides policy support to government as trustee and sponsor of several
public sector pension plans.

In accordance with the terms of the November 2007 agreement between Alberta teachers and the
government, on September 1, 2009, the Alberta government assumed full responsibility for funding
the pre-1992 portion of the Teachers’ Pension Plan. In 2009, Finance and Enterprise implemented
the necessary legislative changes to enable this transition and will be responsible for managing the
funding.

The department worked closely with pension service agencies and pension boards to jointly
develop Mandate and Roles Documents for each agency that meets the requirements of the
Alberta Public Agencies Governance Act. This Act and the development of such documents
promotes the continuous improvement of good governance.

Goal 8 Linked to Core Business 5 - Financial sector and pensions

Accessible financial services for Albertans and local
authorities

Alberta’s dynamic economy and entrepreneurial spirit requires readily accessible and
technologically advanced financial services and products. In addition to private sector financial
institutions, the Alberta Treasury Branches (ATB Financial) and the Alberta Capital Finance
Authority (ACFA) make financial services and products available to Albertans and local authorities.

ATB Financial is a full-service financial institution serving over 685,000 Albertans through 165
branches and 131 agencies in Alberta. About 60 per cent of its loans are in residential mortgages
and consumer loans, with the balance divided between commercial, agricultural and independent
business loans.

ATB’s net income increased to $127.5 million for 2009-10 from the previous year’s result of

$6.4 million, which reflected $224.8 million in provisions for asset-backed commercial paper
(ABCP). Included within the net income for this year is the effect of ATB recording its first payment
in lieu of tax of $38.1 million. Excluding last year's ABCP provision and this year’s payment in lieu
of tax, ATB’s adjusted net income slipped $66.2 million (28.6 per cent) from the previous year
primarily because of a decrease in other income, an increase in non-interest expenses and an
increase in provisions for credit losses. Total assets were $25.4 billion (down 4.0 per cent from the
previous year); and total equity increased to over $1.80 billion.

ATB’s return on average assets before ABCP and the payment in lieu of tax was 0.62 per cent for
the year, above the targeted return, as a result of the net interest spread of 2.68 per cent on
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average earning assets being higher than the year’s target range of 2.30 per cent to 2.40 per cent.
During the year, ATB exceeded its targeted levels for net interest spread through increases in
yields from corporate loan products.

ACFA provides financing for capital projects to a variety of local authorities including municipalities,
health authorities, school boards, post-secondary institutions and airport authorities throughout the
province. The cost to Alberta local authorities of borrowing from ACFA compared to other
municipality/aggregating agencies for a comparable loan was the lowest of comparable cases for
2009.

Ministry Expense by Function

2009-10 2009-10 2008-09
Budget Actual Actual
Health 114 104 97
Education 91 38 82
Agriculture, Resource Management
and Economic Development 50 52 48
Regional Planning and Development 310 154 256
Protection of Persons and Property 42 33 31
General Government 801 807 653
Debt Servicing 181 186 182
Pension Provisions 801 356 1,821
Total Expense by Function $ 2,390 $1,730 $3,170
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MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE

Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2010

Auditor’'s Report

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Revenues

2 Budget

3 Expenses by Object

4 Valuation Adjustments

5 Cash and Temporary Investments

6 Accrued Interest and Accounts Receivable
7 Portfolio Investments

8 Equity in Commercial Enterprises

9 Loans and Advances to Government Entities
10 Other Loans and Advances

11 Tangible Capital Assets

12 Accrued Interest and Accounts Payable
13 Unmatured Debt

14 Debt of Alberta Capital Finance Authority
15 Liability for Pension Obligations

16 Other Accrued Liabilities

17 Related Party Transactions
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MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the Legislative Assembly

| have audited the consolidated statements of financial position of the Ministry of Finance and Enterprise as at

March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the consolidated statements of operations and cash flows for the years then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Ministry of Finance and Enterprise’s management. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Ministry as at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA)
Auditor General

Edmonton, Alberta
June 4, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.

28 2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report



MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended March 31

($ millions)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual
(Schedule 2)

Revenues (Schedules 1 and 2)
Income taxes $ 11,006 $ 12,631 $ 12,960
Other taxes 2,014 1,905 1,913
Transfers from Government of Canada 39 37 20
Net investment income (loss) (Note 11) 1,697 3,351 (2,023)
Net income from commercial operations (Note 11) 156 137 15
Premiums, fees and licences 60 99 62
Internal government transfers 1 - 56
Other 210 195 180
15,183 18,355 13,183

Expenses (Schedules 2 and 3)
Fiscal planning and economic analysis 5 4 4
Ministry support services 10 11 10
Enterprise 23 21 24
Tax and revenue management 53 57 55
Investment, treasury and risk management (Note 12) 490 448 433
Financial sector and pensions 470 305 398
Teachers' pre-1992 pension liability funding 356 341 242
Valuation adjustments (Schedule 4) 801 357 1,822

Debt servicing costs

General government 161 166 157
School boards 20 20 25
2,389 1,730 3,170
Net operating results $ 12,794 $ 16,625 $ 10,013

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

As At March 31

($ millions)
2010 2009
Assets
Cash and temporary investments (Schedule 5) $ 4,775 $ 7,202
Accrued interest and accounts receivable (Schedule 6) 1,778 2,170
Portfolio investments (Schedule 7) 32,003 31,426
Equity in commercial enterprises (Schedule 8) 1,997 1,948
Loans and advances to government entities (Schedule 9) 1,379 1,311
Other loans and advances (Schedule 10) 8,273 6,959
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 11) a7 21
$ 50,252 $ 51,037
Liabilities
Bank overdraft $ 875 $ 1,258
Accrued interest and accounts payable (Schedule 12) 1,477 1,630
Unmatured debt (Schedule 13) 4,706 1,990
Debt of Alberta Capital Finance Authority (Schedule 14) 8,100 6,812
Pension obligations (Schedule 15) 8,952 9,781
Other accrued liabilities (Schedule 16) 169 212
24,279 21,683
Net Assets
Net assets at beginning of year 29,354 32,243
Adjustment to opening net assets - (159)
Net operating results 16,625 10,013
Net financing provided for general revenues (Note 3 (b)) (19,929) (12,829)
Change in accumulated unrealized gains (Schedule 8) (77) 86
Net assets at end of year 25,973 29,354

$ 50,252 $ 51,037

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31

Operating activities
Net operating results
Non-cash items included in net operating results

Decrease (increase) in receivables
(Decrease) increase in payables
Other

Cash provided by operating activities

Capital activities
Purchase of tangible capital assets
Cash applied to capital activities

Investing activities
Proceeds from disposals, repayments and redemptions of
portfolio investments
Portfolio investments purchased
Repayments of loans and advances
Loans and advances made
Cash (applied to) provided by investing activities

Financing activities
Debt issues
Debt retirement
Payment of Teachers' pre-1992 pension plan obligation
Grants for school construction debenture principal repayment
Net financing provided for general revenues
Cash applied to financing activities

(Decrease) Increase in cash

Cash and temporary investments, net of bank overdraft,
at beginning of year

Cash and temporary investments, net of bank overdraft,
at end of year

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these consolidated financial statements.
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($ millions)
2010 2009

$ 16,625 $ 10,013
121 1,974
16,746 11,987
403 (463)

(214) 115

(79) 112
16,856 11,751
(40) (10)

(40) (10)
25,808 18,621
(26,133) (14,513)
2,445 2,451
(3,829) (3,618)
(1,709) 2,941
14,311 10,700
(10,303) (10,091)
(1,186) -
(44) (52)
(19,929) (12,829)
(17,151) (12,272)
(2,044) 2,410
5,944 3,534

$ 3,900 $ 5,944
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MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31

(All dollar amounts in millions, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY

The Minister of Finance and Enterprise has been designated as responsible for various Acts by the Government
Organization Act, Chapter G-10, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, and its regulations. To fulfill these responsibilities,
the Minister of Finance and Enterprise administers the organizations listed below. The authority under which each
organization operates is also listed. Together, these organizations form the Ministry of Finance and Enterprise (the

Ministry).

Department of Finance and Enterprise (the
Department)

Alberta Cancer Prevention Legacy Fund

Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical
Research Endowment Fund

Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund

Alberta Heritage Scholarship Fund

Alberta Heritage Science and Engineering
Research Endowment Fund

Alberta Risk Management Fund
Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers
Reserve Fund

Supplementary Retirement Plan Reserve
Fund

Alberta Capital Finance Authority
Alberta Insurance Council

Alberta Local Authorities Pension Plan Corp.

Alberta Investment Management
Corporation

32

Government Organization Act, Chapter G-10, Revised Statutes of
Alberta 2000

Alberta Cancer Prevention Legacy Act, Chapter A-14.2

Alberta Research and Innovation Act, Chapter A-31.7, Statutes of
Alberta 2009

Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund Act, Chapter A-23, Revised
Statutes of Alberta 2000

Alberta Heritage Scholarship Act, Chapter A-24, Revised Statutes of
Alberta 2000

Alberta Research and Innovation Act, Chapter A-31.7, Statutes of
Alberta 2009

Financial Administration Act, Chapter F-12, Revised Statutes of
Alberta 2000

Treasury Board Directive pursuant to the Financial Administration Act,
Chapter F-12, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000

Treasury Board Directive pursuant to the Financial Administration Act,
Chapter F-12, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000

Alberta Capital Finance Authority Act, Chapter A-14.5, Revised
Statutes of Alberta 2000

Insurance Act, Chapter I-3, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000
Incorporated under the Business Corporations Act, Chapter B-9,

Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000

Alberta Investment Management Corporation Act, Chapter A-26.5
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MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Note 1 (continued)

Alberta Pensions Services Incorporated under the Business Corporations Act, Chapter B-9, Revised
Corporation Statutes of Alberta 2000
Alberta Securities Commission Incorporated June 1, 1995 under the Securities Act, Chapter S-4, Revised

Statutes of Alberta 2000
ATB Financial and its subsidiaries  Alberta Treasury Branches Act, Chapter A-37, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000

Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Credit Union Act, Chapter C-32, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000
Corporation

N.A. Properties (1994) Ltd. Amalgamated corporation under the Business Corporations Act, Chapter B-9,
Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000

Gainers Inc. Incorporated under the Business Corporations Act, Chapter B-9, Revised
Statutes of Alberta 2000

NOTE 2 PURPOSE

The Ministry’s core businesses are:
a) Fiscal planning and economic analysis,
b) Investment, treasury and risk management,
c) Tax and revenue management,
d) Regulation of pensions, insurance and financial institutions, and
e) Enterprise — industry, regional, and northern economic development.

NOTE 3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING
PRACTICES

These financial statements are prepared primarily in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles for the public sector as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants. The PSAB financial statement presentation standard for government summary
financial statements has been modified to more appropriately reflect the nature of the Ministry. These financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the following accounting policies.

a) METHOD OF CONSOLIDATION

The accounts of the Department, the Alberta Cancer Prevention Legacy Fund, the Alberta Heritage Foundation for
Medical Research Endowment Fund, the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund, the Alberta Heritage Scholarship
Fund, the Alberta Heritage Science and Engineering Research Endowment Fund, the Alberta Risk Management
Fund, Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Reserve Fund, Supplementary Retirement Plan Reserve Fund,
Alberta Capital Finance Authority, Alberta Insurance Council, Alberta Local Authorities Pension Plan Corp., Alberta
Pensions Services Corporation, Alberta Securities Commission and Alberta Investment Management Corporation are
consolidated after adjusting them to a basis consistent with the accounting policies described below in (c). Intra-
ministry transactions (revenues, expenses, capital, investing and financing transactions, and related asset and liability
accounts) have been eliminated.

The accounts of Provincial agencies and other entities designated as commercial enterprises (ATB Financial and its
subsidiaries, Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation, and N.A. Properties (1994) Ltd.), and the commercial
Crown-controlled corporation (Gainers Inc.) are reported on the modified equity basis; the equity being computed in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles applicable to these entities.
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MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Note 3 (continued)

The reporting period of some of the Provincial agencies is other than March 31. Transactions of these agencies that
have occurred during the period to March 31, 2010 and that significantly affect the consolidation have been recorded.

b)

c)

34

NET FINANCING PROVIDED FOR GENERAL REVENUES

All departments of the Government of Alberta operate within the General Revenue Fund (the Fund). The Minister
of Finance and Enterprise administers the Fund. All cash receipts of departments are deposited into the Funds
and all cash disbursements made by departments are paid from the Fund. Net financing provided for general
revenues is the difference between all cash deposits by other departments and all cash disbursements made on
their behalf by the Department of Finance and Enterprise.

BASIS OF FINANCIAL REPORTING

Revenues
All revenues are reported using the accrual method of accounting.

Corporate income tax revenue is recognized when installments are received from taxpayer corporations.
Corporate income tax refunds payable are accrued based on the prior year’s corporate income tax refunds paid
on assessments. Corporate income tax receipts from corporations in anticipation of an upward reassessment of
Alberta income tax payable are described as corporate income tax receipts in abeyance and recorded as
accounts payable.

Personal income tax is recognized on an accrual basis based on an economic estimate of the various
components of personal income tax for the fiscal year. Gross personal income tax for the taxation year is a key
component of the estimate for the fiscal year.

The Provincial tax system is predicated on self-assessment where taxpayers are expected to understand the tax
laws and comply with them. This has an impact on the completeness of tax revenues when taxpayers fail to
comply with tax laws, for example, if they do not report all of their income. The Department has implemented
systems and controls in order to detect and correct situations where taxpayers are not complying with the various
acts it administers. These systems and controls include performing audits of taxpayer records when determined
necessary by Tax and Revenue Administration. However, such procedures cannot identify all sources of
unreported income or other cases of non-compliance with tax laws. The Department does not estimate the
amount of unreported tax.

Internal Government Transfers

Internal government transfers are transfers between entities within the government reporting entity where the
entity making the transfer does not receive any goods or services directly in return.

Expenses

Expenses represent the cost of resources consumed during the year on Ministry operations as well as debt
servicing costs. Expenses include amortization of tangible capital assets. Grants are recognized as expenses
when authorized, eligibility criteria if any are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amounts can be made.

Pension costs included in these statements comprise the cost of employer contributions for current service of
employees during the year and additional government and employer contributions for service relating to prior
years.

Certain expenses, primarily for office space and legal advice, incurred on behalf of the Ministry by other
ministries are not reflected in the consolidated statements of operations. Schedule 17 discloses information on
these related party transactions.

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report



MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Note 3 (continued)

Valuation Adjustments

Valuation adjustments include changes in the valuation allowances used to reflect financial assets at their net
recoverable or other appropriate value. Valuation adjustments also represent the change in management’s
estimate of future payments arising from obligations relating to guarantees, indemnities, pension obligations,
loans repayable from future appropriations, and accrued employee vacation entitlements.

Valuation adjustments for pension obligations include interest on the Ministry’s share of the unfunded liability and
amortization of deferred adjustments over the expected average remaining service life of employees.

Derivative Contracts

Income and expense from derivative contracts are included in investment income or debt servicing costs. Certain
derivative contracts, which are primarily interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps, are
designated as hedges of market risks for purposes of hedge accounting. Hedge accounting recognizes gains
and losses from derivatives in the same period as the gains and losses of the specific assets and liabilities being
hedged.

Where a hedge relationship is designated, the hedge is documented at inception. The documentation identifies
the specific asset or liability being hedged, the risk that is being hedged, type of derivative used and the
matching of critical terms of both the hedged asset or liability and the hedging derivative for purposes of
measuring effectiveness. The derivative must be highly effective in accomplishing the objective of offsetting
either changes in the fair value or cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged both at inception and over the
life of the hedge.

Derivative contracts not designated as hedges for purposes of hedge accounting, which are primarily bond index
swaps, equity index swaps, equity index futures contracts and forward foreign exchange contracts, are recorded
at fair value.

The estimated amounts receivable and payable from derivative contracts are included in accrued interest
receivable and payable respectively.

Assets

Financial assets of cash and temporary investments and accrued interest and accounts receivable are limited to
financial claims on other organizations, tax payers, employees and other individuals.

Portfolio investments, which are investments authorized by legislation to provide income for the long term or for
other special purposes, are carried at cost. Cost includes amortization of discount or premium using the straight
line method over the life of the investments. Realized gains and losses on disposals of these investments are
included in the determination of net operating results for the year. Where there has been a loss in value of an
investment that is other than a temporary decline, the investment is written down to recognize the loss. The
written down value is deemed to be the new cost.

Loans are recorded at cost less any allowance for credit loss. Where there is no longer reasonable assurance of
timely collection of the full amount of principal and interest of a loan, a provision for credit loss is made and the
carrying amount of the loan is reduced to its estimated realizable amount.

Assets acquired by right are not included. Tangible capital assets of the Ministry are recorded at historical cost
and amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets (see Schedule 11). The
threshold for capitalizing new systems development is $250 thousand and the threshold for all other capital
assets is $5 thousand.
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Note 3 (continued)
Liabilities

Liabilities representing present obligations of the Ministry to external organizations and individuals arising from
transactions or events occurring prior to the year end are recorded to the extent there is an appropriate basis of
measurement and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. Debentures included in unmatured debt
are recorded at the face amount of the issue less unamortized discount, which includes issue expenses and
hedging costs.

Income or expense on interest rate swaps and forward interest rate agreements used to manage interest rate
exposure is recorded as an adjustment to debt servicing costs. The exchange gain or loss on the foreign
exchange contracts used to manage currency exposure is deferred and amortized over the life of the contract.

Foreign Currency

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the year end rate of exchange.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using average rates of exchange, except for
hedged foreign currency transactions which are translated at rates of exchange established by the terms of the
forward exchange contracts.

Exchange gains and losses that arise on translation of fixed term foreign currency denominated monetary items
are deferred and amortized over the life of the contract.

Amortization of deferred exchange gains and losses and other exchange differences on unhedged transactions
are included in the determination of net operating results for the year.

Measurement Uncertainty

Estimates are used in accruing revenues and expenses in circumstances where the actual accrued revenues
and expenses are unknown at the time the financial statements are prepared. Uncertainty in the determination of
the amount at which an item is recognized in financial statements is known as measurement uncertainty. Such
uncertainty exists when there is a variance between the recognized amount and another reasonably possible
amount, as there is whenever estimates are used.

Measurement uncertainty that is material to these financial statements exists in the accrual of personal and
corporate income taxes, the valuation of private investments and hedge funds and the provisions for pension
obligations (see Schedule 15). The nature of the uncertainty in these items arises from several factors such as
the effect on accrued income taxes of the verification of taxable income, the effect of valuation of private
investments and hedge funds compared to what is ultimately realized, and the effect on accrued pension
obligations of actual experience compared to assumptions.

Private investments and hedge funds of $3,886 million (2009 - $3,896 million), see Schedule 7, are subject to
measurement uncertainly as the fair value may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had
a ready market for these investments existed.

Personal income tax revenue, totaling $7,877 million (2009: $8,708 million), see Schedule 1, is subject to
measurement uncertainty due primarily to the use of economic estimates of personal income growth. Personal
income growth is inherently difficult to estimate due to subsequent revisions to personal income data. The
estimate of personal income growth used in determining personal income tax for the current fiscal year is 1.5%.

Corporate income tax revenue, totaling $4,754 million (2009: $4,252 million), see Schedule 1, is subject to

measurement uncertainty due primarily to the timing differences between tax collected and future tax
assessments. The Department records corporate income tax revenue as installments are received from taxpayer
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Note 3 (continued)

corporations. Corporate income tax refunds payable are accrued based on the prior year’s corporate income tax
refunds paid on assessments.

Pension provisions of $356 million (2009: $1,821 million), Schedule 4 and Schedule 15, are subject to
measurement uncertainty because a Plan’s actual experience may differ significantly from assumptions used in
the calculation of the Plan’s accrued benefits.

While best estimates have been used for reporting items subject to measurement uncertainty, management
considers that it is possible, based on existing knowledge, that changes in future conditions in the near term
could require a material change in the recognized amounts. Near term is defined as a period of time not to
exceed one year from the date of the financial statements.

NOTE 4 VALUATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Due to their short term nature, the fair values of cash and temporary investments, accrued interest and accounts
receivable, bank overdraft, accrued interest and accounts payable, and other accrued liabilities are estimated to
approximate their book values.

The methods used to determine the fair values of portfolio investments are explained in the following paragraphs.

Public fixed-income securities and equities are valued at the year-end closing sale price or the average of the
latest bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.

Mortgages and certain non-public provincial debentures are valued based on the net present value of future cash
flows. These cash flows are discounted using appropriate interest rate premiums over similar Government of
Canada benchmark bonds trading in the market.

The fair value of alternative investments including absolute return strategy investments, investments in limited
partnerships, private investment funds, private equities and securities with limited marketability is estimated
using methods such as cost, discounted cash flows, earnings multiples, prevailing market values for instruments
with similar characteristics and other pricing models as appropriate.

Real estate investments are reported at their most recent appraised value, net of any liabilities against the real
property. Real estate properties are appraised annually by qualified external real estate appraisers using
methods such as replacement cost, discounted cash flows, earnings multiples, prevailing market values for
properties with similar characteristics and other pricing models as appropriate.

As quoted market prices are not readily available for private and alternative investments and real estate,
estimated fair values may not reflect amounts that could be realized upon immediate sale, nor amounts that may
ultimately be realized. Accordingly, the estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would
have been used had a ready market existed for these investments.

The fair value of loans and advances made under the authority of the Alberta Capital Finance Authority Act is based
on the net present value of future cash flows discounted using the Alberta Capital Finance Authority’s (the Authority)
current cost of borrowing. Fair values of other loans and advances are not reported due to there being no organized
financial market for the instruments and it is not practicable within constraints of timeliness or cost to estimate the fair
values with sufficient reliability. The fair value of unmatured debt and debt held by the Authority is an approximation of
its fair value to the holder.
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Note 4 (continued)

The fair value of derivative contracts relating to portfolio investments is included in the fair value of portfolio
investments. The estimated amount receivable or payable from derivative contracts at the reporting date is
determined by the following methods:

Equity and bond index swaps are valued based on changes in the appropriate market based index net of
accrued floating rate interest. Forward foreign exchange contracts and equity index futures contracts are valued
based on quoted market prices. Interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued based on
discounted cash flows using current market yields and exchange rates. Credit default swaps are valued based
on discounted cash flows using current market yields and calculated default probabilities. Options to enter into
interest rate swap contracts are valued based on discounted cash flows using current market yields and volatility
parameters which measure change in the underlying swap.

At the year end, the fair values of investments and any other assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency
are translated at the year end exchange rate.

NOTE 5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
a) Liability Management

The objective of the Ministry's liability management program is to achieve the lowest cost on debt within an
acceptable degree of variability of debt servicing costs. In order to achieve this objective, the Ministry manages
four risks: interest rate risk, currency exchange risk, credit risk, and refinancing risk. The Ministry manages these
four risks within approved policy guidelines.

The management of these risks and the policy guidelines apply to the Ministry’s unmatured debt, excluding debt
raised to fund requirements of provincial corporations. Debt of provincial corporations is managed separately in
relation to their assets.

The Ministry has decided that the most effective liability risk management strategy would be to allow existing
debt instruments to mature in accordance with their terms.

b) Asset Management

A large percentage of the Ministry's portfolio investments are in the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund
(Heritage Fund). Income and financial returns of the Heritage Fund are exposed to credit risk and price risk.
Price risk is comprised of currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Risk is reduced through asset class
diversification, quality constraints on fixed-income instruments, and restrictions on amounts exposed to countries
designated as emerging markets. The investment objective is to invest in a diversified portfolio to maximize long-
term returns at an acceptable level of risk. The policy asset mix is: interest-bearing securities 20%, equities 50%,
and inflation sensitive and alternative investments 30%.

The investments in the Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research Endowment Fund, the Alberta
Heritage Scholarship Fund and the Alberta Heritage Science and Engineering Research Endowment Fund are
managed to provide an annual level of income for the purpose of making grants to researchers in the fields of
medicine, science and engineering, and to students.

The investments of the Department are used to repay debt as it matures, to provide funding for the capital plan,

and to help protect operating and capital spending from short-term declines in revenue and the costs of
emergencies, disasters, and settlements with First Nations.
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NOTE 6 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Obligations to outside organizations in respect of contracts entered into before March 31, 2010 amounted to
$456 million (2009: $344 million). These amounts include obligations under operating leases which expire on various
dates. The aggregate amounts payable for the unexpired terms of these leases are as follows:

($ millions)
2010-11 $ 141
2011-12 101
2012-13 50
2013-14 37
2014-15 21
Thereafter 106
S 456

NOTE 7 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Set out below are details of contingent liabilities resulting from guarantees, indemnities and litigation, other than those
reported as liabilities.

Any losses arising from the settlement of contingent liabilities are treated as current year expenses.
a) Guarantees and Indemnities

The Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation, operating under the authority of the Credit Union Act
guarantees the repayment of all deposits with Alberta credit unions, including accrued interest. The Credit Union
Act provides that the Province of Alberta, through the Department, will ensure that this obligation of the
Corporation is carried out. At December 31, 2009, credit unions in Alberta held deposits totaling $16,021 million
(2008: $15,103 million). Substantial assets are available from credit unions to safeguard the Department from
risk of losing from its potential obligation under the Act.

The repayment of all deposits without limit, including accrued interest, is guaranteed by the Province of Alberta,
through the Department, in respect of which the Department assesses an annual deposit guarantee fee payable
by ATB Financial. Payments under the guarantee are under authority of a supply vote.

The Ministry has pledged a $300 million indemnity as its share of funding support under the senior funding facility
established under the Montreal Accord as outlined in Note 11.

ATB Financial, at March 31, 2010, had a potential liability under guarantees and letters of credit amounting to
$333 million (2009: $320 million).

The Department had other Indemnities and guarantees, at March 31, 2010, of $1 million (2009: $1 million) and
N.A. Properties of $1 million (2009 - $1 million). Payments under guarantees are a statutory charge on the
Ministry.

b) Legal Actions

At March 31, 2010, the Ministry was involved in various legal actions through the consolidated entities, the
outcomes of which are not determinable. Accruals have been made in specific instances where it is probable that
losses will be incurred which can be reasonably estimated. The resulting loss, if any, from claims in excess of the
amounts accrued cannot be determined.
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Note 7 (continued)

Of the various legal actions, the Department is jointly or separately named as a defendant in twenty-six

(2009: twenty-seven) legal claims. Of the twenty-six claims, twenty have specified amounts totaling
approximately $124 million (2009: $127 million) and six claims have no specified amount. Four (2009: six) claims
totaling $1 million (2009: $1 million) are covered by the Alberta Risk Management Fund. In addition, some taxes
assessed were under objection and some were being appealed. The resulting loss, if any, cannot be reasonably
estimated.

NOTE 8 DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts are financial contracts, the value of which is derived from the value of underlying assets,
liabilities, indices, interest rates or currency rates. The Ministry uses derivative contracts to enhance investment
return, manage exposure to interest and foreign currency risks, and for asset mix management purposes. Associated
with these instruments are credit risks that could expose the Ministry to potential losses. Credit risk relates to the
possibility that a loss may occur from the failure of another party to perform according to the terms of a contract.
Credit exposure to counterparties is insignificant in relation to the notional principal amount. The notional value of a
derivative contract represents the amount to which a rate or price is applied in order to calculate the exchange of
cash flows. The notional amounts, upon which payments are based, are not indicative of the credit risk associated
with derivative contracts. Current credit exposure is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding
contracts in a favourable position (positive fair value). The Ministry limits its credit exposure by dealing with counter-
parties with good credit ratings.

The following is a summary of the fair values and maturity schedules of the Ministry’s derivative contracts by type.

($ millions)
Maturity 2010
Contract Net
Under 1to3 Over Notional Fair
1 Year Years 3 Years Amount (a) (c) Value (b) (c)

Interest rate swap contracts 16% 10% 74% $ 12,911 $ 31
Forward foreign exchange contracts 97% 3% - 5,047 58
Credit default swap contracts 29% 39% 32% 3,925 (31)
Equity index swap contracts 90% 3% 7% 3,418 130
Equity index futures contracts 100% - - 2,211 149
Forward commodity contracts 79% 21% - 1,622 1
Swap option contracts 95% 5% - 631 3)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 26% 29% 45% 566 43
Embedded derivatives 19% 15% 66% 371 (46)
$ 30,702 $ 332

a) The notional amounts, upon which payments are based, are not indicative of the credit risk associated with derivative
contracts. Current credit exposure is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding contracts in a
favourable position (positive fair value). Credit exposure is limited by dealing with counter parties believed to have good
credit rating (A+ or greater).

b)  The method for determining the fair value of derivative contracts is described in Note 3 (c).
¢) Includes derivatives of ATB Financial with a contract notional amount of $6,570 million and a net fair value of $80 million.

The exposure to credit risk on these derivatives of $227 million is reduced by entering into netting agreements of
$8 million and collateral agreements with counter parties of $87 million leaving a residual credit exposure of $132 million.
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NOTE 9 TRUST AND OTHER FUNDS UNDER ADMINISTRATION
The Ministry administers trust and other funds that are regulated funds consisting of public money over which the
Legislature has no power of appropriation. Because the Ministry has no equity in the funds and administers them for

the purposes of various trusts, they are not included in the Ministry's consolidated financial statements.

As at March 31, 2010, trust and other funds under administration were as follows:

($ millions)
2010 2009

Local Authorities Pension Plan Fund $ 15,803 $ 13,224
Public Service Pension Plan Fund 5,617 4,578
The Workers' Compensation Board Accident Fund 1,416 1,421
Universities Academic Pension Plan Fund 2,336 1,903
Management Employees Pension Plan Fund 2,362 1,907
Special Forces Pension Plan Fund 1,370 1,145
Other 217 170

$ 29,121 $ 24,348

NOTE 10 DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

The Department sponsors and participates in the multi-employer pension plans; Management Employees Pension
Plan, Public Service Pension Plan, and the Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers. The
Department’s annual contribution for employees in these plans is $6 million (2009: $5 million).

At December 31, 2009, the Management Employees Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $483 million

(2008: $569 million), the Public Service Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $1,729 million (2008: $1,188 million)
and the Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers reported a deficiency of $40 million

(2008: $7 million).

The Department also participates in two multi-employer Long Term Disability Income Continuance Plans.

At March 31, 2010, the Bargaining Unit Plan reported a deficiency of $8 million (2009: $33 million) and the
Management, Opted Out and Excluded Plan reported a surplus of $7 million (2009: deficiency of $1 million). The
expense for these two plans is limited to the employer’s annual contributions for the year.

NOTE 11 ASSET BACKED SECURITIES

The Canadian market for third party or non-bank sponsored asset-backed commercial paper (“ABCP”) suffered a
liquidity disruption in mid-August 2007, following which a group of market participants including major investors,
banks, asset providers, dealers, and third-party sponsors, agreed to work collectively to restructure this market
segment. This agreement, which came to be known as the Montreal Accord (“the Accord”) was finalized on
January 21, 2009. The ABCP subject to the Accord were restructured into new longer-term floating rate notes that
more closely matched the maturities of the underlying assets.

At March 31, 2010, the Ministry through its investments in the Department, the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund,
the Alberta Heritage Scholarship Fund, the Alberta Heritage Science and Engineering Research Endowment Fund,
the Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research Endowment Fund, and the Alberta Cancer Prevention Legacy
Fund incurred write-downs of investments related to the Accord totaling $0.5 million (2009: $2 million). These charges
are included in net investment income on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The value of investments in
ABCP at March 31, 2010 totaled $52 million at fair value and $63 million at cost (2009: $59 million at fair value and
$63 million at cost).
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Note 11 (continued)

Investments held by the ATB Financial that are consolidated on the modified equity basis had a recovery on ABCP of
$0.5 million (2009: provision of $225 million). This recovery (2009: provision) is included in net income from
commercial operations on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. As at March 31, 2010, the remaining
estimated fair value of investments in ABCP was $614 million (2009: $702 million).

A senior funding facility was also established as part of the Accord to help investors and asset providers to achieve a
stable and effective restructuring agreement. The participants of this facility are the governments of Canada, Quebec,
Alberta and Ontario. The Government of Alberta has pledged a $300 million indemnity as its share of funding support.

Although the Montreal Accord restructuring successfully closed in January 2009, there remains continued uncertainty
regarding the amount and timing of cash flows and the value of the assets that underlie the new investment structure.
Consequently, it is possible that the ultimate fair value of these assets may vary significantly from current estimates
and that the magnitude of any such difference could be material to our financial results.

NOTE 12 EXTERNAL INVESTMENT EXPENSES

The Ministry manages, through the Alberta Investment Management Corporation (AIMCo), the investment assets of
the Government of Alberta and several external entities, such as public sector pension plans and long-term disability
funds. In the regular course of its duties AIMCo incurs fees from external managers on behalf of the Ministry and the
external entities as follows:

($ millions)
2010 2009
Incurred by Ministry of Finance and Enterprise $ 67 $ 72
Incurred by external entities 84 101
$ 151 $ 173

The Ministry received external investment management fee revenue of $84 (2009: $101) that has been reported on
Schedule 1.

NOTE 13 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures have been reclassified, where necessary, to conform to 2010 presentation.

NOTE 14 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Senior Financial Officer and the Deputy Minister.
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Schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All dollar amounts in millions, unless otherwise stated)

REVENUES

Income taxes
Personal income tax
Corporate income tax

Other taxes
Tobacco tax
Fuel tax
Insurance taxes
Alberta tourism levy
Special broker tax
Financial institutions capital

Transfers from Government of Canada
Community Development Trust
Unconditional subsidy

Net investment income
Investment income (loss)

Net income from commercial operations
ATB Financial
Other

Premiums, fees, and licences
ATB Financial payment in lieu of taxes
ATB Financial deposit guarantee fee
Alberta Securities Commission
Alberta Insurance Council
Other

Internal government transfers
Internal government transfers

Other
Pensions administration
Service revenue
Insurance services
Securities settlements
Refunds of expenditure and miscellaneous

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report

March 31
Schedule 1
($ millions)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual
$ 8,559 $ 7,877 $ 8,708
2,447 4,754 4,252
11,006 12,631 12,960
915 864 828
725 701 718
291 272 285
76 60 74
7 7 8
- 1 -
2,014 1,905 1,913
35 33 16
4 4 4
39 37 20
1,697 3,351 (2,023)
148 128 7
8 9 8
156 137 15
- 38 -
25 24 29
24 26 25
4 4 5
7 7 3
60 99 62
1 - 56
40 38 35
143 140 131
13 14 12
- 2 1
14 1 1
210 195 180
$ 15,183 $ 18,355 $ 13,183
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BUDGET Schedule 2
($ millions)
Authorized 2009-10
2009-10 Adjustments 2009-10 Supplementary Authorized
Estimates @ Budget Estimates Budget
®)
Revenues
Income taxes $ 11,006 $ - % 11,006 $ - $ 11,006
Other taxes 2,014 - 2,014 - 2,014
Transfers from Government
of Canada 39 - 39 - 39
Net investment income 1,697 - 1,697 - 1,697
Net income from commercial
operations 156 - 156 - 156
Premiums, fees, and licences 60 - 60 - 60
Internal government transfers 1 - 1 - 1
Other 210 - 210 - 210
15,183 - 15,183 - 15,183
Expenses
Fiscal planning and economic
analysis 5 - 5 - 5
Investment, treasury and
risk management 490 - 490 - 490
Financial sector and pensions 470 - 470 - 470
Tax and revenue management 53 - 58 - 53
Enterprise 23 - 23 - 28
Ministry support services 10 - 10 - 10
Teachers' pre-1992 pension
liability funding 356 - 356 - 356
Valuation adjustments 1 800 801 - 801
Debt servicing costs
General government 161 - 161 - 161
School boards 20 - 20 - 20
1,589 800 2,389 - 2,389
Net operating results $ 13594 $ (800) $ 12,794 $ - $ 12,794

a) Adjustments consisted of $800 million for pension provisions.

b) Estimates were approved on May 26, 2009 and there were no supplementary estimates for the Ministry.
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EXPENSES BY OBJECT Schedule 3
($ millions)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 156 $ 137 $ 120
Supplies and services 277 232 235
Grants 254 237 240
Interest and amortization of unrealized exchange
gains and losses 441 Bill5 405
Pension liability funding 433 419 317
Interest payments on corporate tax refunds 18 25 23
Valuation adjustments (Schedule 4) 801 7 1,822
Amortization of tangible capital assets 8 7 7
Other financial transactions 1 1 1
2,389 $ 1,730 $ 3,170
VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS Schedule 4
($ millions)
2010 2009
Actual Actual
Pension provisions (Schedule 15) $ $ 356 $ 1,821
Provision for employee benefits other
than pensions 1 1
$ $ 357 $ 1,822
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CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS Schedule 5
($ millions)
2010 2009

Fixed-income securities ©
Corporate $ 2,038 $ 2,579
Provincial, direct and guaranteed 1,059 1,709
Alberta guaranteed - 115
Government of Canada, direct and guaranteed 316 1,400
Municipal 49 50
3,462 5,853
Deposit in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund ®) 1,163 1,116
Cash in bank and in transit 150 233
$ 4,775 $ 7,202

a) Fixed-income securities have an average effective yield of 0.34% (2009: 0.61%) per annum. All of the securities have terms to
maturity of less than one year (2009: less than one year).

b) The Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund is managed with the objective of providing competitive interest income to
depositors while maintaining appropriate security and liquidity of depositors’ capital. The portfolio is comprised of high-quality
short-term and mid-term fixed-income securities with a maximum term-to-maturity of three years. As at March 31, 2010,
securities held by the Fund have a time-weighted return of 1.0% per annum (2009: 3.0% per annum).

ACCRUED INTEREST AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Schedule 6
($ millions)
2010 2009
Personal income tax $ 412 $ 620
Corporate income tax 746 690
Accrued interest and receivable from sale of investments 351 342
Trade settlement receivable 25 284
Insurance taxes 79 7
ATB Financial 62 28
Fuel tax 52 61
Lottery Fund 13 26
Tobacco tax 10 9
Contributions receivable from credit union system 6 11
Tourism levy 5 5
Financial institutions capital tax 2 2
Other 16 16
1,779 2,171
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 1 1
$ 1,778 $ 2,170
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a)

b)

PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

Interest-bearing securitites
Deposits and short-term securitites
Bonds and mortages

Equities
Canadian public equitites
Global developed public equitites
Emerging markets public equitites
Private equitites

Inflation sensitive and alternative investments
Private real estate
Inflation sensitive real return bonds
Private infastructure investments
Absolute return strategy hedge funds
Timberland

Total portfolio investments

Interest-bearing securitites
Department @
Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund ®
Other entities

Average etfective market yield
Department
Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund

Of the Department’s fixed income securities 26% of the securities held had terms to maturity of less than one year.

Schedule 7
($ millions)
2010 2009
Cost Fair Cost Fair
Value Value
$ 46 $ 46 $ 45 45
19,744 20,123 19,701 19,953
19,790 20,169 19,746 19,998
2,285 2,486 2,698 2,410
5,898 6,024 5,005 4,873
49 46 80 57
755 761 735 705
8,987 9,317 8,518 8,045
1,524 1,873 1,614 2,297
95 97 1 -
688 597 565 565
825 872 907 939
94 94 75 102
3,226 3,533 3,162 3,903
$ 32,003 $ 33,019 $ 31,426 31,946
$ 15,169 $ 15,532 $ 14,805 15,227
3,586 3,590 4,034 3,870
1,035 1,047 907 901
$ 19,790 $ 20,169 $ 19,746 19,998
3.7% 3.0%
5.0% 7.2%

Fixed-income securities are also held by the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund (Heritage Fund) and had the following term

maturities based on the principal amount:

2010 2009
%
Under 1 year 3 5
1to 5years & 36
6 to 10 years 36 27
11 to 20 years 13 15
Over 20 years 15 17
100 100
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EQUITY IN COMMERCIAL ENTERPRISES

Accumulated surpluses
Accumulated surpluses at beginning of year

Total revenue
Total expense
Net revenue
Change in accumulated unrealized gains
Accumulated surpluses at end of year

Represented by

Schedule 8
($ millions)
2010 2009

$ 1,891 $ 1,790
1,065 1,227

928 1,212

137 15

(77) 86

$ 1,951 $ 1,891

Assets
Loans $ 22,539 $ 21,606
Investments 1,279 1,339
Other assets 1,761 3,710
Total assets 25,579 26,655
Liabilities
Accounts payable 779 539
Deposits 22,579 23,881
Unmatured debt 45 57
Capital deposits 225 287
Total liabilities 23,628 24,764
$ 1,951 $ 1,891
Accumulated surpluses at end of year
ATB Financial $ 1,809 $ 1,759
Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation 140 130
N.A. Properties (1994) Ltd. 2 2
1,951 1,891
Subordinated debentures in support of deposit guarantees 46 57
Equity in commercial enterprises at end of year $ 1,997 $ 1,948
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO GOVERNMENT ENTITIES Schedule 9
($ millions)
2010 2009
Agriculture Financial Services Corporation $ 1,199 $ 1,108
Alberta Social Housing Corporation 180 203
$ 1,379 $ 1,311
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OTHER LOANS AND ADVANCES Schedule 10
($ millions)
2010 2009
Alberta Capital Finance Authority (a) $ 8,141 $ 6,822
Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund Act (b) 290 294
Farm Credit Stability Act - 1
8,431 7,117
Less allowance for doubtful loans, advances, implemented

guarantees and indemnitites (b) 158 158
$ 8273 $ 6,959

a) The fair value of the Alberta Capital Finance Authority loans as at March 31, 2010 was $8,647 million
(2009: $7,305 million). Municipal loans on average yield 5.2% per annum (2009: 5.4%).

b) Other amounts under the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund Act include an 11% participating first mortgage bond with
principal and deferred interest totaling $173 million (2009: $178 million) due July 31, 2015, non-interest bearing debentures of
$114 million due July 2035, and a loan principal of $53 million due July 2046. At March 31, 2010 these investments have
carrying values excluding accrued interest of $173 million, $ nil, and $3 million respectively
(2009: $178 million, $ nil and $3 million).

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS Schedule 11
($ millions)
2010 2009
Computer
Hardware and
Equipment Software Leaseholds Total Total
Estimated useful life 10 years 5 years 10 years

Historical Cost

Beginning of year $ 5 % 54 $ 5 $ 64 $ 54

Additions 5 13 22 40 10

Disposals - including write-downs - (1) - (1) -
10 66 27 103 64

Accumulated Amortization

Beginning of year & 37 3 43 37
Amortization expense 1 11 2 14 6
Effect of disposals - 1) = @) -
4 47 5 56 43
Net book value at March 31, 2010 $ 6 $ 19 $ 22 $ 47
Net book value at March 31, 2009 $ 2 $ 18 $ 1 $ 21
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ACCRUED INTEREST AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Schedule 12
($ millions)
2010 2009
Accrued interest on unmatured debt and debt of
Alberta Capital Finance Authority $ 187 $ 153
Corporate income tax receipts in abeyance 462 532
Corporate income tax refunds payable 478 543
Community Development Trust 32 63
Other 318 339
$ 1,477 $ 1,630
UNMATURED DEBT Schedule 13
($ millions)
2010 2009
Effective  Modified Book Fair Book Fair
Rate Duration Value Value Value Value
(@) (b) (@) (@) (@) (@)
% years
Canadian dollar debt
Floating rate and short-term
fixed rate (c) 6.26 0.76 $ 493 $ 515 $ 40 $ 40
Fixed rate long-term (d) () 4.63 6.66 4,213 4,349 1,950 2,167
4.80 6.03 $ 4,706 $ 4,864 $ 1,990 $ 2,207

a) Book value represents the amount the Department owes. Fair value is an approximation of market value to the holder. The
book value, fair value and weighted average effective rate include the effect of interest rate and currency rate swaps. For non-
marketable issues, the effective rate and fair value are determined by reference to yield curves for comparable quoted issues.

b)  Modified duration is the weighted average term to maturity of the security’s cash flows (i.e. interest and principal) and is a
measure of price volatility; the greater the modified duration of a bond, the greater its percentage price volatility.

c) Floating rate debt includes short-term debt, term debt with less than one year remaining to maturity, and term debt with interest
rate reset within a year.

d) Canadian dollar fixed rate debt includes $1,009 million (2009: $679 million) held by the Canada Pension Plan Investment Fund.

e) Includes Alberta Capital Bonds with a par value of $79 million (2009 $nil) and borrowing of $1,186 million to repay the
Teachers’ Pension Plan liability.
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UNMATURED DEBT Schedule 13 (continued)

Debt principal repayment requirements at par in each of the next five years, including short-term debt maturing in
2010-11, and thereafter, are as follows:

($ millions)
2010-11 $ 544
2011-12 390
2012-13 319
2013-14 111
2014-15 1,196
Thereafter to 2024 2,170
4,730
Unamortized discount (24)
$ 4,706
None of the debt has call provisions (2009: none).
DEBT OF ALBERTA CAPITAL FINANCE AUTHORITY Schedule 14
($ millions)
2010 2009
Book Value  Fair Value Book Value  Fair Value
Alberta Capital Finance Authority
Canadian dollar fixed rate debt ® $ 5564 $ 6,316 $ 6,812 $ 7,174
Alberta Capital Finance Authority
Canadian dollar floating rate debt 2,536 2,434 - -
$ 8,100 $ 8,750 $ 6,812 $ 7,174
Effective rate per annum 5.0% 5.2%

a) Canadian dollar fixed rate debt includes $1,116 million (2009: $1,447 million) held by the Canada Pension Plan Investment
Fund.

Debt principal repayment requirements in each of the next five years, including short-term debt maturing in 2010-11
and thereafter are as follows:

($ millions)

2010-11 $ 1,270
2011-12 954
2012-13 1,675
2013-14 300
2014-15 717
Thereafter 3,184

$ 8,100
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LIABILITY FOR PENSION OBLIGATIONS

Schedule 15

The Ministry accounts for the liabilities for pension obligations that the Government of Alberta has as an employer
and as an employer for organizations that are controlled by the Province, including government sector entities and
Crown-controlled SUCH (schools, universities, colleges, hospitals) sector organizations for former and current
employees in Local Authorities Pension Plan, Management Employees Pension Plan, Supplementary Retirement
Plan for Public Service Managers, and Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan, and Public Service

Pension Plan.

The Ministry also accounts for the specific commitments made by the Government of Alberta for pre-1992 pension
obligations to the Teachers' Pension Plan, Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan,
Universities Academic Pension Plan and the Special Forces Pension Plan. In 1992 there was pension plan reform

resulting in pre and post 92 arrangements for several pension plans.

The Ministry also accounts for the obligation to the Members of the Legislative Assembly Pension Plan.

The liability for the pension obligations is as follows:

Obligations to pension plans for Government of Alberta's
employer share for former and current employees
Local Authorities Pension Plan @
Management Employees Pension Plan ®

Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers @
(d)

)
)

Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan

Obligations to pension plans for Government of Alberta's
commitment towards pre-1992 obligations
Teachers' Pension Plan
Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan ©
Universities Academic Pension Plan
Special Forces Pension Plan ®

Obligations to the Members of the Legislative Assembly 0

($ millions)

2010 2010 2010 2009
Pension Pension Payout of Pension
Obligation Provision pre ‘92  Obligation

(Recovery) loan (f)

$ 314 $ 127  $ = $ 186
92 57 - 35

40 40 - -
11 7 - 4
457 231 - 225
7,387 95 (1,186) 8,478
650 - - 650
293 27 - 266
120 8 - 112
8,450 130 (1,186) 9,506
45 (5) - 50
$ 8,952 $ 356 $ (1,186) $ 9,781

* The Local Authorities Pension Plan, Management Employees Pension Plan, Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service
Managers, Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan and Public Service Pension Plan, have reported a total
deficiency as of the pension plans’ fiscal year-ends of $6,261 million. The Government of Alberta’s share of the total deficiency,
as an employer, is $2,546 million of which $2,086 million is unamortized losses that will be amortized over the employee average
remaining service life of each plan and $3 million is due to timing differences between the pension plans’ fiscal year-ends and
March 31, 2010 resulting in the pension plan obligation reported by the Government of Alberta for these plans of $457 million.

The following provides a description of each pension obligation.

a) The Local Authorities Pension Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for eligible employees of local authorities
and approved public bodies. These include cities, towns, villages, municipal districts, hospitals, Alberta Health Services,
school divisions, school districts, colleges, technical institutes and certain commissions, foundations, agencies, libraries,
corporations, associations and societies. In accordance with the Public Sector Pension Plans Act, the actuarial
deficiencies as determined by actuarial funding valuations are expected to be funded by special payments currently
totaling 6.23% of pensionable earnings shared equally between employers and employees until December 31, 2020.

52

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report



MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

LIABILITY FOR PENSION OBLIGATIONS Schedule 15 (continued)

b) The Management Employees Pension Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for eligible management
employees of the Province of Alberta and certain approved provincial agencies and public bodies. Members of the former
Public Service Management Pension Plan who were active contributors at August 1, 1992, and have not withdrawn from
the Plan since that date, continue as members of this Plan. In accordance with the Public Sector Pension Plans Act, the
actuarial deficiencies as determined by actuarial funding valuations are expected to be funded by special payments
currently totaling 7.8% of pensionable earnings shared between employees and employers until December 31, 2017.
Current services costs are funded by employers and employees.

c) The Supplementary Retirement Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for certain public service managers of
designated employers who participate in the Management Employees Pension Plan (MEPP) and whose annual salary
exceeds the maximum pensionable salary limit under the Income Tax Act. The Plan is supplementary to the MEPP. The
contribution rates in effect at December 31, 2009 were unchanged at 10.5% of pensionable salary in excess of the
maximum pensionable salary limit for eligible employees and designated employers.

d) The Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for Judges
and Masters in Chambers of the Province of Alberta. Current service costs are funded by the Province of Alberta and plan
members at rates which are expected to provide for all benefits payable under the Plan. The rates in effect at
March 31, 2010 are 7.00% of capped salary for plan members and 16.16% of capped salary for the Province. Benefits are
payable by the Province of Alberta if assets are insufficient to pay for all benefits under the Plan.

e) The Public Service Pension Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for eligible employees of the Province of
Alberta, approved provincial agencies and public bodies. In accordance with the Public Sector Pension Plans Act, the
actuarial deficiencies as determined by an actuarial funding valuation are expected to be funded by special payments
currently totaling 2.92% of pensionable earnings shared equally between employees and employers until
December 31, 2020. Current services costs are funded by employers and employees.

f)  The Department of Finance and Enterprise assumed responsibility for the entire unfunded pre-1992 pension obligation of
the Teachers’ Pension Plan. In 2009-10 there was a repayment of $1,186 million towards the liability. As of
September 1, 2009 the costs of all benefits under the Plan are paid by the Department.

g) The Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan provides benefits to former members of the Public
Service Management Pension Plan who were retired, were entitled to receive a deferred pension or had attained 35 years
of service before August 1, 1992. The costs of all benefits under the Plan are paid by the Department.

h)  Under the Public Sector Pension Plans Act, the Department has a liability for payment of additional contributions under
defined benefit pension plans for certain employees of municipalities and post-secondary educational institutions. The
plans are the Universities Academic and the Special Forces plans.

For Universities Academic, the unfunded liability for service credited prior to January 1, 1992 is being financed by
additional contributions of 1.25% of pensionable salaries by the Department, and contributions by employers and
employees to fund the remaining amount, as determined by the plan valuation, over the period ending on or before
December 31, 2043. Employers and employees fund current service costs.

For Special Forces, the unfunded liability for service credited prior to January 1, 1992 is being financed by additional
contributions in the ratio of 45.45% by the Department and 27.27% each by employers and employees, over the period
ending on or before December 31, 2036. Current service costs are funded by employers and employees. The Act
provides that payment of all benefits arising from pensionable service prior to 1994, excluding post-1991 cost of living
adjustment benefits, is guaranteed by the Province.

i) The Department has a liability for payment of pension benefits under a defined benefit pension plan for Members of the

Legislative Assembly. Active participation in this plan was terminated as of June 1993, and no benefits can be earned for
service after this date. The costs of all benefits under the plan are paid by the Department.

Actuarial valuations of the plans are completed at least triennially using the projected benefit method prorated on
services. The following, by pension plan is the actuary and date of the latest actuarial valuation.
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LIABILITY FOR PENSION OBLIGATIONS

Plan

Schedule 15 (continued)

Actuary

Latest Valuation Date

Local Authorities Pension Plan

Management Employees Pension Plan

Supplementary Retirement Plan

Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan
Public Service Pension Plan

Teachers' Pre-92 Pension Plan

Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan
Universities Academic Pension Plan

Special Forces Pension Plan

Members of the Legislative Assembly Pension Plan

Mercer (Canada) Limited
Aon Consulting Inc.

Aon Consulting Inc.
Johnson Inc.

Aon Consulting Inc.

Aon Consulting Inc.

Aon Consulting Inc.
Mercer (Canada) Limited
Mercer (Canada) Limited
Aon Consulting Inc.

December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008
August 31, 2009

December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008
March 31, 2009

The liabilities for pension obligations are based upon actuarial extrapolations performed at December 31, 2009 or
March 31, 2010 for accounting purposes that reflect management’s best estimate as at the extrapolation date of
future economic events and involve both economic and non-economic assumptions. The non-economic assumptions
include considerations such as mortality as well as withdrawal and retirement rates. The primary economic
assumptions include the salary escalation rate, inflation rate and discount rate. The date of actuarial extrapolation
and primary economic assumptions used for accounting purposes were:

Latest Salary

Extrapolation Escalation Inflation Discount
Plan Date Rate % Rate % Rate %
Local Authorities Pension Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.50
Management Employees Pension Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.60
Supplementary Retirement Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 4.70
Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan March 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.20
Public Service Pension Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.60
Teachers' Pre-92 Pension Plan March 31, 2010 3.50 2.25 5.00
Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan December 31, 2009 N/A 2.25 5.00
Universities Academic Pension Plan March 31, 2010 3.50 2.25 6.90
Special Forces Pension Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.90
Members of the Legislative Assembly Pension Plan March 31, 2010 N/A 2.25 5.00

The assumptions used in the extrapolations were adopted after consultation between the pension plan boards, the
government and the actuaries, depending on the plan, and represent best estimates of future events. Each plan’s
future experience will vary, perhaps significantly, from the assumptions. Any differences between the actuarial
assumptions and future experience will emerge as gains or losses in future valuations. Gains and losses are
amortized over the expected average remaining service lives of the employee group.

A separate pension plan fund is maintained for each pension plan except for the Teachers’ Pre-92 Pension Plan and

the Members of the Legislative Assembly Pension Plan. Each pension plan fund reports annually through financial
statements.
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OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Future funding to school boards to enable them to repay
debentures issued to the Alberta Capital Finance Authority $
Vacation entitlements

Schedule 16
($ millions)
2010 2009
160 204
9 8
$ 169 212
Schedule 17

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those entities consolidated in the Province of Alberta’s financial statements. Related parties also

include management of the Ministry.

The Ministry is responsible for managing cash transactions of all departments and their funds. As a result, the

Ministry engages in transactions with all other ministries in the normal course of operations.

The Ministry and its employees paid or collected certain taxes and fees set by regulation for permits, licenses and
other charges. These amounts were incurred in the normal course of business, reflect charges applicable to all users,

and have been excluded from this Schedule.

The Ministry had the following transactions with related parties recorded at the amount of consideration agreed upon

between the related parties.

($ millions)
2010 2009
Revenues
Transfers $ - 57
Interest from loans and advances to government entities 63 72
Interest from loans and advances to SUCH sector 54 53
Charges for services 12 11
$ 129 193
Expenses
Debt servicing costs - school boards debt $ 20 25
Transfers 214 209
Cost of services 2 1
$ 236 235
Assets
Accounts receivable $ 13 25
Accrued interest receivable from government entities 13 13
Accrued interest receivable from SUCH sector 18 20
Loans and advances to government entities 1,379 1,311
Loans and advances to SUCH sector 961 932
$ 2,384 2,301
Liabilities
Other accrued liabilities -
Future funding of school boards debt $ 160 204

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report

55



MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS Schedule 17 (continued)
The SUCH sector includes schools, universities, colleges and hospitals.

The Ministry also had the following transactions with related parties for which no consideration was exchanged. The
amounts for these related party transactions are estimated based on the costs incurred by the service provider to
provide the service. These amounts are not recorded in the financial statements and are mainly allocated to the fiscal
planning and financial management and the investment, treasury and risk management programs administered by
the Department.

($ millions)
2010 2009

Expenses - incurred by others
Accommodation and other costs $ 7 $ 5
Legal Services

N
N
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise

| have audited the statements of financial position of the Department of Finance and Enterprise as at March 31, 2010
and 2009 and the statements of operations and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Department of Finance and Enterprise’s management. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Department as at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
Edmonton, Alberta Auditor General
June 4, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Statements of Operations

Year ended March 31

Revenues (Schedule 1)
Internal government transfers
Income taxes
Other taxes
Investmentincome (Note 5)
Premiums, fees and licences
Transfers from Government of Canada
Other

Expenses - directly incurred (Note 2 (c) and Schedule 18)

Voted (Schedules 2 and 4)
Ministry Support Services
Fiscal Planning and Economic Analysis
Taxand Revenue Management

Investment, Treasury and Risk Management

Financial Sector and Pensions

Enterprise

Teachers' pre-1992 pension liability funding
Debt servicing costs - school construction

Statutory (Schedules 2 and 4)
Internal Government Transfers to:
Access to the Future Fund
Interest payments on corporate tax refunds
Pension liability funding
Debt servicing costs
Valuation adjustments (Schedule 5)

Net Operating Results

($ millions)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actua
(Schedule 3)

$ 711 % 2,006 $ 56
11,006 12,631 12,960
2,014 1,905 1,913
513 768 752
66 69 33
39 37 20
4 5 1
14,353 17,421 15,735
11 11 11
5 4 4
36 32 33
17 11 8
9 7 7
23 21 24
356 341 242
20 20 25
477 447 354
49 48 47
18 25 23
77 78 75
161 166 157
801 357 1,822
1,106 674 2,124
1,583 1,121 2,478
$ 12,770 $ 16,300 $ 13,257

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position

As At March 31

Assets

Cash and temporary investments (Schedule 7)

Accounts and accrued interest receivable (Schedule 8)
Portfolio investments (Note 5 and Schedule 9)

Loans and advances to government entities (Schedule 10)
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 11)

Liabilities

Bank overdraft

Accounts and accrued interest payable (Schedule 12)
Unmatured debt (Schedule 13)

Pension obligations (Schedule 14)

Other accrued liabilities (Schedule 15)

Net Assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Adjustment to opening net assets

Net operating results

Net financing provided for general revenues (Note 2 (b))
Net assets at end of year

($ millions)
2010 2009

$ 4558 $ 6,982
1,627 2,053

15,169 14,805

1,414 1,346

9 7

$ 22777 $ 25,193
$ 875 $ 1,258
1,080 1,327

4,706 1,990

8,952 9,781

166 210

15,779 14,566

10,627 10,358
- (159)

16,300 13,257

(19,929) (12,829)

6,998 10,627

$ 22,777 $ 25,193

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31

($ millions)
2010 2009
Operating transactions
Net operating results $ 16,300 $ 13,257
Non-cash items included in net operating results
Amortization, gains and losses on investments and debt, net (103) 50
Amortization of tangible capital assets (Schedule 2) 1 2
Valuation adjustments (Schedule 5) 357 1,822
16,555 15,131
Decrease (Increase) in receivables 426 (553)
(Decrease) Increase in payables (247) 278
Cash provided by operating transactions 16,734 14,856
Capital transactions
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (Schedule 11) 3) 3)
Cash applied to capital transactions 3) 3)
Investing transactions
Disposals of portfolio investments 13,028 13,339
Portfolio investments purchased (13,289) (12,233)
Repayments of loans and advances
Government entities 1,774 1,981
Other 1 1
Loans and advances - Government entities (1,841) (2,081)
Cash (applied to) provided by investing transactions (327) 1,007
Fnancing transactions
Debtissues 6,941 6,901
Debt retirement (4,227) (7,363)
Repayment of Teachers' Pre-92 Pension Plan obligation (1,186) -
Grants for school construction debenture principal repayment (Schedule 4) (44) (52)
Net financing provided for general revenues (19,929) (12,829)
Cash applied to financing transactions (18,445) (13,343)
(Decrease) Increase in cash (2,041) 2,517
Cash and temporary investments, net of bank overdraft, beginning of year 5,724 3,207
Cash and temporary investments, net of bank overdraft, end of year $ 3,683 $ 5,724

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended March 31
(All dollar amounts in millions, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The Department of Finance and Enterprise (the Department) operates under the authority of the Government
Organization Act, Chapter G-10, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000.

The Department of Finance and Enterprise has the following core areas/functions: Budget and Fiscal Planning;
Treasury Management; Risk Management and Insurance; Tax and Revenue Administration; Financial Sector
Regulation and Policy; Enterprise including Industry and Regional Development, and Alberta Economic Development
Authority and the Northern Development Council, Regulatory Review Secretariat; and Corporate Support.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING
PRACTICES

These financial statements are prepared primarily in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles for the public sector as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants. The PSAB financial statements presentation standard for government summary
financial statements has been modified to more appropriately reflect the nature of the Department.

a) REPORTING ENTITY

The reporting entity is the Department, which is part of the Ministry of Finance and Enterprise and for which the
Minister of Finance and Enterprise is accountable. Other entities reporting to the Minister of Finance and
Enterprise are as follows:

Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund,

Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research Endowment Fund,
Alberta Heritage Scholarship Fund,

Alberta Heritage Science and Engineering Research Endowment Fund,
Alberta Cancer Prevention Legacy Fund,

Alberta Risk Management Fund,

Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Reserve Fund,
Supplementary Retirement Plan Reserve Fund,

Alberta Securities Commission,

10. Alberta Capital Finance Authority,

11. Alberta Insurance Council,

12. Alberta Pensions Services Corporation,

13. Alberta Local Authorities Pension Plan Corp.,

14. Alberta Investment Management Corporation,

15. ATB Financial and its subsidiaries,

16. Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation,

17. N.A. Properties (1994) Ltd. and

18. Gainers Inc.

CoNooA~LODE

The activities of these organizations are not included in these financial statements. The Ministry Annual Report
provides a more comprehensive accounting of the financial position and results of operations for which the
Minister of Finance and Enterprise is responsible.

b) NET FINANCING PROVIDED FOR GENERAL REVENUES
All departments of the Government of Alberta operate within the General Revenue Fund (the Fund). The Minister

of Finance and Enterprise administers the Fund. All cash receipts of departments are deposited into the Fund
and all cash disbursements made by departments are paid from the Fund.
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Note 2 (continued)

c)

Net financing provided for general revenues is the difference between all cash deposits by other departments
and all cash disbursements made on their behalf by the Department of Finance and Enterprise.

BASIS OF FINANCIAL REPORTING
Revenues

All revenues are reported using the accrual method of accounting.

Corporate income tax revenue is recognized when installments are received from taxpayer corporations.
Corporate income tax refunds payable are accrued based on the prior year’s corporate income tax refunds paid
on assessments. Corporate income tax receipts from corporations in anticipation of an upward reassessment of
Alberta income tax payable are described as corporate income tax receipts in abeyance and recorded as
accounts payable.

Personal income tax is recognized on an accrual basis based on an economic estimate of the various
components of personal income tax for the fiscal year. Gross personal income tax for the taxation year is a key
component of the estimate for the fiscal year.

The Provincial tax system is predicated on self-assessment where taxpayers are expected to understand the tax
laws and comply with them. This has an impact on the completeness of tax revenues when taxpayers fail to
comply with tax laws, for example, if they do not report all of their income. The Department has implemented
systems and controls in order to detect and correct situations where taxpayers are not complying with the various
acts it administers. These systems and controls include performing audits of taxpayer records when determined
necessary by Tax and Revenue Administration. However, such procedures cannot identify all sources of
unreported income or other cases of non-compliance with tax laws. The Department does not estimate the
amount of unreported tax.

Internal Government Transfers

Internal government transfers are transfers between entities within the government reporting entity where the
entity making the transfer does not receive any goods or services directly in return.

Expenses
Directly Incurred

Directly incurred expenses are those costs for which the Department has primary responsibility and
accountability, as reflected in the government’s budget documents.

In addition to program operating expenses such as salaries, supplies, etc., directly incurred expenses also
include:

e  Amortization of tangible capital assets.

e Pension costs, which comprise the cost of employer contributions for current service of employees during
the year and additional government contributions for service relating to prior years.

e Valuation adjustments, which include changes in the valuation allowances used to reflect financial assets
at their net recoverable or other appropriate value. Valuation adjustments also represent the change in
management'’s estimate of future payments arising from obligations relating to guarantees, indemnities,
pension obligations, loans repayable from future appropriations, and accrued employee vacation
entitlements.

e Grants are recognized when authorized and eligibility criteria are met.

Incurred by Others

Services contributed by other entities in support of the Department’s operations are disclosed in Schedule 18.
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Note 2 (continued)

64

Assets

Financial assets of the Department are limited to financial claims, such as advances to and receivables from
other organizations, tax payers, employees and other individuals.

Portfolio investments are carried at cost. Cost includes amortization of discount or premium using the straight-
line method over the life of the investment. Realized gains and losses on disposals of these investments are
included in the determination of net operating results for the year. Where there has been a loss in value of an
investment that is other than a temporary decline, the investment is written down to recognize the loss. The
written down value is deemed to be the new cost.

Loans are recorded at cost less any allowance for credit loss. Where there is no reasonable assurance of
timely collection of the full amount of principal and interest of a loan, a provision for credit loss is made and the
carrying amount of the loan is reduced to its estimated realizable amount.

Investments are recorded at cost. Where there has been a loss in value of an investment that is other than a
temporary decline, the investment is written down to recognize the loss. The written down value is deemed to
be the new cost.

Tangible capital assets acquired by right are not included. Tangible capital assets of the Department are
recorded at historical cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The threshold for capitalizing new systems development is $250 thousand and the threshold for all other
tangible capital assets is $5 thousand.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recorded to the extent that they represent present obligations as a result of events and
transactions occurring prior to the end of the fiscal year. The settlement of liabilities will result in sacrifice of
economic benefits in the future.

Debentures included in unmatured debt are recorded at the face amount of the issue less unamortized
discount, which includes issue expenses and hedging costs.

Income or expense on interest rate swaps used to manage interest rate exposure is recorded as an
adjustment to debt servicing costs.

Foreign Currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using average rates of exchange. Assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the year-end rate of exchange. Exchange
differences on transactions are included in the determination of net operating results.

Derivatives

Income and expense from derivative contracts are included in investment income or debt servicing costs.
Certain derivative contracts, which are primarily interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps,
are designated as hedges of market risks for purposes of hedge accounting. Hedge accounting recognizes
gains and losses from derivatives in the same period as the gains and losses of the specific assets and
liabilities being hedged.

Where a hedge relationship is designated, the hedge is documented at inception. The documentation identifies
the specific asset or liability being hedged, the risk that is being hedged, type of derivative used and the
matching of critical terms of both the hedged asset or liability and the hedging derivative for purposes of
measuring effectiveness. The derivative must be highly effective in accomplishing the objective of offsetting
either changes in the fair value or cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged both at inception and over
the life of the hedge.
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Note 2 (continued)

Derivative contracts not designated as hedges for purposes of hedge accounting, which are primarily bond
index swaps, equity index swaps, equity index futures contracts and forward foreign exchange contracts, are
recorded at fair value.

The estimated amounts receivable and payable from derivative contracts are included in accrued interest
receivable and payable respectively.

Net Assets

Net assets represents the difference between the carrying value of assets held by the Department and its
liabilities.

Measurement Uncertainty

Estimates are used in accruing revenues and expenses in circumstances where the actual accrued revenues
and expenses are unknown at the time the financial statements are prepared.

Uncertainty in the determination of the amount at which an item is recognized in financial statements is known
as measurement uncertainty. Such uncertainty exists when there is a variance between the recognized
amount and another reasonably possible amount, as there is whenever estimates are used.

Measurement uncertainty that is material to these financial statements exists in the accrual of personal and
corporate income taxes and provisions for pensions. The nature of the uncertainty in these items arises from
several factors such as the effect on accrued income taxes of the verification of taxable income, and the effect
on accrued pension obligations of actual experience compared to assumptions.

Personal income tax revenue, totaling $7,877 million (2009: $8,708 million), see Schedule 1, is subject to
measurement uncertainty due primarily to the use of economic estimates of personal income growth. Personal
income growth is inherently difficult to estimate due to subsequent revisions to personal income data. The
estimate of personal income growth used in determining personal income tax for the current fiscal year is
1.5%.

Corporate income tax revenue, totaling $4,754 million (2009: $4,252 million), see Schedule 1, is subject to
measurement uncertainty due primarily to the timing differences between tax collected and future tax
assessments. The Department records corporate income tax revenue as installments are received from
taxpayer corporations. Corporate income tax refunds payable are accrued based on the prior year’s corporate
income tax refunds paid on assessments.

Pension provisions of $356 million (2009: $1,821 million), see Schedule 5, are subject to measurement
uncertainty because a Plan’s actual experience may differ significantly from assumptions used in the
calculation of the Plan’s accrued benefits.

While best estimates have been used for reporting items subject to measurement uncertainty, management
considers that it is possible, based on existing knowledge, that changes in future conditions in the near term
could require a material change in the recognized amounts. Near term is defined as a period of time not to
exceed one year from the date of the financial statements.
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NOTE 3 VALUATIONS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Because of the short-term nature of these instruments, the fair values of cash and temporary investments, accounts
and accrued interest receivable, bank overdraft, accounts and accrued interest payable, and other accrued liabilities
are estimated to approximate their book values.

Public fixed-income securities included in portfolio investments are valued at the year-end closing sale price, or the
average of the latest bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.

Fair values of loans and advances are not reported due to there being no organized financial market for the
instruments and it is not practicable within constraints of timeliness or cost to estimate the fair values with sufficient
reliability.

The fair value of unmatured debt is an approximation of its fair value to the holder.

The fair value of derivative contracts relating to portfolio investments is included in the fair value of portfolio
investments. The estimated amount receivable or payable from derivative contracts at the reporting date is
determined by the following methods:

Equity and bond index swaps are valued based on changes in the appropriate market based index net of
accrued floating rate interest. Forward foreign exchange contracts and equity index futures contracts are valued
based on quoted market prices. Interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued based on
discounted cash flows using current market yields and exchange rates. Credit default swaps are valued based
on discounted cash flows using current market yields and calculated default probabilities. Options to enter into
interest rate swap contracts are valued based on discounted cash flows using current market yields and volatility
parameters which measure change in the underlying swap.

At the year-end, the fair values of assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the year-
end exchange rate.

NOTE 4 RISK MANAGEMENT
a) LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Department’s liability management program is to achieve the lowest cost on debt within an
acceptable degree of variability of debt servicing costs. In order to achieve this objective, the Department
manages four risks — interest rate risk, currency exchange risk, credit risk, and refinancing risk. The Department
manages these four risks within approved policy guidelines. The management of these risks and the policy
guidelines apply to the Department’s unmatured debt, excluding debt raised to fund requirements of provincial
corporations and regulated funds. Debt of provincial corporations and regulated funds is managed separately in
relation to their assets.

For the Department, the most effective liability risk management strategy would be to allow existing debt
instruments to mature in accordance with their terms.

b) ASSET MANAGEMENT
Portfolio investments are used to repay debt as it matures, to provide funding for the capital plan, and to help

protect operating and capital spending from short-term declines in revenue and the costs of emergencies,
disasters and natural gas rebates.
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NOTE 5 ASSET BACKED SECURITIES

The Canadian market for third party or non-bank sponsored asset-backed commercial paper (“ABCP”) suffered a
liquidity disruption in mid-August 2007, following which a group of market participants including major investors,
banks, asset providers, dealers, and third-party sponsors, agreed to work collectively to restructure this market
segment. This agreement, which came to be known as the Montreal Accord (“the Accord”) was finalized on
January 21, 2009. The ABCP subject to the Accord were restructured into new longer-term floating rate notes that
more closely matched the maturities of the underlying assets.

At March 31, 2010, the Department incurred write-downs of investments related to the Accord totaling $0.5 million
(2009: $1 million). These charges are included in net investment income on the Statements of Operations. The value
of all ABCP investments at March 31, 2010 totaled $20 million at fair value and $27 million at cost (2009: $26 million
at fair value and $27 million at cost).

A senior funding facility was also established as part of the Accord to help investors and asset providers to achieve a
stable and effective restructuring agreement. The participants of this facility are the governments of Canada, Quebec,
Alberta and Ontario. The Government of Alberta has pledged a $300 million indemnity as its share of funding support.

Although the Montreal Accord restructuring successfully closed in January 2009, there remains continued uncertainty
regarding the amount and timing of cash flows and the value of the assets that underlie the new investment structure.
Consequently, it is possible that the ultimate fair value of these assets may vary significantly from current estimates
and that the magnitude of any such difference could be material to our financial results.

NOTE 6 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual obligations are obligations of the Department to others that will become liabilities in the future when the
terms of those contracts or agreements are met.

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Service contracts $ 9536 $ 18,390
Long-term leases - 148
$ 9,536 $ 18,538

The aggregate amounts payable for the unexpired terms of these contractual obligations are as follows:

($ thousands)
2010
Service
Contracts
2010-11 5,726
2011-12 2,649
2012-13 1,161
$ 9,536
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NOTE 7 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Set out below are details of contingencies resulting from guarantees, indemnities and litigation, other than those
reported as liabilities and shown in Schedule 16.

Any losses arising from the settlement of contingencies are treated as current year expenses.
a) GUARANTEES AND INDEMNITIES

Guaranteed liabilities at March 31, 2010 of government entities amounting to $30,933 million

(2009: $30,970 million) are analyzed in Schedule 16. The Department also provides guarantees of other entities
amounting to $1 million (2009: $1 million). Schedule 16 is included with the financial statements because
payments under debenture and loan guarantees are a statutory charge on the Department.

The Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation, operating under the authority of the Credit Union Act
guarantees the repayment of all deposits with Alberta credit unions, including accrued interest. The Credit Union
Act provides that the Department will ensure this obligation of the Corporation is carried out.

At December 31, 2009 credit unions in Alberta held deposits totaling $16,021 million (2008 - $15,103 million).
Substantial assets are available from credit unions to safeguard the Department from risk of losing from its
potential obligation under the Act.

The repayment of all deposits without limit, including accrued interest, is guaranteed by the Province of Alberta,
through the Department, in respect of which the Department assesses an annual deposit guarantee fee payable
by ATB Financial. Payments under the guarantee are under authority of a supply vote.

The Department has pledged a $300 million indemnity under the senior funding facility established as part of the
Montreal Accord, as outlined in Note 5.

b) LEGAL ACTIONS
At March 31, 2010, the Department is jointly or separately named as a defendant in twenty-six
(2009: twenty-seven) legal claims. Of the twenty-six claims, twenty have specified amounts totaling
approximately $124 million (2009: $127 million) and six claims have no specified amount. Four (2009: six) claims
totaling $1 million (2009: $1 million) are covered by the Alberta Risk Management Fund.

In addition, at March 31, 2010, some taxes assessed were under objection and some were being appealed. The
resulting loss, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated.

NOTE 8 TRUST AND OTHER FUNDS UNDER ADMINISTRATION

The Department administers trust and other funds that are regulated funds consisting of public money over which the
Legislature has no power of appropriation. Because the Department has no equity in the funds and administers them
for the purpose of various trusts, they are not included in the Department’s financial statements.

68 2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

NOTE 8 TRUST AND OTHER FUNDS UNDER ADMINISTRATION (continued)

As at March 31, 2010, trust and other funds under administration were as follows:

($ millions)
2010 2009

Local Authorities Pension Plan Fund $ 15,803 $ 13,224
Public Service Pension Plan Fund 5,617 4578
The Workers' Compensation Board Accident Fund 1,416 1,421
Universities Academic Pension Plan Fund 2,336 1,903
Management Employees Pension Plan Fund 2,362 1,907
Special Forces Pension Plan Fund 1,370 1,145
Other 217 170

$ 29,121 $ 24,348

NOTE 9 DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

The Department sponsors and participates in the multi-employer pension plans; Management Employees Pension
Plan, the Public Service Pension Plan and the Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers. The
annual contributions of these plans are equivalent to $6 million for the year ended March 31, 2010 (2009: $5 million).
At December 31, 2009, the Management Employees Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $483 million

(2008: $569 million), the Public Service Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $1,729 million (2008: $1,188 million)
and the Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers reported a deficiency of $40 million

(2008: $7 million).

The Department also participates in two multi-employer Long Term Disability Income Continuance Plans.

At March 31, 2010, the Bargaining Unit Plan reported a deficiency of $8 million (2009: $33 million) and the

Management, Opted Out and Excluded Plan reported a surplus of $7 million (2009: deficiency of $1 million). The
expense for these two plans is limited to the employer’s annual contributions for the year.

NOTE 10 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2009 figures have been reclassified to conform to the 2010 presentation.

NOTE 11 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Senior Financial Officer and the Deputy Minister approved these financial statements.
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Schedules to the Financial Statements

(All dollar amounts in millions, unless otherwise stated)

REVENUES Schedule 1
($ millions)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual
Internal government transfers
Transfer from Alberta Heritage Savings TrustFund $ 711 $ 2,006 $ -
Transfer from Lottery Fund - - 56
711 2,006 56
Income taxes
Personal income tax 8,559 7,877 8,708
Corporate income tax 2,447 4,754 4,252
11,006 12,631 12,960
Other taxes
Tobacco tax 915 864 828
Fuel tax 725 701 718
Insurance taxes 291 272 285
Alberta tourism levy 76 60 74
Special broker tax 7 7 8
Financial institutions capital - 1 -
2,014 1,905 1,913
Investmentincome 513 768 752

Premiums, fees and licences

ATB Financial paymentin lieu of taxes 34 38 -

ATB Financial deposit guarantee fees 25 24 28

Other 7 7 5
66 69 33

Transfers from Government of Canada

Community Development Trust 35 33 16
Unconditional Grant 4 4 4

39 37 20

Other revenues 4 5 1

$ 14353 $ 17,421 $ 15,735
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EXPENSES - DIRECTLY INCURRED DETAILED BY OBJECT Schedule 2
($ millions)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual
Voted
Salaries, wages and employee benefits $ 61 $ 56 $ 54
Supplies and services 30 24 23
Grants 27 24 32
Financial transactions and other - 1 1
Pension liability funding 357 341 242
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2 1 2
$ 477 % 447 % 354
Statutory
Internal Government Transfers to:

Access to the Future Fund $ 49 $ 48 $ 47
Interest payments on corporate taxrefunds 18 25 23
Pension liability funding 77 78 75
Debt servicing costs 161 166 157
Valuation adjustments (Schedule 5) 801 357 1,822

$ 1,106 $ 674 $ 2,124
$ 1583 $ 1,121 $ 2,478
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BUDGET Schedule 3
($ millions)
Authorized 2009-10
2009-10 Adjustments 2009-10 Supplementary Authorized
Estimates (a) Budget Estimates (b) Budget
Revenues
Internal government transfers $ 711 $ - $ 711 $ - $ 711
Income taxes 11,006 - 11,006 - 11,006
Other taxes 2,014 - 2,014 - 2,014
Transfers from Government of Canada 39 - 39 - 39
Investment income BILE - 513 - 513
Premiums, fees and licences 66 - 66 - 66
Other 4 - 4 - 4
14,353 - 14,353 - 14,353
Expenses - Directly Incurred
Voted
Ministry support services 11 - 11 - 11
Fiscal Planning and Economic Analysis 9 - 5 - 5
Tax and Revenue Management 36 - 36 - 36
Investment, Treasury and Risk Management 17 - 17 - 17
Financial Sector and Pensions 9 - 9 - 9
Enterprise 23 - 23 - 23
Teachers' pre-1992 pension - liability funding 356 - 356 - 356
Debt servicing costs - school construction 20 - 20 - 20
477 - 477 - 477
Statutory
Internal government transfers
Access to the Future Fund 49 - 49 - 49
Interest payments on corporate tax refunds 18 - 18 - 18
Pension liability funding 77 - 77 - 77
Debt servicing costs 161 - 161 - 161
Valuation adjustments (Schedule 5) 1 800 801 - 801
306 800 1,106 - 1,106
783 800 1,583 - 1,583
Net operating results $ 13570 $ (800) $ 12,770 $ - $ 12,770
Equipment/inventory purchases $ 2512 % - $ 2512 % - $ 2,512

a) Adjustments consist of $800 million for pension provisions.

b) Estimates were approved on May 26, 2009 and there were no supplementary estimates for the Ministry.
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COMPARISON OF EXPENSES, EQUIPMENT/INVENTORY PURCHASES Schedule 4
AND DISBURSEMENTS BY ELEMENT TO AUTHORIZED BUDGET
($ thousands)
Authorized 2009-10 2009-10 Unexpended
2009-10 Supplementary Authorized Actual (Over
Budget Estimates Budget Expense Expended)
VOTED EXPENSES
Ministry Support Services
Operating Expense
Minister's Office $ 525 $ - $ 525 $ 502 $ 23
Deputy Minister's Office 827 - 827 808 19
Strategic and Business Services 9,036 - 9,036 8,675 361
Communications 735 - 735 680 55
Cabinet Policy Committee on the Economy 240 - 240 230 10
11,363 - 11,363 10,895 468
Equipment/Inventory Purchases 180 - 180 316 (136)
11,543 - 11,543 11,211 332
Fiscal Planning and Economic Analysis
Operating Expense
Budget and Fiscal Planning 4,797 - 4,797 4,342 455
4,797 - 4,797 4,342 455
Equipment/Inventory Purchases - - - 30 (30)
4,797 - 4,797 4,372 425
Tax and Revenue Management
Operating Expense
Tax and Revenue Administration BHI555! - 35,555 32,236 3,319
BBI555 - 35,555 32,236 3,319
Equipment/Inventory Purchases 2,082 - 2,082 2,003 79
37,637 - 37,637 34,239 3,398
Investment, Treasury and Risk Management
Operating Expense
Treasury Management 15,504 - 15,504 9,171 6,333
Risk Management and Insurance 1,564 - 1,564 1,447 117
17,068 - 17,068 10,618 6,450
Financial Sector and Pensions
Operating Expense
Assistant Deputy Minister's Office 1,675 - 1,675 978 697
Regulations of Pensions, Insurance and
Financial Institutions 4,699 - 4,699 3,059 1,640
Public Sector Pensions 1,155 - 1,155 1,231 (76)
Capital Market Policy 631 - 631 350 281
Automobile Insurance Rate Board 1,326 - 1,326 902 424
9,486 - 9,486 6,520 2,966
Equipment/Inventory Purchases 250 - 250 493 (243)
9,736 - 9,736 7,013 2,723
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COMPARISON OF EXPENSES, EQUIPMENT/INVENTORY PURCHASES Schedule 4 (continued)
AND DISBURSEMENTS BY ELEMENT TO AUTHORIZED BUDGET

($ thousands)
Authorized 2009-10 2009-10 Unexpended
2009-10 Supplementary Authorized Actual (Over
Budget Estimates Budget Expense Expended)
Enterprise
Operating Expense
Regulatory Review Secretariat 698 - 698 625 73
Program Development and Support 2,358 - 2,358 2,282 76
Alberta Economic Development Authority 658 - 658 622 36
Northern Alberta Development Council 2,406 - 2,406 2,103 303
Industry Development 8,381 - 8,381 7,908 473
Regional Development 8,099 - 8,099 6,985 1,114
22,600 - 22,600 20,525 2,075
Teachers' pre-1992 pension liability funding
Operating Expense 356,000 - 356,000 341,389 14,611
Voted Debt Servicing Costs - Grants for
School Construction Debenture Interest
Operating Expense 19,908 - 19,908 19,885 23
479,289 - 479,289 449,252 30,037
Summary
Program Operating Expense $ 476,777 $ - $ 476,777 $ 446,410 $ 30,367
Equipment/Inventory Purchases 2,512 - 2,512 2,842 (330)
$ 479,289 $ - $ 479,289 $ 449,252 $ 30,037
STATUTORY EXPENSES
Internal Government Transfers to:
Access to the Future Fund $ 48,728 $ - $ 48,728 $ 48,398 $ 330
Farm credit stability program 13 - 13 8 5
Interest payments on corporate tax refunds 18,000 - 18,000 24,883 (6,883)
Pension liability funding 76,700 - 76,700 77,654 (954)
Debt servicing costs 161,000 - 161,000 165,774 (4,774)
Valuation adjustments (Schedule 5) 801,000 - 801,000 357,210 443,790
$1,105,441 $ - $ 1,105,441 $ 673,927 $ 431,514
Voted Non-Budgetary Disbursements
Grants for school construction debenture
principal repayment $ 43660 $ - $ 43660 $ 43,660 $ -
VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS Schedule 5
($ millions)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual
Pension provisions (Schedule 14) $ 800 $ 356 $ 1,821
Provision for employee benefits, guarantees and indemnities 1 1 1
$ 801 $ 357 $ 1,822
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SALARY AND BENEFITS DISCLOSURE Schedule 6
($ thousands)
2010 2009
Other Other
Base Cash Non-Cash
Salary @ Benefits @ Benefits ®  Total Total
Senior Officials
Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise (4) (5) $ 259 $ = $ 52 $ 311 $ 373
Executives
Assistant Deputy Minister, Financial Sector Regulation
and Policy 216 - 7 223 242
Assistant Deputy Minister, Treasury and Risk Management 213 - 53] 266 288
Assistant Deputy Minister, Tax and Revenue Administration 185 - 12 197 249
Assistant Deputy Minister, Budget and Fiscal Planning 172 - 42 214 198
Assistant Deputy Minister, Strategic & Business Services 172 - 41 213 238
Assistant Deputy Minister, Enterprise 185 18 48 251 249
Executive Director, Human Resources (5) 121 - 29 150 202

(1) Base salary includes regular base pay. Total includes actual amounts paid and accrued amounts paid in April 2010 due to
change to bi-weekly pay.

(2) Other cash benefits include vacation payouts (include overtime and/or lump sum payments if relevant for the particular
circumstance). There were no bonuses paid in 2010.

(3) Other non-cash benefits include the government's share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on
behalf of employees including pension, supplementary retirement plans, health care, dental coverage, group life insurance,
short and long term disability plans, professional memberships and tuition fees.

(4)  Automobile provided, no dollar amount included in other non-cash benefits.
(5) The position was occupied by two individuals during 2010.

CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS Schedule 7
($ millions)
2010 2009

Fixed-income securities (a)
Corporate $ 2037 $ 2,579
Provincial, direct and guaranteed 1,059 1,709
Municipal 49 50
Alberta, guaranteed - 115
Government of Canada, direct and guaranteed 316 1,400
3,461 5,853
Depositin Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund (b) 947 896
Cash in bank and in transit 150 233
$ 4558 $ 6,982

a) Fixed-income securities have an average effective yield of 0.34% (2009: 0.61%) per annum. All of the securities
have terms to maturity of less than one year (2009: less than one year).

b) The Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund is managed with the objective of providing competitive interest
income to depositors while maintaining appropriate security and liquidity of depositors’ capital. The portfolio is
comprised of high-quality short-term and mid-term fixed-income securities with a maximum term-to-maturity of
three years. As at March 31, 2010, securities held by the Fund have a time-weighted return of 1.0% per annum
(2009: 3.0% per annum).
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ACCOUNTS AND ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE Schedule 8
($ millions)
2010 2009

Corporate income tax $ 746 $ 690
Personal income tax 412 618
Trade settlement receivable - 284
Accrued interest receivable 168 183
ATB Financial 107 85
Insurance corporations tax 79 77
Fuel tax 52 61
Lottery Fund 13 26
Tobacco tax 10 9
Contributions receivable from Credit Union Deposit Corporation @ 6 11
Alberta Tourism Lewy 5 5
Other 30 5
1,628 2,054

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 1 1
$ 1,627 $ 2,053

(a) Contributions are receivable under the Credit Union Restructuring Agreement maturing in 2010.

PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS Schedule 9
($ millions)
2010 2009
Book Fair Book Fair
Value Value Value Value
Fixed-income securities
Corporate $ 6571 $ 6,750 $ 6,121 $ 6,083
Provincial, direct and guaranteed 4,415 4,536 4,249 4,458
Government of Canada, direct and guaranteed 3,954 4,013 4232 4 477
Municipal 229 233 203 209
$ 15169 $ 15532 $ 14805 $ 15,227

(@) The Department's fixed-income securities are held to repay debt as it matures, to provide funding for the
capital plan, and to help protect operating and capital spending from short-term declines in revenue and the
costs of emergencies, disasters and natural gas rebates. The securities held have an average effective
market yield of 3.7% (2009: 3.0%) per annum and the following terms to maturity: under one year: 26%; one
to five years: 62%; five to ten years: 9%; over ten years: 3%.

(b) The Department’s fixed income securities are held directly or indirectly in pooled investments funds such as
the Short-Term Bond Pool and Universe Fixed Income Pool. The Department’s investments are managed by
Alberta Investment Management Corporation.

(c) The following is a summary of the Department’s proportionate share of the notional amount and fair value of
derivative contracts held by the Universe Fixed Income Pool at March 31, 2010:
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PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS Schedule 9 (continued)
Maturity 2010 2009
Under 1to3 Over Notional Fair Notional
1Year Years 3Years Amount (1) Value (2) Amount Value
($ millions)
Credit default swap contracts 30% 38% 32% % 1,198 $ 9) $2,015 $(25)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 11% 28% 61% 88 12 83
Interest rate swap contracts - 7% 23% 50 1 98
Forward foregin exchange contracts 100% - - 47 1 29
Swap option contracts 100% - - 38 - -
Futures contracts 100% - - 3 1 2
Bond index swap contracts 100% - - - - 63
$ 1,424 $ 6 $2,290 $(31)

1. The notional amounts, upon which payments are based, are not indicative of the credit risk associated with derivative
contracts. Current credit exposure is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding contracts in a favourable
position (positive fair value). The Department attempts to limit its credit exposure by dealing with counter-parties believed to
have good credit standing (A+ or greater).

2. The method of determining the fair value of derivative contracts is described in Note 2.

Derivative contracts are financial contracts, the value of which is derived from the value of underlying assets, indices,
interest rates or currency rates. The Department uses derivative contracts held indirectly through pooled investment
funds to enhance return, manage exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk and for asset mix
management purposes. The notional value of a derivative contract represents the amount to which a rate or price is
applied in order to calculate the exchange of cash flows.

@

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

A swap is a contractual agreement between two counter-parties to exchange a series of cash flows based
on a notional amount. An equity or bond index swap involves the exchange of a floating interest rate cash
flow for one based on the performance of a market index. For interest rate swaps, parties generally
exchange fixed and floating rate interest cash flows based on a notional amount. Cross-currency interest
rate swaps are contractual obligations in which the principal amounts of Canadian fixed-income securities
denominated in foreign currency are exchanged for Canadian currency amounts both initially and at
maturity. Over the term of the cross-currency swap, counter-parties exchange fixed to fixed and fixed to
floating interest rate cash flows in the swapped currencies. A credit default swap allows counter-parties to
buy and sell protection on credit risk inherent in a bond. A premium is paid, based on a notional amount,
from one counter-party to a second counter-party in exchange for a contingent payment should a defined
credit event occur with respect to the underlying security. There are underlying securities supporting all
swaps. Leveraging is not allowed.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are contractual agreements to exchange specified currencies at an
agreed upon exchange rate and on an agreed settlement date in the future.

A futures contract is an agreement to receive or pay cash based on changes in the level of the specified
index.

Swap option contracts include the right, but not the obligation, to enter into an interest rate swap at a preset
rate within a specific period of time.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO GOVERNMENT ENTITIES Schedule 10

($ millions)
2010 2009

Agriculture Financial Services Corporation $ 1,199 $ 1,108
Alberta Social Housing Corporation 181 203
Alberta Investment Management Corporation 32 32

Other

2 3
$ 1414 $ 1,346
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TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS Schedule 11
($ millions)
2010 2009
Computer Computer
Hardware & Hardware &
Software Software
Estimated useful life 5 years 5 years
Historical Cost
Beginning of year $ 24 % 21
Additions 3 3
27 24
Accumulated Amortization
Beginning of year 17 15
Amortization expense 1 2
18 17
Net book value at March 31st $ 9 % 7
ACCOUNTS AND ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE Schedule 12
($ millions)
2010 2009
Corporate income taxreceipts in abeyance $ 462 $ 532
Corporate income taxrefunds payable 478 543
Accrued interest on unmatured debt 47 19
Community Development Trust 32 63
Other 61 170
$ 1,080 $ 1,327
UNMATURED DEBT Schedule 13
($ millions)
2010 2009
Effective Modified Book Fair Book Fair
Rate Duration Value Value Value Value
(a) (b) (@) (@ (a) (@
% years
Canadian dollar debt
Floating rate and short-term
fixed rate 6.26 0.76 $ 493 $ 515 $ 40 $ 40
Fixed rate long-term (9© 4.63 6.66 4,213 4,349 1,950 2,167
4.80 6.03 $ 4,706 $ 4,864 $ 1990 $ 2,207

a)

Book value represents the amount the Department owes. Fair value is an approximation of market value to

the holder. The book value, fair value and weighted average effective rate include the effect of interest rate
and currency rate swaps. For non-marketable issues, the effective rate and fair value are determined by

reference to yield curves for comparable quoted issues.
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UNMATURED DEBT Schedule 13 (continued)

b) Modified duration is the weighted average term to maturity of the security’s cash flows (i.e. interest and principal)
and is a measure of price volatility; the greater the modified duration of a bond, the greater its percentage price
volatility.

c¢) Floating rate debt includes short-term debt, term debt with less than one year remaining to maturity, and term
debt with interest rate reset within a year.

d) Canadian dollar fixed rate debt includes $1,009 million (2009: $679 million) held by the Canada Pension Plan
Investment Fund.

e) Includes Alberta Capital Bonds with a par value of $79 million (2009 $nil) and borrowing of $1,186 million to
repay the Teachers’ Pension Plan liability.

Debt principal repayment requirements at par in each of the next five years, including short-term debt, maturing in
2010-11, and thereafter are as follows:

($ millions)
2010-11 $ 544
2011-12 390
2012-13 319
2013-14 111
2014-15 1,196
Thereafter 2,170
4,730

Unamortized discount (24)
$ 4,706

None of the debt has call provisions (2009: none).
Derivative Financial Instruments

The Department uses interest rate swaps contracts to manage the interest rate risk associated with unmatured debt.
Associated with these instruments are credit risks that could expose the Department to potential losses. Credit risk
relates to the possibility that a loss may occur from the failure of another party to perform according to the terms of a
contract. The Department minimizes its credit risk associated with these contracts by dealing with only the most credit
worthy counter-parties.

Interest rate swaps involve the exchange of a series of interest payments, either at a fixed or floating rate, based
upon a contractual or notional principal amount. An interest rate swap agreement based upon a notional amount
involves no exchange of underlying principal. The notional amount serves as the basis for determining the exchange
of interest payments.

The following table summarizes the Department’s derivative portfolio. Notional amount represents the amount to
which a rate or price is applied in order to calculate the exchange of cash flows. The notional amounts are not
recorded in the financial statements. The fair value of interest rate swaps are based on discounted cash flows using
current market yields and exchange rates.

($ millions)
2010 2009
Notional Net Fair Notional Net Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Interest rate swaps $ 100 1 3% - -
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LIABILITY FOR PENSION OBLIGATIONS Schedule 14

The Department accounts for the liabilities for pension obligations that the Government of Alberta has as an employer
and as an employer for organizations that are controlled by the Province, including government sector entities and
Crown-controlled SUCH sector organizations for former and current employees in Local Authorities Pension Plan,
Management Employees Pension Plan, Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers, Provincial
Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan and Public Service Pension Plan.

The Department also accounts for the specific commitments made by the Government of Alberta for pre-1992
pension obligations to the Teachers' Pension Plan, Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan,
Universities Academic Pension Plan and the Special Forces Pension Plan. In 1992 there had been pension plan
reform resulting in pre and post 92 arrangements for several pension plans.

The Department also accounts for the obligation to the Members of the Legislative Assembly Pension Plan.

The liability for the pension obligations is as follows:

($ millions)
2010 2010 2010 2009
Pension Pension Payout of Pension
Obligation Provision pre '92 Obligation

(Recovery) loan (f)

Obligations to pension plans for Government of Alberta's
employer share for former and current employees

Local Authorities Pension Plan @ $ 314 % 127 $ - 3 186
Management Employees Pension Plan ® 92 57 - 35
Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers © 40 40 - -
Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan 11 7 - 4
457 % 231 - 225

Obligations to pension plans for Government of Alberta's
commitment towards pre-1992 obligations

Teachers' Pension Plan @ 7,387 95 (1,186) 8,478
Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan © 650 - - 650
Universities Academic Pension Plan 293 27 - 266
Special Forces Pension Plan 120 8 = 112
8,450 130 (1,186) 9,506

Obligations to the Members of the Legislative Assembly © 45 (5) - 50
$ 8952 S 356 $ (1,186) $ 9,781

*  The Local Authorities Pension Plan, Management Employees Pension Plan, Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public
Service Managers, Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan and Public Service Pension Plan, have
reported a total deficiency as of the pension plans’ fiscal year-ends of $6,261 million. The Government of Alberta’s share of
the total deficiency, as an employer, is $2,546 million of which $2,086 million is unamortized losses that will be amortized
over the employee average remaining service life of each plan and $3 million is due to timing differences between the
pension fiscal year-ends and March 31, 2010 resulting in the pension plan obligation reported by the Government of
Alberta for these plans of $457 million.

The following provides a description of each pension obligation.

a) The Local Authorities Pension Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for eligible employees of local authorities
and approved public bodies. These include cities, towns, villages, municipal districts, hospitals, Alberta Health Services,
school divisions, school districts, colleges, technical institutes and certain commissions, foundations, agencies, libraries,
corporations, associations and societies. In accordance with the Public Sector Pension Plans Act, the actuarial
deficiencies as determined by actuarial funding valuations are expected to be funded by special payments currently
totaling 6.23% of pensionable earnings shared equally between employers and employees until December 31, 2020.
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b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

LIABILITY FOR PENSION OBLIGATIONS Schedule 14 (continued)

The Management Employees Pension Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for eligible management
employees of the Province of Alberta and certain approved provincial agencies and public bodies. Members of the former
Public Service Management Pension Plan who were active contributors at August 1, 1992, and have not withdrawn from
the Plan since that date, continue as members of this Plan. In accordance with the Public Sector Pension Plans Act, the
actuarial deficiencies as determined by actuarial funding valuations are expected to be funded by special payments
currently totaling 7.8% of pensionable earnings shared between employees and employers until December 31, 2017.
Current services costs are funded by employers and employees.

The Supplementary Retirement Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for certain public service managers of
designated employers who participate in the Management Employees Pension Plan (MEPP) and whose annual salary
exceeds the maximum pensionable salary limit under the Income Tax Act. The Plan is supplementary to the MEPP. The
contribution rates in effect at December 31, 2009 were unchanged at 10.5% of pensionable salary in excess of the
maximum pensionable salary limit for eligible employees and designated employers.

The Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for Judges
and Masters in Chambers of the Province of Alberta. Current service costs are funded by the Province of Alberta and plan
members at rates which are expected to provide for all benefits payable under the Plan. The rates in effect at

March 31, 2010 are 7.00% of capped salary for plan members and 16.16% of capped salary for the Province. Benefits are
payable by the Province of Alberta if assets are insufficient to pay for all benefits under the Plan.

The Public Service Pension Plan is a contributory defined benefit pension plan for eligible employees of the Province of
Alberta, approved provincial agencies and public bodies. In accordance with the Public Sector Pension Plans Act, the
actuarial deficiencies as determined by an actuarial funding valuation are expected to be funded by special payments
currently totaling 2.92% of pensionable earnings shared equally between employees and employers until

December 31, 2020. Current services costs are funded by employers and employees.

The Department of Finance and Enterprise assumed responsibility for the entire unfunded pre-1992 pension obligation of
the Teachers’ Pension Plan. In 2009-10 there was a repayment of $1,186 million towards the liability. As of
September 1, 2009, the costs of all benefits under the Plan are paid by the Department.

The Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan provides benefits to former members of the Public
Service Management Pension Plan who were retired, were entitled to receive a deferred pension or had attained 35 years
of service before August 1, 1992. The costs of all benefits under the Plan are paid by the Department.

Under the Public Sector Pension Plans Act, the Department has a liability for payment of additional contributions under
defined benefit pension plans for certain employees of municipalities and post-secondary educational institutions. The
plans are the Universities Academic and the Special Forces plans.

For Universities Academic, the unfunded liability for service credited prior to January 1, 1992 is being financed by
additional contributions of 1.25% of pensionable salaries by the Department, and contributions by employers and
employees to fund the remaining amount, as determined by the plan valuation, over the period ending on or before
December 31, 2043. Employers and employees fund current service costs.

For Special Forces, the unfunded liability for service credited prior to January 1, 1992 is being financed by additional
contributions in the ratio of 45.45% by the Department and 27.27% each by employers and employees, over the period
ending on or before December 31, 2036. Current service costs are funded by employers and employees. The Act
provides that payment of all benefits arising from pensionable service prior to 1994, excluding post-1991 cost of living
adjustment benefits, is guaranteed by the Province.

The Department has a liability for payment of pension benefits under a defined benefit pension plan for Members of the
Legislative Assembly. Active participation in this plan was terminated as of June 1993, and no benefits can be earned for
service after this date. The costs of all benefits under the plan are paid by the Department.
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LIABILITY FOR PENSION OBLIGATIONS Schedule 14 (continued)

Actuarial valuations of the plans are completed at least triennially using the projected benefit method prorated on
services. The following, by pension plan, is the actuary and date of the latest actuarial valuation.

Plan Actuary Latest Valuation Date
Local Authorities Pension Plan Mercer (Canada) Limited December 31, 2008

Management Employees Pension Plan
Supplementary Retirement Plan

Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Pension Plan

Public Service Pension Plan
Teachers' Pre-92 Pension Plan

Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan

Aon Consulting Inc.
Aon Consulting Inc.
Johnson Inc.

Aon Consulting Inc.
Aon Consulting Inc.
Aon Consulting Inc.

December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008
December 31, 2008

August 31, 2009
December 31, 2008

Universities Academic Pension Plan
Special Forces Pension Plan
Members of the Legislative Assembly Pension Plan

Mercer (Canada) Limited December 31, 2008
Mercer (Canada) Limited December 31,2008
Aon Consulting Inc. March 31, 2009

The liabilities for pension obligations are based upon actuarial extrapolations performed at December 31, 2009 or
March 31, 2010 for accounting purposes that reflect management’s best estimate as at the extrapolation date of
future economic events and involve both economic and non-economic assumptions. The non-economic assumptions
include considerations such as mortality as well as withdrawal and retirement rates. The primary economic
assumptions include the discount rate, inflation rate and salary escalation rate. The date of actuarial extrapolation
and primary economic assumptions used for accounting purposes were:

Last Salary
Extrapolation Escalation Inflation Discount

Plan Date Rate % Rate % Rate %
Local Authorities Pension Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.50
Management Employees Pension Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.60
Supplementary Retirement Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 470
Provincial Judges and Masters in

Chambers Pension Plan March 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.20
Public Service Pension Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.60
Teachers' Pre-92 Pension Plan March 31, 2010 3.50 2.25 5.00
Public Service Management (Closed

Membership) Pension Plan December 31, 2009 N/A 2.25 5.00
Universities Academic Pension Plan March 31, 2010 3.50 2.25 6.90
Special Forces Pension Plan December 31, 2009 3.50 2.25 6.90
Members of the Legislative Assembly

Pension Plan March 31,2010 N/A 2.25 5.00

The assumptions used in the extrapolations were adopted after consultation between the pension plan boards, the
government and the actuaries, depending on the plan, and represent best estimates of future events. Each plan’s
future experience will vary, perhaps significantly, from the assumptions. Any differences between the actuarial
assumptions and future experience will emerge as gains or losses in future valuations. Gains and losses are
amortized over the expected average remaining service lives of the employee group.

A separate pension plan fund is maintained for each pension plan except for the Teachers’ Pre-92 Pension Plan and
the Members of the Legislative Assembly Pension Plan. Each pension plan fund reports annually through financial
statements.
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OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES Schedule 15
($ millions)
2010 2009
Future funding to school boards to enable them to
repay debentures issued to the Alberta Capital Finance Authority $ 160 $ 204
Vacation entittements 6 6
$ 166 $ 210
GUARANTEED DEBT OF GOVERNMENT ENTITIES Schedule 16
($ millions)
2010 2009
Department
of Finance Others Total Total
and Enterprise
Debentures
Alberta Capital Finance Authority $ - $ 8,100 $ 8,100 $ 6,812
Alberta Social Housing Corporation 181 73 254 277
181 8,173 8,354 7,089
Deposits
ATB Financial - 22,579 22,579 23,881
$ 181 $ 30,752 $ 30,933 $ 30,970

Guarantees include principal borrowings only and exclude guaranteed interest, the amount of which is not
determinable.

The net asset position from the most recent financial statements of government entities with guaranteed liabilities are
reported below.

($ millions)
Entity Date Position 2010 2009
Shareholders'
Alberta Capital Finance Authority December 31,2009 Equity $ 57 $ 33
Alberta Social Housing Corporation March 31,2010  Surplus $ 656 $ 596
ATB Financial March 31,2010  Equity $ 1,809 $ 1,759
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS Schedule 17

Related parties are those entities consolidated or accounted for on the modified equity basis in the Province of
Alberta’s financial statements. Related parties also include management in the Department.

As explained in Note 2(a), the Department is responsible for managing all departments’ cash transactions. As a
result, the Department engages in transactions with its own funds and agencies and with all other departments and
their funds and agencies in the normal course of operations.

The Assistant Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise, Financial Sector Regulation and Policy is a director of the
Alberta Pensions Services Corporation and the Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise is a director of the Alberta
Capital Finance Authority. Alberta Pensions Services Corporation is wholly owned and Alberta Capital Finance
Authority is 70% owned by the Government of Alberta, through the Department. Neither of these two officials
received any benefit during the year, in cash or in kind, as a result of these directorships.

The investment in Alberta Capital Finance Authority is recorded at cost because the Corporation has the authority to
pay its retained earnings, which amounted to $57 million at December 31, 2009 (2008: $33 million), to municipal and
other shareholders, which have borrowed money from the Corporation. During the 2010 fiscal year, the Department
paid $64 million (2009: $77 million) to the Corporation by way of grants to school boards to satisfy their interest and
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS Schedule 17 (continued)

principal repayment obligations in respect of school board debentures. The investment in Alberta Pensions Services
Corporation is not significant, either on a cost or on an equity basis.

The Department and its employees paid or collected certain taxes and fees set by regulation for permits, licenses and
other charges. These amounts were incurred in the normal course of business, reflect charges applicable to all users,
and have been excluded from this Schedule.

The Department had transactions with related parties recorded on the Statements of Operations and the Statements
of Financial Position at the amount of consideration agreed upon between the related parties.

($ millions)
Entities in the Ministry Other Entities
2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues
Transfers $ 2,006 $ - $ = $ 56
Interest 2 3 63 72
Charges for services 64 31 - -
$ 2,072 $ 34 $ 63 $ 128
Expenses
Cost of services $ 9 % 4 9% 70 % 73
Assets
Accounts receivable $ 113 3% 85 $ 13 $ 25
Accrued interest receivable 3 3 13 13
Loans and advances to government entities 34 34 1,379 1,311
$ 150 $ 122 $ 1,405 $ 1,349
Liabilities
School Construction Debentures $ - $ - $ 160 $ 204
$ = $ - $ 160 $ 204
($ millions)
Other Entities
2010 2009
Expenses - incurred by others
Accommodation and air travel $ 7 % 5
Legal services 2 2
$ 9 % 7

The above transactions do not include support service arrangement transactions disclosed in Schedule 2.

84 2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

ALLOCATED COSTS BY PROGRAM Schedule 18

The Department also had the following transactions with related parties for which no consideration was exchanged.
The amounts for these related party transactions are estimated based on the costs incurred by the service provider to
provide the service. These amounts are not recorded in the financial statements but are disclosed in Schedule 18.

Total allocated costs of $1,130 million are comprised of total expenses per Statements of Operations amounting to
$1,121 million and expenses incurred by others amounting to $9 million.

1) Expenses — directly incurred as per Statements of Operations, excluding valuation adjustments.
2) Includes accommodation and air travel $7 million and legal services $2 million.
3) Includes vacation pay of $1 million and pension provisions of $356 million.

($ millions)
Expenses
incurred by Valuation Total

Program Expenses @  Others @  Adjustments @ 2010 2009
Ministry support services $ 1 $ 1 % 1 % 13 3 16
Fiscal planning and economic analysis 4 - - 4 4
Tax and revenue management 57 4 - 61 35
Enterprise 21 1 - 22 24
Investment, treasury and risk management 11 3 - 14 9
Financial sector and pensions 7 - - 7 7
Teachers' pension liability funding 341 - - 341 242
Transfers and debt servicing costs and pensions 312 - 356 668 2,148

$ 764 % 9 ¢ 357 $ 1,130 $ 2,485
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ALBERTA CANCER PREVENTION LEGACY FUND

Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2010

Auditor's Report

Statements of Financial Position
Statements of Operations and Net Assets
Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise

| have audited the statements of financial position of the Alberta Cancer Prevention Legacy Fund as at March 31,
2010 and 2009 and the statements of operations and net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at

March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
Edmonton, Alberta Auditor General
June 4, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Statements of Financial Position

As at March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Assets

Portfolio investments (Note 3) $ 488,675 $ 484,857
Liabilities

Administration expense payable $ 14 $ 26
Net Assets (Note 4) 488,661 484,831

$ 488,675 $ 484,857
Statements of Operations and Net Assets
Years Ended March 31
($ thousands)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual

Investment income (Note 5) $ 10,000 $ 25,952 $ 17,121
Investment expenses (Note 6) - (248) (143)
Net investment income 10,000 25,704 16,978
Transfers to the Ministry of Health and Wellness (Note 4b) (25,000) (21,874) (19,257)
Change in net assets $ (15,000) 3,830 (2,279)
Net assets at beginning of year 484,831 487,110
Net assets at end of year $ 488,661 $ 484,831

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Operating transactions

Net investment income $ 25,704 $ 16,978

Non-cash items included in net investment income (636) (666)

25,068 16,312

(Decrease) increase in payables (12) 26

Cash provided by operating transactions 25,056 16,338
Investing transactions

Proceeds from disposals, repayments and redemptions of investments 21,874 19,306

Purchase of investments (25,173) (16,364)

Cash (applied to) provided by investing transactions (3,299) 2,942
Transfers

Transfers to the Foundation (21,874) (19,257)

Cash applied to transfers (21,874) (19,257)
(Decrease) increase in cash (117) 23
Cash at beginning of year 202 179
Cash at end of year $ 85 $ 202
Consisting of Deposit in the Consolidated

Cash Investment Trust Fund (Note 3a) $ 85 $ 202

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2010
($ thousands)

NOTE1l AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The Alberta Cancer Prevention Legacy Fund (the Fund) operates under the authority of the Alberta Cancer
Prevention Legacy Act, Chapter A-14.2, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2006 (the Act). The purpose of the Act is to
support and encourage cancer prevention initiatives such as research, education, public policy development and
social marketing initiatives. The Fund commenced operations on July 7, 2006.

The Fund invests the transfers made to the Fund. The portfolio is comprised of high-quality interest-bearing
investments. The Act states that the Minister of Finance and Enterprise shall not make any direct investment of the
Fund or any portion of the Fund in securities of companies in the tobacco industry. The Minister of Finance and
Enterprise shall pay money from the Fund that is required by the Minister of Health and Wellness for the purposes of
the Act.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING
PRACTICES

The recommendations of the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants are
the primary source for the disclosed basis of accounting.

The accounting policies of significance to the Fund are as follows:

a) PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS
Investments held directly by the Fund or by pooled investment funds are recorded at cost. Cost includes the
amount of applicable amortization of discount or premium using the straight-line method over the life of the
investments.
Investments are recorded as of the trade date.
The cost of disposals is determined on the average cost basis.
Where there has been a loss in value of an investment that is other than a temporary decline, the investment is
written down to recognize the loss. The written down value is deemed to be the new cost. Where the fair value
remains less than cost, after recording a writedown, it is management’s best judgement that the decline in value
is caused by short-term market trends and is temporary in nature.

b) INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENSES

Investment income and expenses, as reported in Notes 5 and 6, are recorded on the accrual basis. Investment
income is accrued when there is reasonable assurance as to its measurement and collectability.

Net recognized gains and losses arising as a result of disposals of investments are included in the
determination of investment income.

c) FOREIGN CURRENCY
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using average rates of exchange. At year
end, the fair value of investments in other assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are translated

at the year end exchange rates. Exchange differences on transactions are included in the determination of
investment income.

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report 91



ALBERTA CANCER PREVENTION LEGACY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

NOTE 2 (continued)

d)

INVESTMENT VALUATION

Portfolio investments are recorded in the financial statements at cost. The fair value of investments is provided
for information purposes and is disclosed in Note 3.

Fair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Changes in estimated fair value of investments are reported in the period in which new information is received.

The methods used by the Alberta Investment Management Corporation (AIMCo) to determine fair value of
investments held either by the Fund or by pooled investment funds is explained in the following paragraphs:

i) Public interest-bearing securities are valued at the year-end closing sale price, or the average of the latest
bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.

i)  The fair value of deposits, receivables, accrued interest and payables is estimated to approximate their
book values.

NOTE 3 PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Cost Fair Value % Cost Fair Value %
Interest-bearing securities
Deposits (a) $ 85 $ 85 - $ 202 $ 202 -
Bonds (b) 488,590 498,265 100.0 484,655 500,727 100.0

$ 488,675 $ 498,350 100.0 $ 484,857 $ 500,929 100.0

The Fund’s investments are managed at the asset class level for purposes of evaluating the Fund’s risk exposure
and investment performance against approved benchmarks based on fair value. AIMCo invests the Fund’s assets in
accordance with the investment policies approved by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. The Fund’s
investments, in each asset class, are held in pooled investment funds established and administered by AIMCo. Pool
units represent the Fund’s proportionate share of securities held in the pooled fund. Pooled investment funds have a
market based unit value that is used to allocate income to participants of the pool and to value purchases and sales
of pool units. AIMCo is delegated authority to independently purchase and sell securities in the pools.

a)

b)

92

Deposits in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund, being cash as reported in the Statements of Cash
Flows, include primarily short-term and mid-term interest-bearing securities which have a maximum term to
maturity of less than three years. At March 31, 2010, deposits had a time-weighted return of 1.0% (2009: 3.0%
per annum).

Interest-bearing bonds include government direct and guaranteed bonds and mortgage-backed securities,
corporate bonds and asset-backed securities. At March 31, 2010, interest bearing bonds had an average
effective market yield of 4.6% per annum (2009: 2.8% per annum) and the following term structure based on
principal amount: under 1 year: 9% (2009: 5%); 1 to 5 years: 82% (2009: 85%); 5 to 10 years: 8% (2009: 9%); 10
to 20 years: 0% (2009: 0%); and over 20 years: 1% (2009: 1%).
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NOTE 4 NET ASSETS

Net assets represents the difference between the carrying value of assets held by the Fund and its liabilities. The
following table shows the accumulated investment income and transfers to and from the Fund since its inception on
July 7, 2006:

($ thousands)
Cumulative since 2006
2010 2009
Transfers from the General Revenue Fund (a) $ 500,000 $ 500,000
Accumulated investment income 79,792 54,088
Accumulated transfers to the Ministry (b) (91,131) (69,257)
Net Assets, at cost $ 488,661 $ 484,831
Net Assets, at fair value $ 498,336 $ 500,903

(a) Inaccordance with section 5 of the Alberta Cancer Prevention Legacy Act (the Act), the Fund received $500 million from the
GRF.

(b) In accordance with section 6(1) of the Act, the Fund paid out $21,874 to the Minister of Health and Wellness during the year.

NOTES NETINVESTMENT INCOME

The following is a summary of the Fund'’s investment income (loss) and expenses by asset class:

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Gross Gross
Income  Expenses Netlncome Income Expenses NetIncome
Interest-bearing securities $ 25952 $ 141 $ 25811 $ 17,121 $ 84 $ 17,037
Fund investment expenses - 107 (207) - 59 (59)

$ 25952 $ 248 $ 25704 $ 17,121 $ 143 $ 16,978

Investment income is comprised of interest, dividends, amortization of discount and premiums, security lending
income and realized gains and losses, net of writedowns, on investments. The investment income for the year ended
March 31, 2010, includes writedowns totalling $23 (2009: $7,438).
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NOTE 6 INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Investment services are provided by AIMCo. It provides the day to day investment services for the Fund’s investment
portfolio. However, in order to achieve greater diversification, access external expertise and specialized knowledge
and to reduce operational complexity, some investments are managed by third party investment managers selected
and monitored by AIMCo.

Investment expenses are recognized on an accrual basis and include those costs and fees incurred to earn
investment income by the Fund. The Fund recognizes portfolio management and administration expenses incurred
directly by the Fund and its share of expenses through pooled investment funds. Investment services provided
directly by AIMCo are charged to the Fund and to pooled funds on a cost recovery basis. Investment services
provided by external managers are charged to pooled funds based on a percentage of net assets under management
at fair value, or committed amounts. Fees charged by external managers include primarily regular management fees
and performance/incentive based fees to the extent recognized.

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Total Investment Expenses $ 248 $ 143
Average fair value of investments 499,640 496,915
Percent of investments at average fair value 0.05% 0.03%

NOTE 7 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE (net of investment expenses)

The following is a summary of the investment performance results attained by the Fund determined on a fair value
basis:
Average Annualized Return

Time-weighted rates of return, at fair value (1) 2010 2009 2 years 3 years
Actual gain (loss) (2) 3.8% 5.5% 4.7% 5.0%
Benchmark gain (loss) (2) 1.1% 7.7% 4.3% n/a
Value added (lost) by investment manager 2.8% -2.2% 0.3% n/a

(1) The time-weighted rate of return involves the calculation of the return realized by the Fund over a specified period and is a
measure of the total proceeds received from an investment dollar initially invested. Total proceeds include cash distributions
(interest and dividend payments) and capital gains and losses (realized and unrealized).

(2) The actual and policy benchmark returns are a product of the weighted average sector weights and sector returns. Some of
the sector returns used in the determination of the overall actual and policy benchmark returns are based on management's
best estimate which may vary significantly from the final return. Differences between the estimated sector returns and the
final returns are recorded in the period of the change.

NOTE8 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to 2010 presentation.

NOTE9 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise approved these financial statements.
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise

| have audited the statements of financial position of the Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research
Endowment Fund as at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the statements of operations and net assets and cash flows
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as
at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
Auditor General

Edmonton, Alberta
June 4, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Statements of Financial Postion

As at March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Assets
Portfolio investments (Note 3) $ 1,243,991 $ 1,174,363
Receivable from sale of investments 5,000 -
1,248,991 1,174,363
Liabilities
Administration expense payable $ 93 $ 101
Net Assets (Note 6) 1,248,898 1,174,262
$ 1,248,991 $ 1,174,363
Statements of Operations and Net Assets
Years Ended March 31
($ thousands)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual
Investment income (loss) (Note 7) $ 50,809 $ 156,592 $ (253,400)
Investment expenses (Note 8) (6,440) (5,956) (6,360)
Net investment income (loss) 44,369 150,636 (259,760)
Transfers to the Alberta Heritage Foundation
for Medical Research (Note 6b) (82,000) (76,000) (77,000)
Change in net assets $ (37,631) 74,636 (336,760)
Net assets at beginning of year 1,174,262 1,511,022
Net assets at end of year $ 1,248,898 $ 1,174,262

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Cash Flows

Years Ended March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Operating transactions

Net investment income (loss) $ 150,636 $ (259,760)

Non-cash items included in net investment income (loss) (6,384) 8,746

144,252 (251,014)

(Increase) decrease in receivables (5,000) 9,003

(Decrease) increase in payables (8) 31

Cash provided by (applied to) operating transactions 139,244 (241,980)
Investing transactions

Proceeds from disposals, repayments and redemptions of investments 902,863 463,020

Purchase of investments (968,257) (138,396)

Cash (applied to) provided by investing transactions (65,394) 324,624
Transfers

Transfers to the Foundation (76,000) (77,000)

Cash applied to transfers (76,000) (77,000)
(Decrease) increase in cash (2,150) 5,644
Cash at beginning of year 14,114 8,470
Cash at end of year $ 11,964 $ 14,114
Consisting of Deposit in the Consolidated Cash

Investment Trust Fund (Note 3a) $ 11,964 $ 14,114

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2010
($ thousands)

NOTE1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research Endowment Fund (the Fund) operates under the authority of
the Alberta Research and Innovation Act, Chapter A-31.7, Statutes of Alberta 2009 (the Act). Prior to January 1,
2010, the Fund operated under the Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research Act, Chapter A-21, Revised
Statutes of Alberta 2000.

The purpose of the Fund is to support a balanced long-term program of research and innovation related to health
and directed to the discovery of new knowledge and the application of that knowledge to improve health and the
quality of health services in Alberta. The Fund is managed with the objectives of providing an annual level of income
for transfer to Advanced Education and Technology. The portfolio is comprised of interest-bearing securities,
equities, inflation sensitive and alternative investments.

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING
PRACTICES

The recommendations of the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants are
the primary source for the disclosed basis of accounting.

The accounting policies of significance to the Fund are as follows:
a) PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

Investments held directly by the Fund or by pooled investment funds are recorded at cost. Cost includes the
amount of applicable amortization of discount or premium using the straight-line method over the life of the
investments.

Investments are recorded as of the trade date.
The cost of disposals is determined on the average cost basis.

Where there has been a loss in value of an investment that is other than a temporary decline, the investment
is written down to recognize the loss. The written down value is deemed to be the new cost. Where the fair
value remains less than cost, after recording a writedown, it is management’s best judgement that the decline
in value is caused by short-term market trends and is temporary in nature.

b) INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENSES

Investment income and expenses, as reported in Notes 7 and 8, are recorded on the accrual basis.
Investment income is accrued when there is reasonable assurance as to its measurement and collectability.
For certain investments such as private equities, private income, private real estate, absolute return strategies
and timberland investments, the actual income and expenses may not be known at the time the financial
statements are prepared. In these cases, estimates may be used, which may vary from actual income and
expenses.

Net recognized gains and losses arising as a result of disposals of investments, including those arising from
derivative transactions, are included in the determination of investment income.

Changes in fair value of derivative contracts are included in investment income except for certain derivative
contracts designated as hedges of market risks for purposes of hedge accounting. Hedge accounting
recognizes gains and losses from derivatives in the statement of income in the same period as the gains and
losses of the security being hedged.

Where a hedge relationship is designated, the hedge is documented at inception. The documentation
identifies the specific asset being hedged, the risk that is being hedged, type of derivative used and the
matching of critical terms of both the hedged security and the hedging derivative for purposes of measuring
effectiveness. The derivative must be highly effective in accomplishing the objective of offsetting either
changes in the fair value or cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged both at inception and over the life
of the hedge. When the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, the hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. If hedge accounting is discontinued, gains and losses resulting from the changes
in fair value of the derivative contract are recognized in income immediately.
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Note 2 (continued)

c)

d)

e)

100

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using average rates of exchange. At year-
end, the fair value of investments in other assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are
translated at the year-end exchange rates. Exchange differences on transactions are included in the
determination of investment income.

INVESTMENT VALUATION

Portfolio investments are recorded in the financial statements at cost. The fair value of investments is
provided for information purposes and is disclosed in Note 3.

Fair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Measurement uncertainty exists in the fair values reported for certain investments such as private equities,
private income, private real estate, absolute return strategies and timberland investments. The fair value of
these investments is based on estimates where quoted market prices are not readily available. Estimated fair
values may not reflect amounts that could be recognized upon immediate sale, nor amounts that ultimately
may be recognized. Accordingly, the estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would
have been used had a ready market existed for these investments.

Changes in estimated fair value of investments are reported in the period in which new information is
received.

The methods used by the Alberta Investment Management Corporation (AIMCo) to determine fair value of
investments held either by the Fund or by pooled investment funds is explained in the following paragraphs:

i) Public interest-bearing securities and equities are valued at the year-end closing sale price or the
average of the latest bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.

ii) Private interest-bearing debt and mortgages are valued based on the net present value of future cash
flows. These cash flows are discounted using appropriate interest rate premiums over similar
Government of Canada benchmark bonds trading in the market.

iii)  The fair value of private equities is estimated by managers or general partners of private equity funds,
pools and limited partnerships. Valuation methods may encompass a broad range of approaches. The
cost approach is used to value companies without either profits or cash flows. Established private
companies are valued using the fair market value approach reflecting conventional valuation methods
including discounted cash flows and earnings multiple analysis.

iv)  The estimated fair value of real estate investments is reported at their most recent appraised value, net
of any liabilities against the real property. Real estate properties are appraised annually by qualified
external real estate appraisers. Appraisers use a combination of methods to determine fair value
including replacement cost, direct comparison, direct capitalization of earnings and discounted cash
flows.

v) The fair value of Absolute Return Strategy Pool investments is estimated by external managers.

vi)  The fair value of timberland investments is appraised annually by independent third party evaluators.

vii)  The fair value of deposits, receivables, accrued interest and payables is estimated to approximate their
book values.

VALUATION OF DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts include equity and bond index swaps, interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate
swaps, credit default swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts, equity index futures contracts and swap
option contracts. As disclosed in Note 5, the value of derivative contracts is included in the fair value of pooled
investment funds. The estimated amount receivable or payable from derivative contracts at the reporting date
is determined by the following methods:

i)  Equity and bond index swaps are valued based on changes in the appropriate market based index net of
accrued floating rate interest.

ii) Interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows
using current market yields and exchange rates.

iii) Credit default swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows using current market yields and
calculated default probabilities.
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Note 2 (continued)

iv) Forward foreign exchange contracts and futures contracts are based on quoted market prices.

v) Options to enter into interest rate swap contracts are valued based on discounted cash flows using
current market yields and volatility parameters which measure changes in the underlying swap.

NOTE3 PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

2010 2009

Cost Fair Value % Cost Fair Value

Interest-bearing securities

Deposits and short-term securities (a) $ 14,779 $ 14,768 12 $ 17476 $ 17,637 15
Bonds and mortgages (b) 269,872 271,609 21.2 218,809 210,357 183
284,651 286,377 224 236,285 227,994 198
Equities
Canadian public equities (c) 171,513 184,918 14.4 202,968 176,959 15.3
Global developed public equities (d) 514,447 526,061 41.0 445,698 414,626 35.9
Emerging markets public equities (e) 3,232 3,029 0.2 5,564 3,985 0.3
Private equities (f) 49,004 46,520 3.6 48,184 44,939 3.9
738,196 760,528 59.2 702,414 640,509 554
Inflation sensitive and alternative investments
Private real estate (g) 100,722 120,982 9.4 119,162 166,381 144
Inflation sensitive real return bonds (h) 7,013 7179 0.5 - - -
Private infrastructure investments (i) 56,453 49,481 3.9 43,265 43,899 3.8
Absolute return strategy hedge funds (j) 50,774 52,346 4.1 68,292 68,682 6.0
Timberland (k) 6,182 6,150 0.5 4,945 6,670 0.6
221,144 236,138 184 235,664 285,632 248
$ 1,243,991 $ 1,283,043 100.0 $ 1,174,363 $ 1,154,135 100.0

The Fund'’s investments are managed at the asset class level for purposes of evaluating the Fund’s risk exposure
and investment performance against approved benchmarks based on fair value. AIMCo invests the Fund’s assets in

accordance with the investment policies approved by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. The Fund’s

investments, in each asset class, are held in pooled investment funds established and administered by AIMCo. Pool
units represent the Fund'’s proportionate share of securities held in the pooled fund. Pooled investment funds have a
market based unit value that is used to allocate income to participants of the pool and to value purchases and sales
of pool units. AIMCo is delegated authority to independently purchase and sell securities in the pools and units of the

pools in accordance with the approved long-term policy asset mix (see Note 4).

a) Deposits and short-term securities includes deposits in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund, being
cash as reported in the Statements of Cash Flow, of $11,964 (2009: $14,114) and short-term securities of

$2,815 (2009: $3,362). These investments include primarily short-term and mid-term interest-bearing

securities which have a maximum term to maturity of less than three years. At March 31, 2010, deposits and

short-term securities had a time-weighted return of 1.0% (2009: 3.0% per annum).

b) Interest-bearing bonds and mortgages include government direct and guaranteed bonds and mortgage-

backed securities, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities, private debt issues, private mortgages,

repurchase agreements and debt related derivatives. At March 31, 2010, interest bearing bonds and
mortgages had an average effective market yield of 5.0% per annum (2009: 7.2% per annum) and the

following term structure based on principal amount: under 1 year: 3% (2009: 5%); 1 to 5 years: 33% (2009:

36%); 5 to 10 years: 36% (2009: 27%); 10 to 20 years: 13% (2009: 15%); and over 20 years: 15% (2009:
17%). At March 31, 2010, Government of Canada bonds are used as underlying securities to support the

notional value of bond index futures contracts totalling $nil (2009: $34,899).
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c)

d)

g)

h)

)

k)

102

Note 3 (continued)

The Fund’s Canadian public equity portfolio includes directly held investments in Canadian public companies
and indirect exposure to Canadian public equity markets through structured equity products using index swaps
and futures contracts linked to the Standard and Poor’s Toronto Stock Exchange (S&P/TSX) Composite Index
and S&P/TSX 60 Index. At March 31, 2010, cash and floating rate notes are used as underlying securities to
support the notional value of Canadian equity index swaps and futures contracts totalling $56,572 (2009:
$112,002).

The global developed market is used to describe countries whose economies and capital markets are well
established and mature. The Fund’s global developed public equity portfolio includes directly held
investments in public companies in the U.S., Europe, Australasia and the Far East (EAFE), emerging markets
and Canada. The Fund’s indirect exposure to global developed markets and emerging markets is also attained
by investing in structured equity products using index swaps and futures contracts linked to the Morgan
Stanley Capital International (MSCI) World Total Return Index, MSCI EAFE Index, S&P 500 Index and
Emerging Markets Free Net Index. A component of the Fund’s global portfolio includes investments in North
American concentrated equities which include larger holdings in mid-size Canadian and American companies
ranging from 5% to 20% of outstanding common shares. At March 31, 2010, cash and money market
securities are used as underlying securities to support the notional value of global equity index swaps and
futures contracts totalling $172,267 (2009: $246,930).

Emerging markets equities consist of publicly traded equities in countries in the process of rapid growth and
industrialization such as Brazil, Russia, India and China. The portfolio is actively managed by external
managers with expertise in emerging markets.

Private equity investments include primarily merchant banking investments. Merchant banking transactions
include expansion capital, acquisition financing, management buyouts, family succession, turnaround
financings, project financings and leverage reductions.

The private real estate portfolio was primarily held in Canada. Real estate is held through intermediary
companies, which issue common shares and participating debentures secured by a charge on real estate.
Risk is reduced by investing in properties that provide diversification by geographic location, by property type
and by tenancy. Real estate returns are positively correlated to inflation and negatively correlated to returns
from fixed income securities and equities which provide diversification from the securities market with
opportunities for high return.

Real rate of return bonds are issued or guaranteed primarily by the Government of Canada, and bear interest
at a fixed rate adjusted for inflation.

Private infrastructure investments include investments that are structured to provide high returns plus inflation
sensitivity with a long investment horizon. Investments may include transportation and logistic investments
(e.g. toll roads, airports, ports and rail), power or energy investments (e.g. contracted power generation, power
transmission pipelines) and utilities (e.g. water, waste water, natural gas networks).

The absolute return strategies (hedge funds) use external managers who employ various investment
strategies which are expected to produce absolute positive investment returns with lower volatility.
Investments are made through multi-hedge fund-of-funds and direct investments to increase strategy
diversification.

Timberland investments are located primarily in Canada. The Canadian timberland investment includes an
interest in timber and related land located in the Province of British Columbia.
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NOTE 4 INVESTMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

Income and financial returns of the Fund are exposed to credit risk and price risk. Credit risk relates to the possibility
that a loss may occur from the failure of another party to perform according to the terms of a contract. Price risk is
comprised of currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Currency risk relates to the possibility that the
investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk relates to the
possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market interest rates. Market risk
relates to the possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market prices.

In order to earn an optimal financial return at an acceptable level of risk, management of the Fund established the
following long-term policy asset mix for the 2009-2010 fiscal year:

Equities 52.5%
Interest-bearing securities 22.5%
Inflation sensitive and alternatives 25.0%

Risk is reduced through asset class diversification, diversification within each asset class, quality constraints on
fixed-income instruments, and restrictions on amounts exposed to countries designated as emerging markets.
Controls are in place respecting the use of derivatives (see Note 5). Forward foreign exchange contracts may be
used to manage currency exposure in connection with securities purchased in foreign currency (see Note 5).

NOTE 5 DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts are financial contracts, the value of which is derived from the value of underlying assets, indices,
interest rates or currency rates. The Fund uses derivative contracts held indirectly through pooled investment funds
to enhance return, manage exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk and for asset mix management
purposes. The notional value of a derivative contract represents the amount to which a rate or price is applied in
order to calculate the exchange of cash flows.

i) A swap is a contractual agreement between two counter-parties to exchange a series of cash flows (usually
settled every three months) based on a notional amount. An equity or bond index swap involves the exchange
of a floating interest rate cash flow for one based on the performance of a market index. For interest rate
swaps, parties generally exchange fixed and floating rate interest cash flows based on a notional amount.
Cross-currency interest rate swaps are contractual obligations in which the principal amounts of Canadian
fixed-income securities denominated in foreign currency are exchanged for Canadian currency amounts both
initially and at maturity. Over the term of the cross-currency swap, counter-parties exchange fixed to fixed and
fixed to floating interest rate cash flows in the swapped currencies. A credit default swap allows counter-
parties to buy and sell protection on credit risk inherent in a bond. A premium is paid, based on a notional
amount, from one counter party to a second counter party in exchange for a contingent payment should a
defined credit event occur with respect to the underlying security. There are underlying securities supporting
all swaps. Leveraging is not allowed.

i) Forward foreign exchange contracts are contractual agreements to exchange specified currencies at an
agreed upon exchange rate and on an agreed settlement date in the future.

iii) Futures contracts are an agreement to receive or pay cash based on changes in the level of the specified
index.

iv) Swap option contracts include the right, but not the obligation, to enter into an interest rate swap at a preset
rate within a specific period of time.
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Note 5 (continued)

The following is a summary of the Fund's proportionate share of the notional amount and fair value of derivative
contracts held by pooled funds at March 31, 2010:

(% thousands)
Maturity March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009
Under 1to3 Over Notional Fair Notional Fair
1 Year Years 3 Years Amount(a) Value (b) Amount (a) Value (b)
Equity index swap contracts 99% 1% - $ 247665 $ 6,875 $ 291489 § 834
Interest rate swap contracts 25% 55% 20% 64,060 (2,206) 98,977 (5,510)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 100% - - 299,674 3,853 229,845 (7,946)
Cross-currencyinterestrate swaps 23% 34% 43% 37,416 2,175 77,780 (2,871)
Credit default swap contracts 29% 39% 32% 185,426 (1,452) 310,885 (5,968)
Bond index swap contracts - - - - - 9,272 71
Futures contracts 100% - - 195,063 13,081 103,704 15,749
Swap option contracts 100% - - 30,695 (165) - -
$1,059,999 $ 22,161 $1,121,952 $ (5,641)
(a) The notional amounts, upon which payments are based, are not indicative of the credit risk associated with derivative
contracts. Current credit exposure is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding contracts in a favourable

position (positive fair value). The Fund attempts to limit its credit exposure by dealing with counter-parties believed to have

good credit standing (A+ or greater).

(b) The method of determining the fair value of derivative contracts is described in Note 2 (e).

NOTE6 NET ASSETS

Net assets represents the difference between the carrying value of assets held by the Fund and its liabilities. The
following table shows the accumulated investment income and transfers to and from the Fund since its inception in

1980:
(% thousands)
Cumulative since 1980
2010 2009
Transfers from the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund (a) $ 300,000 $ 300,000
Transfers from the General Revenue Fund 500,000 500,000
Accumulated investmentincome 1,646,898 1,496,262
Accumulated transfers to the Foundation (b) (1,198,000) (1,122,000)
Net Assets, at cost $ 1,248,898 $ 1,174,262
Net Assets, at fair value $ 1,287,950 $ 1,154,034

(a) The endowment was received from the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund on March 31, 1980.

(b) In accordance with section 8(1) of the Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research Act, the Fund paid out $76 million

to the Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research prior to December 31, 2009. That act was repealed on Janu

ary 1,

2010, and the Fund was continued under the Alberta Research and Innovation Act (the Act). Section 12 of the Act limits

the annual payments from the Fund to Advanced Education and Technology. Payments to Advanced Education and

Technology may not exceed, in a fiscal year, 4.5% of the average of the market values determined on March 31 of the
preceding three fiscal years, and any unused portion of the amount permitted to be paid in that fiscal year may be paid in

any subsequent fiscal year.
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NOTE 7 NETINVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS)

The following is a summary of the Fund’s investment income (loss) and expenses by asset class:

(% thousands)
2010 2009

Gross Gross

Income Net Income Income Net Income

(Loss) Expenses (Loss) (Loss) Expenses (Loss)
Foreign equities $ 79921 $ 1597 $ 78,324 $ (170,953) $ 2,042 $ (172,995)
Canadian equities 25,258 285 24,973 (63,010) 241 (63,251)
Interest-bearing securities 17,161 307 16,854 (8,289) 446 (8,735)
Absolute return strategies 11,210 534 10,676 (24,362) 817 (25,179)
Private real estate 14,000 670 13,330 11,213 670 10,543
Private infrastructure investments 9,048 655 8,393 3,961 420 3,541
Timberland 1,318 47 1,271 (737) 38 (775)
Private equities (1,408) 1,351 (2,759) (1,223) 1,389 (2,612)
Inflation sensitive real return bonds 84 - 84 - - -
Fund investment expenses - 510 (510) - 297 (297)

$ 156,592 $ 5956 $ 150,636 $ (253,400) $ 6,360 $ (259,760)

Investment income is comprised of interest, dividends, amortization of discount and premiums, swap income,
security lending income and realized gains and losses, net of writedowns, on investments. The investment income
for the year ended March 31, 2010, includes writedowns totalling $8,380 (2009: $80,625).

NOTE 8 INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Investment services are provided by AIMCo. It provides the day to day investment services for the Fund’s
investment portfolio. However, in order to achieve greater diversification, access external expertise and specialized
knowledge and to reduce operational complexity, some investments are managed by third party investment
managers selected and monitored by AIMCo.

Investment expenses are recognized on an accrual basis and include those costs and fees incurred to earn
investment income by the Fund. The Fund recognizes portfolio management and administration expenses incurred
directly by the Fund and its share of expenses through pooled investment funds. Investment services provided
directly by AIMCo are charged to the Fund and to pooled funds on a cost recovery basis. Investment services
provided by external managers are charged to pooled funds based on a percentage of net assets under
management at fair value, or committed amounts. Fees charged by external managers include primarily regular
management fees and performance/incentive based fees to the extent recognized.

(% thousands)
2010 2009
Investment Expenses $ 5956 $ 6,360
Average fair value of investments 1,218,589 1,339,516
Percent of investments at average fair value 0.49% 0.48%
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NOTE 9 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE (net of investment expenses)

The following is a summary of the Fund’s return on investment, net of expenses, compared to the Fund’s policy
benchmark:

Average Annualized Return

Time-weighted rates of return, at fair value (1) 2010 2009 5 years 10 years
Actual gain (loss) (2) 18.9% -20.4% 3.8% 2.6%
Benchmark gain (loss) (2) 18.0% -16.2% 4.4% 2.7%
Value added (lost) byinvestment manager 0.9% -4.2% -0.7% -0.1%

(1) The time-weighted rate of return involves the calculation of the return realized by the Fund over a specified period and is a
measure of the total proceeds received from an investment dollar initially invested. Total proceeds include cash distributions
(interest and dividend payments) and capital gains and losses (realized and unrealized).

(2) The actual and policy benchmark returns are a product of the weighted average sector weights and sector returns. Some of
the sector returns used in the determination of the overall actual and policy benchmark returns are based on management's
best estimate which may vary significantly from the final return. Differences between the estimated sector returns and the
final returns are recorded in the period of the change.

NOTE 10 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to 2010 presentation.

NOTE 11 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise approved these financial statements.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise

| have audited the statements of financial position of the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund as at March 31, 2010
and 2009, and the statements of operations and net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at

March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
Auditor General

Edmonton, Alberta
June 4, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Statements of Financial Position

As at March 31

(in millions)
2010 2009

Assets

Portfolio investments (Note 3) $ 13,820 $ 13,819

Receivable from sale of investments and accrued income 25 20

$ 13,845 $ 13,839

Liabilities

Due to the General Revenue Fund $ 6 $ -

Administration expense payable 1
Net Assets (Note 6) 13,838 13,838

$ 13,845 $ 13,839
Years Ended March 31
(in millions)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual

Investment income (loss) (Note 7) $ 778 % 2077 % (2,501)
Investment expenses (Note 8) (67) (71) (73)
Net income (loss) 711 2,006 (2,574)
Transfers to the General Revenue Fund (Note 6b) (711) (2,006) -
Net income (loss) retained in the Fund (Note 6b) $ = = (2,574)
Net Assets at beginning of year 13,838 16,412
Net Assets at end of year $ 13,838 $ 13,838

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report 109



ALBERTA HERITAGE SAVINGS TRUST FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended March 31

(in millions)
2010 2009
Operating transactions
Net income (loss) $ 2,006 $ (2,574)
Non-cash items included in net income (loss) (149) 63
1,857 (2,511)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (5) 1
Decrease in accounts payable - (60)
Cash provided by (applied to) operating transactions 1,852 (2,570)
Investing transactions
Proceeds from disposals, repayments and
redemptions of investments 10,833 4,323
Purchase of investments (10,702) (1,983)
Cash provided by investing transactions 131 2,340
Transfers
Transfers to the General Revenue Fund (2,006) -
Increase in amounts due to the
General Revenue Fund 6 113
Cash (applied to) provided by transfers (2,000) 113
Decrease in cash a7) (117)
Cash at beginning of year 100 217
Cash at end of year $ 83 $ 100
Consisting of Deposits in the Consolidated
Cash Investment Trust Fund (Note 3a) $ 83 $ 100

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2010
(in millions)

NOTE1l AUTHORITY AND MISSION

The Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund operates under the authority of the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund
Act, Chapter A-23, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 (the Act), as amended.

The preamble to the Act describes the mission of the Fund as follows:

“To provide prudent stewardship of the savings from Alberta’s non-renewable resources by providing the greatest
financial returns on those savings for current and future generations of Albertans.”

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING
PRACTICES

The recommendations of the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants are
the primary source for the disclosed basis of accounting.

The accounting policies of significance to the Fund are as follows:
a) PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

Investments held directly by the Fund or by pooled investment funds are recorded at cost. Cost includes the
amount of applicable amortization of discount or premium using the straight-line method over the life of the
investments.

Investments in loans are recorded at cost less any allowance for credit loss. Where there is no longer
reasonable assurance of timely collection of the full amount of principal and interest of a loan, a specific
provision for credit loss is made and the carrying amount of the loan is reduced to its estimated realizable
amount.

Investments are recorded as of the trade date.
The cost of disposals is determined on the average cost basis.

Where there has been a loss in value of an investment that is other than a temporary decline, the investment
is written down to recognize the loss. The written down value is deemed to be the new cost. Where the fair
value remains less than cost, after recording a writedown, it is management’s best judgement that the decline
in value is caused by short-term market trends and is temporary in nature.

b) INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENSES

Investment income and expenses, as reported in Notes 7 and 8, are recorded on the accrual basis.
Investment income is accrued when there is reasonable assurance as to its measurement and collectability.
When a loan becomes impaired, recognition of interest income in accordance with the terms of the original
loan agreement ceases. Any subsequent payments received on an impaired loan are applied to reduce the
loan’s book value. For certain investments such as private equities, private income, private real estate,
absolute return strategies and timberland investments, the actual income and expenses may not be known at
the time the financial statements are prepared. In these cases, estimates may be used, which may vary from
actual income and expenses.

Net recognized gains and losses arising as a result of disposals of investments, including those arising from
derivative transactions, are included in the determination of investment income.

Changes in fair value of derivative contracts are included in investment income except for certain derivative
contracts designated as hedges of market risks for purposes of hedge accounting. Hedge accounting
recognizes gains and losses from derivatives in the statement of income in the same period as the gains and
losses of the security being hedged.
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Note 2 (continued)

c)

d)

112

Where a hedge relationship is designated, the hedge is documented at inception. The documentation identifies
the specific asset being hedged, the risk that is being hedged, type of derivative used and the matching of
critical terms of both the hedged security and the hedging derivative for purposes of measuring effectiveness.
The derivative must be highly effective in accomplishing the objective of offsetting either changes in the fair
value or cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged both at inception and over the life of the hedge. When
the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, the hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If
hedge accounting is discontinued, gains and losses resulting from the changes in fair value of the derivative
contract are recognized in income immediately.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using average rates of exchange. At year
end, the fair value of investments in other assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are
translated at the year end exchange rates. Exchange differences on transactions are included in the
determination of investment income.

INVESTMENT VALUATION

Portfolio investments are recorded in the financial statements at cost. The fair value of investments is provided
for information purposes and is disclosed in Note 3.

Fair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Measurement uncertainty exists in the fair values reported for certain investments such as private equities,
private income, private real estate, loans, absolute return strategies and timberland investments, and other
investments where no readily available market exists. The fair values of these investments are based on
estimates. Estimated fair values may not reflect amounts that could be recognized upon immediate sale, nor
amounts that ultimately may be recognized. Accordingly, the estimated fair values may differ significantly from
the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for these investments.

Changes in estimated fair value of investments are reported in the period in which new information is received.

The methods used by the Alberta Investment Management Corporation (AIMCo) to determine fair value of
investments held either by the Fund or by pooled investment funds is explained in the following paragraphs:

) Public interest-bearing securities and equities are valued at the year-end closing sale price or the
average of the latest bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.

i) Mortgages and private interest-bearing debt are valued based on the net present value of future cash
flows. These cash flows are discounted using appropriate interest rate premiums over similar
Government of Canada benchmark bonds trading in the market.

iii) The fair value of private equities is estimated by managers or general partners of private equity funds,
pools and limited partnerships. Valuation methods may encompass a broad range of approaches. The
cost approach is used to value companies without either profits or cash flows. Established private
companies are valued using the fair market value approach reflecting conventional valuation methods
including discounted cash flows and earnings multiple analysis.

iv)  The estimated fair value of real estate investments is reported at the most recent appraised value, net
of any liabilities against the real property. Real estate properties are appraised annually by qualified
external real estate appraisers. Appraisers use a combination of methods to determine fair value
including replacement cost, direct comparison, direct capitalization of earnings and the discounted cash
flows.

V) The fair value of Absolute Return Strategy Pool investments is estimated by external managers.

vi)  The fair value of loans is estimated by management based on the present value of discounted cash
flows.

vii)  The fair value of timberland investments is appraised annually by independent third party evaluators.

viii)  The fair value of deposits, receivables, accrued interest and payables is estimated to approximate their
book values.
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Note 2 (continued)
e) VALUATION OF DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts include equity and bond index swaps, interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate
swaps, credit default swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts, equity index futures contracts and swap

option contracts. As disclosed in Note 4, the value of derivative contracts is included in the fair value of pooled
investment funds. The estimated fair value of derivative contracts at the reporting date is determined by the

following methods:

i) Equity and bond index swaps are valued based on changes in the appropriate market-based index net

of accrued floating rate interest.

i) Interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows

using current market yields and exchange rates.

iii)  Credit default swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows using current market yields and

calculated default probabilities.

iv)  Forward foreign exchange contracts and futures contracts are valued based on quoted market prices.

V) Options to enter into interest rate swap contracts are valued based on discounted cash flows using

current market yields and volatility parameters which measure changes in the underlying swap.

NOTE 3 PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS (in millions)
2010 2009
Cost Fair Value % Cost Fair Value %
Interest-bearing securities
Deposits and short-term securities (a) $ 123 3 123 08 $ 137 $ 138 1.0
Bonds and mortgages (b) 3,546 3,550 24.7 3,998 3,832 27.5
3,669 3,673 25.5 4,135 3,970 28.5
Equities
Canadian public equities (c) 1,843 2,012 14.0 2,205 1,981 14.2
Global developed public equities (d) 4,815 4,917 34.2 4,084 4,016 28.8
Emerging markets public equities (e) 42 39 0.3 67 48 0.3
Private equities (f) 667 677 4.7 650 625 4.5
7,367 7,645 53.2 7,006 6,670 47.8
Inflation sensitive and alternative investments
Private real estate () 1,302 1,614 11.2 1,345 1,935 13.8
Inflation sensitive real return bonds (h) 80 82 0.6 - - -
Private infrastructure investments (i) 580 502 3.5 484 483 35
Absolute return strategy hedge funds (j) 738 783 5.4 782 813 5.8
Timberland (k) 84 83 0.6 67 90 0.6
2,784 3,064 21.3 2,678 3,321 23.7
$ 13,820 $ 14,382 100.0 $ 13,819 $ 13,961 100.0

The Fund’s investments are managed at the asset class level for purposes of evaluating the Fund’s risk exposure
and investment performance against approved benchmarks based on fair value. AIMCo invests the Fund’s assets in
accordance with the investment policies approved by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. The majority of the
Fund’s investments, in each asset class, are held in pooled investment funds established and administered by
AIMCo. Pool units represent the Fund’s proportionate share of securities held in the pooled fund. Pooled investment
funds have a market based unit value that is used to allocate income to participants of the pool and to value
purchases and sales of pool units. AIMCo is delegated authority to independently purchase and sell securities in the
pools and Fund, and units of the pools, within the ranges approved for each asset class (see Note 5).
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Note 3 (continued) (in millions)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

)

114

Deposits and short-term securities includes deposits in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund, being
cash as reported in the Statements of Cash Flows, of $83 (2009: $100) and short-term securities of $40 (2009:
$37). These investments include primarily short-term and mid-term interest-bearing securities which have a
maximum term to maturity of less than three years. At March 31, 2010, deposits and short-term securities had
a time-weighted return of 1.0% per annum (2009: 3.0% per annum).

Interest-bearing bonds and mortgages include government direct and guaranteed bonds and mortgage-backed
securities, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities, private debt issues, private mortgages, repurchase
agreements, debt related derivatives and loans. At March 31, 2010, interest bearing bonds and mortgages had
an average effective market yield of 5.0% per annum (2009: 7.2% per annum) and the following term structure
based on principal amount: under 1 year: 3% (2009: 5%); 1 to 5 years: 33% (2009: 36%); 5 to 10 years: 36%
(2009: 27%); 10 to 20 years: 13% (2009: 15%); and over 20 years: 15% (2009: 17%). At March 31, 2010,
Government of Canada bonds are used as underlying securities to support the notional value of bond index
futures contracts totalling $nil (2009: $406).

Included in bonds and mortgages are two policy investments held in the Fund prior to its restructuring in 1996-
97. These policy investments include an 11% participating first mortgage bond with principal and deferred
interest totaling $173 (2009: $177.5) due July 31, 2015 and a loan with principal of $53 due July 2046. At
March 31, 2010, these policy investments have carrying values, excluding accrued interest, of $129.5 and $3
respectively (2009: $134 and $2.8). Subsequent to the year end, an independent valuation was received which
estimated the fair value of the 11% participating first mortgage bonds to be $149.4 at March 31, 2010,
excluding accrued interest.

The Fund’s Canadian public equity portfolio includes directly held investments in Canadian public companies
and indirect exposure to Canadian public equity markets through structured equity products using index swaps
and futures contracts linked to the Standard and Poor’s Toronto Stock Exchange (S&P/TSX) Composite Index
and S&P/TSX 60 Index. At March 31, 2010, cash and floating rate notes are used as underlying securities to
support the notional value of Canadian equity index swaps and futures contracts totalling $586 (2009: $1,243).

The global developed market is used to describe countries whose economies and capital markets are well
established and mature. The Fund’s global developed public equity portfolio includes directly held investments
in public companies in the U.S., Europe, Australasia and the Far East (EAFE), emerging markets and Canada.
The Fund’s indirect exposure to global developed markets and emerging markets is also attained by investing
in structured equity products using index swaps and futures contracts linked to the Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) World Total Return Index, MSCI EAFE Index, S&P 500 Index and Emerging Markets Free
Net Index. A component of the Fund'’s global portfolio includes investments in North American concentrated
equities which include larger holdings in mid-size Canadian and American companies ranging from 5% to 20%
of outstanding common shares. At March 31, 2010, cash and money market securities are used as underlying
securities to support the notional value of global equity index swaps and futures contracts totalling $1,727
(2009: $2,404).

Emerging markets equities consist of publicly traded equities in countries in the process of rapid growth and
industrialization such as Brazil, Russia, India and China. The portfolio is actively managed by external
managers with expertise in emerging markets.

Private equity investments include primarily merchant banking investments. Merchant banking transactions
include expansion capital, acquisition financing, management buyouts, family succession, turnaround
financings, project financings and leverage reductions.

The private real estate portfolio was primarily held in Canada. Real estate is held through intermediary
companies, which issue common shares and participating debentures secured by a charge on real estate. Risk
is reduced by investing in properties that provide diversification by geographic location, by property type and by
tenancy. Real estate returns are positively correlated to inflation and negatively correlated to returns from fixed
income securities and equities which provide diversification from the securities market with opportunities for
high return.

Real rate of return bonds are issued or guaranteed primarily by the Government of Canada, and bear interest
at a fixed rate adjusted for inflation.

Private infrastructure investments include investments that are structured to provide high returns plus inflation
sensitivity with a long investment horizon. Investments may include transportation and logistic investments (e.g.
toll roads, airports, ports and rail), power or energy investments (e.g. contracted power generation, power
transmission pipelines) and utilities (e.g. water, waste water, natural gas networks).

The absolute return strategies (hedge funds) use external managers who employ various investment strategies
which are expected to produce absolute positive investment returns with lower volatility. Investments are made
through multi-hedge fund-of-funds and direct investments to increase strategy diversification.
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Note 3 (continued) (in millions)

k) Timberland investments are located primarily in Canada. The Canadian timberland investment includes an
interest in timber and related land located in the Province of British Columbia.

NOTE 4 DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts are financial contracts, the value of which is derived from the value of underlying assets, indices,
interest rates or currency rates. The Fund uses derivative contracts held indirectly through pooled investment funds to
enhance return, manage exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk and for asset mix management
purposes. The notional value of a derivative contract represents the amount to which a rate or price is applied in
order to calculate the exchange of cash flows.

i) A swap is a contractual agreement between two counter-parties to exchange a series of cash flows (usually
settled every three months) based on a notional amount. An equity or bond index swap involves the
exchange of a floating interest rate cash flow for one based on the performance of a market index. For
interest rate swaps, parties generally exchange fixed and floating rate interest cash flows based on a
notional amount. Cross-currency interest rate swaps are contractual obligations in which the principal
amounts of Canadian fixed-income securities denominated in foreign currency are exchanged for Canadian
currency amounts both initially and at maturity. Over the term of the cross-currency swap, counter-parties
exchange fixed to fixed and fixed to floating interest rate cash flows in the swapped currencies. A credit
default swap allows counter-parties to buy and sell protection on credit risk inherent in a bond. A premium is
paid, based on a notional amount, from one counter party to a second counter party in exchange for a
contingent payment should a defined credit event occur with respect to the underlying security. There are
underlying securities supporting all swaps. Leveraging is not allowed.

ii) Forward foreign exchange contracts are contractual agreements to exchange specified currencies at an
agreed upon exchange rate and on an agreed settlement date in the future.

iii) Futures contracts are an agreement to receive or pay cash based on changes in the level of the specified
index.

iv) Swap option contracts include the right, but not the obligation, to enter into an interest rate swap at a preset

rate within a specific period of time.

The following is a summary of the Fund’s proportionate share of the notional amount and fair value of derivative
contracts held by pooled funds at March 31, 2010 (in millions):

Maturity 2010 2009

Under 1to3 Over Notional Fair Notional Fair

1Year Years 3Years Amount(a) Value(b) Amount(a) Value (b)
Equity index swap contracts 99% 1% - $ 2520 $ 67 $ 2910 $ 9
Interest rate swap contracts 31% 56% 13% 638 (21) 1,088 (55)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 100% - - 3,232 50 2,635 (94)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 30% 28% 42% 396 27 854 (32)
Credit default swap contracts 29% 39% 32% 2,297 (18) 5,398 (88)
Bond index swap contracts - - - - - 165 1
Futures contracts 100% - - 1,811 121 1,160 175
Swap option contracts 100% - - 472 (3) - -

$ 11366 $ 223 $ 14210 $  (84)

(@ The notional amounts, upon which payments are based, are not indicative of the credit risk associated with
derivative contracts. Current credit exposure is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding
contracts in a favourable position (positive fair value). The Fund attempts to limit its credit exposure by dealing
with counter-parties believed to have good credit standing (A+ or greater).

(b)  The method of determining the fair value of derivative contracts is described in Note 2 (e).

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report 115



ALBERTA HERITAGE SAVINGS TRUST FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

NOTES INVESTMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

Income and financial returns of the Fund are exposed to credit risk and price risk. Credit risk relates to the possibility
that a loss may occur from the failure of another party to perform according to the terms of a contract. Price risk is
comprised of currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Currency risk relates to the possibility that the
investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk relates to the
possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market interest rates. Market risk
relates to the possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market prices.

The Standing Committee on the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund reviews and approves the business plan of the
Fund. In order to earn an optimal financial return at an acceptable level of risk, the Business Plan contained the
following asset mix policy ranges for the Fund for 2009-10:

Interest-bearing securities 15-45%
Deposits and short-term securities 0-25%
Bonds and mortgages 10-35%
Long bonds 0-10%

Equities 35-70%
Canadian public equities 0-15%
Global developed public equities 20-65%
Emerging markets public equities 0-10%
Frontier market public equities 0-5%
Private equities 0-10%

Inflation sensitive and alternative investments 15-40%
Private real estate 10-20%
Inflation sensitive real return bonds 0-10%
Private infrastructure investments 5-15%
Absolute return strategy hedge funds 0-10%
Timberland 0-5%

Risk is reduced through asset class diversification, diversification within each asset class, quality and duration
constraints on fixed-income instruments, and restrictions on amounts exposed to countries designated as emerging
markets. Controls are in place respecting the use of derivatives (see Note 4). Forward foreign exchange contracts
may be used to manage currency exposure in connection with securities purchased in foreign currency (see Note 4).
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NOTE 6 NET ASSETS (in millions)

Net assets represent the difference between the carrying value of assets held by the Fund and its liabilities. The
following table shows accumulated net income and transfers to (from) the Fund since the Fund was created on May
19, 1976:

Cumulative since 1976

2010 2009
Accumulated net income $ 30,226 $ 28,220
Transfers to the Fund
Resource Revenue (1976-1987) 12,049 12,049
Access to the Future (a) 1,000 1,000
Voted Payments 2,918 2,918
15,967 15,967
Transfers (from) the Fund
Section 8(2) transfers (b)
Income (30,431) (28,425)
Amount Retained for Inflation-proofing 1,562 1,562
(28,869) (26,863)
Capital Expenditures (1976-1995) (c) (3,486) (3,486)
(32,355) (30,349)
Net Assets, at cost $ 13,838 $ 13,838
Net Assets, at fair value $ 14,400 $ 13,980

(a) Section 9.1 of the Act and Section 4(5) of the Access to the Future Act provides that up to $3 billion may be transferred from
the GRF to the fund.

(b) In accordance with section 8(2) of the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund Act (the Act), the Fund transferred $2,006 million
to the GRF for the year. The Act states that the net income of the Heritage Fund, totalling $2,006 million, less any amount
retained in the Fund to maintain its value, in accordance with section 11(1), totalling $0, shall be transferred to the GRF
annually in a manner determined by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. The estimated amount retained from income of
the Fund is determined by multiplying the total equity of the Fund before the amount retained for inflation proofing by the
estimated percentage increase in the Canadian gross domestic product implicit price index (GDP Deflator Index) for the year.
In accordance with section 11(3), if the GDP Deflator Index is a negative number, that negative number shall be treated as if
it were zero.

(c) Capital expenditures include transfers of $300 million to the Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research in 1980 and
$100 million to the Alberta Heritage Scholarship Fund in 1981.
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NOTE 7 INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS) (in millions)

The following is a summary of the Fund'’s investment income (loss) and expenses by asset class:

2010 2009

Gross Net Gross Net

Income Income Income Income

(Loss) Expenses (Loss) (Loss) Expenses (Loss)
Foreign equities $ 1,059 $ 16 $ 1,043 $ (1,629) $ 20 $ (1,649
Canadian equities 369 3 366 (666) 3 (669)
Interest-bearing securities 278 4 274 (67) 5 (72)
Absolute return strategies 158 8 150 (277) 10 (287)
Private real estate 118 8 110 97 8 89
Private infrastructure investments 92 6 86 66 4 62
Timberland 18 1 17 (20) 1 (11)
Private equities (16) 19 (35) (15) 19 (34)
Inflation sensitive real return bonds 1 - 1 - - -
Fund investment expenses - 6 (6) - 3 (3)

$ 2077 $ 71 $ 2006 $ (2,501) $ 73 $ (2,574)

Investment income is comprised of interest, dividends, amortization of discount and premiums, swap income, security
lending income and realized gains and losses, net of writedowns, on investments. The investment income for the
year ended March 31, 2010, includes writedowns totalling $101 million (2009: $883 million).

NOTE 8 INVESTMENT EXPENSES (in millions)

Investment services are provided by AIMCo. It provides the day to day investment services for the Fund’s investment
portfolio. However, in order to achieve greater diversification, access external expertise and specialized knowledge
and to reduce operational complexity, some investments are managed by third party investment managers selected
and monitored by AIMCo.

Investment expenses are recognized on an accrual basis and include those costs and fees incurred to earn
investment income by the Fund. The Fund recognizes portfolio management and administration expenses incurred
directly by the Fund and its share of expenses through pooled investment funds. Investment services provided
directly by AIMCo are charged to the Fund and to pooled funds on a cost recovery basis. Investment services
provided by external managers are charged to pooled funds based on a percentage of net assets under management
at fair value, or committed amounts. Fees charged by external managers include primarily regular management fees
and performance/incentive based fees to the extent recognized.

2010 2009
Total Investment Expenses $ 71 $ 73
Average fair value of investments 14,172 15,466
Percent of investments at average fair value 0.50% 0.47%
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NOTE 9 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE (net of investment expenses)

The following is a summary of the Fund'’s return on investment, net of expenses, compared to the Fund’s
policy benchmark:

Average Annualized Return

Time-weighted rates of return, at fair value (1) 2010 2009 5 years 10 years
(in percent)

Actual gain (loss) (2) 17.8% -18.1% 4.4% 4.3%

Benchmark gain (loss) (2) 16.3% -14.0% 4.7% 4.2%

Value added (lost) by investment manager 1.5% -4.1% -0.3% 0.1%

(1) The time-weighted rate of return involves the calculation of the return realized by the Fund over a specified period and is a
measure of the total proceeds received from an investment dollar initially invested. Total proceeds include cash distributions
(interest and dividend payments) and capital gains and losses (realized and unrealized).

(2) The actual and policy benchmark returns are a product of the weighted average sector weights and sector returns. Some of
the sector returns used in the determination of the overall actual and policy benchmark returns are based on management's

best estimate which may vary significantly from the final return. Differences between the estimated sector returns and the
final returns are recorded in the period of the change.

NOTE 10 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to 2010 presentation.

NOTE 11 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise approved these financial statements.
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise

| have audited the statements of financial position of the Alberta Heritage Scholarship Fund as at March 31, 2010 and
2009 and the statements of operations and net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at
March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
Auditor General

Edmonton, Alberta
June 4, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Statements of Financial Position

As at March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Assets

Portfolio investments (Note 3) $ 689,692 $ 643,968

Receivable from sale of investments 1,000 -

Contributions receivable 1,677 807

$ 692,369 $ 644,775

Liabilities

Administration expense payable $ 66 $ 57
Net Assets (Note 6) 692,303 644,718

$ 692,369 $ 644,775
Statements of Operations and Net Assets
Years Ended March 31
($ thousands)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual

Investment income (loss) (Note 7) $ 19,926 $ 83,804 $ (137,235)
Investment expenses (Note 8) (2,377) (2,616) (2,529)
Net investment income (loss) 17,549 81,188 (139,764)
Transfers from Alberta Government departments 1,000 327 1,307
Other contributions 840 1,965 875
Scholarships (39,132) (35,895) (34,639)
Change in Net Assets $ (19,743) 47,585 (172,221)
Net Assets at beginning of year 644,718 816,939
Net Assets at end of year $ 692,303 $ 644,718

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Operating transactions
Net investment income (loss) $ 81,188 $ (139,764)
Non-cash items included in net investment income (loss) 5,216 13,507
86,404 (126,257)
(Increase) decrease in receivables (1,870) 175
Increase in payables 9 12
Cash provided by (applied to) operating transactions 84,543 (126,070)
Investing transactions
Proceeds from disposals, repayments and
redemptions of investments 529,221 238,357
Purchase of investments (578,082) (81,652)
Cash (applied to) provided by investing transactions (48,861) 156,705
Transfers
Transfers from Alberta Government departments 327 1,307
Other contributions 1,965 875
Transfers to Advanced Education for Scholarships (35,895) (34,639)
Cash applied to transfers (33,603) (32,457)
Increase (decrease) in cash 2,079 (1,822)
Cash at beginning of year 8,704 10,526
Cash at end of year $ 10,783 $ 8,704
Consisting of Deposit in the Consolidated
Cash Investment Trust Fund (Note 3a) $ 10,783 $ 8,704

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2010
($ thousands)

NOTE1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The Alberta Heritage Scholarship Fund ("the Fund") operates under the authority of the Alberta Heritage Scholarship
Act, Chapter A-24, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 (the Act).

The purpose of the Fund is to invest the endowment made to the Fund. The Fund is managed with the objectives of
providing an annual level of income for scholarships while preserving the capital of the endowment over the long
term. The portfolio is comprised of high quality interest-bearing securities, equities, inflation sensitive and alternative
investments.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING
PRACTICES

The recommendations of the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants are
the primary source for the disclosed basis of accounting.

The accounting policies of significance to the Fund are as follows:
a) PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

Investments held directly by the Fund or by pooled investment funds are recorded at cost. Cost includes the
amount of applicable amortization of discount or premium using the straight-line method over the life of the
investments.

Investments are recorded as of the trade date.
The cost of disposals is determined on the average cost basis.

Where there has been a loss in value of an investment that is other than a temporary decline, the investment is
written down to recognize the loss. The written down value is deemed to be the new cost. Where the fair value
remains less than cost, after recording a writedown, it is management’s best judgement that the decline in value
is caused by short-term market trends and is temporary in nature.

b) INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENSES

Investment income and expenses, as reported in Notes 7 and 8, are recorded on the accrual basis. Investment
income is accrued when there is reasonable assurance as to its measurement and collectability. For certain
investments such as private equities, private income, private real estate, absolute return strategies and
timberland investments, the actual income and expenses may not be known at the time the financial statements
are prepared. In these cases, estimates may be used, which may vary from actual income and expenses.

Net recognized gains and losses arising as a result of disposals of investments, including those arising from
derivative transactions, are included in the determination of investment income.

Changes in fair value of derivative contracts are included in investment income except for certain derivative
contracts designated as hedges of market risks for purposes of hedge accounting. Hedge accounting
recognizes gains and losses from derivatives in the statement of income in the same period as the gains and
losses of the security being hedged.

Where a hedge relationship is designated, the hedge is documented at inception. The documentation identifies
the specific asset being hedged, the risk that is being hedged, type of derivative used and the matching of critical
terms of both the hedged security and the hedging derivative for purposes of measuring effectiveness. The
derivative must be highly effective in accomplishing the objective of offsetting either changes in the fair value or
cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged both at inception and over the life of the hedge. When the
derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, the hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If
hedge accounting is discontinued, gains and losses resulting from the changes in fair value of the derivative
contract are recognized in the income immediately.
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Note 2 (continued)

c)

d)

e)
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FOREIGN CURRENCY

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using average rates of exchange. At year-
end, the fair value of investments in other assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are translated
at the year end exchange rates. Exchange differences on transactions are included in the determination of
investment income.

INVESTMENT VALUATION

Portfolio investments are recorded in the financial statements at cost. The fair value of investments is provided
for information purposes and is disclosed in Note 3.

Fair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Measurement uncertainty exists in the fair values reported for certain investments such as private equities,
private real estate, absolute return strategies and other private placements. The fair value of these investments
is based on estimates where quoted market prices are not readily available. Estimated fair values may not reflect
amounts that could be recognized upon immediate sale, nor amounts that ultimately may be recognized.
Accordingly, the estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a
ready market existed for these investments.

Changes in estimated fair value of investments are reported in the period in which new information is received.

The methods used by the Alberta Investment Management Corporation (AIMCo) to determine fair value of
investments held either by the Fund or by pooled investment funds is explained in the following paragraphs:

i) Public interest-bearing securities and equities are valued at the year-end closing sale price or the average
of the latest bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.

ii)  Mortgages and private interest-bearing debt are valued based on the net present value of future cash
flows. These cash flows are discounted using appropriate interest rate premiums over similar Government
of Canada benchmark bonds trading in the market.

iiiy  The fair value of private equities is estimated by managers or general partners of private equity funds,
pools and limited partnerships. Valuation methods may encompass a broad range of approaches. The cost
approach is used to value companies without either profits or cash flows. Established private companies
are valued using the fair market value approach reflecting conventional valuation methods including
discounted cash flows and earnings multiple analysis.

iv)  The estimated fair value of real estate investments is reported at the most recent appraised value, net of
any liabilities against the real property. Real estate properties are appraised annually by qualified external
real estate appraisers. Appraisers use a combination of methods to determine fair value including
replacement cost, direct comparison, direct capitalization of earnings and the discounted cash flows.

v)  The fair value of Absolute Return Strategy Pool investments is estimated by external managers.
vi)  The fair value of timberland investments is appraised annually by independent third party evaluators.

vii)  The fair value of deposits, receivables, accrued interest and payables is estimated to approximate their
book values.

VALUATION OF DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts include equity and bond index swaps, interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate
swaps, credit default swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts, equity index futures contracts and swap option
contracts. As disclosed in Note 5, the value of derivative contracts is included in the fair value of pooled
investment funds. The estimated fair value of derivative contracts at the reporting date is determined by the
following methods:

i) Equity and bond index swaps are valued based on changes in the appropriate market based index net of
accrued floating rate interest.

ii)  Interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows
using current market yields and exchange rates.
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Note 2 (continued)

iii)  Credit default swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows using current market yields and calculated
default probabilities.

iv)  Forward foreign exchange contracts and futures contracts are based on quoted market prices.

v)  Options to enter into interest rate swap contracts are valued based on discounted cash flows using current
market yields and volatility parameters which measure change in the underlying swap.

NOTE 3 PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

($ thousands) ($ thousands)
2010 2009
Cost Fair Value % Cost Fair Value %

Interest-bearing securities

Deposits and short-term securities (a) $ 12,301 $ 12,294 1.7 $ 10,189 $ 10,266 1.7
Bonds and mortgages (b) 187,788 188,383 26.5 151,830 145,145 23.5
200,089 200,677 28.2 162,019 155,411 25.2
Equities
Canadian public equities (c) 150,780 161,633 228 166,897 143,199 231
Global developed public equities (d) 236,071 241,051 34.0 197,178 183,039 29.6
Emerging markets public equities (e) 1,941 1,669 0.2 3,322 2,159 0.3
Private equities (f) 11,327 11,297 1.6 10,398 10,318 1.7
400,119 415,650 58.6 377,795 338,715 547
Inflation sensitive and alternative investments
Private real estate (g) 59,302 65,622 9.2 72,055 92,215 14.9
Inflation sensitive real return bonds (h) 3,506 3,589 0.5 - - -
Private infrastructure investments (i) 18,951 16,731 24 12,280 12,444 2.0
Absolute return strategy hedge funds (j) 6,860 6,896 1.0 19,127 18,672 3.0
Timberland (k) 865 861 0.1 692 933 0.2
89,484 93,699 13.2 104,154 124,264 20.1

$ 689692 $ 710,026 1000 $ 643968 $ 618,390 10

0.0

The Fund’s investments are managed at the asset class level for purposes of evaluating the Fund’s risk exposure
and investment performance against approved benchmarks based on fair value. AIMCo invests the Fund’s assets in
accordance with the investment policies approved by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. The Fund’s
investments, in each asset class, are held in pooled investment funds established and administered by AIMCo. Pool
units represent the Fund’s proportionate share of securities held in the pooled fund. Pooled investment funds have a
market based unit value that is used to allocate income to participants of the pool and to value purchases and sales
of pool units. AIMCo is delegated authority to independently purchase and sell securities in the pools and units of the
pools in accordance with the approved long-term policy asset mix (see Note 4).

a) Deposits and short-term securities includes deposits in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund, being
cash as reported in the Statements of Cash Flows, of $10,783 (2009: $8,704) and short-term securities of
$1,518 (2009: $1,485). These investments include primarily short-term and mid-term interest-bearing securities
which have a maximum term to maturity of less than three years. At March 31, 2010, deposits and short-term
securities had a time-weighted return of 1.0% (2009: 3.0% per annum).
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Note 3 (continued)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

)

k)
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Interest-bearing bonds and mortgages include government direct and guaranteed bonds and mortgage-backed
securities, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities, private debt issues, private mortgages, repurchase
agreements and debt related derivatives. At March 31, 2010, interest bearing bonds and mortgages had an
average effective market yield of 5.0% per annum (2009: 7.2% per annum) and the following term structure
based on principal amount: under 1 year: 3% (2009: 5%); 1 to 5 years: 33% (2009: 36%); 5 to 10 years: 36%
(2009: 27%); 10 to 20 years: 13% (2009: 15%); and over 20 years: 15% (2009: 17%). At March 31, 2010,
Government of Canada bonds are used as underlying securities to support the notional value of bond index
futures contracts totalling $nil (2009: $18,156).

The Fund’s Canadian public equity portfolio includes directly held investments in Canadian public companies
and indirect exposure to Canadian public equity markets through structured equity products using index swaps
and futures contracts linked to the Standard and Poor’s Toronto Stock Exchange (S&P/TSX) Composite Index
and S&P/TSX 60 Index. At March 31, 2010, cash and floating rate notes are used as underlying securities to
support the notional value of Canadian equity index swaps and futures contracts totalling $50,407 (2009:
$90,549).

The global developed market is used to describe countries whose economies and capital markets are well
established and mature. The Fund’s global developed public equity portfolio includes directly held investments
in public companies in the U.S., Europe, Australasia and the Far East (EAFE), emerging markets and Canada.
The Fund’s indirect exposure to global developed markets and emerging markets is also attained by investing
in structured equity products using index swaps and futures contracts linked to the Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) World Total Return Index, MSCI EAFE Index, S&P 500 Index and Emerging Markets Free
Net Index. A component of the Fund’s global portfolio includes investments in North American concentrated
equities which include larger holdings in mid-size Canadian and American companies ranging from 5% to 20%
of outstanding common shares. At March 31, 2010, cash and money market securities are used as underlying
securities to support the notional value of global equity index swaps and futures contracts totalling $79,655
(2009: $108,803).

Emerging markets equities consist of publicly traded equities in countries in the process of rapid growth and
industrialization such as Brazil, Russia, India and China. The portfolio is actively managed by external
managers with expertise in emerging markets.

Private equity investments include primarily merchant banking investments. Merchant banking transactions
include expansion capital, acquisition financing, management buyouts, family succession, turnaround
financings, project financings and leverage reductions.

The private real estate portfolio was primarily held in Canada. Real estate is held through intermediary
companies, which issue common shares and participating debentures secured by a charge on real estate. Risk
is reduced by investing in properties that provide diversification by geographic location, by property type and by
tenancy. Real estate returns are positively correlated to inflation and negatively correlated to returns from fixed
income securities and equities which provide diversification from the securities market with opportunities for
high return.

Real rate of return bonds are issued or guaranteed primarily by the Government of Canada, and bear interest
at a fixed rate adjusted for inflation.

Private infrastructure investments include investments that are structured to provide high returns plus inflation
sensitivity with a long investment horizon. Investments may include transportation and logistic investments (e.g.
toll roads, airports, ports and rail), power or energy investments (e.g. contracted power generation, power
transmission pipelines) and utilities (e.g. water, waste water, natural gas networks).

The absolute return strategies (hedge funds) use external managers who employ various investment strategies
which are expected to produce absolute positive investment returns with lower volatility. Investments are made
through multi-hedge fund-of-funds and direct investments to increase strategy diversification.

Timberland investments are located primarily in Canada. The Canadian timberland investment includes an
interest in timber and related land located in the Province of British Columbia.

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report



ALBERTA HERITAGE SCHOLARSHIP FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

NOTE 4 INVESTMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

Income and financial returns of the Fund are exposed to credit risk and price risk. Credit risk relates to the possibility
that a loss may occur from the failure of another party to perform according to the terms of a contract. Price risk is
comprised of currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Currency risk relates to the possibility that the
investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk relates to the
possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market interest rates. Market risk
relates to the possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market prices.

In order to earn an optimal financial return at an acceptable level of risk, management of the Fund established the
following long-term policy asset mix for the 2009-2010 fiscal year:

Equities 52%
Interest-bearing securities 26%
Inflation sensitive and alternatives 22%

Risk is reduced through asset class diversification, diversification within each asset class, quality constraints on fixed-
income instruments, and restrictions on amounts exposed to countries designated as emerging markets. Controls are
in place respecting the use of derivatives (see Note 5). Forward foreign exchange contracts may be used to manage
currency exposure in connection with securities purchased in foreign currency (see Note 5).

Derivative contracts are financial contracts, the value of which is derived from the value of underlying assets, indices,
interest rates or currency rates. The Fund uses derivative contracts held indirectly through pooled investment funds to
enhance return, manage exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk and for asset mix management
purposes. The notional value of a derivative contract represents the amount to which a rate or price is applied in
order to calculate the exchange of cash flows.

i) A swap is a contractual agreement between two counter-parties to exchange a series of cash flows (usually
settled every three months) based on a notional amount. An equity or bond index swap involves the exchange
of a floating interest rate cash flow for one based on the performance of a market index. For interest rate
swaps, parties generally exchange fixed and floating rate interest cash flows based on a notional amount.
Cross-currency interest rate swaps are contractual obligations in which the principal amounts of Canadian
fixed-income securities denominated in foreign currency are exchanged for Canadian currency amounts both
initially and at maturity. Over the term of the cross-currency swap, counter-parties exchange fixed to fixed and
fixed to floating interest rate cash flows in the swapped currencies. A credit default swap allows counter-
parties to buy and sell protection on credit risk inherent in a bond. A premium is paid, based on a notional
amount, from one counter party to a second counter party in exchange for a contingent payment should a
defined credit event occur with respect to the underlying security. There are underlying securities supporting
all swaps. Leveraging is not allowed.

i) Forward foreign exchange contracts are contractual agreements to exchange specified currencies at an
agreed upon exchange rate and on an agreed settlement date in the future.

iii) Futures contracts are an agreement to receive or pay cash based on changes in the level of the specified
index.

iv) Swap option contracts include the right, but not the obligation, to enter into an interest rate swap at a preset
rate within a specific period of time.
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NOTES5 DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

The following is a summary of the Fund's proportionate share of the notional amount and fair value of derivative
contracts held by pooled funds at March 31, 2010:

($ thousands)
Maturity 2010 2009

Under 1to3 Over Notional Fair Notional Fair

1 Year Years 3 Years Amount (a) Value (b) Amount (a) Value (b)
Equity index swap contracts 98% 2% - $ 141,803 $ 3,763 $149,574 $ 722
Interest rate swap contracts 32% 56% 12% 39,859 (1,339) 59,199 (3,188)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 100% - - 114,822 921 79,792 (2,232)
Cross-currency interestrate swaps 32% 27% 41% 23,464 1,623 40,023 (1,626)
Credit default swap contracts 29% 39% 32% 133,542 (1,043) 213,547 (3,836)
Bond index swap contracts - - - - - 6,448 50
Futures contracts 100% - - 92,258 6,149 69,031 11,180
Swap option contracts 100% - - 17,430 (85) - -

$ 563,178 $ 9,989 $617,614 $1,070

(a) The notional amounts, upon which payments are based, are not indicative of the credit risk associated with derivative
contracts. Current credit exposure is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding contracts in a
favourable position (positive fair value). The Fund attempts to limit its credit exposure by dealing with counter-parties
believed to have good credit standing (A+ or greater).

(b) The method of determining the fair value of derivative contracts is described in Note 2 (e).

NOTE6 NET ASSETS

Net assets represents the difference between the carrying value of assets held by the Fund and its liabilities. The
following table shows the accumulated investment income and transfers to and from the Fund since its inception in
1981:

($ thousands)

Cumulative since 1981

2010 2009
Transfers from the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund (a) $ 100,000 $ 100,000
Transfers from the General Revenue Fund (b) 497,000 497,000
Other contributions 18,097 15,805
Accumulated investmentincome 528,096 446,908
Accumulated scholarship payments (a) (450,890) (414,995)
Net Assets, at cost $ 692,303 $ 644,718
Net Assets, at fair value $ 712,637 $ 619,140

(a) The endowment was received from the Alberta Heritage Savings Trust Fund on June 18, 1981. The Alberta Heritage
Scholarship Act (the Act) provides that money required by the Students Finance Board for providing scholarships, or for
paying for the costs of administering scholarship, shall be paid from the Fund, but no portion of the original endowment may
be paid out of the Fund.

(b) In accordance with section 2.1 of the Act, transfers from the GRF include $270 million on account of the Access to the

Future Act. Section 7 of the Access to the Future Act states that the Alberta Heritage Scholarship Fund shall be increased
by $1 billion, in amounts considered appropriate by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise.
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NOTE 7 INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS) (in thousands)

The following is a summary of the Fund'’s investment income (loss) and expenses by asset class:

($ thousands)

2010 2009

Gross Gross

Income Net Income Income NetIncome

(Loss) Expenses (Loss) (Loss) Expenses (Loss)
Foreign equities $ 38,009 $ 740 $ 37,269 $ (74419) $ 888 $ (75,307)
Canadian equities 21,861 245 21,616 (57,170) 200 (57,370)
Interest-bearing securities 11,900 182 11,718 (4,594) 214 (4,808)
Absolute return strategies 2,378 124 2,254 (6,631) 218 (6,849)
Private real estate 6,815 362 6,453 4,857 368 4,489
Private infrastructure investments 2,803 255 2,548 943 122 821
Timberland 184 7 177 (103) 5 (108)
Private equities (188) 402 (590) (118) 348 (466)
Inflation sensitive real return bonds 42 - 42 - - -
Fund investment expenses = 299 (299) - 166 (166)

$ 83804 $ 2616 $ 81,188 $ (137,235) $ 2,529 $ (139,764)

Investment income is comprised of interest, dividends, amortization of discount and premiums, swap income, security
lending income and realized gains and losses, net of writedowns, on investments. The investment income for the
year ended March 31, 2010, includes writedowns totalling $3,348 (2009: $42,964).

NOTE 8 INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Investment services are provided by AIMCo. It provides the day to day investment services for the Fund’s investment
portfolio. However, in order to achieve greater diversification, access external expertise and specialized knowledge
and to reduce operational complexity, some investments are managed by third party investment managers selected
and monitored by AIMCo.

Investment expenses are recognized on an accrual basis and include those costs and fees incurred to earn
investment income by the Fund. The Fund recognizes portfolio management and administration expenses incurred
directly by the Fund and its share of expenses through pooled investment funds. Investment services provided
directly by AIMCo are charged to the Fund and to pooled funds on a cost recovery basis. Investment services
provided by external managers are charged to pooled funds based on a percentage of net assets under management
at fair value, or committed amounts. Fees charged by external managers include primarily regular management fees
and performance/incentive based fees to the extent recognized.

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Total Investment Expenses $ 2,616 $ 2,529
Average fair value of investments 664,208 714,973
Percent of investments at average fair value 0.39% 0.35%
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NOTE 9 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE (net of investment expenses)

The following is a summary of the investment performance results attained by the Fund determined on a fair value
basis:

Average Annualized Return

Time-weighted rates of return, at fair value (1) 2010 2009 5 years 10 years
Actual gain (loss) (2) 21.0% -20.2% 4.5% 3.0%
Benchmark gain (loss) (2) 19.1% -16.6% 4.9% 3.0%
Value added (lost) by investment manager 1.9% -3.6% -0.4% 0.0%

(1) The time-weighted rate of return involves the calculation of the return realized by the Fund over a specified period and is a
measure of the total proceeds received from an investment dollar initially invested. Total proceeds include cash distributions
(interest and dividend payments) and capital gains and losses (realized and unrealized).

(2) The actual and policy benchmark returns are a product of the weighted average sector weights and sector returns. Some of
the sector returns used in the determination of the overall actual and policy benchmark returns are based on management's
best estimate which may vary significantly from the final return. Differences between the estimated sector returns and the
final returns are recorded in the period of the change.

NOTE 10 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to 2010 presentation.

NOTE 11 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise approved these financial statements.

132 2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report



ALBERTA HERITAGE SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING
RESEARCH ENDOWMENT FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

ALBERTA HERITAGE SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING RESEARCH ENDOWMENT FUND

Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

Auditor’s Report

Statements of Financial Position
Statements of Operations and Net Assets
Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report 133



ALBERTA HERITAGE SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING
RESEARCH ENDOWMENT FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise

| have audited the statements of financial position of the Alberta Heritage Science and Engineering Research
Endowment Fund as at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the statements of operations and net assets and cash flows
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as
at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]

Auditor General
Edmonton, Alberta

June 4, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Statements of Financial Position

As at March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Assets

Portfolio investments (Note 3) $ 706,450 $ 657,620

Receivable from sale of investments 1,500 -

$ 707,950 $ 657,620

Liabilities

Administration expense payable $ 64 $ 58
Net Assets (Note 6) 707,886 657,562

$ 707,950 $ 657,620
Statements of Operations and Net Assets
Years Ended March 31
($ thousands)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual

Investment income (loss) (Note 7) $ 29,251 $ 85594 $ (139,752)
Investment expense (Note 8) (3,699) (3,370) (3,566)
Net investment income (loss) 25,552 82,224 (143,318)
Transfers to the Alberta Heritage Foundation for Science and
Engineering Research (Note 6b) (32,276) (31,900) (29,800)
Change in net assets $ (6,724) 50,324 (173,118)
Net assets at beginning of year 657,562 830,680
Net assets at end of year $ 707886 $ 657,562

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Operating transactions

Net investment income (loss) $ 82224 $ (143,318)

Non-cash items included in net investment income (loss) 6,279 7,198

88,503 (136,120)

(Increase) decrease in receivables (1,500) 2

Increase in payables 6 17

Cash provided by (applied to) operating transactions 87,009 (136,101)
Investing transactions

Proceeds from disposals, repayments and redemptions of investments 493,446 243,128

Purchase of investments (545,597) (76,630)

Cash (applied to) provided by investing transactions (52,151) 166,498
Transfers

Transfers to the Foundation (31,900) (29,800)

Cash applied to transfers (31,900) (29,800)
Increase in cash 2,958 597
Cash at beginning of year 4,277 3,680
Cash at end of year $ 7235 $ 4,277
Consisting of Deposit in the Consolidated
Cash Investment Trust Fund (Note 3a) $ 7235 % 4,277

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2010
($ thousands)

NOTE1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The Alberta Heritage Science and Engineering Research Endowment Fund (the Fund) operates under the authority
of the Alberta Research and Innovation Act, Chapter A-31.7, Statutes of Alberta 2009 (the Act). Prior to January 1,
2010, the Fund operated under the Alberta Heritage Foundation for Science and Engineering Research Act, Chapter

A-22, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000.

The purpose of the Fund is to support a balanced long-term program of research and innovation directed to the
discovery of new knowledge and the application of that knowledge to the commercialization of technology. The

Fund

has been managed with the objectives of providing an annual level of income for transfer to Advanced Education
and Technology. The portfolio is comprised of interest-bearing securities, equities, inflation sensitive and alternative

investments.

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING
PRACTICES

The recommendations of the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants are

the primary source for the disclosed basis of accounting.
The accounting policies of significance to the Fund are as follows:
a) PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

Investments held directly by the Fund or by pooled investment funds are recorded at cost. Cost includes the
amount of applicable amortization of discount or premium using the straight-line method over the life of the

investments.
Investments are recorded as of the trade date.

The cost of disposals is determined on the average cost basis.

Where there has been a loss in value of an investment that is other than a temporary decline, the investment
is written down to recognize the loss. The written down value is deemed to be the new cost. Where the fair
value remains less than cost, after recording a writedown, it is management’s best judgement that the decline

in value is caused by short-term market trends and is temporary in nature.
b) INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENSES

Investment income and expenses, as reported in Notes 7 and 8, are recorded on the accrual basis.

Investment income is accrued when there is reasonable assurance as to its measurement and collectability.
For certain investments such as private equities, private income, private real estate, absolute return strategies

and timberland investments, the actual income and expenses may not be known at the time the financial

statements are prepared. In these cases, estimates may be used, which may vary from actual income and

expenses.

Net recognized gains and losses arising as a result of disposals of investments, including those arising from

derivative transactions, are included in the determination of investment income.

Changes in fair value of derivative contracts are included in investment income except for certain derivative

contracts designated as hedges of market risks for purposes of hedge accounting. Hedge accounting

recognizes gains and losses from derivatives in the statement of income in the same period as the gains and

losses of the security being hedged.

Where a hedge relationship is designated, the hedge is documented at inception. The documentation
identifies the specific asset being hedged, the risk that is being hedged, type of derivative used and the

matching of critical terms of both the hedged security and the hedging derivative for purposes of measuring

effectiveness. The derivative must be highly effective in accomplishing the objective of offsetting either

changes in the fair value or cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged both at inception and over the life

of the hedge. When the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, the hedge accounting is

discontinued prospectively. If hedge accounting is discontinued, gains and losses resulting from the changes

in fair value of the derivative contract are recognized in income immediately.
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Note 2 (continued)

c)

d)

e)
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FOREIGN CURRENCY

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using average rates of exchange. At year
end, the fair value of investments in other assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are
translated at the year end exchange rates. Exchange differences on transactions are included in the
determination of investment income.

INVESTMENT VALUATION

Portfolio investments are recorded in the financial statements at cost. The fair value of investments is
provided for information purposes and is disclosed in Note 3.

Fair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Measurement uncertainty exists in the fair values reported for certain investments such as private equities,
private income, private real estate, absolute return strategies and timberland investments. The fair value of
these investments is based on estimates where quoted market prices are not readily available. Estimated fair
values may not reflect amounts that could be recognized upon immediate sale, nor amounts that ultimately
may be recognized. Accordingly, the estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would
have been used had a ready market existed for these investments.

Changes in estimated fair value of investments are reported in the period in which new information is
received.

The methods used by the Alberta Investment Management Corporation (AIMCo) to determine fair value of
investments held either by the Fund or by pooled investment funds is explained in the following paragraphs:

i) Public interest-bearing securities and equities are valued at the year end closing sale price or the
average of the latest bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.

i) Private interest-bearing debt and mortgages are valued based on the net present value of future cash
flows. These cash flows are discounted using Government of Canada bond rates adjusted for a risk
premium estimated by management.

iii) The fair value of private equities is estimated by managers or general partners of private equity funds,
pools and limited partnerships. Valuation methods may encompass a broad range of approaches. The
cost approach is used to value companies without either profits or cash flows. Established private
companies are valued using the fair market value approach reflecting conventional valuation methods
including discounted cash flows and multiple analyses.

iv) The estimated fair value of real estate investments is reported at their most recent appraised value, net
of any liabilities against the real property. Real estate properties are appraised annually by qualified
external real estate appraisers. Appraisers use a combination of methods to determine fair value
including replacement cost, direct comparison, direct capitalization of earnings and discounted cash
flows.

v) The fair value of Absolute Return Strategy investments is estimated by external managers.

vi) The fair value of timberland investments is appraised annually by independent third party evaluators.

vii)  The fair value of deposits, receivables, accrued interest and payables is estimated to approximate their
book values.

VALUATION OF DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts include equity and bond index swaps, interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate
swaps, credit default swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts, equity index futures contracts and swap
option contracts. As disclosed in Note 5, the value of derivative contracts is included in the fair value of pooled

investment funds. The estimated fair value of derivative contracts at the reporting date is determined by the
following methods:

(i) Equity and bond index swaps are valued based on changes in the appropriate market based index net
of accrued floating rate interest.

(ii) Interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows
using current market yields and exchange rates.

(iii)  Credit default swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows using current market yields and
calculated default probabilities.

(iv)  Forward foreign exchange contracts and futures contracts are valued based on quoted market prices.
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Note 2 (continued)

(v) Options to enter into interest rate swap contracts are valued based on discounted cash flows using
current market yields and volatility parameters which measure change in the underlying swap.

NOTE 3 PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

(% thousands) ($ thousands)
2010 2009
Cost Fair Value % Cost Fair Value %
Interest-bearing securities
Deposits and short-term securities (a) $ 8,883 $ 8,877 12 $ 6,072 $ 6,148 1.0
Bonds and mortgages (b) 159,667 160,781 221 135,501 130,273 20.2
168,550 169,658 23.3 141,573 136,421 21.2
Equities
Canadian public equities (c) 92,432 99,675 13.7 101,571 86,849 134
Global developed public equities (d) 290,672 297,241 40.9 248,428 231,352 35.9
Emerging markets public equities (e) 1,872 1,715 0.3 3,276 2,288 0.4
Private equities (f) 27,017 25,645 3.5 26,479 24,549 3.8
411,993 424276 58.4 379,754 345,038 535
Inflation sensitive and alternative investments
Private real estate (g) 58,612 68,494 94 71,553 97,033 15.0
Inflation sensitive real return bonds (h) 3,506 3,589 0.5 - - -
Private infrastructure investments (i) 31,271 27,353 3.8 24,059 24,313 3.8
Absolute return strategy hedge funds (j) 28,801 29,916 4.1 37,708 38,262 59
Timberland (k) 3,717 3,697 0.5 2,973 4,010 0.6
125,907 133,049 18.3 136,293 163,618 25.3
$ 706450 $ 726,983 100.0 $ 657,620 $ 645,077 100.0

The Fund'’s investments are managed at the asset class level for purposes of evaluating the Fund’s risk exposure

and investment performance against approved benchmarks based on fair value. AIMCo invests the Fund’s assets in

accordance with the investment policies approved by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. The Fund’s

investments, in each asset class, are held in pooled investment funds established and administered by AIMCo. Pool
units represent the Fund’s proportionate share of securities held in the pooled fund. Pooled investment funds have a
market based unit value that is used to allocate income to participants of the pool and to value purchases and sales
of pool units. AIMCo is delegated authority to independently purchase and sell securities in the pools and units of the

pools in accordance with the approved long-term policy asset mix (see Note 4).

a) Deposits and short-term securities includes deposits in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund, being

cash as reported in the Statements of Cash Flow, of $7,235 (2009: $4,277) and short-term securities of $1,647
(2009: $1,795). These Investments include primarily short-term and mid-term interest-bearing securities which

have a maximum term to maturity of less than three years. At March 31, 2010, deposits and short-term
securities had a time-weighted return of 1.0% per annum (2009: 3.0% per annum).

b) Interest-bearing bonds and mortgages include government direct and guaranteed bonds and mortgage-
backed securities, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities, private debt issues, private mortgages,
repurchase agreements and debt related derivatives. At March 31, 2010, interest bearing bonds and
mortgages had an average effective market yield of 5.0% per annum (2009: 7.2% per annum) and the
following term structure based on principal amount: under 1 year: 3% (2009: 5%); 1 to 5 years: 33% (2009:
36%); 5 to 10 years: 36% (2009: 27%); 10 to 20 years: 13% (2009: 15%); and over 20 years: 15% (2009:
17%). At March 31, 2010, Government of Canada bonds are used as underlying securities to support the
notional value of bond index futures contracts totalling $nil (2009: $19,509).
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Note 3 (continued)

c)

d)

e)

9)

h)

)

k)

140

The Fund’s Canadian public equity portfolio includes directly held investments in Canadian public companies
and indirect exposure to Canadian public equity markets through structured equity products using index swaps
and futures contracts linked to the Standard and Poor’s Toronto Stock Exchange (S&P/TSX) Composite Index
and S&P/TSX 60 Index. At March 31, 2010, cash and floating rate notes are used as underlying securities to
support the notional value of Canadian equity index swaps and futures contracts totalling $30,213 (2009:
$54,296).

The global developed market is used to describe countries whose economies and capital markets are well
established and mature. The Fund’s global developed public equity portfolio includes directly held
investments in public companies in the U.S., Europe, Australasia and the Far East (EAFE), emerging markets
and Canada. The Fund’s indirect exposure to global developed markets and emerging markets is also attained
by investing in structured equity products using index swaps and futures contracts linked to the Morgan
Stanley Capital International (MSCI) World Total Return Index, MSCI EAFE Index, S&P 500 Index and
Emerging Markets Free Net Index. A component of the Fund’s global portfolio includes investments in North
American concentrated equities which include larger holdings in mid-size Canadian and American companies
ranging from 5% to 20% of outstanding common shares. At March 31, 2010, cash and money market
securities are used as underlying securities to support the notional value of global equity index swaps and
futures contracts totalling $97,412 (2009: $138,566).

Emerging markets equities consist of publicly traded equities in countries in the process of rapid growth and
industrialization such as Brazil, Russia, India and China. The portfolio is actively managed by external
managers with expertise in emerging markets.

Private equity investments include primarily merchant banking investments. Merchant banking transactions
include expansion capital, acquisition financing, management buyouts, family succession, turnaround
financings, project financings and leverage reductions.

The private real estate portfolio was primarily held in Canada. Real estate is held through intermediary
companies, which issue common shares and participating debentures secured by a charge on real estate.
Risk is reduced by investing in properties that provide diversification by geographic location, by property type
and by tenancy. Real estate returns are positively correlated to inflation and negatively correlated to returns
from fixed income securities and equities which provide diversification from the securities market with
opportunities for high return.

Real rate of return bonds are issued or guaranteed primarily by the Government of Canada, and bear interest
at a fixed rate adjusted for inflation.

Private infrastructure investments include investments that are structured to provide high returns plus inflation
sensitivity with a long investment horizon. Investments may include transportation and logistic investments
(e.g. toll roads, airports, ports and rail), power or energy investments (e.g. contracted power generation, power
transmission pipelines) and utilities (e.g. water, waste water, natural gas networks).

The absolute return strategies (hedge funds) use external managers who employ various investment
strategies which are expected to produce absolute positive investment returns with lower volatility.
Investments are made through multi-hedge fund-of-funds and direct investments to increase strategy
diversification.

Timberland investments are located primarily in Canada. The Canadian timberland investment includes an
interest in timber and related land located in the Province of British Columbia.
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NOTE 4 INVESTMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

Income and financial returns of the Fund are exposed to credit risk and price risk. Credit risk relates to the possibility
that a loss may occur from the failure of another party to perform according to the terms of a contract. Price risk is
comprised of currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Currency risk relates to the possibility that the
investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk relates to the
possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market interest rates. Market risk
relates to the possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market prices.

In order to earn an optimal financial return at an acceptable level of risk, management of the Fund established the
following long-term policy asset mix for the 2009-2010 fiscal year:

Equities 52.5%
Interest-bearing securities 22.5%
Inflation sensitive and alternatives 25.0%

Risk is reduced through asset class diversification, diversification within each asset class, quality constraints on
fixed-income instruments, and restrictions on amounts exposed to countries designated as emerging markets.
Controls are in place respecting the use of derivatives (see Note 5). Forward foreign exchange contracts may be
used to manage currency exposure in connection with securities purchased in foreign currency (see Note 5).

NOTE 5 DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts are financial contracts, the value of which is derived from the value of underlying assets, indices,
interest rates or currency rates. The Fund uses derivative contracts held indirectly through pooled investment funds
to enhance return, manage exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk and for asset mix management
purposes. The notional value of a derivative contract represents the amount to which a rate or price is applied in
order to calculate the exchange of cash flows.

i) A swap is a contractual agreement between two counter-parties to exchange a series of cash flows (usually
settled every three months) based on a notional amount. An equity or bond index swap involves the
exchange of a floating interest rate cash flow for one based on the performance of a market index. For
interest rate swaps, parties generally exchange fixed and floating rate interest cash flows based on a
notional amount. Cross-currency interest rate swaps are contractual obligations in which the principal
amounts of Canadian fixed-income securities denominated in foreign currency are exchanged for Canadian
currency amounts both initially and at maturity. Over the term of the cross-currency swap, counter-parties
exchange fixed to fixed and fixed to floating interest rate cash flows in the swapped currencies. A credit
default swap allows counter-parties to buy and sell protection on credit risk inherent in a bond. A premium is
paid, based on a notional amount, from one counter party to a second counter party in exchange for a
contingent payment should a defined credit event occur with respect to the underlying security. There are
underlying securities supporting all swaps. Leveraging is not allowed.

ii) Forward foreign exchange contracts are contractual agreements to exchange specified currencies at an
agreed upon exchange rate and on an agreed settlement date in the future.

iii) Futures contracts are an agreement to receive or pay cash based on changes in the level of the specified
index.

iv) Swap option contracts include the right, but not the obligation, to enter into an interest rate swap at a preset
rate within a specific period of time.
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Note 5 (continued)

The following is a summary of the Fund's proportionate share of the notional amount and fair value of derivative
contracts held by pooled funds at March 31, 2010:

($ thousands)
Maturity 2010 2009

Under 1to3 Over Notional Fair Notional Fair

1 Year Years 3 Years Amount(a) Value (b) Amount(a) Value (b)
Equity index swap contracts 99% 1% - $138,327 $ 3,833 $159502 $ 391
Interest rate swap contracts 25% 55% 20% 35,874 (1,215) 54,002 (2,952)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 100% - - 169,829 2,168 125,623 (4,432)
Cross-currencyinterestrate swaps 22% 34% 44% 21,425 1,284 43,805 (1,620)
Credit default swap contracts 29% 39% 32% 111,165 (870) 192,577 (3,523)
Bond index swap contracts - - - - - 5,781 44
Futures contracts 100% - - 110,141 7,389 53,567 7,952
Swap option contracts 100% - - 18,351 (99) - -

$ 605,112 $ 12,490 $ 634,857 $ (4,140)

(a) The notional amounts, upon which payments are based, are not indicative of the credit risk associated with derivative
contracts. Current credit exposure is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding contracts in a favourable
position (positive fair value). The Fund attempts to limit its credit exposure by dealing with counter-parties believed to have
good credit standing (A+ or greater).

(b) The method of determining the fair value of derivative contracts is described in Note 2 (e).
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NOTE6 NET ASSETS

Net assets represents the difference between the carrying value of assets held by the Fund and its liabilities. The
following table shows the accumulated investment income and transfers to and from the Fund since its inception in
2000:

(% thousands)

Cumulative since 2000

2010 2009
Transfers from the General Revenue Fund (a) $ 721,430 $ 721,430
Accumulated investmentincome 153,442 71,218
Accumulated transfers to the Foundation (b) (166,986) (135,086)
Net Assets, at cost $ 707,886 $ 657,562
Net Assets, at fair value $ 728,419 $ 645,019

(a) The total accumulated contributions from the GRF include an initial amount of $500 million deposited during the 2000-
2001 fiscal year and $21.43 million during the 2003-2004 fiscal year. Additionally, pursuant to Section 8 of the Access
to the Future Act, $100 million w as transferred from the GRF during the 2005-2006 fiscal year and $100 million w as
transferred from the GRF during the 2006-2007 fiscal year. Under the Access to the Future Act, the Fund shall be
increased by $500 million in amounts considered appropriate by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise.

(b) In accordance w ith section 12 of the Alberta Research and Innovation Act (the Act), the Minister of Finance and
Enterprise must, at the request of the Minister of Advanced Education and Technology (AET), pay from the
Endow ment Fund to AET, money that, in the opinion of the Alberta Research and Innovation Authority is required by
AET for the furtherance of its objectives. Section 12 of the Act limits annual payments from the Fund to AET.
Payments to AET may not exceed, in a fiscal year, 4.5% of the average of the market values determined on March 31
of the preceeding three fiscal years, and any unused portion of the amount permitted to be paid in that fiscal year may
be paid in any subsequent fiscal year.

($ thousands)
2010

Accumulated unused spending limit at March 31, 2009 $ 23,470
4.5% of average market value on March 31, 2007-09 35,621
Spending limit for the year ended March 31,2010 59,091
Transfers to Foundation during 2009-10 (31,900)
Accumulated unused spending limit at March 31, 2010 27,191
4.5% of average market value on March 31, 2008-10 33,165
Spending limit for the year ended March 31, 2011 $ 60,356
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NOTE 7 INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS)

The following is a summary of the Fund’s investment income (loss) and expenses by asset class:

(% thousands)
2010 2009

Gross Gross

Income Net Income Income Net Income

(Loss) Expenses (Loss) (Loss) Expenses (Loss)
Foreign equities $ 44473 $ 894 $ 43579 $ (95406) $ 1,140 $ (96,546)
Canadian equities 10,944 149 10,795 (33,926) 119 (34,045)
Interest-bearing securities 10,473 177 10,296 (4,334) 244 (4,578)
Absolute return strategies 6,388 299 6,089 (13,462) 458 (13,920)
Private real estate 8,329 377 7,952 6,039 387 5,652
Private infrastructure investments 4,963 363 4,600 2,434 234 2,200
Timberland 793 28 765 (443) 23 (466)
Private equities (811) 772 (1,583) (654) 786 (1,440)
Inflation sensitive real return bonds 42 - 42 - - -
Fund investment expenses - 311 (311) - 175 (175)

$ 85594 $ 3370 $ 82224 $(139,752) $ 3,566 $ (143,318)

Investment income is comprised of interest, dividends, amortization of discount and premiums, swap income,
security lending income and realized gains and losses, net of writedowns, on investments. The investment income
for the year ended March 31, 2010, includes writedowns totalling $4,668 (2009: $43,932).

NOTE 8 INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Investment services are provided by AIMCo. It provides the day to day investment services for the Fund’s
investment portfolio. However, in order to achieve greater diversification, access external expertise and specialized
knowledge and to reduce operational complexity, some investments are managed by third party investment
managers selected and monitored by AIMCo.

Investment expenses are recognized on an accrual basis and include those costs and fees incurred to earn
investment income by the Fund. The Fund recognizes portfolio management and administration expenses incurred
directly by the Fund and its share of expenses through pooled investment funds. Investment services provided
directly by AIMCo are charged to the Fund and to pooled funds on a cost recovery basis. Investment services
provided by external managers are charged to pooled funds based on a percentage of net assets under
management at fair value, or committed amounts. Fees charged by external managers include primarily regular
management fees and performance/incentive based fees to the extent recognized.

(% thousands)
2010 2009
Total Investment Expenses $ 3,370 $ 3,566
Average fair value of investments 686,030 741,327
Percent of investments at average fair value 0.49% 0.48%
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NOTE 9 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE (net of investment expenses)

The following is a summary of the investment performance results attained by the Fund determined on a fair value
basis:

Average Annualized Return

Time-weighted rates of return, at fair value (1) 2010 2009 5 years 9 years
Actual gain (loss) (2) 18.3% -19.7% 3.6% 4.1%
Benchmark gain (loss) (2) 17.6% -15.8% 4.2% 4.3%
Value added (lost) by investment manager 0.7% -3.9% -0.7% -0.2%

(1) The time-weighted rate of return involves the calculation of the return realized by the Fund over a specified period and is a
measure of the total proceeds received from an investment dollar initially invested. Total proceeds include cash distributions
(interest and dividend payments) and capital gains and losses (realized and unrealized).

(2) The actual and policy benchmark returns are a product of the weighted average sector weights and sector returns. Some of
the sector returns used in the determination of the overall actual and policy benchmark returns are based on management's
best estimate which may vary significantly from the final return. Differences between the estimated sector returns and the
final returns are recorded in the period of the change.

NOTE 10 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to 2010 presentation.

NOTE 11 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise approved these financial statements.
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise

| have audited the balance sheets of the Alberta Risk Management Fund as at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the
statements of operations for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund’s
management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require

that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at
March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]

Auditor General
Edmonton, Alberta

June 4, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Balance Sheets

As at March 31

($ thousands)
Assets //
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 9 $ 33,354
Receivable from Province of Alberta 73
Accrued recoveries (Note 4) 285
3 33,712
Liabilities and net liabilities
Liabiliies .
Accounts payable (Note 5) $ %/% $ 468
Liability for accrued claims (Note 6) 29,413 . 30,239
29,790 30,707
Net assets 8,662 3,005
EWWL $ 33712

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Operations

Years ended March 31
($ thousands)

Province of Alberta departments, funds and agencies $ 11,885
Other entities 575
Subrogation and salvage / 473
Interest 8ok % 58 1,069
Expenses ; /
Insurance claims 10,899 5,322
Insurance premiums to insurers E 252 2,272
Administration 1,662 ,//// 1,380
Other services 656 774 636
i
15,539 8,918 9,610
%
Net revenue g (s 5657 4,392
Net assets (liabilities) at beginning of year 3.006 (1,387)

|
L

$

Net assets at end of year 3,005

.00,
i

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2010

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY, PURPOSE AND FINANCIAL STRUCTURE

The Alberta Risk Management Fund (the Fund) operates under the authority of the Financial Administration Act,
Chapter F-12, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000.

The Fund provides risk management and insurance services to government departments, funds and agencies,
members of the Legislative Assembly and others by assuming general and automobile liability and the risk of losses
due to automobile physical damage, property damage and crime in exchange for premiums related to the level of risk
assumed.

In the ordinary course of business, the Fund insures certain risks for the purpose of limiting its exposure to large or
unusual risks. As such, the Fund enters into excess of loss contracts with only the most credit-worthy insurance
companies and is required to pay for all losses up to certain predetermined amounts. The insurance companies
compensate the Fund for any losses above the agreed predetermined amounts.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTICES

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The
accounting policies of significance to the Fund are as follows:

a) Claims provisions, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported, are based on estimates made by
management. The provisions are adjusted in the period when more experience is acquired and as additional
information is obtained.

b) In preparing these financial statements, estimates and assumptions are used in circumstances where the actual
values are unknown. Uncertainty in the determination of the amount at which an item is recognized in financial
statements is known as measurement uncertainty. Such uncertainty exists when there is a variance between the
recognized amount and another reasonably possible amount, as there is whenever estimates are used.

Measurement uncertainty that is material in these financial statements exists in the estimation of the Fund’s
liability for accrued claims. Uncertainty arises because the Fund’s actual loss experience may differ, perhaps
significantly, from assumptions used in the estimation of the Fund’s liability for accrued claims. (see Note 6(b)).

Liability for accrued claims, recorded as $29.4 million (2009: $30.2 million) in these financial statements, is
subject to measurement uncertainty. This is because the ultimate disposition of claims incurred prior to the
financial statement date is subject to the outcome of events that have not yet occurred, and any estimate of
future costs has inherent limitations due to management’s limited ability to predict precisely the aggregate course
of future events. Based on an actuarial sensitivity analysis, an estimate of claim liabilities at the high end of a
reasonable range is $40.0 million as at March 31, 2010, or $10.6 million higher than the recognized amount. It is
possible that actual claims could be even higher than this other probable amount (see Note 6(b)).

While best estimates have been used in reporting the Fund’s liability for accrued claims, management considers
that it is possible, based on existing knowledge, that changes in future conditions in the near term could require a
material change in the recognized amounts. Near term is defined as a period of time not to exceed one year
from the date of the financial statements. Differences between actual results and expectations are adjusted in
the period when the actual loss values are known.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable from Province of Alberta, accrued recoveries,
accounts payable and liability for accrued claims are estimated to approximate their book values.

A statement of changes in cash flows is not provided as disclosure in these financial statements is considered
adequate.
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NOTE 3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund is managed with the objective of providing competitive interest income
to depositors while maintaining appropriate security and liquidity of depositors’ capital. The portfolio is comprised of

high-quality short-term and mid-term-fixed income securities with a maximum term-to-maturity of three years. As at
March 31, 2010, securities held by the Fund have time-weighted return of 1.00% per annum (2009: 3.0% per annum).

NOTE 4 ACCRUED RECOVERIES

Accrued recoveries represent management’s best estimates of amounts that will be recovered for subrogation or
salvage. All amounts are considered to be good and recoverable when due.

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

($ thousands)
2010 %g 2009

Payable to Department of Finance and Enterprise g 376 $ 376
Other 1 92
[T DT

NOTE 6 LIABILITY FOR ACCRUED CLAIMS

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Outstanding claims case reserves (a) $ 16668 $ 14,536
Incurred but not reported losses (b) 12,745 15,703

S 20418 5 30239

a) OUTSTANDING CLAIMS CASE RESERVES

Liability for outstanding claims case reserves represents management’s best estimates of outstanding losses
and related claims expenses which have been reported but not yet closed, net of participant deductibles and
recoveries, if any. The amount reflects management’s best estimate of the ultimate cost of settlement after
consultation with legal counsel if required.
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Note 6 (continued)

b) INCURRED BUT NOT REPORTED (IBNR) LOSSES

Liability for IBNR losses is an estimate of liabilities for claims that have been incurred but not yet reported. In
addition to a provision for claims that have occurred but are not yet reported, the amount includes a provision for
development of outstanding case reserves, a provision for reopened claims, and a provision for claims that have

been reported but are not yet recorded in the books.

An actuarial review of the Fund'’s liability for IBNR losses was carried out as at March 31, 2010 by KPMG LLP,

taking into account the historical claims experience up to that date.

The actuarial review was determined using generally accepted actuarial practices in Canada, including the
selection of appropriate assumptions and methods. The assumptions used were developed based on the
actuary’s best estimates of the Fund’s expected loss experience. After consultation with the Fund’s actuary,

management approved these best estimates.

The major assumptions used were:

Trend rate
General liability
Automobile liability
Property
Auto physical damage
Crime

Loss development factor

2009

5%
5%
0%
1%
3%

Based on the Fund's historical experience supplemented by insurance industry

experience compiled by Insurance Bureau of Canada
Selected loss rate

General liability

Loss per person (Alberta population)
Automobile liability

Loss per vehicle
Property

Loss per $million property values
Auto physical damage

Loss per vehicle
Crime

Loss per class A and B employee
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Note 6 (continued)
b) INCURRED BUT NOT REPORTED (IBNR) LOSES (continued)

Liability for IBNR losses represents the difference between the actuary’s estimated ultimate incurred loss and the
amount of incurred loss reported on the effective date of review, adjusted for the portion of any individual large
claims ceded to third party insurers.

The Fund’s future experience will inevitably differ, perhaps significantly, from the actuary’s estimate due to the
unpredictable nature of new claim types, the random occurrence of large losses and the outcome of future
contingent events. Any differences between the actuary’s estimate and future experience will emerge as gains
or losses in future reviews and will affect the financial position of the Fund.

The following is a summary of the impact of various sensitivity tests on the Fund’s net liability at March 31, 2010:
Increase in Net
Liabilities

Sensitivity Tests (% million)

Increase the confidence level of the liability for accrued claims
estimate to 90% from 50% $
Increase the loss development factor assumption by changing the

-~

-

tail factor (time period to final claim settlement) to between 1.01
and 1.10 depending on coverage type, and increasing the trend
factor assumption to between 8% and 20%, depending on

=

coverage type 6.
Statistical analysis of general liability loss development factors

=

instead of judgmentally selecting loss development factors 10.

NOTE 7 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The aggregate amounts payable for the unexpired terms of contractual obligations in respect of contracts entered into
before March 31, 2010 are as follows:

($ thousands)
2010-11
2011-12
2012-13 48
S SR
NOTE 8 CONTINGENT LIABILITES

At March 31, 2010, the Province was named as defendant in various legal actions relating to insurance claims. The
resulting loss, if any from these claims and other potential claims cannot be determined.

NOTE 9 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise

| have audited the balance sheets of the Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Reserve Fund Reserve as at March
31, 2010 and 2009 and the statements of changes in net assets for the years then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Fund’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
| plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at
March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA])

Edmonton, Alberta Auditor General

June 4, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Balance Sheets

As at March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Assets
Investments (Note 3) $ 70,071 $ 54,639
Receivable from the Province of Alberta 164 351
70,235 54,990
Liabilities
Liability for investment purchases - 275
70,235 54,715
Amounts owing to the Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers
(Unregistered) Pension Plan (Note 6) 70,235 54,715
Net Assets $ - 3 -

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years ended March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Net investment income (loss) (Note 7)
Investment income (loss) $ 11,306 $ (11,583)
Investment expenses (138) (121)
11,168 (11,704)
Contributions 4,352 4,405

(Increase) decrease in amounts owing to the Provincial Judges and
Masters in Chambers (Unregistered) Pension Plan (15,520) 7,299
Change in net assets for the year - -

Net assets, beginning of year - -

Net assets, end of year $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2010
(all dollar values in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers Reserve Fund (Reserve Fund) operates under the authority of the
Financial Administration Act, Chapter F-12, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 and the Provincial Judges and Masters
in Chambers Reserve Fund Directive (Treasury Board Directive 03-01)

The Reserve Fund is established to collect contributions from the Province of Alberta and to invest the funds, which
are reserved to meet future benefit payments of the Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers (Unregistered)
Pension Plan (Unregistered Plan). The Unregistered Plan is established to provide additional pension benefits to
Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers whose pensionable earnings are in excess of the maximum benefit
accrual limit as set out in the federal Income Tax Act.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING
PRACTICES

a) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

Reserve Fund investments are held in pooled investment funds administered by Alberta Investment
Management Corporation (AIMCo.). Pooled investment funds have a market-based unit value that is used to
allocate income to participants and to value purchases and sales of pool units.

b) VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Investments are recorded in the financial statements at fair value.

Fair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

For private investments, the fair value is based on estimates where quoted market prices are not readily
available. Estimated fair values may not reflect amounts that could be realized upon immediate sale, or amounts
that ultimately may be realized. Accordingly, the estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values
that would have been used had a ready market existed for these investments. A change in the estimated fair
value of an investment is recorded in the period in which new information is received.

The methods used to determine fair value of investments held either by the Reserve Fund or by pooled
investment funds is explained in the following paragraphs:

i) Short-term securities, public fixed income securities and equities are valued at the year-end closing sale
price or average of the latest bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.

i)  Private fixed income securities and mortgages are valued based on the net present value of future cash
flows. These cash flows are discounted using appropriate interest rate premiums over similar Government
of Canada benchmark bonds trading in the market.

iii) The fair value of private income investments is estimated by managers or general partners of limited
partnerships. Valuation methods may encompass a broad range of approaches. The cost approach is used
to value companies without either profits or cash flows. Established private companies are valued using the
fair market value approach reflecting conventional valuation methods including discounted cash flows and
multiple earnings analyses.
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Note 2 (continued)

c)

d)

e)

f)

iv) The fair value of private real estate investments is reported at their most recent appraised value net of any
liabilities against the real property. Real estate properties are appraised annually by qualified external real
estate appraisers. Appraisers use a combination of methods to determine fair value including replacement
cost, direct comparison, direct capitalization of earnings and the discounted cash flows.

The fair values of receivable from the Province of Alberta and liability for investment purchases are estimated to
approximate their book values.

INCOME RECOGNITION

Investment income and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis. Dividends are accrued on the ex-dividend
date. Gains or losses on investments, including those from derivative contracts, are recognized concurrently
with changes in fair value.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using average rates of exchange. At the year-
end, the fair value of investments and any other assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are
translated at the year-end exchange rate. Exchange differences are included in the determination of investment
income.

VALUATION OF DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts (see Note 5) include equity and bond index swaps, interest rate swaps, forward foreign
exchange contracts, futures contracts, credit default swaps, cross-currency and interest rate swaps. The value of
derivative contracts is included in the fair value of pooled investment funds. The estimated amount receivable or
payable from derivative contracts at the reporting date is determined by the following methods:

i) Equity and bond index swaps are valued based on changes in the appropriate market based index net of
accrued floating rate interest.

i) Interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows using
current market yields and year-end exchange rates.

iiiy Credit default swaps are valued based on discount cash flows using current market yields and calculated
default probabilities.

iv) Forward foreign exchange contracts and futures contracts are based on quoted market prices.

v) Options to enter into interest rate swap contracts are valued based on discounted cash flows using current
market yields and volatility parameters which measure changes in the underlying swap.

LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities of the Reserve Fund are funded by investment income and contributions from the Province of
Alberta.

As at March 31, 2010, current service contributions rates are 34.61% of the pensionable earnings of Provincial
Judges and Masters in Chambers that were in excess of the maximum pensionable salary limit. The rate was
determined by the Unregistered Plan’s actuary and approved by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise.

The unfunded liability arising as a result of judicial salary increases recommended by the 2003 Judicial
Compensation Commission is financed by additional contributions from the Province of Alberta. The contribution
rate is set on the basis that the additional contributions will eliminate the unfunded liability over 15 years.

These amounts represent assets held by the Reserve Fund, which are available to meet future benefit payments of
the Unregistered Plan over the long term.
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Note 2 (continued)

9)

MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINTY

In preparing these financial statements, estimates and assumptions are used in circumstances where the actual
values are unknown. Uncertainty in the determination of the amount at which an item is recognized in financial
statements is known as measurement uncertainty. Such uncertainty exists when there is a variance between the
recognized amount and another reasonably possible amount, as there is whenever estimates are used.

Measurement uncertainty exists in the valuation of the Fund’s private investments and real estate. Uncertainty
arises because the estimated fair values of the Fund’s private and alternative investments and real estate may
differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for these investments.

While best estimates have been used in the valuation of the Fund’s private investments and real estate,
management considers that it is possible, based on existing knowledge, that change in future conditions in the
short term could require a material change in the recognized amounts.

Differences between the estimated fair values and the amount ultimately realized are included in net investment
income in the year when the ultimate realizable values are known

NOTE 3 INVESTMENTS

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Fair Value Fair Value
% %
Interest bearing securities
Deposits and short-term securities (a) $ 6,231 89 $ 4,024 7.4
Bonds and mortgages (b) 24,587 35.1 19,645 35.9
30,818 44.0 23,669 43.3
Equities and alternative investments
Public equities
Canadian equities (c) 10,832 155 8,886 16.3
Global developed equities (d) 24,766 35.3 17,728 32.4
Emerging markets equities (e) 172 0.3 202 0.4
Inflation sensitive
Private real estate (f) 1,920 2.7 2,969 5.4
Private infrastructure investments (g) 1,151 1.6 1,185 2.2
Inflation sensitive real return bonds (h) 412 0.6 - -
39,253 56.0 30,970 56.7
Total investments 70,071 100.0 $ 54,639 100.0
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Note 3 (continued)

The Reserve Fund'’s investments are managed at the asset class level for purposes of evaluating the Fund’s risk
exposure and investment performance against approved benchmarks based on fair value. AIMCo invests the Fund’s
assets in accordance with the investment policies approved by the Reserve Fund’s board. The majority of the Fund’s
investments, in each asset class, are held in pooled investment funds established and administered by AIMCo. Pool
units represent the Fund’s proportionate share of securities held in the pooled fund. Pooled investment funds have a
market based unit value that is used to allocate income to participants and to value purchases and sales of pool units.
AIMCo is delegated authority to independently purchase and sell securities in the pools and units of the pools within
the ranges approved for each asset class (see Note 4).

a) Deposits and short-term securities include primarily interest bearing securities which have a maximum term to
maturity of less than three years. At March 31, 2010, deposits and short-term securities had a time-weighted
return of 1.0% per annum (2009: 3.0% per annum).

b) Interest bearing bonds and mortgages include government direct and guaranteed bonds and mortgage-backed
securities, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities, private debt issues, private mortgages, repurchase
agreements and debt related derivatives. At March 31, 2010, interest bearing bonds and mortgages had an
average effective market yield of 5.0% per annum (2009: 7.2% per annum) and the following term structure
based on principal amount: under 1 year: 3% (2009: 5%); 1 to 5 years: 33% (2009: 36%); 5 to 10 years: 36%
(2009: 27%); 10 to 20 years: 13% (2009: 15%); and over 20 years: 15% (2009: 17%). At March 31, 2010,
Government of Canada bonds are used as underlying securities to support the notional value of bond index
futures contracts totalling $nil (2009: $1,645).

c) The Fund’s Canadian public equity portfolio includes directly held investments in Canadian public companies and
indirect exposure to Canadian public equity markets through structured equity products using index swaps and
futures contracts linked to the Standard and Poor’s Toronto Stock Exchange (S&P/TSX) Composite Index and
S&P/TSX 60 Index. At March 31, 2010, cash and floating rate notes are used as underlying securities to support
the notional value of Canadian equity index swaps and futures contracts totalling $3,300 (2009: $5,750).

d) The Fund’s global developed public equity portfolio includes directly held investments in public companies in the
U.S., Europe, Australasia and the Far East (EAFE), and Canada. The global developed market is used to
describe countries whose economies and capital markets are well established and mature. The Fund’s indirect
exposure to global developed markets and emerging markets is also attained by investing in structured equity
products using index swaps and futures contracts linked to the Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI)
World Total Return Index, MSCI EAFE Index, S&P 500 Index and Emerging Markets Free Net Index. A
component of the Fund’s global portfolio includes investments in North American concentrated equities which
include larger holdings in mid-size Canadian and American companies ranging from 5% to 20% of outstanding
common shares. At March 31, 2010, cash and money market securities are used as underlying securities to
support the notional value of global equity index swaps and futures contracts totalling $8,775 (2009: $10,643).

e) Emerging markets equities consist of publicly traded equities in countries in the process of rapid growth and
industrialization such as Brazil, Russia, India and China. The portfolio is actively managed by external managers
with expertise in emerging markets.

f)  The private real estate portfolio was primarily held in Canada. Real estate is held through intermediary
companies, which issue common shares and participating debentures secured by a charge on real estate. Risk
is reduced by investing in properties that provide diversification by geographic location, by property type and by
tenancy. Real estate returns are positively correlated to inflation and negatively correlated to returns from fixed
income securities and equities which provide diversification from the securities market with opportunities for high
return.

g) Private infrastructure investments include investments that are structured to provide high returns plus inflation
sensitivity with a long investment horizon. Investments may include transportation and logistic investments (e.g.
toll roads, airports, ports and rail), power or energy investments (e.g. contracted power generation, power
transmission pipelines) and utilities (e.g. water, waste water, natural gas networks).

h) Real rate of return bonds are issued or guaranteed primarily by the Government of Canada, and bear interest at
a fixed rate adjusted for inflation.
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NOTE 4 INVESTMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

Fair values of investments are exposed to credit risk and price risk. Credit risk relates to the possibility that a loss
may occur from the failure of another party to perform according to the terms of a contract. Price risk is comprised of
currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Currency risk relates to the possibility that the investments will
change in value due to future fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk relates to the possibility that
the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market interest rates. Market risk relates to the
possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market prices.

Actuarial liabilities of the Reserve Fund are primarily affected by the long-term real rate of return expected to be
earned on investments. In order to earn the best possible return at an acceptable level of risk, the Board has
established a long-term policy asset mix benchmark and range for the following investments:

Policy %
Benchmark Minimum Maximum

Interest bearing securities 46 43 58]
Deposits and short-term securities 13 5 20
Bonds and mortgages 33 28 38
Public equities 48 40 55)
Canadian 16 11 21
Global developed 32 22 42
Inflation sensitive 6 0 10
Private real estate 4 0 6
Private infrastructure investments 2 0 4

Investment risk is reduced through asset class diversification, diversification within each asset class, quality
constraints on fixed income instruments, and restrictions on amounts exposed to countries designated as emerging
markets. Controls are in place respecting the use of derivatives (see Note 5). Forward foreign exchange contracts
may be used to manage currency exposure in connection with securities purchased in a foreign currency

(see Note 5).

NOTE 5 DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts are financial contracts, the value of which is derived from the value of underlying assets, indices,
interest rates or currency rates. The Reserve Fund uses derivative contracts held indirectly through pooled
investment funds to enhance return, manage exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk and for asset mix
management purposes. The notional value of a derivative contract represents the amount to which a rate or price is
applied in order to calculate the exchange of cash flows.

A swap is a contractual agreement between two counter-parties to exchange a series of cash flows based on a
notional amount. An equity or bond index swap involves the exchange of a floating interest rate cash flow for one
based on the performance of a market index. For interest rate swaps, parties generally exchange fixed and floating
rate interest cash flows based on a notional amount. A credit default swap allows counter-parties to buy and sell
protection on credit risk inherent in a bond. A premium is paid, based on a notional amount, from one counter party to
a second counter party in exchange for a contingent payment should a defined credit event occur with respect to the
underlying security. Cross-currency interest rate swaps are contractual obligations in which the principal amounts of
Canadian fixed-income securities denominated in foreign currency are exchanged for Canadian currency amounts
both initially and at maturity. Over the term of the cross-currency swap, counter-parties exchange fixed to fixed and
fixed to floating interest rate cash flows in the swapped currencies. There are underlying securities supporting all
swaps. Leveraging is not allowed.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are contractual agreements to exchange specified currencies at an agreed upon
exchange rate and on an agreed settlement date in the future.

Futures contracts are agreements to receive or pay cash on an agreed settlement date based on changes in the level
of the specified index.
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Note 5 (continued)

Swap option contracts include the right but not the obligation, to enter into an interest rate swap at a preset rate within

a specified period of time.

The following is a summary of the Reserve Fund's proportionate share of the notional amount and fair value of

derivative contracts held by pooled funds at March 31, 2010:

% ($ thousands)
2010 2009

Maturity Net Net

Under 1to3 Over Notional Fair Notional Fair
1Year Years 3Years Amount Value® Amount  Value @
Credit default swap contracts 29 39 32 $ 17,760 $ (139) $ 28,830 $ (456)
Equity index swap contracts 99 1 - 13,064 342 13,146 46
Forward foreign exchange contracts 100 - - 10,488 76 3,080 (58)
Futures contracts 100 - - 9,257 620 4,978 765
Interest rate swap contracts 29 57 14 3,607 (105) 5,284 (261)
Cross-currency interest rate swap 27 28 45 2,496 197 4,066 (161)
Swap option contracts 100 - - 2,037 9) - -
Bond index swap contracts - - - - - 883 7
$ 58,709 $ 982 $ 60,267 $ (118)

a) The method of determining fair value of derivative contracts is described in Note 2 (e).

The notional amounts, upon which payments are based, are not indicative of the credit risk associated with derivative

contracts. Current credit exposure is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding contracts in a
favourable position (positive fair value). The Reserve Fund attempts to limit its credit exposure by dealing with

counter-parties believed to have good credit standing.

NOTE 6 PROVINCIAL JUDGES AND MASTERS IN CHAMBERS (Unregistered)
PENSION PLAN (Unregistered Plan)

An actuarial valuation of the Unregistered Plan was carried out as at December 31, 2008 by Johnson Incorporated

and was then extrapolated to March 31, 2010.

As at March 31, 2010 the Unregistered Plan reported an actuarial deficiency of $1.5 million (2009: deficiency of $8.2
million), taking into account the amounts owing from the Reserve Fund.
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NOTE 7 NET INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS)

The following is a summary of the Reserve Fund’s proportionate share of net investment income (loss) by type of
investment.

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Gross Net Gross Net

income income income income

(loss) Expenses (loss) (loss) Expenses (loss)
Interest bearing securities $ 2477 $ 21 $ 2456 $ (689) $ 14 $ (703)
Canadian public equities 3,496 16 3,480 (3,516) 8 (3,524)
Foreign public equities 5,422 73 5,349 (7,541) 78 (7,619)
Private real estate (148) 8 (156) 144 10 134
Inflation sensitive real return bonds 14 - 14 - -
Private infrastructure investments 45 12 33 19 11 8
Plan investment expenses - 8 (8) - - -

$ 11,306 $ 138 $ 11,168 $ (11,583) $ 121 $ (11,704)

The following is a summary of the investment performance results attained by the Fund.

Return
2010 2009 4 years
Time-weighted rates of return*
Actual Gain (loss) 18.9% (16.8%) 1.4%
Benchmark gain (loss)** 15.8% (12.8%) 2.3%
Value added (lost) by investment manager 3.1% (4.0%) (0.9%)

* The measure involves the calculation of the return realized by the Fund over a specified period and is a measure of
the total proceeds received from an investment dollar initially invested. Total proceeds include cash distributions
(interest and dividend payments) and capital gains and losses (realized and unrealized)

**The policy benchmark is a product of the weighted average policy sector weights and sector returns. Some of the
sector benchmark returns used in the determination of the overall policy benchmark are based on management's
best estimate which may vary significantly from the final benchmark return. Differences between the estimated
sector benchmark returns and the final benchmark returns are recorded in the period of the change.

NOTE 8 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures have been reclassified to be consistent with 2010 presentation.

NOTE 9 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise.
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SUPPLEMENTARY RETIREMENT PLAN RESERVE FUND

Financial Statements

Year Ended March 31, 2010

Auditor's Report
Balance Sheets

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Notes to the Financial Statements
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise

| have audited the balance sheets of the Supplementary Retirement Plan Reserve Fund as at March 31, 2010 and
2009 and the statements of changes in net assets for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of the Fund. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at
March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Edmonton. Alberta [Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
June 4, 2010 Auditor General

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Balance Sheets

As at March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Assets
Investments (Note 3) $ 35,745 $ 25,792
Receivable from participating employers 129 232
Receivable from sale of investments - 150
35,874 26,174
Liabilities
Liability for investment purchases (75) (375)
Amounts owing to the Supplementary Retirement Plan for
Public Service Managers (35,799) (25,799)
Net Assets $ - % -

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years ended March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Net Investment income (loss) (Note 6)
Net investment income (loss) $ 6,520 $ (6,985)
Investment expenses (95) (95)
6,425 (7,080)
Contributions 3,575 3,431

(Increase) decrease in amounts owing to the Supplementary Retirement

Plan for Public Service Managers (10,000) 3,649
Change in net assets for the year -

Net assets, beginning of year - -

Net assets, end of year $ - 3 -

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2010
(all dollar values in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 1 SUMMARY DESCRIPTION OF THE RESERVE FUND

The Supplementary Retirement Plan Reserve Fund (Reserve Fund) operates under the authority of the Financial
Administration Act, Chapter F-12, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 and Treasury Board Directive 05/99.

The Reserve Fund is established to collect contributions from participating employers and to invest the funds, which
are reserved to meet future benefit payments of the Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers
(SRP). The SRP is established effective July 1, 1999 to provide additional pension benefits to eligible public service
managers whose pensionable earnings are in excess of the maximum pensionable salary limit under the federal
Income Tax Act.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING
PRACTICES

a) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

Reserve Fund investments are held in pooled investment funds administered by Alberta Investment Management
Corporation (AIMCo). Pooled investment funds have a market-based unit value that is used to allocate income to
participants and to value purchases and sales of pool units

b) VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Investments are recorded in the financial statements at fair value.

Fair value is the amount of consideration agreed upon in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

For private investments including real estate, timberland, private equity and private income, the fair value is based
on estimates where quoted market prices are not readily available. Estimated fair values may not reflect amounts
that could be realized upon immediate sale, or amounts that ultimately may be realized. Accordingly, the
estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market
existed for these investments. A change in the estimated fair value of an investment is recorded in the period in
which new information is received.

The following methods used to determine fair value of investments held either by the Reserve Fund or by pooled
investment funds are explained below:

i)  Short-term securities, public fixed income securities and equities are valued at the year-end closing sale
price or average of the latest bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.

ii) Private fixed income securities and mortgages are valued based on the net present value of future cash
flows. These cash flows are discounted using appropriate interest rate premiums over similar
Government of Canada benchmark bonds trading in the market.

iii) The fair value of private real estate investments is reported at their most recent appraised value net of
any liabilities against the real property. Real estate properties are appraised annually by qualified
external real estate appraisers. Appraisers use a combination of methods to determine fair value
including replacement cost, direct comparison, direct capitalization of earnings and the discounted cash
flows.

168 2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report



SUPPLEMENTARY RETIREMENT PLAN RESERVE FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Note 2 (continued)

c)

d)

e)

f)

iv) The fair value of private equity and income investments is estimated by managers or general partners of
limited partnerships. Valuation methods may encompass a broad range of approaches. The cost
approach is used to value companies without either profits or cash flows. Established private companies
are valued using the fair market value approach reflecting conventional valuation methods including
discounted cash flows and multiple earnings analyses.

v) The fair value of timberland investments is appraised annually by independent third party valuators.

The fair values of receivable from participating employers, receivable from the sale of investments and liability
for investment purchases are estimated to approximate their book values.

INCOME RECOGNITION

Investment income and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis. Dividends are accrued on the ex-
dividend date. Gains or losses on investments, including those from derivative contracts, are recognized
concurrently with changes in fair value.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using average rates of exchange. At year-
end, the fair value of investments and any other assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are
translated at the year-end exchange rate. Exchange differences are included in the determination of
investment income.

VALUATION OF DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts (see Note 5) include equity and bond index swaps, interest rate swaps, forward foreign
exchange contracts, futures contracts, credit default swaps, cross-currency interest rate swaps. The value of
derivative contracts is included in the fair value of pooled investment funds. The estimated amount
receivable or payable from derivative contracts at the reporting date is determined by the following methods:

i)  Equity and bond index swaps are valued based on changes in the appropriate market based index net of
accrued floating rate interest.

i) Interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows
using current market yields and year-end exchange rates.

iii) Credit default swaps are valued based on discounted cash flows using current market yields and
calculated default probabilities.

iv) Forward foreign exchange contracts and futures contracts are based on quoted market prices.

v) Options to enter into interest rate swap contracts are valued based on discounted cash flows using
current market yields and volatility parameters which measure changes in the underlying swap.

LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities of the Reserve Fund are funded by investment income and contributions from the
participating employers. Contribution rates are set by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise, taking into

account recommendations of the SRP’s actuary.

The rate in effect at March 31, 2010 was 11.4% (2009: 11.4%) of the pensionable salaries of eligible public
service managers that were in excess of the maximum pensionable salary limit.

These amounts represent assets held by the Reserve Fund, which are available to meet future benefit
payments of the SRP over the long term.
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Note 2 (continued)

g) MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINTY

In preparing these financial statements, estimates and assumptions are used in circumstances where the
actual values are unknown. Uncertainty in the determination of the amount at which an item is recognized in
financial statements is known as measurement uncertainty. Such uncertainty exists when there is a variance
between the recognized amount and another reasonably possible amount, as there is whenever estimates

are used.

Measurement uncertainty exists in the valuation of the Fund’s private and alternative investments and real
estate. Uncertainty arises because the estimated fair values of the Fund’s private and alternative
investments and real estate may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready

market existed for these investments.

While best estimates have been used in the valuation of the Fund’s private and alternative investments and
real estate, management considers that it is possible, based on existing knowledge, that change in future
conditions in the short term could require a material change in the recognized amounts.

Differences between the estimated fair values and the amount ultimately realized are included in net
investment income in the year when the ultimate realizable values are known.

NOTE 3 INVESTMENTS

Interest bearing securities
Deposits and short-term securities (a)
Bonds and mortgages (b)

Equities and alternative investments
Public equities
Canadian public equities (c)
Global developed public equities (d)
Emerging markets equities (e)
Foreign private equities (f)
Inflation sensitive
Private real estate (g)
Private infrastructure investments (h)
Timberland (i)

Total investments

(% thousands)
2010 2009
Fair Value Fair Value
% %

437 12 $ 500 1.9
7,171 20.1 4,630 18.0
7,608 21.3 5,130 19.9
7,613 21.3 5,770 22.4

17,438 48.8 11,384 441

116 0.3 125 0.5

263 0.7 209 0.8
1,699 4.8 2,188 8.5

816 2.3 791 3.1

192 0.5 195 0.7

28,137 78.7 20,662 80.1
35,745 100.0 $ 25,792 100.0

The Reserve Fund’s investments are managed at the asset class level for purposes of evaluating the Fund’s risk
exposure and investment performance against approved benchmarks based on fair value. AIMCo invests the
Fund’s assets in accordance with the investment policies approved by the Reserve Fund’s board. The majority of
the Fund’s investments, in each asset class, are held in pooled investment funds established and administered by
AIMCo. Pool units represent the Fund’s proportionate share of securities held in the pooled fund. Pooled
investment funds have a market based unit value that is used to allocate income to participants and to value
purchases and sales of pool units. AIMCo is delegated authority to independently purchase and sell securities in
the pools and units of the pools within the ranges approved for each asset class (see Note 4).
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Note 3 (continued)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

Deposits and short-term securities include primarily interest bearing securities which have a maximum term to
maturity of less than three years. At March 31, 2010, deposits and short-term securities had a time-weighted
return of 1.0% per annum (2009: 3.0% per annum).

Interest bearing bonds and mortgages include government direct and guaranteed bonds and mortgage-
backed securities, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities, private debt issues, private mortgages, debt
related derivatives and loans. At March 31, 2010, interest bearing bonds and mortgages had an average
effective market yield of 5.0% per annum (2009: 7.2% per annum) and the following term structure based on
principal amount: under 1 year: 3% (2009: 5%); 1 to 5 years: 33% (2009: 36%); 5 to 10 years: 36% (2009:
27%); 10 to 20 years: 13% (2009: 15%); and over 20 years: 15% (2009: 17%). At March 31, 2010,
Government of Canada bonds are used as underlying securities to support the notional value of bond index
futures contracts totalling $nil (2009: $600).

The Reserve Fund’s Canadian public equity portfolio includes directly held investments in Canadian public
companies and indirect exposure to Canadian public equity markets through structured equity products using
index swaps and futures contracts linked to the Standard and Poor’s Toronto Stock Exchange (S&P/TSX)
Composite Index and S&P/TSX 60 Index. At March 31, 2010, cash and floating rate notes are used as
underlying securities to support the notional value of Canadian equity index swaps and futures contracts
totalling $2,335 (2009: $3,749).

The Reserve Fund’s global developed public equity portfolio includes directly held investments in public
companies in the U.S., Europe, Australasia and the Far East (EAFE), and Canada. The global developed
market is used to describe countries whose economies and capital markets are well established and mature.
The Fund’s indirect exposure to global developed markets and emerging markets is also attained by investing
in structured equity products using index swaps and futures contracts linked to the Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) World Total Return Index, MSCI EAFE Index, S&P 500 Index and Emerging Markets
Free Net Index. A component of the Fund’s global portfolio includes investments in North American
concentrated equities which include larger holdings in mid-size Canadian and American companies ranging
from 5% to 20% of outstanding common shares. At March 31, 2010, cash and money market securities are
used as underlying securities to support the notional value of global equity index swaps and futures contracts
totalling $5,922 (2009: $7,022).

Emerging markets equities consist of publicly traded equities in countries in the process of rapid growth and
industrialization such as Brazil, Russia, India and China. The portfolio is actively managed by external
managers with expertise in emerging markets.

Foreign private equity investments include primarily merchant banking investments. Merchant banking
transactions include expansion capital, acquisition financing, management buyouts, family succession,
turnaround financings, project financings and leverage reductions.

The private real estate portfolio was primarily held in Canada. Real estate is held through intermediary
companies, which issue common shares and participating debentures secured by a charge on real estate.
Risk is reduced by investing in properties that provide diversification by geographic location, by property type
and by tenancy. Real estate returns are positively correlated to inflation and negatively correlated to returns
from fixed income securities and equities which provide diversification from the securities market with
opportunities for high return.

Private infrastructure investments include investments that are structured to provide high returns plus inflation
sensitivity with a long investment horizon. Investments may include transportation and logistic investments
(e.g. toll roads, airports, ports and rail), power or energy investments (e.g. contracted power generation,
power transmission pipelines) and utilities (e.g. water, waste water, natural gas networks).

Timberland investments are located primarily in Canada. The Canadian timberland investment includes an
interest in timber and related land located in the Province of British Columbia.
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NOTE 4 INVESTMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

Fair values of investments are exposed to credit risk and price risk. Credit risk relates to the possibility that a loss
may occur from the failure of another party to perform according to the terms of a contract. Price risk is comprised
of currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Currency risk relates to the possibility that the investments will
change in value due to future fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk relates to the possibility that
the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market interest rates. Market risk relates to the
possibility that the investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market prices.

Actuarial liabilities of the Reserve Fund are primarily affected by the long-term real rate of return expected to be
earned on investments. In order to earn the best possible return at an acceptable level of risk, the Board has
established a long-term policy asset mix benchmark and range for the following investments:

Policy %
Benchmark Minimum Maximum
Interest bearing securities 36.5 33.0 45.0
Deposits and short-term securities 0.5 0.0 25
Bonds and mortgages 36 33 43
Equities and alternative investments 63.5
Public equities 46 38 54
Canadian 16 11 21
Global developed 30 20 40
Alternative investments 17.5 6.0 19.5
Private equities 2 0 3
Inflation sensitive
Private real estate 5 25 7.5
Private infrastructure investments 4 0 5
Timberland 2 0 3
Inflation sensitive real return bonds 4.5 3.5 55

Investment risk is reduced through asset class diversification, diversification within each asset class, quality
constraints on fixed income instruments, and restrictions on amounts exposed to countries designated as
emerging markets. Controls are in place respecting the use of derivatives (see Note 5). Forward foreign
exchange contracts may be used to manage currency exposure in connection with securities purchased in a
foreign currency (see Note 5).
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NOTE 5 DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts are financial contracts, the value of which is derived from the value of underlying assets,
indices, interest rates or currency rates. The Reserve Fund uses derivative contracts held indirectly through
pooled investment funds to enhance return, manage exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk and
for asset mix management purposes. The notional value of a derivative contract represents the amount to which a
rate or price is applied in order to calculate the exchange of cash flows.

A swap is a contractual agreement between two counter-parties to exchange a series of cash flows based on a
notional amount. An equity or bond index swap involves the exchange of a floating interest rate cash flow for one
based on the performance of a market index. For interest rate swaps, parties generally exchange fixed and
floating rate interest cash flows based on a notional amount. A credit default swap allows counter-parties to buy
and sell protection on credit risk inherent in a bond. A premium is paid, based on a notional amount from one
counter party to a second counter party in exchange for a contingent payment should a defined credit event occur
with respect to the underlying security. Cross-currency interest rate swaps are contractual obligations in which the
principal amounts of Canadian fixed-income securities denominated in foreign currency are exchanged for
Canadian currency amounts both initially and at maturity. Over the term of the cross-currency swap, counter-
parties exchange fixed to fixed and fixed to floating interest rate cash flows in the swapped currencies. There are
underlying securities supporting all swaps. Leveraging is not allowed.

Forward Foreign exchange contracts are contractual agreements to exchange specified currencies at an agreed
upon exchange rate and on an agreed settlement date in the future.

Futures contracts are agreements to receive or pay cash on an agreed settlement date based on changes in the
level of the specified index.

Swap option contracts include the right but not the obligation, to enter into an interest rate swap at a preset rate
within a specified period of time.

The following is a summary of the Reserve Fund's proportionate share of the notional amount and fair value of
derivative contracts held by pooled funds at March 31, 2010
($ thousands)
Maturity 2010 2009
Under 1to3 Over
1Year Years 3Years Notional NetFair Notional Net Fair

% Amount Value® Amount Value ®
Equity index swap contracts 99 1 - $ 8997 $ 239 $ 8671 $ 31
Forward foreign exchange contracts 100 - - 7,274 47 3,055 47)
Futures contracts 100 - - 6,526 437 3,172 493
Credit default swap contracts 29 39 32 3,985 (31) 5,385 (132)
Interest rate swap contracts 33 55 12 2,196 (82) 2,857 (168)
Swap option contracts 100 - - 1,279 (8) - -
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 36 28 36 1,134 53 2,152 (73)
Bond index swap contracts - - - - - 154 1

$ 31,391 $ 655 $25446 $ 105

The method of determining fair value of derivative contracts is described in Note 2 (e).

The notional amounts, upon which payments are based, are not indicative of the credit risk associated with
derivative contracts. Current credit exposure is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding
contracts in a favourable position (positive fair value). The Reserve Fund attempts to limit its credit exposure by
dealing with counter-parties believed to have good credit standing.
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NOTE 6 INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS)

The following is a summary of the Reserve Fund’s net investment income (loss) by type of investments:

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Gross Net Gross Net

income income income income

(loss) Expenses (loss) (loss) Expenses (loss)
Interest bearing securities $ 656 $ 9 % 647 $ (184) $ 11  $ (195)
Canadian public equities 2,372 10 2,362 (2,197) 5 (2,202)
Foreign public equities 3,586 47 3,539 (4,719) 47 (4,766)
Private real estate (121) 7 (128) 105 7 98
Private equities 11 11 0 12 9 3
Timberland (24) 2 (16) (14) 2 (16)
Private infrastructure investments 30 9 21 12 8 4
Plan investment expenses - - - - 6 (6)

$ 6520 $ 9% $ 6425 $ (6,985 $ 95 $ (7,080)

The following is a summary of the investment performance results attained by the Reserve Fund.

Return
2010 2009 6 years
Time-weighted rates of return*
Actual gain (loss) 20.0% (17.7%) 4.3%
Benchmark gain (loss)** 17.0% (13.3%) 4.7%
Value added (lost) by investment manager 3.0% (4.4%) (0.4%)

* The measure involves the calculation of the return realized by the Fund over a specified period and is a
measure of the total proceeds received from an investment dollar initially invested. Total proceeds include cash
distributions (interest and dividend payments) and capital gains and losses (realized and unrealized).

**The policy benchmark is a product of the weighted average policy sector weights and sector returns. Some of
the sector benchmark returns used in the determination of the overall policy benchmark are based on
management's best estimate which may vary significantly from the final benchmark return. Differences between

the estimated sector benchmark returns and the final benchmark returns are recorded in the period of the
change.

NOTE 7 SUPPLEMENTARY RETIREMENT PLAN FOR PUBLIC SERVICE
MANAGERS (SRP)

An actuarial valuation of the SRP was carried out as at December 31, 2008 by Aon Consulting Inc. and was then
extrapolated to December 31, 2009.

As at December 31, 2009 the SRP reported an actuarial deficit of $39.5 million (2008: deficit $7.1 million), taking
into account the amounts receivable from Reserve Fund.

NOTE 8 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures have been reclassified to be consistent with 2010 presentation.

NOTE 9 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These Financial statements were approved by the Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise.
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ALBERTA CAPITAL FINANCE AUTHORITY

Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Auditor's Report
Balance Sheets
Statements of Net Income, Comprehensive Income and Retained Earnings

Statements of Cash Flow

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Schedule of Debt
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of the Alberta Capital Finance Authority

| have audited the balance sheets of the Alberta Capital Finance Authority as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the
statements of net income, comprehensive income and retained earnings and cash flow for the years ended then. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’'s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Authority as at
December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]

Edmonton, Alberta Auditor General

March 10, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Balance Sheets

As at December 31

($ thousands)
2009 2008
Assets:
Cash (Note 4) $ 13,438 $ 6,328
Loans to local authorities (Note 5) 8,347,277 7,075,010
Derivatives in favourable position (Note7) 248,935 509,898
$ 8,609,650 $ 7,591,236
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 672 $ 870
Debt (Note 6) 8,177,483 6,924,812
Derivatives in unfavourable position (Note 7) 260,412 708,692
8,438,567 7,634,374
Commitments (Note 12)
Shareholders' equity
Share capital (Note 9)
Issued and fully paid:
6,345 shares (2008 - 6,343 shares) 64 64
Retained earnings (deficit) 171,019 (43,202)
171,083 (43,138)
$ 8,609,650 $ 7,591,236
The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements
L.R. Gordon T. S. Stroich, FCA

Chair of the Board President
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Statements of Net Income, Comprehensive Income
and Retained Earnings

For the Years Ended December 31

($ thousands)
Budget 2009 2008
(Note 13)
Interest Income:

Loans $ 292,911 $ 189,699 $ 293,823

Amortization of loan discounts 567 - -

Investments (Note 4) 700 660 1,807

294,178 190,359 295,630
Interest Expense:

Long-term debt 259,125 150,088 263,472

Short-term debt - 15,454 13,016

Commission fees 19,950 1,405 -

Amortization of net discounts on debt 22,078 - -

301,153 166,947 276,488
Net interest income (6,975) 23,412 19,142
Other Income:

Loan prepayment fees - 224 76
Net interest income (loss) and other income (6,975) 23,636 19,218
Non-Interest Expense:

Administration and office expenses (Note 10) 789 845 822
Income before unrealized gains (losses) (7,764) 22,791 18,396

Unrealized (loss) gain on loans - (55,031) 113,101

Unrealized gain (loss) on debt - 39,495 (78,437)

Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives - 206,966 (178,088)

Total unrealized gain (loss) - 191,430 (143,424)
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) (7,764) 214,221 (125,028)
Retained earnings (deficit), beginning of year 36,823 (43,202) 81,826
Retained earnings (deficit), end of year $ 29,059 $ 171,019 $ (43,202)

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flow

Operating Activities:

Interest received

Investment interest

Loan prepayment fees
Commission fees

Administration and office expenses
Interest paid

Cash flows from operating activities

Investing Activities:
Loan repayments
New loans issued

Cash flows used in investing activities

Financing Activities:
Debt issues
Debt redemptions

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.
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For the Years Ended December 31

($ thousands)

2009 2008

185,311 $ 287,797

660 1,807
224 76
(1,405) -
(928) (684)
(146,991) (270,250)
36,871 18,746
640,379 432,514
(1,968,871) (1,384,807)
(1,328,492) (952,293)
6,895,208 2,624,881
(5,596,477) (1,701,278)
1,298,731 923,603
7,110 (9,944)
6,328 16,272
13,438  $ 6,328
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Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2009, with comparative figures for 2008
(all amounts presented in thousands of dollars, except share amounts)

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY

The Alberta Capital Finance Authority (ACFA) operates under the authority of the Alberta Capital Finance Authority
Act, Chapter A-14.5, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, as amended. Under the Act, ACFA is restricted to making
loans only to its shareholders.

NOTE 2 ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES

a)

180

CREDIT RISK AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Effective January 1, 2009, ACFA adopted Emerging Issues Committee, Credit Risk and the Fair Value of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (EIC-173). This requires that ACFA’s own credit risk (for financial
liabilities) and the credit risk of the counterparty (for financial assets) should be taken into account in determining
the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including derivative instruments. EIC-173 was adopted
retrospectively without restatement of prior years and did not have a material impact on the financial statements.

ACFA also adopted the changes made by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) to Section
3862, Financial instruments - disclosures whereby an entity shall classify and disclose fair value measurements
using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair
value hierarchy shall have the following levels:

Level 1 - valuation based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 - valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs exist. A financial
instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a significant input has been considered in
measuring fair value. The required disclosures are provided in Note 11(d).

Impairment of Financial Assets

On August 20, 2009, the CICA amended Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments - Recognition and
Measurement. The amendments apply to annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or
after November 1, 2008 with retroactive application to the beginning of the fiscal year. ACFA adopted the
amendments effective January 1, 2009.

The definition of the “loans and receivables” financial asset category, which can be measured at cost or
amortized cost calculated using the effective interest rate method, has been modified. As a result, debt
securities that are not quoted in an active market can be classified as loans and receivables, and impairment is
measured using the incurred credit loss model of Section 3025, Impaired Loans. Loans and receivables that an
entity intends to sell immediately or in the near term must be classified as held-for-trading, and loans and
receivables for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration, must be classified as available-for-sale.

The adoption of the amendments to Section 3855 had no impact on the financial statements.
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Note 2 (continued)

b)

FUTURE CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In February 2008, the CICA’s Accounting Standard Board confirmed that Canadian public companies will have to
adopt International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) effective for the fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1, 2011. ACFA was considering adopting these standards.

In October 2009, the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (PSAB) announced that government business
enterprises are required to adopt IFRS and that the definition of government business-type organizations would
cease to exist. Such organizations would have a choice of adopting either IFRS or Public Sector Accounting
Standards. In January 2010, PSAB issued an exposure draft that deals with First-time Adoption of Public Sector
Accounting Standards by Government Organizations which would be effective for fiscal periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2011. ACFA has determined that it does not meet the definition of a government business
enterprise and currently plans to adopt the PSAB accounting standards for its fiscal year beginning

January 1, 2011. The impact of the transition has not yet been determined.

NOTE 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PRACTISES

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and include the following significant accounting policies.

a)

b)

c)

MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses
during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Measurement uncertainty exists in the
collectability of the loans to local authorities and the estimate of fair value of financial instruments.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income is composed of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive
income may include any unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities and changes in the fair
market value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges. Currently ACFA has no other
comprehensive income.

VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All financial instruments which include loans and debt have been classified as held for trading and are measured
at fair value at the settlement date.

i) Loans

The fair value of loans is calculated using future interest and principal cash flows for all loans using a
discount factor curve to determine the present value of each cash flow.

The discount factor curve is calculated using the ACFA’s estimated market borrowing rates as a base and
adding a premium of 12 basis points to this curve. ACFA'’s borrowing rates are used as a base as it is
assumed based on payment history and security covenants in place, that the loan portfolio has credit risk
similar to that of ACFA. A premium of 12 basis points is added to these rates to reflect that financial
securities with irregular payments would require a higher rate if sold in the market. The 12 basis points
premium is based on historical averages and is not adjusted to reflect short-term changes in market
conditions.
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Note 3 (continued)
ii) Debt

The fair value of debt is calculated using market rates for ACFA debt based on credit spread indications for
new debt issues received from ACFA’s borrowing syndicate managers and are determined by taking
Government of Canada bond interest rates at the close of business on the last business day of the period
and adding the indicative new issue spread to these rates.

Bonds (i.e. bullets with no options with the entire principal amount paid at maturity) are valued by
interpolating the yield to maturity for each individual bond from the calculated indicative borrowing rates.
This yield to maturity is used to calculate the market value, including accrued interest, for each bullet bond
using common bond pricing methodology.

Structured notes, including step up notes, accrual notes and floating rate notes are valued using formulas
that require a discount factor curve, which is computed from the indicative borrowing rates and inputs on
option volatility as estimated in the swap market.

iii) Derivatives

ACFA has chosen not to designate its interest rate swaps as hedges. Therefore hedge accounting is not
applied and derivatives are carried on the Balance Sheets at fair value and changes in fair value are
recorded in income.

Fair values are determined using models based on third party valuation software which takes into account
current market and contractual prices of the underlying instruments, as well as time value and yield curve or
volatility factors underlying the positions. Fair values have been segregated between those contracts which
are in a favourable position (positive fair value) and those contracts which are in an unfavourable position
(negative fair value) and are recorded as derivative assets and derivative liabilities respectively. Changes in
the fair value of derivative instruments are recorded in income.

NOTE 4 CASH

Cash is on deposit in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund (Fund) of the Province of Alberta and is
managed with the objective of providing competitive interest income to depositors while maintaining appropriate
security and liquidity of depositors’ capital. The portfolio is comprised of short-term and mid-term fixed-income
securities with a maximum term-to-maturity of three years. As at December 31, 2009, securities held by the Fund
have a time-weighted return of 1.39% per annum (December 31, 2008 - 3.53% per annum).

NOTE 5 LOANS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES

($ thousands)
2009 2008
Fair Value $ 8,347,277 $ 7,075,010
Contractual principal 7,918,673 6,590,181
Unamortized discount - (567)
Accrued interest receivable 94,738 95,932

$ 8013411 $ 6,685,546

The fair value of loans is calculated using future interest and principal cash flows for all loans using a discount curve
to determine the present value (Note 2 c(i)). The estimated sensitivity of the fair value of loans to a change in the
discount factor of one (1) basis point is $5,611 (2008 - $4,547).
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Note 5 (continued)

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to borrowers failing to meet their obligations to ACFA. Historically, ACFA has not
needed to record any provisions or allowances regarding credit losses nor has it suffered any such losses. ACFA
has established policies which provide for the approval and monitoring of all lending activity. These policies include
establishing clear lines of authority for decision making and for accountability.

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2009 all loans were performing in accordance with related terms and
conditions and none were in arrears, nor were any loans considered impaired. Since ACFA considers that there has
been no change in the credit quality of its borrowers, the change to fair value of loans is based only on the change in
the market interest rate.

NOTE 6 DEBT (Schedule 1)
($ thousands)
2009 2008
Fair Value $ 8,177,483 $ 6,924,812
Contractual principal 7,899,846 6,610,928
Unamortized discount (2,129) (11,823)
Accrued interest payable 50,045 56,608

$ 7,947,762 $ 6,655,713

The fair value of debt is calculated using market rates at the close of business on the last business day of the year
and adding the indicative new issue spreads to these rates. The determination of fair value also considers the impact
of a change in ACFA’s credit worthiness on the fair value of its debt. ACFA’s credit rating issued by the major rating
agencies together with the Province of Alberta, guarantor of its debt, remains at the same level as for the previous
year and therefore has no impact on its fair value of debt. The estimated sensitivity of he fair value of debt to a
change of one (1) basis point the rate used to calculate fair value is $3,644 (2008 - $3,489).

The debt of ACFA is fully guaranteed by the Province of Alberta.

Debt with a fair value of $177,879 (contractual principal - $165,000) (2008: fair value - $319,967; contractual principal
- $309,259) is comprised of a combination of various issues of step-up and accrual notes whereby ACFA has the
option of extending or calling the debt, at predetermined extension or call dates. In the event that ACFA exercises its
option to call or not extend the debt at the predetermined extension or call dates, the debt is redeemed at the
contractual principal amount with no gain or loss to ACFA. In the event ACFA does not exercise its option to call or
redeem the debt at the predetermined extension or call dates, the contractual principal amount is due at the final
maturity date (Schedule 1).

For the next five years contractual debt redemption requirements, with the assumption that the step-up and accrual
notes are redeemed at the first extendible date and all other debt at the maturity date, are as follows:

Debt Redemption

2010 $1,863,000
2011 997,200
2012 1,050,000
2013 300,000
2014 656,500

$4,863,700
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NOTE 7 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

To minimize its interest rate risk on loans and debt issued after January 1, 2004, interest rate swaps are used to
swap fixed rate interest on loans and debt to floating rate so that floating rates paid and received incorporate changes
in the market rates at approximately the same time.

The notional amounts of interest rate swaps represent the amount to which the fixed and floating rates are applied in
order to calculate the exchange of cash flows. The notional amounts are not recorded in the Balance Sheets. They

represent the volume of outstanding transactions and do not represent the potential gain or loss associated with the
market risk or credit risk of such instruments.

Interest rate swaps with a notional value of $165,000 (2008 - $309,259) related to the step-up and accrual notes have
the option which allows the counterparty to extend or call the swap at predetermined extension or call dates. If the
counterparty exercises their option to call or redeem the interest rate swap at the predetermined extension or call

date, ACFA will in turn exercise their option to call or redeem the corresponding debt instrument and there will be no
gain or loss to ACFA.

The notional amounts of interest rate swaps are summarized as follows:

As at December 31 Within 1to2 3to5 6to 10 Over 10
1 Year Years Years Years Years Total

Maturities

Interest rate swaps -

2009 $ 80,435 $ 79,627 $ 513,461 $ 2,134,207 $ 6,022,923 $ 8,830,653
Interest rate swaps -
2008 $ 6,478 $ 38,640 $ 284,786 $ 1,997,962 $ 4,874,361 $ 7,202,227

The cost of replacing the remaining cash flows of the interest rate swaps at the prevailing prices and market rates are
summarized as follows:

As at December 31

($ thousands)
Current Replacement Cost
Contracts in Contracts in
Notional Net Favourable Unfavourable
Outstanding Fair Value Position Position
Interest rate swaps - 2009 $ 8,830,653 $ (11,477) % 248935 $ (260,412)
Interest rate swaps - 2008 $ 7,202,227  $ (198,794) $ 509,898 $ (708,692)

The contractual amount of accrued interest receivable and payable on interest rate swaps as at December 31 are as
follows:

($ thousands)
2009 2008
Accrued interest receivable $16,078 $10,499
Accrued interest payable $37,710 $12,481
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Note 7 (continued)

The fair value of interest rate swaps has been calculated using valuation methodologies that take into account current
market and contractual prices of the underlying instruments, as well as time value and yield curve or volatility factors
underlying the positions. The determination of fair value also considers the impact of the counterparty’s credit
worthiness on the fair value of derivatives. ACFA has determined that the current credit worthiness of ACFA’s
counterparties has no material impact on the determination of the fair value of its derivatives. The estimated
sensitivity of the fair value of derivatives in a favourable or unfavourable position to a change in the rate of one (1)
basis point is $541 and $3,078 respectively.

Current credit exposure is limited to the amount of loss that ACFA would suffer if every counterparty to which ACFA
was exposed were to default at once and is represented by the current replacement cost of all outstanding contracts
in a favourable position. ACFA is part of the exposure limit established for the Province of Alberta and actively
monitors its exposure and minimizes credit risk by only dealing with counterparties believed to have a good credit
standing (A+ or greater).

Under the Province of Alberta’s master agreement with counterparties, ACFA can in the event of a counterparty
default, net its favourable and unfavourable positions with a counterparty doing business only with ACFA. In addition,
under the agreement, one Credit Support Annex (CSA) has been signed with a counterparty which will require ACFA
or the counterparty to provide collateral based on established thresholds which further enhances ACFA'’s credit
position. As at December 31, 2009 neither ACFA nor the counterparty is required to post collateral under the CSA.

Derivative assets and liabilities are presented gross on the Balance Sheets. Although the amounts do not qualify for
off set, derivative instruments in a favourable position of $203,112 at December 31, 2009 are subject to master
netting arrangements which reduces ACFA'’s credit exposure by an equivalent amount.

NOTE 8 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

ACFA is an agent of the Province of Alberta and a crown corporation whose debt is fully guaranteed by the Province
of Alberta which provides ACFA access to capital markets to obtain low cost debt financing.

The business of ACFA is to provide its shareholders with flexible financing for capital projects and to manage its
assets and liabilities and business affairs in such a manner so as to enhance its ability to effectively carry out its
activities in an economical and effective manner.

ACFA's objective when managing capital, designated as retained earnings, is to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern, to continue to benefit its shareholders by providing loans at the lowest possible cost and operate on a
breakeven basis while maintaining positive retained earnings before adjustments for fair value. Capital management
objective, policies and procedures are unchanged since the preceding year.

As almost all loans, debt and interest rate swaps are held to maturity or to the earliest call date and operate in
accordance with the terms of the contract, no gains or losses will be realized over the life of the instrument. As such,
ACFA's retained earning of $171,019 at December 31, 2009 (2008 — ($43,202)), includes retained earnings of
$56,742 (2008 - $33,265) determined before the effect of the accumulated unrealized fair value adjustments, and
retained earnings of $114,277 (2008 — ($76,467)), related to accumulated unrealized fair value adjustments.
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NOTE 9 SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of share capital valued at $10.00 per share with voting rights, established in legislation, which relate only
to the election of a director representing the shareholders are as follows:

Number of Shares

Total

Issued and Dollar
Class Restricted to Authorized Fully Paid Amount
Province of Alberta 4,500 4,500 $ 45,000

B Municipal authorities, airport

and health authorities 1,000 883 8,830
C Cities 750 585 5,850
Towns and villages 750 294 2,940
E Educational authorities 500 83 830
2009 7,500 6,345 $ 63,450
2008 7,500 6,343 $ 63,450

During the year, three Class B shares were issued and one Class D share was cancelled.

NOTE 10 DIRECTORS’ AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FEES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Directors’ and Audit Committee fees paid by ACFA are as follows:

($ thousands)
2009 2008
Number of Number of
Individuals Total Individuals Total
Board/Audit Committee Chairs 2 $11 2 $9
Board/Audit Committee members 8 $ 26 8 $23

There are two additional Board members who are employees of the Province of Alberta and do not receive
compensation from ACFA.

ACFA has advanced loans to local authorities under the MEfirst! Municipal Energy Efficiency Assistance Program
(the "Program") on behalf of Alberta Municipal Affairs and Alberta Environment. Under the Program, principal was
advanced to qualifying municipalities by ACFA and repayments of principal are made by the municipality; however,
the interest is paid by the Province of Alberta. The Program has been discontinued but the loans will continue until
they are paid out. Included in the balance of loans to local authorities at December 31, 2009 is principal of $10,511
(2008 - $17,513), upon which, interest of $560 (2008 - $831) has been recorded in interest income from loans.

ACFA has no employees. Included in administration and office expenses of $845 (2008 - $822) is the amount of

$488 (2008 - $440) that was paid to the controlling shareholder, the Province of Alberta for services at prices
measured at the exchange amount, which approximate market.
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NOTE 11  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In accordance with ACFA’s Derivative Policy, ACFA manages its interest rate risk by matching its debt maturity profile
to the forecast cash flows and their effect on ACFA's equity. For most loans made after January 1, 2004, ACFA uses
interest rate swaps to swap fixed rate loan interest to floating, and swaps corresponding debt from fixed rate to
floating and uses forward rate agreements to minimize the exposure related to the mismatch of reset dates of the
loan and debt swaps.

ACFA’s management is responsible for monitoring performance and reporting to the Board of Directors and
recommending changes to the Derivative Policy. The Board of Directors is responsible for governance and strategic
direction through its annual review and approval of the policy.

a) CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is related to the possibility that the borrower or the counterparty to a financial instrument cannot fulfill
its contractual obligation to ACFA.

Credit risk from borrowers is fully explained in Note 5 and ACFA does not believe that it has any credit exposure
on loans.

Credit exposure with derivative counterparties is further explained in Note 7.

b) INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk refers to the potential impact of changes in interest rates on ACFA's earnings when maturities of
its interest rate sensitive assets are not matched with the maturities of its interest rate sensitive debt. The
following table summarizes the contractual principal amounts of ACFA's interest sensitive assets and liabilities,
with the assumption that the step-up and accrual notes are redeemed at the first extendible date and all other
debt at the maturity date, based on the earlier of repricing or principal repayments:

As at December 31 ($ thousands)

Within 1to2 3to5 61010 Over 10 2009 2008
Maturities 1Year Years Years Years Years Total Total
Assets
Cash $ 13438 % - % - % - % - 0% 13438 $ 6,328
Accrued Interest Receivable 110,839 - - - - 110,839 106,451
Loans to Local Authorities 499,274 490,769 1,658,378 1,987,146 3,283,106 7,918,673 6,590,181
Effective Rate 5.2% 5.1% 5.1% 51% 5.3% 5.2% 5.4%
Total 623,551 490,769 1,658,378 1,987,146 3,283,106 8,042,950 6,702,960
Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable $ 87,755 $ -8 - % - $ - $ 87,555 $ 69,089
Debt 3,667,200 290,000 906,500 1,600,000 1,436,146 7,899,846 6,610,928
Effective Rate 4.3% 5.1% 5.1% 5.3% 5.5% 5.1% 5.3%
Total 3,754,955 290,000 906,500 1,600,000 1,436,146 7,987,601 $ 6,680,017
Cumulative Gap 2009 $ (3,131,404) $ 200,769 $ 751,878 $ 387,146 $ 1846960 $ 55349 $ 22,943
Cumulative Gap 2008 $ (1,663256) $ 244570 $ 206,957 $ 90,659 $ 1,144,013 ' $ 22943 % 13,259

(i) Includes $704,200, $550,000 of floating rate notes with interest rates of Canadian Deposit Offered Rate (CDOR)
+2 basis points and CDOR + 32 and 39 points respectively.
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Note 11 (continued)

188

Interest rate swaps of pay fixed/receive floating and receive fixed/pay floating in the notional amounts of
$6,115,703 and $2,714,950 respectively (2008 - $4,500,448 and $2,701,779 respectively) have not been
included in the above table.

The interest rate sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rate
fluctuations for both interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheets date. Interest rate
sensitive assets at December 31, 2009 consist of cash on hand, accrued interest receivable and loans which
have been swapped from fixed to floating. Interest rate sensitive liabilities at December 31, 2009 consists of
accrued interest payable, debt which has been swapped from fixed to floating, debt due within one year and
floating rate debt.

The potential impact of an immediate and sustained increase of a 50 basis points in interest rates with all other
variables held constant throughout the year would have the following impact on interest income and interest
expense from interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities respectively:

2009 2008
Assets 6,317,688 X .5%= $ 31,588 4771678 X.5%= $ 23,858
Liabilities 6,055,906 X .5%= $ 30,279 4775261 X.5%= $ 23,876
Net interest income (loss) $ 1,309 $ (18)

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that ACFA will not have sufficient cash to meet its obligations as they become due and
also meet the loan requirements of our local authorities.

ACFA manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows on a daily basis. Surplus funds are invested in
short-term investments or the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund. When required, ACFA raises funds
under a five-year Promissory Note Program, by direct borrowing in the Canadian or European market or by
renewing borrowing from the Canada Pension Plan Investment Board. The maturities of ACFA’s contractual
cash flows from financial liabilities at December 31, 2009 are as follows:

2013 and
Financial Liabilities 2010 2011 2012 beyond
Accounts payable $ 672 $ - $ - $ -
Debt - contractual repayments of principal @ 1,738,000 954,200 1,050,000 4,157,646
Debt - contractual payments of interest 259,571 208,404 195,035 1,296,002
Derivatives in unfavourable position - pay fixed,
receive floating interest rate swaps 230,313 220,823 215,882 1,981,319
Commitments 27,078 54 54 27
Total $ 2255634 $ 1383481 $ 1,460,971 $ 7,434,994
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Note 11 (continued)

Although disclosure is only required of the liquidity analysis for all financial liabilities, management has
determined that the following liquidity analysis of financial assets is necessary to evaluate the nature and extent
of the liquidity risk:

2013 and
Financial Assets 2010 2011 2012 beyond
Loans to local authorities - contractual collection of principal (2) $ 499,274 $ 490,768 $ 547,618 $ 6,381,013
Loans to local authorities - contractual collection of interest 2 396,319 367,316 340,948 2,684,704
Derivatives in favourable position - receive fixed, pay floating
interest rate swaps 2 103,026 102,985 101,174 1,055,004
Total $ 998,619 $ 961,069 $ 989,740 $ 10,120,721

(1) Cash flows for debt contractual repayment of principal are determined with the assumption that the step-up and
accrual notes will not be redeemed until maturity.

(2) The amounts presented represent the contractual collection of principal and interest and assume no credit
default on behalf of the counterparty nor the local authorities.

Where the amount of interest payable is not fixed, as is the case for issued debt that has a variable interest rate
or the floating leg of an interest rate swap, the amounts included in the above table have been determined by
reference to the conditions existing at the Balance Sheets date.

The interest and principal payments as well as other payments for derivative financial instruments are relevant
for the presentation of the maturities of the cash flow. Future cash flows are not discounted.

d) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the Balance Sheets are classified using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

Level 1 - valuation based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 - valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.
The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs exist. A financial

instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a significant input has been considered in
measuring fair value.
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Note 11 (continued)

The following table presents the financial instruments recorded at fair value in the Balance Sheets, classified
using the fair value hierarchy described above:

Total financial

assets and
financial liabilities
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 at fair value
Financial assets

Cash $ 13,438 $ - $ - $ 13,438
Loans to local authorities - 8,347,277 - $ 8,347,277
Derivatives in favourable position - 248,935 - $ 248,935
Total financial assets $ 13,438 $ 8,596,212 $ - $ 8,609,650

Financial liabilities
Debt $ - $ 8,177,483 $ - $ 8,177,483
Derivatives in unfavourable position - 260,412 - $ 260,412
Total financial liabilities $ - $ 8,437,895 $ - $ 8,437,895

During this year, there has been no significant transfer of amounts between Level 1 and Level 2.

NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS

a)

b)

LEASE

ACFA has obligations under an operating lease for the rental of premises, expiring in July 2013 at an annual
minimum as follows:

2010 $53
2011 $54
2012 $54
2013 $27

LOAN

In the normal course of business, ACFA enters into loan commitments to provide customers with sources of
credit.

Commitments to extend credit represent undertakings to make credit available in the form of loans for specific
amounts and maturities, subject to certain conditions and are recently authorized loans not yet drawn down.

These loan arrangements are subject to ACFA's normal credit standards and collateral is obtained where
appropriate. The loan amounts represent the maximum credit risk exposure to ACFA should the loans be fully
drawn. The loan commitments represent future cash requirements and as at December 31 were:

2009 2008
Loan commitments as at December 31 $ 27,025 $ 13,796

NOTE 13 BUDGET

The 2009 budget was approved by the Board of Directors on November 27, 2008 and is unaudited. For purposes of
budget preparation, financial instruments are reflected at amortized cost and fair values are not included.
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SCHEDULE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

SCHEDULE OF DEBT Schedule 1
As at December 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars) First Contractual
Extendible Interest Principal

Maturity Date Date Rate Outstanding Fair Value
Canada Pension Plan Investment Fund/

CPP Investment Board
Oct 01, 2020 6.2800 $222,367 $261,518
Jun 01, 2022 6.0600 100,000 114,852
Apr 05, 2023 5.8900 50,000 57,006
Dec 01, 2023 5.5000 150,000 163,389
Dec 03, 2024 5.1800 78,000 81,846
Nov 03, 2026 4.4900 200,000 194,377
Nov 03, 2031 4.5000 125,396 120,267
Nov 02, 2032 4.8300 190,383 191,075
Total 1,116,146 1,184,330
Public
Jan 05, 2010 0.2310 100,000 99,996
Jan 06, 2010 0.2300 100,000 99,995
Jan 08, 2010 0.2300 125,000 124,993
Jan 12, 2010 0.2399 80,000 79,993
Jan 20, 2010 0.3295 50,000 49,992
Jan 28, 2010 1.1660 60,000 59,989
Feb 05, 2010 0.2410 100,000 99,972
Feb 09, 2010 0.3790 75,000 74,977
Feb 11, 2010 0.2400 100,000 99,968
Feb 16, 2010 0.2400 50,000 49,982
Feb 18, 2010 0.2430 78,000 77,970
Feb 24, 2010 0.3190 80,000 79,966
Mar 09, 2010 0.6460 50,000 49,974
Apr 21, 2010 0.5371 100,000 99,904
Apr 26, 2010 0.2940 95,000 94,901
May 05, 2010 0.3390 50,000 49,942
May 25, 2010 0.3190 90,000 89,864
Jun 07, 2010 0.6950 50,000 49,912
Jun 07, 2010 0.6980 30,000 29,948
Aug 05, 2010 0.7050 75,000 74,773
Mar 01, 2010 4.5500 50,000 51,120
Aug 20, 2010 4.5000 150,000 156,407
Sep 01, 2011 5.7000 200,000 218,592
Dec 08, 2011 0.4643 704,200 700,523 (iii)
Dec 15, 2011 4.4350 50,000 52,984
Jun 01, 2012 5.8500 500,000 549,942
Jun 15, 2012 0.7643 550,000 551,387 (iii)
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SCHEDULE OF DEBT (CONTINUED)

Public
Dec
Jul
Jul
Nov
Jun
Sep
Jun
Oct
Jun
Jun
Oct
Oct
Dec
Apr
Dec
Jun
Jul
Dec
Oct
Dec
Dec
Dec

Total

02,
02,
02,
19,
01,
15,
15,
28,
15,
01,
21,
28,
22,
18,
01,
15,
06,
15,
11,
15,
15,
15,

2013
2014
2014
2014
2015
2015
2016
2016
2017
2018
2019
2019
2019
2022
2023
2025
2025
2025
2030
2030
2030
2030

Total debt 2009

Total debt 2008

@)

(ii)

(iii)

192

Nov 19,

Sep 15,

Oct 28,

Oct 21,
Oct 28,
Dec 22,
Apr 18,

Jun 15,
Jan 06,

Oct 11,
Jun 15,
Dec 15,
Jun 15,

2011

2011

2010

2010
2010
2011
2010

2010
2010

2010
2010
2010
2010

5.0000
3.0940
0.8343
2.0000
4.9000
2.2500
4.3500
2.7500
4.6500
5.1500
2.8000
2.8500
3.0500
5.0000
5.1000
5.1500
5.0200
4.4500
5.1600
5.1600
5.4100
5.4000

Schedule 1
300,000 327,016
106,500 107,405
550,000 554,676 (iii)
17,000 16,818 (i)
200,000 217,341
13,000 12,786 (i)
600,000 629,990
10,000 9,821 (i)
700,000 741,503
100,000 108,764
12,000 11,284 (i)
10,000 9,395 (i)
10,000 9,417 (i)
12,000 13,240 (ii)
20,000 20,966
20,000 24,116 (i)
16,000 18,874 (ii)
300,000 289,647
15,000 16,900 (ii)
10,000 11,467 (ii)
10,000 11,896 (ii)
10,000 11,865 (ii)
6,783,700 6,993,153
$7,899,846 $8,177,483
$6,610,928 $6,924,812

These are step-up notes extendible at the ACFA's option which pay interest periodically at a predetermined
rate with principal paid on termination.

These are accrual notes extendible or callable at the ACFA's option which accrue interest compounded semi-
annually or annually, and pay interest and principal on termination

These are floating rate notes which pay interest quarterly at Canadian Deposit Offered Rate plus
predetermined spreads with principal paid on terminations.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Schedule to Financial Statements
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2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report 193



ALBERTA INSURANCE COUNCIL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2010

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Alberta Insurance Council

We have audited the statements of financial position of Alberta Insurance Council as at December 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company as at

December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Edmonton, Alberta Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP
April 15, 2010 Chartered Accountants
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Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash (Note 3)
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Capital assets (Note 4)

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Current portion of deferred tenant inducement (Note 5)
Deferred license and assessment fee revenue

Deferred tenant inducement (Note 5)

Commitments and contingent liability (Note 8)

NET ASSETS

Net assets
Invested in property and equipment internally resticted)
Unrestricted

Approved by the Audit Committee

Art Bonertz Mel Niebrugge
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2009 2008
$ 5,997,290 5,875,588
33,888 42,860
60,148 82,080
6,091,326 6,000,528
634,138 736,105
$ 6,725,464 6,736,633
$ 220,393 321,973
34,890 34,890
1,456,505 1,447,974
1,711,788 1,804,837
86,858 121,748
1,798,646 1,926,585
634,138 736,105
4,292,680 4,073,943
4,926,818 4,810,048
$ 6,725,464 6,736,633
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008

$
Invested
in property
and Total Total
equipment Unrestricted 2009 2008
Balance - Beginning of year 736,105 4,073,943 4,810,048 4,249,445
Excess of revenue over expenditures (212,689) 329,459 116,770 560,603
Investment in property and 110,722 (110,722) - -
equipment
Balance - End of year 634,138 4,292,680 4,926,818 4,810,048
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008
$
Budget
2009 2009 2008
(Unaudited)
Revenue
License, assessment, examination and
continuing education fees $ 4,375,000 $ 4,440,672 $ 4,392,918
Interest and other 150,000 75,696 195,886
4,525,000 4,516,368 4,588,804
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits (Schedule 1) 2,550,000 2,499,122 2,201,515
Occupancy and premises 495,000 430,821 443,780
Councils, Boards and Committees (Note 6) 370,000 355,217 374,356
Communications (Note 10) 247,000 253,972 252,342
Professional fees 180,000 234,682 172,221
Office and administration 205,000 219,068 150,928
Amortization 225,000 212,689 224,521
Software and computer 100,000 98,278 81,355
Travel 135,000 95,749 127,183
Total expenditures for the year 4,507,000 4,399,598 4,028,201
Excess of revenue over expenditures $ 18,000 $ 116,770 $ 560,603
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Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Excess of revenue over expenditures
Items not affecting cash
Amortization of capital assets
Amortization of deferred tenant inducement
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Net changes in non-cash working capital items
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase in deferred license and assesment fee revenue

Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds on sales of capital assets

Increase in cash
Cash - Beginning of year

Cash - End of year
Supplementary information
Interest received
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2009 2008
$ 116,770 $ 560,603
212,689 224,521
(34,890) (34,890)
- 360
294,569 750,594
8,972 59,006
21,932 (21,856)
(101,580) 51,414
8,531 163,647
232,424 1,002,805
(110,722) (160,864)
- 200
(110,722) (160,664)
121,702 842,141
5,875,588 5,033,447
$ 5,997,290 $ 5,875,588
$ 84,489 $ 200,530
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Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The Alberta Insurance Council (the "Council") operates under the authority of the Insurance Act, Chapter 1-3,
Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, as amended. As a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax Act, the
Council is not subject to either federal or provincial income taxes.

The Council provides administration services to the Life Insurance, General Insurance and Insurance Adjusters
Councils. These Councils are responsible for enforcing the provisions of the Insurance Act and Regulations for their
segments of the insurance industry.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Canada. Because the precise determination of many assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are
dependent on future events, the preparation of financial statements for a period necessarily includes the use of
estimates and approximations which have been made using careful judgment. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. These financial statements have, in management's opinion, been properly prepared within reasonable
limits of materiality and within the framework of the accounting policies summarized below.

Revenue Recognition

License and assessment fees are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the license and
assessment. Examination fees are recognized at the time the related exam is held. Continuing Education ("CE")
course approval fees are recognized upon course submission. CE provider fees are recognized on a calendar year
basis. License and assessment fees received but not yet recognized as revenue are recorded as deferred license
and assessment fee revenue.

Capital Assets and Amortization

Capital assets consisting of property, equipment and computer software is recorded at cost and is amortized over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Leasehold improvements Term of the lease
Furniture and office equipment 3-10years
Computer equipment 3 years
Computer software 3 years
Telephone equipment 5 years

Examination Development Costs
Costs of development of examination questions are expensed as incurred.
Deferred Tenant Inducement

Tenant inducement associated with leased premises is amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
and recognized as a reduction of rent recorded in occupancy costs.

Contributed Services

The work of the Council is dependent on the voluntary services of members. The value of donated services is not
recognized in these financial statements.
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Note 2 (continued)
Financial instruments

The Council’s financial assets include cash and accounts receivable. Cash is classified as held-for-trading and is
recorded at fair value with realized and unrealized gains and losses reported in the statement of operations for the
period in which they arise. Accounts receivable is classified as loans and receivables and is accounted for at
amortized cost using the effective rate method. Loans and receivables are initially recorded at fair value.

The Council’s financial liabilities include accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified as
other liabilities and are accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value.

The Council has determined that it does not have any derivatives and has not entered into any hedge transactions.

The Council applies Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Section 3861 — Financial Instruments
Disclosure and Presentation in place of the optional standards CICA 3862 - Financial Instruments — Disclosures and
CICA 3863 — Financial Instruments — Presentation, effective for financial years beginning on or after October 31,
2007.

Changes in accounting policies
a) Not-for-profit organizations

Effective January 1, 2009, the Council adopted the following amendments to existing guidelines which are
relevant to not-for-profit organizations from the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Handbook
(“CICA Handbook”)

CICA 4400 - Financial Statement Presentation by not-for-profit organizations

CICA 4430 — Capital Assets held by not-for-profit organizations

CICA 4460 — Disclosure of Related Party transactions by not-for-profit organizations

CICA 4470 — Disclosure of Allocated Expenses by not-for-profit organizations

CICA 1540 — Cash Flow Statements

Emerging Issues Committee “EIC” 123 — Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus Net as an Agent

Adoption of these accounting standards did not have an impact on the Council’s financial position or reported
results

b) Credit risk and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

In January 2009, the CICA issued EIC-173 — Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, which requires the Council to consider its own credit risk as well as the credit risk of its counterparty
when determining the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, including derivative instruments. The
accounting treatments provided in EIC-173 have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements
and as required have been applied prospectively without restatement of prior periods. The adoption of this
standard did not have an impact on the valuation of financial assets or liabilities.

c) Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not yet adopted
Effective January 1, 2010, the Council will be required to adopt the amendment to CICA 1506 — Accounting
Changes which excludes from its scope changes in accounting policies upon the complete replacement of an

entity’s primary basis of accounting. Adoption of this amendment to the standard is not expected to have a
material impact on the Council’s financial statements.

NOTE 3 CASH
Included in cash is an amount of $5,622,801 (2008: $5,422,009) invested in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust

Fund (the "CCITF"). The CCITF is managed by the Government of Alberta with the objective of providing competitive
interest income to depositors while maintaining maximum security and liquidity of depositors' capital.
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NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS

$
2009 2008
Accumulated

Cost amortization Net Net
Leasehold improvements $ 614,669 $ 313,720 $ 300,949 $ 387,129
Furniture and office equipment 296,068 140,968 155,100 149,389
Computer equipment 213,612 167,610 46,002 59,188
Computer software 691,072 580,612 110,460 109,730
Telephone equipment 50,346 28,719 21,627 30,669

$ 1,865,767 $ 1,231,629 $ 634,138 $ 736,105

NOTE 5 DEFERRED TENANT INDUCEMENT

In 2007, tenant inducement in the amount of $142,375 was received from the landlord with respect to leasehold
improvements in the Council’s Calgary office. The tenant inducement was deferred and is being recognized as a
reduction of rent during the eight-year term of the lease.

In 2007, a tenant inducement in the amount of $84,043 was received from the landlord with respect to the leasehold

improvements completed by the Council in 2005 on their Edmonton office space. The tenant inducement was
deferred and is being recognized as a reduction of rent during the five-year term of lease.

NOTE 6 COUNCILS, BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

The following amounts are included in Councils, Boards and Committees expenditures:

$
2009 2008
Councils and Council Committees $ 272,691 $ 275,055
Appeal Boards 36,551 56,492
Accreditation Committee 45,975 42,809

$ 355,217 $ 374,356

NOTE 7 CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The Council’s objective in managing capital is to ensure a sufficient liquidity position to finance its expenses, working
capital and overall capital expenditures.

The Council defines capital as net asset comprised of investment in property and equipment and unrestricted funds.
Since inception, the Council has primarily financed its liquidity through fees from licenses, assessments,
examinations and continuing education and interest income on cash invested in the CCITF. The Council expects to
continue to meet future requirements through these sources.

The Council is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. There have been no changes to the
Council’'s objectives and what it manages as capital since the prior fiscal period.
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NOTE 8 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Commitments

The Council is committed to operating lease payments for business premises in accordance with existing lease
agreements and contracted services, as follows:

$
2010 211,884
2011 206,860
2012 151,594
2013 151,383
2014 125,625

Contingent Liability

The Council was previously involved in legal proceedings related to the termination of a former lease on their Calgary
office space and $50,000 had been accrued for costs associated with this matter. Legal proceedings have been
discontinued and accordingly, the accrued amount has been reversed and applied to reduce occupancy costs for the
year.

NOTE 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Council’s financial instruments comprise cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
The carrying value of these accounts approximate fair value. The Council is potentially subject to concentrations of
interest rate risk principally with its investment in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund. Credit risk is
negligible as the majority of revenue is from license and assessment fees, which are billed in advance. There are no
unrecorded financial instruments.

NOTE 10 COMMUNICATIONS

In recognition of its 20" anniversary, the Council established the Alberta Insurance Council Leadership Award for the
promotion and advancement of insurance education and ethics. Donations of $25,000 each were given during the
year to the University of Calgary and Grant MacEwan University to endow these awards for future years. The
Council also provided initial funding of $4,000 per institution for a total of $8,000 to allow for the granting of awards
over the next two years.
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Schedule 1
Schedules of Salaries and Benefits
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008
PER DIEM PAYMENTS OF COUNCIL MEMBERS
The following amounts are included in Councils, Boards and Committee expenditures:
2009 ¢©) 2008
# $ # $

Councils @

Chairs - AIC 1 33,893 1 34,531

Other - Chairs 9 43,160 7 73,675

Members 46 170,838 30 162,023

Total 56 $ 247,891 38 $ 270,229
a) This includes the Alberta Insurance Council, the Life Insurance Council, the General Insurance Council, the

b)

<)

Insurance Adjusters Council, the Audit Committee, the Appeal Boards and the Accreditation Committee.

This includes per diem payments made for attendance at Alberta Insurance Council Audit Committee,
Accreditation Committee and the AIC chair annual stipend.

All per diem payments made to members of Councils, Committees and Boards are paid by the Council out of
fees received from Insurance licenses. This includes public members appointed by the Lieutenant Governor in
Council, as well as Accreditation Committee members appointed by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise
pursuant to the Government Organization Act.

SALARIES AND BENEFITS

$ $
2009 2008
FTE's  Salary® Benefits'® Total FTE's Total
# #

Chief Executive Officer 1 $ 213,763 $ 30,815 $ 244,578 1 $ 237,635

Chief Operating Officer 1 190,060 48,084 238,144 1 220,209

Other staff ® 19 1,727,438 288,962 2,016,400 19 1,743,671

Total 21 $2,131,261 $ 367,861 $2,499,122 21 $2,201,515

c) Salary includes regular base pay, bonuses and overtime.

d) Employer's share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of employees including
group RRSP, health care, dental coverage, group life insurance, long and short-term disability plans and
vacation pay. Accrued vacation pay was $44,805 (2008: $55,595).

Employees of the Council are specifically excluded from enrolment in the Province of Alberta’s Public Service
Plan and the Province of Alberta’s Management Employees Pension Plan. The Council employees are also not
included in any of the Province of Alberta’s employee benefits plans.

e) Average annual salary and benefits of other staff was $$82,382 (2008: $76,938).
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ALBERTA INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION

Financial Statements

For the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

Auditor's Report
Balance Sheets
Statements of Operations
Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholder of Alberta Investment Management Corporation

| have audited the balance sheets of the Alberta Investment Management Corporation as at March 31, 2010 and
2009 and the statements of operations and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Corporation’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform my audits to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Edmonton, Alberta [Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
July 15, 2010 Auditor General

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Balance Sheets

Assets

Current Assets
Cash (Note 4)
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Capital assets (Note 5)

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 6)
Accrued vacation and benefits
Advance from the Province of Alberta (Note 7)

Long-term employee benefits (Note 8)
Deferred lease inducement (Note 16)

Shareholder's Equity (Note 9)
Contributed surplus

Commitments (Note 16)

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board:

A. Charles Baillie
Board Chair
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As at March 31

($ thousands)

2010 2009
26,427 $ 23,561
12,196 12,324

1,729 1,253
40,352 37,138
26,748 7,254
67,100 $ 44,392
21,788 $ 8,741

1,756 1,868
28,249 28,249
51,793 38,858

4,894 925

6,766 962
63,453 40,745

3,647 3,647

3,647 3,647
67,100 $ 44,392

Cathy Williams
Audit Committee Chair
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Statements of Operations

For the years ended March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 17)
Revenue
External investment management fees (Note 10) $ 176,181 $ 169,277 $ 174,059
Service revenue 69,279 59,406 39,771
Interest income - 270 822
245,460 228,953 214,652
Expenses
External investment management fees (Note 10) 176,181 169,277 174,059
Salaries, wages and benefits 43,795 38,647 26,231
Contract and professional services 8,236 11,094 6,514
Administration 7,173 4,713 3,485
Amortization 3,426 1,285 1,559
Data services and subscriptions 2,477 1,637 1,175
Rent 2,822 2,233 1,083
Interest 1,350 67 546
245,460 228,953 214,652
Net income $ - $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Operating activities
Net income $ = $ -
Items not affecting cash
Amortization 1,285 1,559
1,285 1,559
Changes in operating accounts (Note 11) 16,556 (3,802)
17,841 (2,243)
Investing activities
Acquisition of capital assets (20,779) (2,279)
Financing activities
Advance from the Province of Alberta - 15,000
Deferred lease inducement 5,804 185
5,804 15,185
Increase in cash for the year 2,866 10,663
Cash at beginning of year 23,561 12,898
Cash at end of year $ 26,427 $ 23,561
Supplementary information
Interest paid during the period $ 67 $ 546

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 ($ thousands)

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY

Alberta Investment Management Corporation (the Corporation) is an agent of the Crown in right of Alberta and
operates under the authority of the Alberta Investment Management Corporations Act, Chapter A-26.5. Under the
Act, the Corporation is established as a Crown Corporation governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the
Lieutenant Governor in Council. The issued share of the Corporation is owned by the Crown, and accordingly the
Corporation is exempt from income and other taxes.

NOTE 2 NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The purpose of the Corporation is to provide investment management services in accordance with the Alberta
Investment Management Corporations Act primarily to the Province of Alberta and certain public sector pension
plans. The Corporation forms part of the Ministry of Finance and Enterprise for which the Minister of Finance and
Enterprise is responsible. The Corporation was formed January 1, 2008. The Corporation has assets under
administration of $70.7 billion, see Note 12.

NOTE 3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and include the following significant accounting policies:

a) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Canadian Accounting Standards Board confirmed that the changeover date for adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for publicly accountable enterprises will be January 1, 2011. In October
2009, the Public Sector Accounting Board amended the requirements for government organizations to adopt
IFRS and finalized those amendments in April 2010. The amendments require government organizations not
classified as a Government Business Enterprise to adopt CICA Public Sector Accounting Standards. A
Government Business Enterprise has self-sustaining commercial-type operations. The Corporation is not
classified by the Government of Alberta's Treasury Board as a Government Business Enterprise and therefore is
required to adopt CICA Public Sector Accounting Standards. The Corporation has determined that adopting
CICA Public Sector Accounting Standards will not have a significant impact on its financial statements.

b) MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant estimates include external
investment management fees and long-term employee benefit accruals.

C) EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Corporation participates in multi-employer defined benefit plans that meet the accounting requirements for
treatment as defined contribution plans. The Corporation also participates in defined contribution pension plans.
Employer contributions are expensed as incurred.

On January 1, 2010 the Corporation established a new Supplementary Retirement Plan (SRP) for those
individuals required to withdraw from the existing Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers.
The supplemental plan is a defined benefit plan whose costs will be actuarially determined every three years.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from the valuations are recognized in expenses as they arise.
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d)

f)

9)

Note 3 (continued)

The Corporation provides a retention incentive to employees through a long-term incentive plan (LTIP) and a
restricted fund unit plan (RFU). The plans began January 1, 2009.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
All service revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.

Service revenue is recognized on the recovery of direct costs related to management of government funds,
pension plans and other investments. The service revenue is accrued and billed on a monthly basis as the
related costs are incurred and investment management services are provided.

The Corporation charges each government fund, pension plan and pooled fund with its respective share of the
Corporation’s operating costs. The charges are based on the total expenses incurred and are allocated based on
assets under management and transaction volume.

Under the Alberta Investment Management Corporations Act, the Corporation may establish and maintain one or
more Reserve Funds with the ability to recover charges in excess of direct expenses.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Software development costs, including
labour and materials and costs for design, development, testing and implementation are capitalized when the
related business systems are expected to be of continuing benefit to the Corporation. Amortization is calculated
on a straight line basis over the following periods:

Computer systems hardware and software 5 years
Furniture and equipment 10 years
Leasehold improvements Term of the lease

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation has made the following classification of its financial assets and liabilities:
= Cash is classified as “Held for Trading” and is measured at fair value.
= Accounts receivable are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and are measured at fair value which
approximates carrying value due to their short-term to maturity.
= Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, accrued vacation and benefits and advance from the Province
of Alberta are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are measured at fair value which
approximates carrying value due to their short-term to maturity.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

NOTE 4 CASH

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Deposit in Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund $ 25,933 $ 23,382
Cash in U.S. bank account 494 179

$ 26,427 $ 23,561

The Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund is managed with the objective of providing competitive interest income
to depositors while maintaining appropriate security and liquidity of depositors’ capital. The portfolio comprises of high
quality short-term and mid-term fixed income securities with a maximum term-to-maturity of three years. As at March
31, 2010, securities held by the Fund have a time-weighted return of 1.0% per annum (2009 — 3.0% per annum).
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NOTES CAPITAL ASSETS

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
Computer hardware and software $ 12,983 $ 9,165 $ 3,818 $ 3,023
Computer hardware and software under development 8,315 - 8,315 3,537
Leasehold Improvements 10,975 99 10,876 -
Leasehold Improvements under construction - - - 694
Equipment 3,772 33 3,739 -

$ 36,045 $ 9,297 $ 26,748 $ 7,254

Amortization expense charged for the year ended March 31, 2010 was $1,285 (2009 - $1,559).

NOTE6 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Annual incentive plan® $ 9,827 $ 2331
Retiring allowance and employment agreement payout®® - 2,167
Other accounts payable and accrued liabilities 11,961 4,243

$ 21,788 $ 8741

1) Variable pay per the Corporation’s Annual Incentive Plan is accrued based on goal attainment for the calendar
year end and paid in the subsequent year.

2) In 2009, the Corporation’s Chief Investment Officer announced his retirement on March 31, 2009 and was
eligible for a retiring allowance of $1,207 and an employment agreement payout of $960.

NOTE 7 ADVANCE FROM THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

Pursuant to Order in Council 542/2007 and in accordance with a loan advance agreement, the Corporation received
advances on both January 1, 2008 and April 1, 2008 from the Province of Alberta to fund operating and capital cost
requirements calculated as:

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Beginning of year $ 28,249 $ 13,249
Advance increases during the year - 15,000

$ 28,249 $ 28,249

The advance is a revolving demand credit facility up to a maximum of $30 million. The advance is repayable within
6 months of demand by the Province and is interest bearing at a rate equal to the Province’s one month borrowing
rate. At March 31, 2010, the Corporation is in compliance with the terms of its revolving demand facility.
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NOTE 8 LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension and Disability Plans

AIMCo participates in two multi-employer public sector pension plans - the Management Employees Pension Plan
and the Public Service Pension Plan, and two multi-employer Long-Term Disability Income Continuance Plans. The
Corporation also participates in a defined contribution pension plan and a defined contribution supplementary

retirement plan, established for employees hired after the formation of the Corporation on January 1, 2008.

The Corporation’s expense for the pension and disability plans is equivalent to the annual contributions of $2,360 for
the year ended March 31, 2010 (2009 - $2,189).

At December 31, 2009, the Management Employees Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $483,199 (2008 -
$568,574) and the Public Service Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $1,729,196 (2008 - $1,187,538).

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Long-term incentive plan® $ 2,009 $ 278
Restricted fund unit incentive plan(z) 402 81
Unfunded net retirement obligation from SRP plan(a) 2,483 566
$ 4,894 $ 925

1) The Corporation provides retention incentives to employees through an LTIP and RFU plan. The LTIP program
promises a deferred reward for generating superior average incremental return from active management (“value-
added”) over a four-year period. Senior management and other key professionals of the Corporation receive
LTIP “grants” on January 1 of each year that vary in size with their level of responsibility and quality of past
performance. The 2009 LTIP grants will vest on December 31, 2012: the 2010 grants will vest one year later. In
the majority of situations, employees must be actively working for the Corporation on the date of payment. LTIP
grants have an initial cash value of zero. When they mature after four years, they will pay between zero and
three times the size of the grant. The maximum amount will be paid if the average four-year value-added
exceeds the average “stretch-target” annually set by the Board. For 2009 and 2010, the stretch targets are $500
million. Total LTIP grants for 2009 were $4,453, so the maximum payable in 2013 will be 3 x $4,453 = $13,359.
Assuming that the average 2009-2012 stretch target is $500 million, this would represent about 2.6 cents for
every dollar of average value-added over four-years. Similarly, for 2010, LTIP grants totalled $5,222, so the
maximum payable in 2014 will be 3 x $5,222 = $15,666 The annual accrued LTIP liability at any point in time
reflects the potential value of all grants, based on average active performance from the date they were awarded.

2) The RFU program is a supplementary compensation plan based on a notional investment in the total fund, where
the value fluctuates based on the total rate of return. Unlike the LTIP grants, rates of return relative to benchmark
do not impact the value of the RFU(s). RFU(s) have time horizons of one to three years for vesting provisions.
Employees must be on staff as of the payment date in order to be eligible to receive any vested payments. The
total RFU grant for 2010 is $nil (2009 - $630). Total RFU eligible payouts in 2010 are $152 (2009 — nil). RFU is
accrued over the one to three year vesting period.

3) OnJanuary 1, 2010 the Corporation established a new SRP for those individuals required to withdraw from the
existing Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers. Based on an actuarial report dated
January 1, 2010, the Corporation assumed an opening net obligation of $2,306 representing past service costs.
This amount has been accrued and expensed, $1,740 in 2010 (2009 - $566). The amount accrued in 2009 was
an estimate based on actuarial values from 2006. The Corporation will obtain an updated actuarial report every
three years.
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Note 8 (continued)

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Accrued retirement obligation, beginning of year $ 566 $ -
Past service costs arising from plan initiation 1,740 566 *
Interest cost 27 -
Current service costs 150 -
Accrued retirement obligation, end of year $ 2,483 $ 566

* Estimate for new SRP from the prior year. The actual obligation was determined by actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2010 at $2,306.

The following table presents key assumptions applicable to the new SRP set up as of January 1, 2010.

2010

Annual Discount Rate 4.5%

Annual Salary Increase - base 3.5%

Annual Salary Increase - merit and promotion 1.3%

Expected long term return on plan assets 6.0%

Inflation rate 2.5%

NOTE 9 SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY

a) SHARE CAPITAL

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Issued and Authorized
Province of Alberta - one share $ = $ -

b) CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS

The Contributed Surplus of $3,647 (2009 - $3,647) represents equity received by the Department of Finance and
Enterprise in exchange for the transfer of the net book value of capital assets to the Corporation on January 1,
2008.

NOTE 10 EXTERNAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEES

Revenue and expenses include external investment management fees of $169,277 (2009 - $174,059). This includes
performance based fees of $25,690 (2009 - $19,948) as well as investment, custodial, legal, audit and other services
provided by external managers on behalf of the Corporation’s clients. External investment management fees are
based on a percentage of net assets under management at fair value and committed amounts in the case of private
equity and private income pools. Fees charged by external managers include regular management fees and
performance/incentive based fees. These fees include significant estimates and measurement uncertainty. The
estimates are based upon specified rates and commitment levels in the investment management agreements. Actual
results could differ from these estimates.
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NOTE 11 CHANGES IN OPERATING ACCOUNTS

(% thousands)
2010 2009
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable $ 128 $ (8,335)
Increase in prepaid expenses (476) (1,064)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 13,047 4,463
(Decrease) increase in accrued vacation and benefits (112) 209
Increase in long-term employee benefits 3,969 925
$ 16,556 $ (3,802)

NOTE 12 ASSETS UNDER ADMINISTRATION

The Corporation provides investment management services on behalf of certain Province of Alberta endowment
funds, other government funds and certain public sector pension plans.

At March 31, 2010 assets under its administration totaled approximately $70.7 billion (2009 - $69.0 billion), at market
value. These assets were administered on behalf of the following clients of the Corporation.

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Pension plans $ 27,652,448 $ 22,953,797
Ministry of Finance and Enterprise

General revenue and entity investment funds* 20,713,819 23,023,127

Endowment funds (including the Alberta Heritage 17,133,500 16,397,866

Savings Trust Fund)

Insurance related funds 2,186,113 2,237,132
Other government ministry investment funds 3,042,063 4,293,262

$ 70,727,943 $ 68,905,184

* General Revenue Fund Policy loans have been excluded from 2009 and 2010 numbers, as they are managed by the Ministry of Finance
and Enterprise.

The Corporation manages the majority of these investments through pooled investment funds. However, some
investments are managed by third party investment managers selected and monitored by the Corporation in order to
achieve greater diversification, access to external expertise and specialized knowledge. Investments are made in
accordance with the investment policies established and approved by the clients.

Pursuant to Order in Council 23/2008 the Province of Alberta has made available a facility to access up to a

maximum of $200 million for letters of credit for security purposes. This facility is utilized by the investment pools and
at March 31, 2010 the balance outstanding against the facility is $10,210.
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Note 12 (continued)

At March 31, 2010, investments administered by the Corporation were held in the following asset classes:

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Fixed income

Fixed income* $ 35,588,666 $ 38,956,967

Private mortgages 2,090,276 1,967,976
Inflation sensitive

Real estate 4,650,792 5,239,624

Infrastructure and timber 1,729,492 1,717,835

Real return bonds and commaodities 1,691,637 1,197,983
Equities

Public equities and absolute return strategies 23,411,199 18,360,255

Private equity 1,451,946 1,358,713
Overlays 113,935 105,831

$ 70,727,943 $ 68,905,184

* General Revenue Fund Policy loans have been excluded from 2009 and 2010 numbers, as they are managed by the Ministry of Finance
and Enterprise.

NOTE 13 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

b)

214

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of capital management is to ensure the Corporation has sufficient capital to support its
business and achieve its strategic goals. The Corporation operates on a cost recovery basis and manages its
capital to fund operating and capital costs to achieve its strategic plans and offset cost recovery timing
differences. The Corporation is an agent of the Crown whose debt is fully guaranteed by the Province of Alberta
which, has provided the Corporation with an advance to fund operating and capital costs.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligation and arises principally from the Corporation’s accounts receivable from
clients. The Corporation’s clients are government funds, pension plans and other entities, and as such, credit
risk exposure is limited.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The
Corporation is an agent of the Crown and has established a credit facility with the Province of Alberta to fund
operating and capital requirements.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign currency and interest rates will affect the
Corporation’s earnings or the value of the financial instruments held. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair
value of future cash flows for financial instruments will fluctuate relative to the Canadian dollar. Interest rate risk
is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Corporation operates on a cost recovery basis. Interest rate risk arises primarily from fluctuations in
the interest rate on the advance from the Province of Alberta and foreign currency risk from fluctuations in the
value of the Corporation’s US dollar bank account. As a result exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk is limited.
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NOTE 14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are the government funds, pension plans and other entities for which the Corporation provides
investment management services. The Corporation had the following transactions with related parties recorded at
the amount of consideration agreed upon between the related parties.

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Revenues
Service Revenue $ 59,406 $ 39,771
Expenses
Interest on Advance from Province of Alberta $ 65 $ 546
Contracted Services (rent & other) 1,610 2,043
$ 1,675 $ 2,589
Assets
Accounts Receivable $ 12,196 $ 12,324
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 5,403 $ 925
Advance from Province of Alberta 28,249 28,249
$ 33,652 $ 29,174

NOTE 15 SALARIES AND BENEFITS DISCLOSURE

The Corporation has a pay for performance strategy that exists to attract, retain and motivate top performers. Base
salaries are market driven and variable compensation programs reward consistent value added performance.

The tables below present total compensation of the directors and senior management of the Corporation earned in
the years ended March 31* in accordance with Treasury Board directive 03/2007. This directive applies to all
departments, regulated funds, provincial agencies, and Crown-controlled organizations.

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Other Other
Base Variable Cash Non-Cash

Salary® Pay® Benefits®  Benefits® Total Total
Chairman of the Board® $ - $ - % 108 $ - $ 108 $ 80
Board Members® - - 435 - 435 347
Chief Executive Officer® 500 502 17 50 1,069 1,603
Chief Investment Officer” 91 - 137 14 242 2,806
Chief Operating Officer 254 299 55) 25) 633 355
Chief Financial Officer 250 67 1 25 343 213
Chief Risk Officer 225 175 1 36 437 356

1) Base Salary consists of all regular pensionable base pay earned.

2) \Variable Pay is accrued based on goal attainment for the calendar year end and paid in the subsequent period.

3) Other Cash Benefits consist of retainers, honoraria, lump sum payments, and any other direct cash remuneration.

4)  Other Non-Cash Benefits consist of the Corporation's share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on
behalf of employees, including pension, supplementary retirement plans, statutory contributions, RFU paid during the year and
health plan coverage.

5) The Board consisted of 11 independent members from July 2009 to November 2009 including the Chairman, whose salary is
disclosed separately. The Deputy Minister of Finance and Enterprise was a Board member and received no compensation
from Corporation during this time. The remainder of the year the Board consisted of 10 independent members.

6) The Chief Executive Officer also served in the role of Chief Investment Officer from July 1, 2009.

7) The Chief Investment Officer announced his retirement on March 31, 2009 and his last day with AIMCo was June 30, 2009.
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Note 15 (continued)

Deferred Long-Term Incentive Compensation

($ thousands)
2010 2009
LTIP RFU
Grant Grant Total Total
Chief Executive Officer $ 500 $ - $ 500 $ 500
Chief Investment Officer 362 - 362 362
Chief Operating Officer 239 - 239 325
Chief Financial Officer 100 - 100 75
Chief Risk Officer 169 - 169 150

The Corporation provides retention incentives to employees through a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) as described
in Note 8. The LTIP promises a deferred reward for generating superior average net incremental return from active
management (“value-added”) over a four-year period. Senior management and other key professionals of the
Corporation receive LTIP “grants” on January 1 of each year that vary in size with their level of responsibility and
quality of past performance. The 2009 LTIP grants will vest on December 31, 2012: the 2010 grants will vest one
year later. In the majority of situations, employees must be actively working for the Corporation on the date of
payment.

LTIP grants have not been included in the Salaries and Benefits table because they have an initial cash value of zero.
When they mature after four years, they will pay between zero and three times the size of the grant. The maximum
amount will be paid if the average four-year value-added exceeds the average “stretch-target” annually set by the
Board. For 2009 and 2010, the stretch targets are $500 million. Total LTIP grants for 2009 were $4,453, so the
maximum payable in 2013 will be 3 x $4,453 = $13,359. Assuming that the average 2009-2012 stretch target is $500
million, this would represent about 2.6 cents for every dollar of average value-added over four-years. Similarly, for
2010, LTIP grants totalled $5,222, so the maximum payable in 2014 will be 3 x $5,222 = $15,666

RFU(s) have time horizons of one to three years for vesting provisions. Employees must be on staff as of the
payment date in order to be eligible to receive any vested payments. The total RFU grant for 2010 is $nil (2009 -
$630). Total RFU eligible payouts in 2010 are $152 (2009 — nil). RFU is accrued over the one to three year vesting
period.

NOTE 16 COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has entered into various agreements with minimum annual commitments for office space as follows:

_(8 thousands) _
2011 $ 3,408
2012 3,472
2013 3,662
2014 3,570
2015 3,442
Thereafter 16,350
Total $ 33,904

The Corporation entered into a lease agreement for a new facility commencing January 1, 2010. This agreement is
for 10 years, with two optional renewal periods of five years each. As part of the lease agreement, the corporation
received a lease inducement of $6,768. The inducement is recognized as a reduction in lease expense over the 10-
year term of the lease. The total deferred lease inducement as at March 31, 2010, which includes the Corporation’s
offices in Toronto, is $6,766 (2009 — $962).

NOTE 17 2009-2010 Budget

The Corporation’s 2009-2010 budget was approved by the Board of Directors on January 30, 2009.
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholder of Alberta Local Authorities Pension Plan Corp.

| have audited the balance sheets of the Alberta Local Authorities Pension Plan Corp. (the Corporation) as at
December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Corporation as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
Edmonton, Alberta Auditor General
April 15, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Balance Sheets

As at December 31, 2009

($ thousands)
2009 2008
Assets
Cash $ 186 $ 57
Accounts receivable 1 4
Due from LAPP (Note 5) 43 64
$ 230 $ 125
Liabilities and Sharholders Equity
Liabilities
Accrued liabilities $ 230 $ 125
230 125
Shareholder's equity
Share capital (Note 4) - -
$ 230 $ 125

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board:

Grant Howell Elaine Noel-Bentley
Chair of the Board Audit Committee Chair
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Statements of Income

For the year ended December 31, 2009

(thousands)
Budget Actual Actual
2009 2009 2008
(Note 10)
Revenue
Service revenue (Note 5) $ 2,480 $ 2,458 $ 2497
Miscellaneous revenue 2 6
Total revenue 2,480 2,460 2,503
Operating costs
Salaries and benefits 880 890 943
Professional fees 385 373 383
Communication expenses 399 362 317
Board costs 373 411 276
Actuarial services 265 254 404
General and administrative 178 170 180
Total operating costs 2,480 2,460 2,503
Netincome for the year $ - 9% - $ -
The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
For the year ended December 31, 2009
($ thousands)
2009 2008
Operating activities
Net income $ - $ -
Changes in non-cash working capital
Decrease in accounts receivable 3 -
Increase in accrued liabilities 103 31
Decrease in deferred revenue 2 -
Decrease in amount due from LAPP 21 3
Increase in cash for the year 129 34
Cash at beginning of year 57 23
Cash at end of year $ 186 $ 57

The accompanying notes are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY

Alberta Local Authorities Pension Plan Corp. (the Corporation) was incorporated under the Business Corporations
Act, Chapter B-9, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 and commenced operations on January 1, 2006. The
Corporation is controlled by the Government of Alberta and is exempt from income and other taxes.

NOTE 2 NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Minister of Finance and Enterprise of Alberta, operating under the authority of the Public Sector Pension Plans
Act, Chapter P-41, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000 (the Act) and the Financial Administration Act, Chapter F-12,
RSA 2000, is responsible for administering the Local Authorities Pension Plan (the Plan). Certain governance
services are provided by the Corporation pursuant to a delegation from the Minister and an Administrative Services
Agreement with the Minister, each effective January 1, 2006. These services include supporting the Board of
Trustees of the Plan in performing its statutory functions under the Act, and providing strategic guidance for the Plan.

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

All revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue for future expenses received in advance is
recorded as deferred revenue.

NOTE 4 SHARE CAPITAL

2009 2008
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Unlimited number of preferred shares
Issued
1 common share (Note 1) $ 1 3 1

NOTE 5 SERVICE REVENUE / DUE FROM LAPP

The Corporation commenced charging the Local Authorities Pension Plan for its operating costs, as authorized by the
Administrative Services Agreement with the Minister of Finance and Enterprise, effective January 1, 2006. Therefore,
revenue is recognized as the related expenses are incurred and recorded by the Corporation.

NOTE 6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments of the Corporation consist of cash, accounts receivable and accrued liabilities. Due to their
short-term nature, the carrying value of these instruments approximates their fair value.

NOTE 7 COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has entered into agreements with minimum annual commitments for office space and automobile
parking space as follows:

(thousands)

2010 197
2011 203
2012 210
2013 217
2014 225
$1,052
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NOTE 8 SALARIES AND BENEFITS DISCLOSURE
($ thousands)
2009 2008
Other Other Non-
Base cash cash
Salary @  Benefits ® Benefits @  Total Total
Corporation Board Chair @ $ - $ 39 $ - $ 39 % 29
Corporation Board Members (excludina Chair) @ c 133 - 133 127
President & Chief Executive Officer © 182 35 40 257 323
Vice-Presidents: Policy and Legal © 145 28 33 206 218

a) Base salary includes regular base pay.

b) Other cash benefits include incentive pay, lump sum payments, vacation payouts and car allowance honoraria

c) Other non-cash benefits include the Corporation’s share of all employees’ benefits and contributions or payments
made on their behalf including pension, health care, dental coverage, professional memberships and group life

insurance.

d) Remuneration paid for the services of the Chair and 13 board members is classified under Board Meeting Fees
and is paid in accordance with the fee structure approved by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise.

e) Position held for ten months, vacant for two months.

f)  Position includes three months of Acting Chief Executive Officer pay.

NOTE 9 DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

($ thousands)

The Corporation participates in two multi-employer public sector pension plans, the Management Employees Pension
Plan and the Public Service Pension Plan. The Corporation also participates in the multi-employer Supplementary
Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers. The expense for these pension plans is equivalent to the annual
contributions of $97 for the year ended December 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2009, the Management Employees Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $483,199 (2008:
$568,574) and the Public Service Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $1,729,196 (2008: $1,187,538). At

December 31, 2009, the Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers reported a deficiency of
$39,516 (2008: 7,111).

NOTE 10 APPROVAL OF 2009 BUDGET

The 2009 budget was approved by the Corporation’s Board of Directors on September 11, 2008.

NOTE 11 FINANCIAL STATEMENT APPROVAL

The financial statements were approved by the Corporation’s Board of Directors.
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholder of Alberta Pensions Services Corporation

| have audited the balance sheets of the Alberta Pensions Services Corporation as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
and the statements of income and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Corporation’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform my audits to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Corporation
as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Edmonton, Alberta [Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
April 6, 2010 Auditor General

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Balance Sheets

As at December 31

($ thousands)

2009 2008
Assets
Cash $ 51 $ 52
Accounts receivable 2,530 62
Prepaid expenses 505 715
Due from pension plans (Note 8) 1,989 3,555
Computer systems and other assets (Note 4) 8,770 3,469
$ 13,845 $ 7,853
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,803 2,983
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,288 1,162
Accrued vacation pay 191 239
Deferred lease inducement (Note 12) 1,793 -
Deferred capital contributions (Note 4) 8,770 3,469
13,845 7,853
Shareholder's equity
Share capital (Note 5) - -
$ 13,845 $ 7,853
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
Approved by the Board:
Al Mondor, FCA Douglas Hollands, BComm, CA

Chair Board of Directors Chair Audit Committee
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Statements of Income

Years ended December 31

($thousands)
2009 2008
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 14)
Operating expense
Staff and related expense $ 23,872 $ 22,320 $ 18,791
Contract Services 4,706 4,236 3,860
Materials and supplies 3,127 3,638 3,036
Amortization 2,155 2,045 1,914
Data processing and maintenance 1,580 1,329 1,404
Total before plan specfic and employer specific services 35,440 33,568 29,005
Plan Specific (Note 6) 1,346 1,079 912
Employer specific services (Note 7) - 22 17
Total operating expense 36,786 34,669 29,934
Recovery of costs (Note 8) $ 36,786 $ 34,669 $ 29,934

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cashflow

Years ended December 31

($ thousands)
2008

Operating activities

Items not affecting cash:

Amortization $ 1,914

Increase in deferred lease inducement (Note 12) -

Decrease in deferred capital contributions (1,914)
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Increase in accounts receivable $ (49)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (496)
Decrease (increase) in due from pension plans (709)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,111
Increase in accrued salaries and benefits 185
Decrease in accrued vacation pay (39)

3
3

Investing activities

Acquisition of computer systems and other assets (1,950)
Financing activities

Increase in deferred capital contributions 1,950
(Decrease) increase in cash for the year 3
Cash at beginning of year 49
Cash at end of year $ 52

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY

Alberta Pensions Services Corporation (APS) is incorporated under the Business Corporations Act, Chapter B-9,
Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000. The issued share of the Corporation is owned by the Minister of Finance and
Enterprise on behalf of the Government of Alberta, and accordingly the Corporation is exempt from income and
other taxes. Effective January 1, 2009, the Corporation legally changed its name from Alberta Pensions
Administration Corporation.

NOTE 2 NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Minister of Finance and Enterprise, operating under the authority of the Public Sector Pension Plans Act,
Chapter P-41, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, is responsible for administering the following public sector pension
plans:

e Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP)

e Public Service Pension Plan (PSPP)

e Management Employees Pension Plan (MEPP)

e Special Forces Pension Plan (SFPP)

e Public Service Management (Closed Membership) Pension Plan (PSM(CM)PP)
e Members of the Legislative Assembly Pension Plan (MLAPP)

e Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers (MSRP)

The Minister of Finance and Enterprise, operating under the authority of the Provincial Court Act and Court of
Queen's Bench Act (Chapter 196, Regulation 2001) is responsible for administering the following public sector
pension plans:

e  Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers (Registered) Pension Plan (PIJMC(R)PP)
e  Provincial Judges and Masters in Chambers (Unregistered) Pension Plan (PIJMC(U)PP)

Specific pension services required by the pension plans and employers are provided by the Corporation pursuant to a
Pensions Services Agreement with the Minister through to December 31, 2010. These services include the collection
and recording of contributions, calculating and paying benefits, communicating to employers and plan members,
pension plan board support services and risk management services. In 2008, the Minister also approved the
Corporation providing specific services, on a cost recovery basis, for some employers (Note 7).
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NOTE 3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

d)

e)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP).

COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND OTHER ASSETS
Computer systems and other assets are recorded at cost. The threshold for capitalizing software is $100,000;

and $5,000 for all other items, where these items have a useful life in excess of one year. Amortization is
calculated on a straight line basis as follows:

Computer hardware 3 years
Computer software 3 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Telephone system 3 years
Leasehold improvements Refer to (a) below

(a) This is over the term of lease plus one optional renewal period, to a maximum of 5 years.

Amortization will commence the month immediately after the computer systems and other assets has been
deemed substantially complete and ready for productive use.

USES OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, recovery of costs and expenses
as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities in the financial statements. Actual results could differ
from these estimates, and the impact of any such differences will be recorded in future periods. The significant
area requiring the use of management estimates relates to the estimated useful lives of computer systems and
other assets

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective January 1, 2009, APS adopted the standards of two new sections of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook, namely 3862, Financial Instruments-Disclosures and 3863, Financial
Instruments-Presentation. The adoption of these new accounting standards had no impact on accounting or
measurement of capital or financial instruments.

Section 3862 and 3863 provide enhanced disclosure requirements relative to financial instruments. Specifically,
they require additional disclosure about the nature and extent of risks associated with financial instruments and
how those risks are managed. This enhanced disclosure is provided in Note 13.

FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES

The CICA will transition Canadian GAAP to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for fiscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The Corporation has the option of transitioning to IFRS.

The Corporation is evaluating if it will present its financial statements in accordance with IFRS. The Corporation
does not believe this transition will have any significant impact on its financial statements.
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NOTE 4 COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND OTHER ASSETS
($ thousands)
2009 2008
Cost Accumulated Net Book Net Book

Amortization Value Value
Leasehold improvements 7,562 2,023 5,539 283
Computer equipment 4,867 3,558 1,309 1,483
Furniture and equipment 1,357 377 980 185
Computer software 12,498 11,756 742 1,366
Telephone system 218 18 200 152
$ 26,502 $ 17,732 $ 8,770 3 3,469

Financing obtained from the public sector pension plans to acquire computer systems and other assets is recorded
as deferred capital contributions. The recovery of costs is recognized on the same basis as the acquired computer

systems and other assets are amortized.

NOTE 5 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Unlimited number of preferred shares
Issued
1 common share (Note 1)

NOTE 6 PLAN SPECIFIC

2009 2008

The Corporation makes certain payments on behalf of the public sector pension boards and committees. These
expenses, which are incurred directly by the boards and committees and which the Corporation does not control,

are as follows:

($ thousands)
2009 2008
Materials
Contract and Board
Services Supplies Remuneration Total Total
MEPP $ 226 $ 118 $ 38 $ 382 $ 341
SFPP 174 85 41 300 273
PSPP 193 97 - 290 268
MSRP 47 - - 47 4
PJMC(R)PP 29 - - 29 2
PSM(CM)PP 13 11 - 24 24
MLAPP 10 - - 10 -
PJMC(U)PP (3) - - (3) -
Total $ 689 $ 311§ 79 $ 1,079 $ 912

A full description of pension plan names is in Note 2.
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NOTE 7 EMPLOYER SPECIFIC SERVICES

In 2008, the Minister of Finance and Enterprise approved the Corporation administering post retirement benefits for
certain employers who participate in the public sector pension plans. All costs associated with administering these
benefits are recovered directly from the specific employers as follows:

($ thousands)
2009 2008
$ -

City of Calgary $
City of Edmonton

EPCOR Uitilities Inc.

Government of Alberta

Calgary Health Region

Legislative Assembly of Alberta

Telus Communications Inc.

P PP NN O
=
~

NOTE 8 RECOVERY OF COST

The Corporation charges each public sector pension plan with its proportionate share of the Corporation’s operating
and plan specific costs based on the allocation formula decided by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. The
current allocation formula was effective January 1, 2006. At December 31, 2009, $1,989 (2008 - $3,555) is
receivable from the plans. The receivable at year-end is directly related to the timing of the receipt and disbursement
of funds.

($ thousands)
2009 2008

LAPP $ 21,776 $ 18,637
PSPP 9,180 8,075
MEPP 1,526 1,375
SFPP 1,197 1,020
MSRP 414 304
PSM(CM)PP 294 276
PIMC(R)PP 114 78
PIJMC(U)PP 72 75
MLAPP 62 51

34,635 29,891
Interest and other miscellaneous costrecoveries 12 26
Employer specific services (Note 7) 22 17
Recovery of costs $ 34669 $ 29,934

A full description of pension plan names is in Note 2.
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NOTE 9 EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS
($ thousands)

The Corporation participates in three multi-employer, defined benefit public sector pension plans, the Public Service
Pension Plan, the Management Employees Pension Plan and the Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service
Managers. The Trustee of the plans is the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. Multi-employer plans are accounted
for as defined contribution plans. Accordingly, the Corporation does not recognize its share of any plan surplus or
deficit. The expense for these pension plans is equivalent to the annual contributions of $1,688 for the year ended
December 31, 2009 (2008: $1,495). This amount is included in staff and related expenses.

An actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and adequacy of the plan funding. The
latest valuation at December 31, 2008 indicated the Public Service Pension Plan had a deficiency of $1,187,538
(2007 - $92,509) and the Management Employees Pension Plan had a deficiency of $568,574 (2007 - $84,341). At

December 31, 2008, the Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public Service Managers had a deficiency of $7,111
(2007 surplus - $1,510).

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Corporation received the following services at amounts which approximate market from:

($ thousands)

2009 2008
Service Alberta - Data processing and postage and printing $ 855 $ 723
University of Alberta - Management training 81 31
Alberta Finance and Enterprise - Risk management and insurance 39 37
Alberta Infrastructure - Parking rental 6 10
$ 981 $ 801

The Corporation also provided services to the public sector pension plans and public sector pension plan boards
and committees as disclosed in Notes 6 and 8. These transactions are in the normal course of operations.
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NOTE 11  SALARIES AND BENEFITS DISCLOSURE

a) BOARD REMUNERATION
The Board Chair received remuneration of $32 (2008: $42). Eight Board members (five in 2008) received
remuneration of $155 (2008: $118). Two Board members, who are employed by the Government of Alberta, are
not eligible for remuneration.

This remuneration is paid in accordance with the rates approved by the Lieutenant Governor in Council, and is
subject to the applicable withholdings.

b) EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

($ thousands)

Name and principal postion Base Variable  Pension Other Total
(at year end) Year Salary® Pay®  value® Compensation” Compensation
Monica Norminton 2009 $ 251 $ 34 3 49 $ 54 $ 388
President and Chief Executive Officer 2008 218 25 43 29 315
Ryan Barrack 2009 176 18 33 20 247
Vice President, Finance and Compliance 2008 157 3 30 12 202
Lesley Bowering 2009 176 18 33 24 251
Vice President, External Relations 2008 156 12 30 20 218
Brian Luterbach 2009 176 6 33 22 237
Vice President, Information Technology © 2008 117 1 20 7 145

2009 22 - 4 194 220
Vice President, Pension Services © 2008 162 19 31 11 223
Faye Rault 2009 53 - 10 8 71

Vice President, Plan Operations ©® 2008 - - - - -

Jeff Uhlich 2009 176 18 33 15 242

Vice President, Human Resources 2008 159 18 30 9 216

2009 - - - - -

Vice President, Strategic Planning " 2008 80 20 15 24 139

(1) . Base salary includes regular base pay and any retroactive adjustments to base pay

(2) Variable pay is calculated based on achievement of predetermined corporate measures. The amounts disclosed were paid in
the year based on the prior year's results

(3) Executives participate in the Management Employee Pension Plan (MEPP) and Supplementary Retirement Plan for Public
Service Managers (MSRP). Combined, these plans provide pension benefits equal to 2% of the executive’s best five-year
average annual pensionable salary for each year of service. The pension provided by the MEPP is limited to the maximum
pensionable salary limit permitted under the federal Income Tax Act (ITA). The MSRP provides a pension in respect of the
base salary in excess of the maximum pensionable salary limit.

The pension value represents the Corporation's share of contributions to the plans based on each executive's pensionable
salary.

(4) Other compensation includes such cash benefits as: automobile allowance, lump sum payments and vacation payouts where
applicable. Also included are non-cash benefits such as the Corporation's share of all employee benefits and contributions or
payments made on their behalf including health care, dental coverage, group life insurance, long-term disability, WCB
premiums, professional memberships and tuition fees. Included in other compensation for 2009 are severance payments for
positions that had turnover.

(5) The Vice President, Pension Services position was terminated February 19, 2009. A new position was created, Vice President,
Plan Operations. Faye Rault has occupied this position since September 14, 2009.

(6) Brian Luterbach has occupied the position since August 25, 2008. The predecessor occupied the position until May 31, 2008.

(7) The Vice President, Strategic Planning retired on August 25, 2008. The position was terminated at this time.
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NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has entered into an agreement with minimum annual commitments for office space as follows:

($ thousands)

Total Commitments

2010 1,729
2011 1,729
2012 1,729
2013 1,729
2014 1,792
Thereafter 8,942

$ 17,650

The Corporation entered into a lease agreement for a new facility commencing on September 1, 2009. This
agreement is for ten years, with two optional renewal periods of five years each. As part of the lease agreement, the
Corporation received a lease inducement of $1,868. The inducement is recognized as a reduction in lease expense
over the ten-year term of the lease. The inducement is included in accounts receivable at December 31, 2009 and
was collected subsequent to year-end.

NOTE 13  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments of the Corporation consist of cash, accounts receivable, due from pension plans, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, accrued salaries and benefits and accrued vacation pay. Due to their short term
nature, the carrying value of these instruments approximates their fair value.

Liquidity risk is the risk of not being able to meet the Corporation’s cash requirements in a timely and cost effective
manner. The Corporation’s primary source of liquidity is amounts charged to pension plans (Note 8).

It is management’s opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant risks arising from these financial
instruments.

NOTE 14 2009 BUDGET

The Corporation's 2009 budget was approved by the Board of Directors on November 27, 2008.

NOTE 15 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Corporation's Board of Directors.

NOTE 16 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2008 figures have been reclassified to conform with the 2009 presentation.
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the Alberta Securities Commission

| have audited the balance sheets of Alberta Securities Commission as at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the statements
of income and retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Commission’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
| plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Commission as
at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]

Auditor General
Edmonton, Alberta
June 15, 2010

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Balance Sheets

As at March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009
ASSETS
Current
Cash (Note 4) $ 11,343 $ 8,188
Funds held for others (Note 9) - 9
Accounts receivable 148 22
Prepaid expenses 330 64
11,821 8,283
Non-current
Restricted cash (Note 3) 280 190
Investments (Note 4) 30,749 28,826
Capital assets (Note 6) 2,028 2,305
Lease deposit and other 17 153
33,074 31,474
Total assets $ 44,895 $ 39,757
LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
Current
Funds held for others (Note 9) $ - $ 9
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,824 2,400
Accrued vacation and benefits liabilities 393 353
Lease inducement (Note 7) 124 124
3,341 2,886
Non-current
Lease inducement (Note 7) - 124
Accrued benefit liability (Note 8) 3,782 3,316
Total liabilities 7,123 6,326
Retained earnings (Note 3) 37,772 33,431
Total liabilities and retained earnings $ 44,895 $ 39,757
The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
Approved by the Members
William S. Rice, Q.C. Roderick J. McKay, FCA

Chair and Chief Executive Officer Member
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Statements of Income and Retained Earnings

For the years ended March 31

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 12)
Revenue
Fees (Note 10) $ 24,061 $ 25,744 $ 24,921
Investment Income (loss) (Note 5) 1,500 3,930 (3,234)
Settlement payments and cost recoveries (Note 10) - 2,499 1,246
Conference fees and other 25 18 21
Administrative penalties revenue (Note 3) 600 542 153
Total revenue 26,186 32,733 23,107
Expense
Salaries and benefits 21,948 19,501 18,017
Professional services 3,501 2,591 2,877
Administration 3,460 2,468 2,125
Premises 2,350 2,170 2,197
Amortization 1,456 1,193 1,085
Investor education (Note 3) 667 469 216
Total expense 33,382 28,392 26,517
Budget contingency 3,338
Net income (loss) $ (10,534) 4,341 (3,410)
Opening retained earnings 33,431 36,841
Closing retained earnings (Note 3) $ 37,772 $ 33,431

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31

Operating transactions
Fees and other $
Settlement payments and cost recoveries
Payments to and on behalf of employees
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Investment income (loss)
Administrative penalties

Cash from (used in) operating transactions

Capital transactions
Cash used to acquire capital assets

Cash used in capital transactions

Investing transactions
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash
(Increase) decrease in portfolio investments
Transfer from portfolio investments

Cash (used in) received from investing transactions

Increase in cash

Opening cash

Closing cash $

($ thousands)
2010 2009

25,790 $ 24,898
2,499 1,246
(18,735) (17,498)
(7,911) (7,465)
3,930 (3,234)
506 206
6,079 (1,847)
(911) (255)
(911) (255)
(90) 48
(3,863) 3,347
1,940 2,500
(2,013) 5,895
3,155 3,793
8,188 4,395
11,343 $ 8,188

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31
($ thousands)

NOTE 1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Alberta Securities Commission (ASC), a provincial corporation operating under the Securities Act (Alberta), is the
regulatory agency responsible for administering the province’s securities laws.

The ASC'’s investments are independently managed by The Alberta Investment Management Corporation (AIMCo).
AIMCo is a provincial corporation responsible to the Minister of Finance and Enterprise. AIMCo invests the
commission’s assets in accordance with the investment policies approved by the commission. The ASC does not
participate in capital market investment decisions or transactions.

The ASC, as an Alberta provincial corporation, is exempt from income tax.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for
the public sector.

AIMCo and Minister of Finance and Enterprise administer and report all ASC investments and cash balances using
the accounting policies outlined in (a), (b) and (c).

a) INVESTMENTS

Fixed income securities and equities are recorded at cost. Cost includes the amount of applicable amortization
of discount or premium using the straight-line method over the life of the investments.

Derivative contracts not designated as hedges are recorded at fair value.
Investments are recorded as of the trade date.
The cost of disposals is determined on the average cost basis.

Where there has been a loss in value of an investment that is other than a temporary decline, the investment is
written down to recognize the loss. The written down value is deemed to be the new cost.

b) INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENSES

Investment income and investment expense are recorded on the accrual basis. Investment income is accrued
where there is reasonable assurance as to its measurement and collectability.

Gains and losses arising as a result of disposal of investments are included in the determination of investment
income.

Income and expense from derivative contracts designated as hedges are recognized in income on an accrual
basis with gains and losses recognized in income to the extent realized.

c) VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS
Fair values of investments managed and held by AIMCo in pooled investment funds are determined as follows:

i) Public fixed income securities and equities are valued at the year-end closing sale price, or, if not actively
traded, the average of the latest bid and ask prices quoted by an independent securities valuation company.
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Note 2 (continued)

d)

e)

9)

ii) Private fixed income securities are valued based on the net present value of future cash flows. These cash
flows are discounted using appropriate interest rate premiums over similar Government of Canada
benchmark bonds trading in the market.

iii) Derivative contracts include equity and bond index swaps, interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate
swaps, credit default swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and equity index futures contracts. The
value of derivative contracts is included in the fair value of the ASC’s investment in the Canadian Dollar
Public Bond Pool and certain equity funds (Note 4). The fair value of derivative contracts is determined at
the reporting date.

VALUATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Because of their short-term nature, the fair value of cash, funds held for others, accounts receivable, restricted
cash, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, accrued vacation and benefit liabilities, and a lease inducement
are estimated to approximate their book values.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost.

Assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Computer equipment and software 3 years
Furniture and equipment 10 years
Leaseholds remaining period of use to December 2010
Leaseholds (Note 6) over 15- year lease term commencing December 2010

FEES AND ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY, SETTLEMENT PAYMENTS AND COST RECOVERY
RECOGNITION

Fees are recognized when earned, which is upon cash receipt.

Administrative penalties, settlement payments and cost recoveries are recognized when the decision is issued or
agreement reached.

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The ASC participates in the Public Service Pension Plan, a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, with
other government entities. This plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan as the ASC has insufficient
information to apply defined benefit plan accounting to this pension plan. Pension costs included in these
financial statements comprise the cost of employer contributions for current service of employees during the year
and additional employer contributions for the service relating to prior years.

The ASC established a retirement plan for one employee at the time of transition to a Provincial Corporation.
The employee is retired and the plan costs are fully provided for.

The ASC maintains a Supplemental Pension Plan for certain designated executives of the ASC. The cost of the
pension is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on services and management’s
best estimate of economic assumptions. Past service costs and actuarial losses arising from assumption
changes are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of employees active at
the date of commencement of the Supplemental Pension Plan. The average remaining service period of active
employees of the Supplemental Pension Plan is five years.

The ASC also maintains a plan whereby it makes Registered Retirement Savings Plan contributions on behalf of
certain employees of the ASC. The contributions are calculated based on a fixed percentage of the employee’s
salary to a maximum of the Registered Retirement Savings Plan contribution limit as specified in the Income Tax
Act (Canada). The expense included in these financial statements represents the current contributions made on
behalf of the employees.
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Note 2 (continued)
h) LEASE INDUCEMENT

Cash payments received as lease inducements are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

i) ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Estimates include uncollectible amounts of accounts receivable for administrative
penalties and related cost recoveries, the useful lives of capital assets, and the value of accrued employee
benefit liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Estimates of capital asset useful lives are outlined in Note 6.

Benefit liability estimates are primarily subject to actuarial assumptions summarized in Note 8.

The estimated provision for uncollectible administrative penalties and cost recoveries is based on an
assessment of the ability to pay at the time of penalty assessment. Subsequent collection actions and changes
in the ability to pay may result in recovery of amounts previously considered uncollectible. However, it is not
possible to estimate what, if any, subsequent recoveries may occur.

j) RESTRICTED CASH

The Securities Act (Alberta) restricts the use of revenues the ASC receives from administrative penalties to
certain operating expenditures that educate investors and enhance the knowledge of securities market
operation.

NOTE 3 RESTRICTED CASH AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Retained earnings include accumulated net penalty revenue of $280 ($190 in F2009). This amount is represented by
restricted cash, as described in Note 2(j).

The change in restricted cash is compromised of:

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Administrative penalties $ 1,190 $ 1,903
Less provision for uncollectible amounts (1,075) (1,835)
Plus recoveries of prior year assessments 425 77
Net realizable value 540 145
Interest income and other 2 8
Administrative penalty revenue 542 153
Plus: Education seminar fees 17 15
Less: Eligible education expenses (469) (216)
Restricted cash increase (decrease) 90 (48)
Restricted cash opening balance 190 238
Restricted cash closing balance $ 280 $ 190
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NOTE 4 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

a) SUMMARY
($ thousands)
2010 2009
Cost Fair Value % Cost Fair Value %
Cash
Deposit in the CCITF $ 11343 $ 11,343 $ 8188 $ 8,188
Investments
Deposit in the CCITF $ 74 $ 74 02 $ 72 % 72 0.3
Fixed-income securities 22,564 22,267 72.1 21,246 20,006 73.2
Equities 8,111 8,539 27.7 7,508 7,269 26.5
$ 30,749 $ 30,880 100.0 $ 28,826 $ 27,347 100.0
Cash consists of demand deposits in the Consolidated Cash Investment Trust Fund (CCITF). The CCITF is
administered by AIMCo with the objective of providing competitive interest income to depositors while
maintaining maximum security and liquidity of depositors’ capital. The CCITF portfolio comprises high-quality
short-term and mid-term fixed-income securities with a maximum term-to-maturity of three years. As at March
31, 2010, securities held by the CCITF have a time weighted return of 1.0 per cent per annum (3.0 per cent in
F2009).
The ASC'’s investments are held in pooled investment funds established and administered by AIMCo. Pooled
investment funds have a market based unit value that is used to allocate income to participants and to value
purchases and sales of pool units.
Fixed income securities held at March 31, 2010 have an average effective market yield of 5.0% per cent per
annum (7.4 per cent in F2009), with maturities ranging from less than one year to over 20 years and a duration
of 5.85 years. The fixed income pool includes a mix of high-quality government and corporate (public and
private) fixed income securities and debt related derivatives. The fund is actively managed to minimize credit
and market risk through the use of derivatives, portfolio duration and sector rotation.
Equity investments include publicly traded Canadian large cap and market index participant equities. The equity
pools participate in derivative transactions to simulate index composition and minimize investment risk.
b) INVESTMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

Income and financial returns of the ASC are exposed to credit, market and interest rate risk.

AIMCo manages risk through diversification within each asset class, and quality and duration constraints on
fixed income instruments, and extensive use of derivative contracts. ASC’s investments include derivatives as
described in the annual MD&A.

In order to earn an optimal financial return at an acceptable level of risk, management has established an
investment policy that is reviewed annually. Investment income risk is reduced through asset class allocation
targets of 75 per cent bonds and 25 per cent equities with a small value of residual cash.
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NOTE 5 INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS)
($ thousands)
2010 2009

Net realized gain (loss) on investments, including $888 gain $ 2,608 $ (4,868)
($1,564 loss in F2009) from derivatives

Interest 1,196 1,362
Dividends 142 276
Other (16) (4)

$ 3930 % (3,234)

The ASC's investments increased in market value 20.9 per cent for the year ended March 31, 2010 (11.7 per cent
loss in F2009). This performance compares to a henchmark (composite of DEX T-Bill, Bond and S&P/TSX indexes)
gain of 13.9 per cent in F2010 and benchmark loss of 4.3 per cent in F2009.

NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS

($ thousands)

Computer Furniture and Leaseholds 2010 Total = 2009 Total
equipment and equipment

software
Estimated Useful Life 3 years 10 years Lease Duration
Cost
Beginning of year $ 2949 $ 950 $ 4013 $ 7912 $ 7,463
Additions 538 59 319 916 452
Disposals (667) - - (667) (3)
$ 2,820 $ 1,009 $ 4332 $ 8,161 $ 7,912
Accumulated Amortization
Beginning of year $ 2391 $ 519 $ 2,697 $ 5,607 $ 4,525
Amortization expense 341 133 719 1,193 1,085
Disposals (667) - - (667) (3)
$ 2,065 $ 652 $ 3416 $ 6,133 $ 5,607
Net Book Value $ 755 % 357 $ 916 $ 2,028 $ 2,305

Leaseholds include $423 ($117 in F2009) for a lease commencing December 1, 2010.

NOTE 7 LEASE INDUCEMENT

($ thousands)
Lease Term Current Inducement
8 years, ending March 2011 $ 124
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NOTE 8 ACCRUED BENEFIT LIABILITY AND PENSION EXPENSE
The accrued benefit liability is comprised of:
($ thousands)
2010 2009

Retirement Plan $ 184 $ 208
Supplemental Pension Plan 3,681 3,184
Less: current portion (83) (76)

$ 3,782 $ 3,316

The following pension expense for the plans is included in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings under
salaries and benefits.

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Public Service Pension Plan $ 550 $ 469
Registered Retirement Savings Plan 446 425
Retirement Plan - 20
Supplemental Pension Plan 551 486
$ 1,547 $ 1,400

a)

b)

c)

d)

PUBLIC SERVICE PENSION PLAN

The ASC participates in the Public Service Pension Plan. At December 31, 2009, the Public Service Pension
Plan reported a deficiency of $1,729,196 and in 2008 a deficiency of $1,188,000.

REGISTERED RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

The ASC makes contributions on behalf of employees who do not participate in the Public Service Pension Plan
to employee Registered Retirement Savings Plans.

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Retirement Plan is unfunded and the benefits are paid to August 2017 as they come due ($24 in F2010, $23
in F2009) from the assets of the ASC.

SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN

The ASC has a Supplemental Pension Plan for certain designated executives of the ASC. The provisions of the
Plan were established pursuant to a written agreement with each designated executive.

The Supplemental Pension Plan provides pension benefits to the designated executives based on pensionable
earnings that are defined by reference to base salary in excess of the limit ($124 effective January 1, 2010, and
$122 effective January 1, 2009) imposed by the Income Tax Act (Canada) on registered pension arrangements.

Pension benefits from the Supplemental Pension Plan are payable on or after attainment of age 55 and are
equal to 1.75 per cent of the highest average pensionable earnings (average over five years) for each year of
service with the Commission. Members of the Supplemental Pension Plan become vested in the benefits of the
plan after two years of service. Accrued benefits are also payable on early retirement (with reductions), death or
termination of employment of the designated executive.

The Supplemental Pension Plan is unfunded and the benefits will be paid as they come due from the assets of
the ASC.

Actuarial valuations of the Supplemental Pension Plan are undertaken every three years. At April 1, 2009, an
independent actuary performed a Supplemental Pension Plan valuation. The next valuation is scheduled for
April 1, 2012. The results of the actuarial valuation and management’s cost estimates as they apply to the
Supplemental Pension Plan are summarized below:
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Note 8 (continued)

($ thousands)
Balance sheet at March 31 2010 2009
Accrued benefit and unfunded obligation $ 3,676 $ 3,192
Unamortized transitional obligation (64) (93)
Unamortized actuarial gain 69 85
Accrued benefit liability $ 3,681 $ 3,184
Accrued benefit obligation
Accrued benefit obligation at beginning of the year $ 3192 $ 2,869
Service cost 322 298
Interest cost 216 170
Benefits paid of $54 ($46 in F2009 plus net actuarial gain) (54) (145)
Accrued benefit obligation at end of the year $ 3,676 $ 3,192
($ thousands)
Pension expense 2010 2009
the pension expense for the Supplmental Pension Plan
is as follows:

Service cost $ 322 $ 298
Interest cost 216 170
Amortization of transitional obligation 29 26
Recognized acturial gains during the year (16) (8)

$ 551 $ 486

The assumptions used in the current (2010) and prior (2009) actuarial valuations of the Supplemental Pension
Plan and three-year projections are summarized below. The discount rate was established in accordance with
the yield on long-term corporate bonds and applies to both the accrued benefit obligation and benefit costs.
Other economic assumptions were established as management’s best estimate in collaboration with the actuary.
Demographic assumptions were selected by the actuary based on a best estimate of the future experience of

the plans.

2010 2009
Discount rate, year end obligation 6.2% 5.4%
Discount rate, net benefit cost prior year 5.4% 5.4%
Rate of inflation 2.5% 2.5%
Salary increases 4.0% 4.0%
Remaining service life 5 years 6 years

NOTE 9 FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS
The ASC held, in a separate bank account, $9 in F2009 in cash for participants in the Market Integrity Computer

Analysis (MICA) system upgrade project. The project is complete. There are no future commitments and the
remaining cash balance will be returned to participants in the current year.
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NOTE 10  FEES, SETTLEMENTS AND COST RECOVERIES

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Distribution of securities $ 11,658 $ 11,126
Registrations 9,082 9,025
Annual financial statements 4,686 4,470
Orders (applications) 318 300
Total fees $ 25,744 $ 24,921
Settlement agreements and cost recoveries $ 2219 $ 1,941
Less provision for uncollectible amounts (139) (746)
Plus recoveries of prior year assessments 419 51
Total settlement payments and cost recoveries $ 2,499 $ 1,246

NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Details of commitments to organizations outside the ASC and contingencies from legal actions are set out below.
Any losses arising from the settlement of contingencies are treated as expenses in the year of settlement.

a) COMMITMENTS

Premises lease and equipment rental - Commitments arising from contractual obligations are associated
primarily with the lease of premises to March 31, 2025 and rental of office equipment to 2010 total $57,969
($64,366 in F2009). A 15 year lease of premises commencing December 2010 was added in 2009. These
commitments become expenses of the ASC when the terms of the contracts are met.

2010-11 $ 3,052
2011-12 2,605
2012-13 2,647
2013-14 2,691
2014-15 2,737
Thereafter 44,237
Total $ 57,969

Canadian Securities Administrators (CSA) - The ASC shares, based on an agreed-upon cost-sharing
formula, the costs incurred for the maintenance of the CSA Secretariat and any third-party costs incurred in the
development of harmonized rules, regulations and policies. The CSA Secretariat was established to assist in
the development and harmonization of rules, regulations and policies across Canada.
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Note 11 (continued)

b)

National systems operations agreements - CDS Inc. (CDS) operates the SEDAR (electronic filing and
payment), NRD (national registration database) and SEDI (insider trading) systems on behalf of the CSA under
various operating agreements. The ASC, as one of the agreement signatories, commits to pay CDS up to 11.7
per cent of any shortfall from approved system operating costs that exceed revenues. Alternatively, CDS must
pay to CSA revenues in excess of system operating costs (surplus). The surplus is not divisible; the CSA owns
it as a group. CDS payments received from accumulated system operating surpluses since inception and
interest earned totalled $49,135 at March 31, 2010 ($35,188 in F2009). This amount is held in trust by the
Ontario Securities Commission. The principal CSA administrators, including the ASC, have agreed that surplus
amounts can only be used to offset any shortfall in revenues, develop or enhance the systems and reduce fees
charged to users.

The CSA is proceeding with plans to redevelop these three systems in a multi-year phased approach. Funding
for this renewal program will come from accumulated surplus amounts. Commitments at March 31, 2010 are
less than $1.0 million, primarily for preliminary analysis and enterprise architecture design.

LEGAL ACTIONS

The ASC is not currently involved as defendant in any legal actions.

NOTE 12 BUDGET

The ASC'’s budget was approved on January 14, 2009.

NOTE 13  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ASC is related through common ownership to all provincial government ministries, agencies, boards,
commissions and crown corporations. The ASC conducted all transactions with these entities as though they were
unrelated parties and recorded transaction costs of $35 ($32 in F2009) in administration expense.
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SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS Schedule A
For the Year Ended March 31, 2010
($ thousands)
2010 2009
Base Cash Non-cash Total Total
Salary (1)  Benefits (2) Benefits (3)

Chair, Securities Commission (4) $ 496 $ 83 $ 119 $ 698 $ 698
Executive Director 316 56 143 515 461
Vice Chair, Securities Commission (4) 276 50 125 451 397
Vice Chair, Securities Commission (4) 276 50 81 407 370
Independent Members (5) 561 - - 561 404

1) Base salary includes regular base pay and Independent Member compensation.
2) Cash benefits include variable pay and Chair and Executive Director's automobile allowances.

3) Employer’s share of all employee benefits including, current and prior service cost for the unfunded supplemental
pension plan for designated executives in Note 8 (d) of the financial statement and summarized in the accounting
narrative.

4) The Chair and Vice Chairs are full time Commission Members.

5) The Independent Members compensation includes fees paid in dollars for governance responsibilities of
$342,000 ($333,000 in F2009) and hearing and application panel participation of $219,000 ($71,000 in F2009).
Independent Member fees include a $10,000 annual retainer, $2,500 for Committee memberships, $5,000 for
Committee chairing and $5,000 for the Lead Independent Member position. Meeting attendance fees include
$1,000 per day for an ASC meeting and $750 for a Committee meeting. Hearing fees are payable as to $1,000
per hearing day and $125 per hour of related preparation, review and decision writing.
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SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS Schedule A (continued)
Supplemental Retirement Benefits

Under the terms of the Supplemental Pension Plan as described in Note 8 (d) of the ASC financial statements,
executive officers may receive supplemental retirement payments. Supplemental Pension Plan costs as detailed
below for the four most highly paid executives of the ASC, are not cash payments in the period, but are the period
expense for rights to future compensation. Costs shown reflect the total estimated cost to provide annual pension
income over an actuarially determined post-employment period. The Supplemental Pension Plan provides future
pension benefits to participants based on years of service and earnings as described in Note 8 (d). The cost of these
benefits is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on services, a market interest rate,
and management’s best estimate of expected inflation and salary costs and the remaining service period for benefit
coverage. Net actuarial gains and losses of the benefit obligations are amortized over the average remaining service
life of the employee group. Current service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefits earned in the fiscal year.
Prior service and other costs include amortization of past service costs on plan initiation, amortization of actuarial
gains and losses, and interest accruing on the actuarial liability.

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Current Prior Service
Service Costs and Other

Costs Total Total
Chair, Securities Commission $ 103 $ (11) $ 92 3 100
Executive Director 87 27 114 71
Vice Chair, Securities Commission 66 13 79 66
Vice Chair, Securities Commission 50 6 56 44

The accrued obligation for each of the four highest paid executives under the Supplemental Pension Plan is outlined
in the following table:

($ thousands)
Accrued Changes in  Accrued obligation
obligation accrued
April 1, 2009 obligation March 31, 2010

Chair, Securities Commission $ 293 $ 104 $ 397
Executive Director 596 87 683
Vice Chair, Securities Commission 464 66 530
Vice Chair, Securities Commission 206 50 256
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Minister of Finance and Enterprise:

| have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Alberta Treasury Branches as at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income and changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then
ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Alberta Treasury Branches’ management. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that |
plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Alberta Treasury Branches as at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Edmonton. Alberta [Original signed by Merwan N. Saher, CA]
May 19, 2010 Auditor General

Note: The official version of this Report of the Auditor General, and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at March 31

Assets
Cashresources (Note 8)
Cash

Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions

Securities (Note 9)
Loans (Notes 10 and 11)
Residential mortgage
Business

Personal

Credit card

Allowance for credit losses

Other

Premises and equipment (Note 13)
Derivative financial instruments (Note 20)
Software and other intangibles (Note 14)
Other assets (Note 15)

Liabilities and Equity
Deposits (Note 16)
Personal

Business and other
Wholesale

Other Liabilities

Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Derivative financial instruments (Note 20)
Other Liabilities (Note 17)

Capital Investment Notes (Note 28)
Subordinated Debentures (Note 18)
Equity

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 24)

($ thousands)

2009

353,724

2,516,489

2,870,213

1,228,305

7,368,397

8,958,493

4,926,582

599 3 % 541,940
5222,41_%;% (193,177)
22534603 21,602,235
188,831 175,523
226,509 258,694
201,767 110,618
263,408 268,555
880,515 813,390

_____ 26,514,143
$ 10427133 10,797,569
9,544,040 10,158,290
2,607,994 2,925,387
22,579,167 23,881,246
- 286,404

146 892 127,518
623432 403,278
817,200

57,013

1,649,753

108,931

1,758,684

26,514,143

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board:

Bob Splane
Chairman of the Board
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Brian McCook

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Years ended March 31

($ thousands)
Interest Income
Loans / $ 1,099,173
Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions | 60,828
Securities 51 34,986

=

. 1051410 1,194,987
.

Interest Expense

Deposits 348 203 544,808
Capital investment notes /%;/{/2
Subordinated debentures ///é’ 2,616
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 32 218
547,642
Net Interest Income 647,345
Other income
Service charges 69,748
Card fees 44,942
Investor services 36,749
Credit fees 11,240
Securitization Income (Note 12) 53,809
Insurance 12633 22,346
Foreign exchange 11,257 10,043
Sundry 7,325 208
(Loss) gain on derivative financial instruments, net (11,440) 10,597
220,783 259,682
Operating Revenue before the undernoted 895,471§ 907,027
Receovery (provision for loss) on asset-backed commercial paper (Note 9) 5 ‘ (224,816)
Total Operating Revenue 008 682,211
Provision for credit losses (Note 11) 42,712
Non-interest Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits (Notes 19 and 22) 333,028
Data processing 73,622
Premises and occupancy, including amortization 55,418
Professional and consulting costs 33,320
Marketing and supplies 29,760
Deposit guarantee fee 29417
Software and other intangibles amortization 17,040
Communication 18,685
Equipment, including amortization 16,857
ATB agencies 8,492
Other 17,448
633,087
Net Income Before Payment in Lieu of Tax 6,412
Paymentin lieu of tax (Note 27) -
Net Income 6,412

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Changes in Equity

Years ended March 31

($ thousands)
2009
Net income $ 6,412
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Change in unrealized gains and (losses) on available-for-sale securities and
interest-bearing deposits w ith financial institutions, net of cash flow hedges 5,751
Reclassification to earnings in respect of available-for-sale securities
and interest-bearing deposits w ith financial institutions 7,257
Changes in gains and (losses) on derivative financial instruments
designated as cash flow hedges 104,377
Reclassification to earnings of (gains) and losses on cash flow hedges (33,565)
83,820
Comprehensive Income $ 90,232

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

2009

Retained Earnings

Balance at beginning of the year $ 1,643,341

Netincome 6,412

Balance at end of the year 1,649,753
Accumulated other Comprehensive Income

Balance at beginning of the year 25111

Other comprehensive income (loss) 83,820

Balance atend of the year 108,931
Equity as at March 31 $ 1,758,684

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Years ended March 31

Cash Flows from Operating Activites
Net Income
Adjustments to determine net cash flows:
Provision for credit losses
Amortization of premises and equipment
Amortization of software and other intangibles
Net changes in accrued interest receivable and payable
Net changes in derivative Financial Instruments
(Recovery) provision for loss on asset-backed commercial paper
Gains on Sale of securitized residential mortgage loans (Note 12)
Change in provision for payment in lieu of tax
Net changes in cheques and other items in transit
Change in due to clients, brokers,and dealers
Change in deposit guarantee fee payabe
Change in accounts payable and accrued liabilites
Other items, net
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activites

Net changes in deposits

Repayment of subordinated debentures

Issuance of capital investment notes

Changes in securities sold under repurchase agreements
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activites
Net changes in interest-bearing deposits
with financial institutions
Purchase of securities
Proceeds from securities
Net change in loans, excluding securitization
Proceeds from loan securitizations
Purchases of premises, equipment, software, and other intangibles
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activites

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at End of Year

Supplementary Cash Flow Information:
Amount of interest paid during the year

($ thousands)
_ %16 @ 2009

3 127470 $ 6,412
58,047 42,712
6 29,755

2 /// 17,040
(14, 42,112
(14,7 (33,505)
(53 %% 224,816
(32710) (53,311)
38,075 -
(13,400) 22,299
9,664 4,033
(4,298) 7,79
200,878 58,072
24,662 20,551
433,748 388,780
(1,290,598) 2,712,857
(11,837) (15,985)
224,994 -
(286,404) 286,404
(1,363,845) 2,983,276
1,839,788 (587,214)
(1,675,501) (2,772,652)
1,736,085 2,583,889
(1,987,184) (3,255,323)
1,001,484 . 1,045,462
(158,875)  (124,061)
7557 \ (3,109,899)
(17 262,157

3 \\\\x\\\ 91 :567
s

353,724

549,229

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended March 31
($ thousands)

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY

Alberta Treasury Branches (ATB) is an agent of the Crown in right of Alberta and operates under the authority of the
Alberta Treasury Branches Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta, 2000, chapter A-37. Under the ATB Act, ATB was
established as a provincial Crown corporation governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Lieutenant
Governor in Council.

ATB is exempt from Canadian federal and Alberta provincial income taxes. lts primary business is providing financial
services within Alberta.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Management has prepared these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”).

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of balance sheet assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ significantly from these estimates, and the impact of
any such differences will be recorded in future periods.

The most significant amounts and disclosures where ATB must make estimates include the allowances for credit
losses, the fair value of financial instruments, asset securitization, amortization of premises and equipment and
software and other intangibles, assumptions underlying the accounting for employee future benefit obligations, and
the provision for contingencies.

Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, and results of operations and cash flows of
ATB and its subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated from the consolidated
results.

The following wholly owned subsidiaries, created for the purpose of offering investor services, are established by
Order in Council and incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta):

¢ ATB Investment Services Inc., incorporated October 3, 1997

e ATB Investment Management Inc., incorporated August 21, 2002

e  ATB Securities Inc., incorporated February 6, 2003

e ATB Insurance Advisors Inc., incorporated July 21, 2006
Translation of Foreign Currencies
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at the exchange rate in
effect as at the balance sheet date. Operating revenues and expenses related to foreign-currency transactions are
translated using the average exchange rate for the period. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from
these translations are included in foreign exchange in the consolidated statement of income.

Significant Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policies followed in preparing these consolidated financial statements are disclosed throughout
the following notes, along with the related financial disclosures.
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NOTE 3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Goodwill and Intangible Assets

On April 1, 2009, ATB adopted the new accounting standard of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(CICA) entitled Goodwill and Intangible Assets (Section 3064). This new standard establishes the criteria for
recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets and replaces the Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets and Research and Development Costs standards.

The provisions of this section were adopted retrospectively with restatement of prior years. Although the adoption of
this standard did not result in a change in the recognition of ATB’s intangible assets, it did require that intangible
assets relating to application software be reclassified from premises and equipment to software and other intangibles
on the consolidated balance sheet and that the related amortization expense also be reclassified. This information is
presented in note 14.

Financial Instrument Disclosures

In June 2009, the CICA amended its Financial Instruments — Disclosures standard, to expand disclosures of fair
value measurement of financial instruments and liquidity risk. The amendment includes a requirement to classify
financial instruments reported at fair value using a fair value hierarchy based on the quality and reliability of the
information used to estimate the fair value. This information is presented in note 5.

The additional disclosures related to liquidity risk require a maturity analysis of financial liabilities. This information is
presented in the Risk Management section of the MD&A.

The amendments are effective for ATB’s March 31, 2010, annual financial statements. The amendments do not
impact ATB'’s results or financial position as they relate only to disclosure.

Classification and Impairment of Financial Assets

In August 2009, the CICA amended the Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement standard to reduce
differences with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The amendments apply to annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after

November 1, 2008, with retroactive application to the beginning of the fiscal year. Entities were permitted, but not
required, to apply these amendments to the interim financial statements relating to periods within the fiscal year of
adoption only if those interim financial statements were issued on or after August 20, 2009. ATB adopted these
amendments in the current fiscal year. The amendments are as follows:

- The definition of the loans and receivables financial asset category, which is measured at cost or amortized
cost calculated using the effective interest method, has been modified. As a result, debt instruments not
quoted in an active market can be classified as loans and receivables, and impairment is measured using
the incurred-credit-loss model of Section 3025, Impaired Loans. Loans and receivables that an entity intends
to sell immediately or in the near term must be classified as held for trading, and loans and receivables, for
which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, must be classified as available for sale.

- Reclassification of financial assets from the held-for-trading and available-for-sale categories into the loans
and receivables category is permitted under certain circumstances.

- Reversal of an impairment loss relating to an available-for-sale debt instrument is required when, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of the instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the loss was recognized.

The initial adoption of these amendments did not impact ATB’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

ATB classifies financial assets as held for trading (HFT), held to maturity (HTM), available for sale (AFS), or loans
and receivables. It classifies financial liabilities as either HFT or other liabilities. On initial recognition, financial assets
and liabilities are recognized at fair value. Any subsequent valuation of financial instruments is based on their
classification as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Financial instruments classified as
HFT or AFS are measured at fair value. Financial instruments classified as HTM, loans and receivables, and other
liabilities are valued at amortized cost using the effective-interest-rate method. ATB has not classified any financial
assets as HTM.

Held for Trading

Financial assets and liabilities classified as HFT are measured on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value, with
changes in fair value (unrealized gains or losses) recorded in net income in the consolidated statement of income.
Unrealized gains and losses from changes in fair value or realized gains or losses on disposal are accounted for as
other income. Any interest earned (or incurred) continues to be recognized on an accrual basis as interest income (or
expense).

A financial asset or liability may also be irrevocably designated as HFT under the fair value option when it is first
recognized. Financial instruments accounted for under the fair value option are measured at fair value, and any
changes in fair value are recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Available for Sale

Financial assets classified as AFS are measured on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair
value (unrealized gains or losses) being recognized in other comprehensive income (OCl) rather than net income.
Unrealized gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognized in OCI until maturity or sale, when the
cumulative gain or loss on disposal is transferred from accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) to the
consolidated statement of income as other income. In the event of an other-than-temporary impairment in fair value,
the cumulative change in fair value of the impaired asset is recognized in net income in the period of impairment. Any
interest is recognized on an accrual basis as interest income.

Held to Maturity

ATB may classify non-derivative financial assets as HTM if the assets have fixed or determinable payments and a
fixed term to maturity, and if ATB has the ability and intention to hold the assets to maturity. HTM assets are
measured at amortized cost using the effective-interest-rate method.

Loans and Receivables

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are accounted for at amortized cost using the effective-interest-
rate method.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities, except for derivatives, are measured at amortized cost using the effective-interest-rate method

unless classified as HFT (or designated as such under the fair value option).

NOTE 5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CARRYING VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

Financial assets and financial liabilities can be measured at fair value or amortized cost, depending on their
classification under the Financial Instrument Recognition and Measurement Accounting standards (Refer to note 4).

Estimated Fair Value
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount of consideration that would be agreed upon in an arm’s-length

transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties who are under no compulsion to act. The best evidence of the
fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the fair value of the consideration received or paid.
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Note 5 (continued)

When financial instruments are subsequently remeasured, quoted market prices in an active market provide the best
evidence of fair value, and when such prices are available, ATB uses them to measure financial instruments. A
financial instrument is considered to be quoted in an active market when quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, or pricing service and those prices reflect actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s-length basis. The fair value of a financial asset traded in an
active market generally reflects the bid price and that of a financial liability traded in an active market, the ask price. If
the market for a financial instrument is not active, ATB establishes fair value using a valuation technique that primarily
makes use of observable market inputs. Such valuation techniques include the use of available information
concerning recent market transactions, reference to the current fair value of a comparable financial instrument,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models, and all other valuation techniques that are commonly used by
market participants and that have been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates.

In cases where the fair value is established using valuation models, ATB makes assumptions about the amount, the
timing of estimated future cash flows, and the discount rates used. These assumptions are based primarily on
observable market inputs such as interest rate yield curves, foreign-exchange rates, and credit curves, as well as
price and rate volatility factors. When one or more significant inputs are not observable in the markets, fair value is
established primarily on the basis of internal estimates and data, taking into account the valuation policies in effect at
ATB, the economic environment, the specific characteristics of the financial asset or liability, and other relevant
factors.
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Note5 (continued)

The following tables summarize ATB’s financial instrument classifications and provide their carrying value and fair
value as at March 31:

CARRYING VALUE
As at March 31, 2010

($ thousands)
Held-for-trading Designated as Available-for-sale Loans and Held-to-maturity Financial Derivatives Total
assets and held-for-trading instruments receivables instruments liabilities designated Carrying
liabilities assets and measured at measured at measured at measured at for hedge Value
measured at liabilities fair value amortized cost amortized cost  amortized cost accounting
fair value measured at
fair value
Financial Assets
Cash 179,424  $ - $ - $ - - $ - - $ 179,424
Interest-bearing deposits with
financial institutions - - 675,576 - - - - 675,576
Securities 610,696 548,204 - - - - 1,158,900
Loans
Residential mortgages - - - 7,989,004 - - - 7,989,004
Business - - - 8,722,605 - - - 8,722,605
Personal - - - 5,446,028 - - - 5,446,028
Credit Card - - - 599,379 - - - 599,379
Allowance for credit losses - - - (222,413) - - - (222,413)
- - - 22,534,603 - - - 22,534,603
Other
Derivative financial instruments 142,026 - - - - - 84,483 226,509
Other assets - - - 198,000 - - - 198,000
142,026 - - 198,000 - - 84,483 424,509
Financial Liabilities
Deposits
Personal - - - - - (10,427,133) - (10,427,133)
Business and other - - - - - (9,544,040) - (9,544,040)
Wholesale - - - - - (2,607,994) - (2,607,994)
- - - - - (22,579,167) - (22,579,167)
Other
Derivative financial instruments (138,934) - - - - - (7,958) (146,892)
Other liabilities - (7,350) - - - (580,242) - (587,592)
(138,934) (7,350) - - - (580,242) (7,958) (734,484)
Capital investment notes - - - - - (224,994) (224,994)
Subordinated debentures - - - - - (45,176) - (45,176)
O Fair value estimated to equal carrying value carrying value.
@ Fair value of loans estimated to be $23,247,279.
©) Fair value of deposits estimated to be $22,521,706.
“) Fair value of capital investment notes estimated to be $230,073.
©) Fair value of subordinated debentures estimated to be $46,874.
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Note 5 (continued)

CARRYING VALUE
As at March 31, 2010
($ thousands)

Held-for-trading Designated as Available-for-sale Loans and Held-to-maturity Financial Derivatives Total
assets and held-for-trading instruments receivables instruments liabilities designated Carrying
liabilities assets and ed at ed at measured at measured at for hedge Value
measured at liabilities fair value amortized cost amortized cost amortized cost accounting
fair value measured at
fair value
Financial Assets
Cash $ 353,724  $ - - - - $ $ 353,724
Interest-bearing deposits with
financial institutions 1,221 - 2,515,268 - - - 2,516,489
Securities 629,192 599,113 - - - 1,228,305
Loans -
Residential mortgages - - 7,368,397 - - 7,368,397
Business - - 8,958,493 - - 8,958,493
Personal - - 4,926,582 - - 4,926,582
Credit Card - - 541,940 - - 541,940
Allowance for credit losses - - (193,177) - - (193,177)
- - 21,602,235 - - 21,602,235
Other
Derivative financial instruments 120,079 - - - - 138,615 258,694
Other assets - - - 210,009 - - 210,009
120,079 - - 210,009 - 138,615 468,703
Financial Liabilities
Deposits
Personal - - - (10,797,569) - (10,797,569)
Business and other - - - (10,158,290) - (10,158,290)
Wholesale - - - (2,925,387) - (2,925,387)
- - - (23,881,246) - (23,881,246)
Other
Securities sold under repurchase
agreemets - - - - (286,404) - (286,404)
Derivative financial instruments (112,926) - - - - (14,592) (127,518)
Other liabilities - - - - (373,554) - (373,554)
(112,926) - - - (659,958) (14,592) (787,476)
Subordinated debentures - - - (57,013) - (57,013)

) Fair value estimated to equal carrying value.
@ Fair value of loans estimated to be $22,743,383.
© Fair value of deposits estimated to be $24,203,643.

@ Fair value of subordinated debentures estimated to be $60,789.

The fair values are estimated at the balance sheet date using the valuation methods and assumptions described
below. These fair values may change in subsequent reporting periods as a result of market conditions or other
factors.

Financial Instruments Whose Book Value Approximates Fair Value

The estimated fair value of items that are short-term in nature is considered to be equal to their carrying value. These
items include cash, other assets, securities sold under repurchase agreements, and other liabilities.

Securities and Interest-Bearing Deposits With Financial Institutions

The fair values of securities and interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions are based on quoted market
prices, if available. Where an active market does not exist, the fair value is estimated using a valuation technique that
makes maximum use of observable market data.

Derivative Instruments
Fair value represents a point-in-time estimate that may change in subsequent reporting periods as a result of
changing market conditions or other factors. Fair value estimates of over-the-counter and embedded derivative

financial instruments are estimated using pricing models that take into account current market and contractual prices
of the underlying instruments, and time value and yield curve or volatility factors underlying the positions.
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Note 5 (continued)
Loans and Deposits

For floating-rate financial instruments, fair value is equal to carrying value as the interest rates reprice to market when
market rates change. For fixed-rate loans, fair value is estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows at
market rates. For fixed-rate deposits, fair value is estimated by discounting the contractual cash flows using market
interest rates currently offered for deposits with similar terms. Due to the use of subjective assumptions and
measurement uncertainty, the fair value amounts should not be interpreted as being realizable in an immediate
settlement of these instruments.

Subordinated Debentures and Capital Investment Notes

The fair values of subordinated debentures and capital investment notes is estimated by discounting contractual cash
flows using market reference rates currently offered for debt instruments with similar terms and credit risk ratings.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet are classified using a fair value
hierarchy based on the quality and reliability of the information used to estimate the fair value. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

—Level 1 — fair value based on quoted prices in active markets

—Level 2 — fair value estimated using valuation techniques that use market-observable inputs other than quoted
market prices

—Level 3 — fair value estimated using inputs that are not based on observable market data

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs exist. A financial
instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a significant input has been considered in
measuring fair value.

The categories of financial instruments whose fair values are classified in Level 3 consist of the following:
—HFT financial assets — investments in asset-backed commercial paper (ABCP) (Refer to note 9)

—AFS securities — investments in ABCP, and retained rights to future excess interest on securitization transactions.
(Refer to note 9 and 12.)

—HFT financial liabilities — embedded derivatives relating to interest rate options on certain residential mortgages
and the estimated obligation for the Achievement Notes

The following table presents the level within the fair value hierarchy of ATB’s financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value, as at March 31, 2010:
As at March 31, 2010

($ thousands)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Interest-bearing deposits with financial instruments $ 200,060 $ 475,516 $ - $ 675,576
Securities
Available for sale securities 6,227 481,704 60,273 548,204
Held for trade securities - 610,696 610,696
Other assets -
Derivative financial instruments - 226,509 - 226,509
Total financial assets $ 206,287 $ 1,183,729 $ 670,969 2,060,985
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Derivative financial intruments - (146,674) (218) (146,892)
Other liabilities - - (7,350) (7,350)
Total financial liabilities $ - $  (146,674) $ (7,568) $  (154,242)
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Note 5 (continued)

ATB performs sensitivity analysis for fair value measurements classified in Level 3, substituting one or more
reasonably possible alternative assumptions for the unobservable inputs. These sensitivity analyses are detailed in
note 9 for the HFT ABCP investments and note 12 for retained interest in securitization. The sensitivity analysis for
the AFS ABCP, the embedded derivatives relating to interest rate options on certain residential mortgages and the
estimated obligation for the Achievement Notes resulted in an insignificant change in fair value.

The following table presents the changes in fair value of Level 3 financial instruments for the year ended March 31,
2010:

As at March 31, 2010

($ thousands)
Fair value of
derivatives
Available-for- Held-for-trading financial Other
sale securities securities liabilities liabilities
Fair value as at March 31, 2009 $ 127,931 $ 629,192 $ 3) % -
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses)
included in Net Income (18,351) (16,958) (215) $ (2,253)
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses)
included in OCI (3,837) - - % -
Net purchases, sales, issuances, and
settlements (45,470) (1,538) - $ (5,097)
Fair value as at March 31, 2010 $ 60,273 $ 610,696 $ (218) $ (7,350)
Change in unrealized gains (losses) included
in income with respect to financial instruments
held as at March 31, 2010 $ (18,414) $ (16,958) $ (215) $ (2,253)

NOTE 6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT

ATB has included certain disclosures required by CICA Handbook Section 3862 in shaded sections of the MD&A.
These shaded sections of the Risk Management section of the MD&A relating to credit, market, and liquidity risks are
an integral part of the 2010 consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 7 CAPITAL DISCLOSURE

ATB manages capital to ensure that it meets the minimum levels set out by its regulator, Alberta Finance and
Enterprise, while supporting the continued growth of its business and building shareholder value.

As a Crown corporation, ATB and its subsidiaries operate under a regulatory framework established pursuant to the
Alberta Treasury Branches Act and associated regulations and guidelines. The capital adequacy requirements for
ATB are defined in a guideline authorized by the Minister of Finance and Enterprise, which was modelled after
guidelines governing other Canadian deposit-taking institutions. ATB’s minimum Tier 1 capital requirement is 7%, and
the total capital requirement is the greater of 10% of risk-weighted assets or 5% of total assets. Risk weights are
established for various on-balance-sheet and off-balance-sheet assets according to the degree of credit risk.

The capital requirements were amended during the current fiscal year to expand the definition of Tier 2 capital. Tier 1
capital consists of retained earnings, and Tier 2 capital consists of notional capital and eligible portions of the general
allowance for credit losses, subordinated debentures, and capital investment notes (to a maximum of $500,000).
Effective March 30, 2009, $600,000 of notional (or deemed) capital was made available to ATB. This amount reduces
by 25% of net income each quarter.
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Note 7 (continued)

As at March 31, 2010, ATB has exceeded both the total capital requirements and the Tier 1 capital requirement of the
amended Capital Adequacy Guideline.

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Tier 1 capital /
Retained earnings $ 1777223 $ 1,649,753
Tier 2 capital
Eligible portions of:
Subgrdllnated debentures /
Capital investment notes 179, -
i BT
.General gllowance for creditlosses 1726 /% 164,238
Notional capital 868 135 600,000
%‘é
929861 764,238
Total regulatory capital $ 2707084 $ 2413,991
Total risk-weighted assets % 19732223 $ 18,770,083
Risk-weighted capital ratios
Tier 1 capital ratio 9.0% 8.8%
Total capital ratio 13.7% 12.9%

NOTE 8 CASH RESOURCES

Cash consists of cash on hand, bank notes and coins, and non-interest-bearing deposits with the Bank of Canada
and other financial institutions. Interest-bearing deposits with other financial institutions have been classified as either
held for trading (HFT) or available for sale (AFS) and are recorded at fair value. Interest income on interest-bearing
deposits is recorded on an accrual basis.

Amounts receivable from and payable to other financial institutions related to cheques and other items in transit via
the clearing process are recorded at cost as other assets and other liabilities (Refer to notes 15 and 17).

The March 31, 2010, carrying value of interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions consists of $675,576 (2009:
$2,515,268) classified as AFS, and none (2009: $1,221) classified as HFT.

NOTE 9 SECURITIES

Securities are purchased with the intention to hold them to maturity, or until market conditions render alternative
investments more attractive.

Interest income and any amortization of premiums and discounts are recorded in interest income in the consolidated
statement of income. Gains and losses realized on the disposal of securities are included in other income in the
consolidated statement of income. ATB recognizes investment transactions relating to its securities portfolio on a
settlement date basis.

ATB conducts a quarterly review to identify and evaluate any AFS securities that show indications of impairment. A
security is considered impaired if its fair value falls below its cost, and a write-down is recorded when the decline is
considered other than temporary. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is temporary include the length of
time and extent to which fair value has been below amortized cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of
the issuer, and the ability and intent to hold the investment for enough time to allow for anticipated recovery.
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Note 9 (continued)

The carrying value of securities by remaining term to maturity and net of valuation provisions is as follows:

Less than
1 year
Available-for-sale securities
Issued or guaranteed by the Canadian
federal or Provincial governments‘” g 481221 8
Commercial paper .
Third-party-sponsored ABCP -
Retained interest in securitization -
Other 6227

Total available-for-sale securities 487,448

Held-for-trading securities
Commercial paper
Third-party-sponsored ABCP -
Bank-sponsored ABCP -
Total held-for-trading securities -

Total Securities $ 487 448 §

($ thousands)

%/////%%/éﬁ;;;;/%w rying

Fromito5

yeais > years /Q value
.8 // $ 460,120
57 oz;é / ;?)232

. ”///;}/é//f y
483 - ///%/{//{% 11,062
57,529 3227 5482004 599,113
. 564,657 582,792
. 46,039 ///{” J 46,400
- 610,696 610,696 629,192
57529 § 613923 5  1,158900 g 1,228,305

@ At March 31, 2009 ATB had entered into repurchase agreements with respect to certain securities. ATB transferred these
securities to third parties but has continued to recognize them on the Consolidated Balance Sheet because the transactions do
not qualify for derecognition. The carrying value of these securities at March 31, 2009 was $290,339.

The total carrying value of securities in the preceding schedule includes securities denominated in U.S. funds totalling

$23,804 as at March 31, 2010 (2009: $44,440).
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Note 9 (continued)

Gross unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities and interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions

are presented in the following table:

As at March 31, 2010 ($ thousands)
Cost Gross Gross
or amortized unrealized unrealized Carrying
cost gains losses value
Available-for-sale securities
Issued or guaranteed by the Canadian
federal or provincial governments $ 481,086 $ 145 § (10) $ 481,221
Commercial paper
Third-party-sponsored ABCP 3,703 - (476) 3,227
Retained interest in securitization 53,996 3,050 - 57,046
Other 6,710 - - 6,710
Total available-for-sale securities 545,495 3,195 (486) 548,204
Interest-bearing deposits with
financial institutions 675,581 - (5) 675,576
Total available-for-sale investments $ 1,221,076 $ 3,195 §$ (491) $ 1,223,780
As at March 31, 2009 (% thousands)
Cost Gross Gross
or amortized unrealized unrealized Carrying
cost gains losses value
Available-for-sale securities
Issued or guaranteed by the Canadian
federal or provincial governments $ 452,097 $ 8,023 $ - $ 460,120
Commercial paper
Third-party-sponsored ABCP 72,571 - (186) 72,385
Retained interest in securitization 51,316 4,230 - 55,546
Other 11,062 - - 11,062
Total available-for-sale securities $ 587,046 $ 12,253 § (186) $ 599,113
Interest-bearing deposits with
financial institutions $ 2,514,156 $ 1,207 $ (95) $ 2,515,268
Total available-for-sale investments $ 3,101,202 $ 13,460 $ (281) $ 3,114,381

Asset-Backed Commercial Paper

As at March 31, 2010, ATB held asset-backed commercial paper (ABCP) with a total face value of $1,023,371 (2009:
$1,102,488). During the year, ATB received principal payments of $70,469 and interest payments of $8,005 on these

investments.

ATB’s holdings can be divided into three general types:

- Third-party ABCP restructured under the Montreal Accord (Master Asset Vehicle notes, or MAV notes)

- Third-party ABCP restructured outside of the Montreal Accord

- Bank-sponsored ABCP restructured under separate agreements

All are debt instruments with underlying exposure to a range of financial instruments, including residential mortgages,

commercial loans, and credit default swaps.
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Note 9 (continued)

These investments were short-term when first purchased by ATB, but as a result of the general credit crisis that
occurred in fiscal 2007-08 they were restructured into longer-term floating-rate notes with a maturity date that more
closely matches the maturities of the underlying assets, as detailed in the following table:

($thousands)
Expected Credit
Cost Coupon maturity rating
Third-party ABCP
MAV 1
Class A-1 $ 412,583 0.30% Dec 2016 A
Class A-2 384,746 0.30% Dec 2016 A
Class B 65,594 0.30% ™ Dec 2016 None
Class C 26,737 20.0% O Dec 2016 None
Tracking notes for ineligible assets 26,114 Floating @ July 2056 None
Total MAV 1 $ 915,774
MAV 3
Tracking notes for traditional assets 5,806 Floating @ Sept 2016 None
Total MAV 3 $ 5,806
Other 34,770 1.55% ™ Dec 2016 B
Total Third-party ABCP $ 956,350 $ 0
Bank-sponsored ABCP 67,021 0%1t00.35% U  Dec2013to None to AA
Total ABCP $ 1,023,371 Sept 2016

) Spread over bankers’ acceptance rate
@ Coupon rate floats based on the yield of the underlying assets

All the ABCP investments have been designated as HFT, with the exception of the MAV 3 notes, which have been
classified as AFS.

MAYV Notes

The MAV 1 notes are supported in whole or in part by the originally pledged collateral and synthetic (or derivative-
type) assets. These notes are subject to risk of loss and potential additional collateral calls relative to the leveraged
super-senior trades included in the synthetic assets. The notes have different levels of subordination relative to
potential losses and principal and interest payments. Specifically, C notes absorb the first realized losses, followed by
B notes, A-2 notes, and A-1 notes. In addition, interest on C notes is cumulative and payable only when the principal
and interest for the A-1, A-2, and B notes is settled in full. Interest on B notes is cumulative and payable only when
the principal and interest for the A-1 and A-2 notes is settled in full. The structure is designed to ensure that the
lowest ranking notes—C and B—absorb the first losses, thereby reducing the risk of loss on the A-1 and A-2 notes.

MAV 1 also contains tracking notes for ineligible assets. The return and maturity of these notes is linked to the
underlying assets.

MAYV 1 note holders are required to provide a margin-funding facility (MFF) to cover possible collateral calls on the
leveraged super-senior trades underlying the A-1, A-2, B, and C notes. Advances under this facility are expected to
bear interest at a rate based on the bankers’ acceptance rate. If ATB fails to fund any collateral under this facility, the
notes held by ATB could be terminated or exchanged for subordinated notes. In order to continue to participate in
MAV 1 and self-fund the MFF, ATB will have to maintain a credit rating equivalent to AA (high) with at least two of
four credit-rating agencies. If ATB does not maintain the required credit rating, it will be required to provide collateral
or obtain the required commitment through another entity with a sufficiently high credit rating. ATB’s share of the MFF
credit commitment is $551,500, for which ATB will not receive a fee. To recognize the fair value of this commitment,
$29,528 has been recorded in other liabilities. As at March 31, 2010, no amount has been funded under the MFF.
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Note 9 (continued)

In addition to the MFF, there is also a senior funding facility. This facility is supported by the governments of Canada,
Quebec, Alberta, and Ontario to cover possible shortfalls in the existing MFFs under the MAV 1. ATB and all other
investors must pay a fee to cover the cost of this facility.

Currently there is a moratorium in place that prevents collateral calls on the leveraged super-senior trades. This
moratorium ends in July 2010.

ATB’s MAV 3 notes are supported exclusively by traditional assets with interest and maturity directly linked to the
return and maturities of the underlying assets.

Other Third-Party ABCP

ATB holds one non-MAYV third-party note with exposure to leveraged super-senior trades. There are no potential
collateral calls relative to this note, although if losses were to occur the result would be significant based on the
amount of leverage on the underlying exposure.

Bank-Sponsored ABCP

ATB holds three bank-sponsored notes— two issued by Apex Trust and one issued by Superior Trust. These notes
have exposure to a combination of commercial mortgages and leveraged super-senior trades.

Establishing Fair Value

As at March 31, 2010, there is no observable market price for the various ABCP notes; accordingly, ATB has
estimated the fair value of the various notes using a valuation technique. The table below provides a breakdown of
the composition and fair value of ATB’s ABCP holdings as at March 31, 2010 and 2009:

($ thousands)
2009 Foreign

estimated Note

2009 cost fair value  redemptions
MAV 1 $ 925,960 $ 556,389 $ 1,538 § 8,648
MAV 3 74,737 72,385 68,931 -
Other third-party sponsored ABCP 34,770 26,403 - -
Bank-sponsored ABCP 67,021 46,400 - -
Total ABCP $ 1,102,488 $ 701,577 $ 70,469 $ 8,648

™ MAV 1 includes securities with a carrying value of $23,804 denominated in US funds.

MAYV Notes — Fair Value

ATB has estimated the fair value of the MAV 1 A-1, A-2, B and C notes using a discounted cash flow model. The key
assumption in this model is the market discount rate. The market discount rate is based on the CDX.IG index
tranches adjusted to reflect the lack of liquidity inherent in these notes. The discount rate used for the A-1, A-2, and B
notes was based on a spread over bankers’ acceptances and ranged from 541 basis points to 2915 basis points (545
basis points to 1878 basis points at March 31, 2009). The coupon rates, term to maturity, and anticipated cash flows
have been based on the expected terms of each note. The fair value of the MAV 1 notes remains at 60.1% of cost,
which is the same ratio as reported in the prior year.

The CDX.IG index improved between March 31, 2010 and March 31, 2009. This would generally result in an increase
in the estimated fair value of the notes held, but ATB believes that there is sufficient uncertainty relative to the fair
value of the notes that it would not be appropriate to make a significant positive adjustment to the valuation at this
time. Although credit spreads have tightened since March 31, 2009, thereby reducing the probability of collateral calls
after the moratorium period ends in July 2010, the credit risk still remains. The first 18 to 24 months post-restructuring
are the period of greatest credit risk. As time passes, the spread-loss triggers continue to widen, making collateral
calls less likely. In addition, with the passage of time the risk of credit losses is more determinable. ATB will continue
to review the valuation of these notes quarterly. Positive valuation adjustments will only be made once there is
sufficient certainty that the value of the notes has increased. If the CDX.IG index spreads increase or credit losses
occur, ATB will evaluate whether further negative valuation adjustments are necessary
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Note 9 (continued)

The value of the MAV 1 tracking notes for ineligible assets and the MAV 3 tracking notes for traditional assets has
been estimated based on a review of the underlying assets.

Other Third-Party ABCP

Dominion Bond Rating Service (DBRS) downgraded this investment from BBB at March 31, 2009, to B (high) during
the year because of concern over the credit quality of the underlying assets. Based on the continuing negative
outlook for this investment, ATB has reduced the fair value to $14,603 (42.0% of cost), down from the $26,403 (or
75.9% of cost) recorded at March 31, 2009. This valuation was based on a review of the underlying assets in the
trust.

Bank-Sponsored ABCP

ATB also holds investments in certain bank-sponsored commercial paper that were restructured similar to the
Montreal Accord notes. The valuation of these notes was based on a review of the underlying assets in each of the
trusts. The fair value of these notes decreased from 69.2% of cost at March 31, 2009, to 68.7% at March 31, 2010.
This decrease in value was due to a decline in the credit quality of the notes.

Income Impact

Because of the measurement uncertainty, ATB recognizes interest income on B notes, C notes, and the tracking
notes in MAV 1 and MAV 3 only as it is received—no accruals are recorded.

In addition to the $8,005 of interest income recognized on its ABCP during the year, ATB also recognized $4,197 in
other income, representing the accretion of the MFF deferral. The $537 recovery of loss on ABCP recognized this
year is the net of an $8,537 increase in the provision and a $9,074 payment received for amounts previously written
off.

Measurement Uncertainty

There remains continued uncertainty regarding the amount and timing of cash flows and the value of the assets that
underlie ATB’s ABCP. Consequently, it is possible that the ultimate fair value of these assets may vary significantly
from current estimates and that the magnitude of any such difference could be material to our financial results. The
most significant input into the estimate of value is the market discount rate. A 1% increase in the discount rate will
decrease the value of ATB’s ABCP notes by approximately $34,900.

NOTE 10 LOANS

Loans are recorded at amortized cost using the effective-interest-rate method, net of specific and general allowances
for credit losses. Incremental direct costs relating to the origination of loans are netted against deferred loan fees and
recognized on an effective-yield basis in a manner consistent with the appropriate fee. The effective-interest-rate
method also incorporates management’s best estimate regarding expected future cash flows and the impact of off-
market interest rates in the determination of amortized cost. Interest income related to loans is accounted for using
the accrual basis of accounting.

Credit Fees

Origination, restructuring and renegotiation fees, and incremental direct costs relating to the origination of loans are
deferred as received and amortized into income using the effective-interest-rate method. This method incorporates
management’s best estimate regarding expected future cash flows and the impact of off-market interest rates in the
determination of amortized costs. Commitment fees are recorded as interest income over the term of the loan, unless
it is expected that the loan commitment will not be used, in which case, commitment fees are recorded as credit fees
over the commitment period. Where ATB is the lead in a syndication, loan syndication fees are included in credit fees
as the syndication is completed, unless the yield on any loans retained is less than that of the other lenders involved
in the financing, in which case, an appropriate portion of the syndication fee is recorded as interest income over the
term of the loan.
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Note 10 (continued)
Impaired Loans

Loans, except for credit cards, are classified as impaired when principal or interest payments are more than 90 days
past due, unless the loan is fully secured or there is reasonable assurance as to the timely collection of principal and
interest within 180 days of the loan initially going into arrears. Consumer credit card loans are classified as impaired
and written off when payments become 180 days past due. Business and agriculture credit card loans that become
past due for three consecutive billing cycles (approximately 90 days) are removed from the credit card portfolio and
transferred into the applicable impaired loan category.

When a loan is classified as impaired, interest income ceases to be accrued, and the carrying amount of the loan is
reduced to its estimated net realizable amount by writing off all or part of the loan or by taking a specific allowance for
credit losses. Allowances are generally not recognized in respect of insured loans. No cash received on an impaired
loan is recorded as interest income until such time as any prior write-offs or specific allowances and external legal
fees have been recovered and all past-due principal has been paid. Impaired loans are returned to performing status
when the timely collection of all principal and interest is reasonably assured, all arrears have been collected, all legal
fees recovered, and allowances for credit losses reversed.

Foreclosed assets held for sale in settlement of an impaired loan are measured at estimated fair value at the date of
foreclosure and are presented as a component of loans in the consolidated balance sheet.

Credit Quality
Loans consist of the following:

($ thousands)

2010 2009
Gross Specific General Net carrying  Net carrying

imgaimd loans allowances allowances value value
Residential mortgages $ 7989004 $ 984 $ 10891 $ 7977129 $ 7,357,506
Personal 5,446 028 8,089 30,729 5,407,210 4,896,541
Credit card 599 379 - 22,302 577011 524,524
Agricultural 1,330,649 861 13,169 1,316,619 1,218,851
Independent business 2,364 973 5,788 47,221 2,311,964 2,273,403
Commercial 5026983 1571 80,808 4,944 604 5,331,410
$ 22757016 & 17,293 $ 205120 $ 22534603 $ 21,602,235

The net carrying value of the above loans includes mortgages insured primarily by the Canada Mortgage and
Housing Corporation, totalling $2,908,963 as at March 31, 2010 (2009: $2,727,688), and other insured loans, totalling
$94,148 (2009: $88,245).

Included in loans at March 31, 2010 are $17,014 in foreclosed assets held for resale.

The total net carrying value of the above loans includes loans denominated in U.S. funds, totalling $212,589 as at
March 31, 2010 (2009: $409,952).
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Note 10 (continued)

Loans Past Due
The following are loans past due but not impaired because they are less than 90 days past due or because it is

otherwise reasonable to expect timely collection of principal and interest:

(¥ thousands)
Residential 2010 2009
mortgages Business Pers ///A}//é/////////f// Total Total
Up to one month g 119697 $49983 § 33 8 35018 § 238512 $ 217,087
Over one month up to two months 15903 4451 ///// 37 463 29,706
Over two months up to three months 2,151 6,378 5,811 : 17,965 16,981
Over three months 1012 2,389 8478 % //}8 012 10,195

5 138763 $63001 § 56355 8 //,//////4////%/////// 952 $ 273,969

™ Consumer credit card loans are classified as impaired and written off when payments become 180 days past due. Business and
agricultural credit card loans that become due for three consecutive billing cycles (or approximately 90 days) are removed from the
credit card portfolio and transferred into the applicable impaired loan category.

Impaired Loans
Impaired loans including the related allowances are as follows:

($ thousands)
2010 2009

Gross impaired Specific Net carry Net carrying
loans allowances valu& value

Residential mortgages 3 68,938 $ 984 $ 67,954 § 29,260
Commercial 5,034 1o 3,463 3,301
Personal 29,380 8,089 21,291 12,904
Independent business 25,043 5,788 19,2$5§ 9,937

Agricultural 4,084 861 23 4,093

132479 § 17298 &

Industry Concentration
ATB is inherently exposed to significant concentrations of credit risk as its customers are all participants in the Alberta

economy, which in the past has shown strong growth and occasional sharp declines. ATB manages its credit risk
through diversification of its credit portfolio by limiting concentrations to single borrowers, industries, and geographic
regions of Alberta. As at March 31, 2010, no single industry segment represents more than 22.3% (2009: 27.2%) of
total gross business loans, and no single borrower represents more than 0.32% (2009: 0.40%) of the total gross loan
portfolio.

NOTE11 ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

The allowance for credit losses is maintained at a level management considers adequate to absorb credit-related
losses for all items in its credit portfolio. The allowance relates primarily to loans, but also provides for credit risk
relating to off-balance-sheet items such as loan guarantees and letters of credit (Refer to note 21).

The allowance for credit losses consists of specific allowances for impaired loans and general allowances for credit
risks. It is presented in the consolidated balance sheet as a reduction of total loan balances or, for any portion of
loan-related allowances over the related loan balance, included in other liabilities. The allowance is increased by the
provision for credit losses that represents ATB’s net credit loss experience for the year and is recorded in the
consolidated statement of income. The allowance is decreased by the amount of any provision related to loans
written off and is net of any recoveries of previously recognized provisions.
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Note 11 (continued)
Specific Allowances

The specific allowances on larger non-consumer impaired loans (including credit card balances) are established on a
loan-by-loan basis to reduce the carrying value of the impaired loans to the amount expected to be recovered.
Various methods are used to determine the net recoverable value of impaired loans, including the fair value of any
underlying security, discounted to the amount recoverable in the event of realization, or to the observable market
value for the loan. The specific allowance on consumer loans and smaller non-consumer loans is calculated using a
formula based on recent loss experience for the particular product type. No specific allowance is provided for
impaired consumer credit card loans, as balances are written off if payment has not been received within 180 days,
though collection efforts may continue. Any change in the amount we expect to recover on an impaired loan is
reflected in the provision for credit losses in the consolidated statement of income.

General Allowance

A general credit-loss allowance is established to provide for impairments in the credit portfolio as at the balance sheet
date that cannot be specifically identified on an item-by-item basis and therefore have not been considered in
establishing specific allowances.

The level of the general allowance is initially determined by applying expected loss factors to the loan and off-
balance-sheet credit portfolios. For consumer balances (including personal and other instalment loans, residential
mortgages, and personal credit cards, adjusted for utilization), expected losses are determined at the product
portfolio level, based on credit-rating-based loss ratios, expected default rates, and historical loss experiences. For
commercial balances (including business loans, business credit cards, and credit instrument balances, adjusted for
utilization), expected losses are determined at the borrower-category level by reference to internal risk ratings,
expected default rates by risk rating, and historical loss experiences. The consumer and commercial components of
the general allowances are then adjusted to reflect management’s best judgment concerning possible model and
estimation risks, the strength of the Alberta economy, and the overall state of the business cycle.

The general allowance is reassessed quarterly and will normally fluctuate as a result of changes in credit portfolio
levels, composition, and risk profile. Trends in probability of loss, severity of loss, and eventual exposure on default
are also considered, as is management’s assessment of other factors that may affect the losses inherent in the credit
portfolio, such as business mix, economic and credit market conditions, and trends.

Special General Allowance

In the event that certain industry sectors experience specific changes in economic conditions or adverse events
considered to increase credit risk, an additional special general allowance may be established. Such allowances
provide for losses inherent in the credit portfolio that have not been specifically identified and that the general
allowance may not provide for. The amount of any special general allowance is reassessed quarterly using expected-
loss methodologies that consider the probability of further changes in the conditions or adverse event that gave rise
to the initial establishment of the allowance. The probability of default, potential loss given default, and level of
expected recoveries, if any, are also considered. At March 31, 2010 and 2009, there was no special general
allowance.
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Note 11 (continued)

The continuity of the allowances for credit losses is as follows:

For the Years Ended March 31

($ thousands)
Specific General Total
Specific General Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Balance at begining of year $ 18157 $ 11896 % 176854 $ 153,010 %19&811 $ 164,906
Write-offs (36,158) (16,350) - - % 6,158) (16,350)
Recoveries 5718 3,743 - - % 5778 3,743
Provision for credit losses, 50,681 18,868 28,266 23,844 .,//,/;: 42,712
Balance at end of year 18458 18,157 205,120 176,854 993 578 195,011

Less: Allowance for cost of credit recovery
included in other liabilities 1,165 1,834 - - 5 1,834

NOTE 12 SECURITIZATION

ATB periodically securitizes residential mortgage loans by selling loans or packaged loans in the form of mortgage-
backed securities (MBS) through the Canada Mortgage Bond (CMB) program. These transactions are accounted for
as sales, and the transferred assets are removed from the consolidated balance sheet when ATB has surrendered
control over such assets and has received consideration other than beneficial interests in the transferred loans. For
control to have been surrendered, all of the following must occur: (i) the transferred loans must be isolated from the
seller, even in bankruptcy or other receivership; (ii) the purchaser must have the legal right to sell or pledge the
transferred loans; and (iii) the seller must not continue to control the transferred loans through an agreement to
purchase them or have a right to cause the loans to be returned. If any one of these conditions is not met, the transfer
is considered to be a secured borrowing and the loans remain on the consolidated balance sheet, with the proceeds
received recognized as a liability.

ATB securitizes residential mortgage loans through the creation of MBS. Gains on the sale of loans or MBS are
recognized in other income on the consolidated statement of income. Upon sale, ATB recognizes a retained interest
in the securitized mortgages. The retained interest consists of the discounted value of the future mortgage interest
and principal reinvestment receipts less the fixed interest payments due on the CMB. Retained interests are classified
as available-for-sale securities and subject to periodic impairment review.

For loan securitizations in which servicing rights are retained, deferred servicing revenue is recognized in other
liabilities. The deferred servicing revenue is amortized into other income in proportion to outstanding balances over
the weighted average life of the mortgage pool.

Determination of the gain on sale and the value of the retained interest is based on fair values. Fair values are based
on quoted market values, when available. When quoted market values are not available, ATB determines fair value
based on the present value of expected future cash flows using management’s best estimates of key assumptions,
such as weighted average life of the loans, prepayment rates, excess spread, expected credit losses, and discount
rates commensurate with the risks involved. ATB is exposed to prepayment and reinvestment risk relative to the
retained interest asset.

No credit losses are anticipated, as the transferred residential mortgage loans are insured by the Canada Mortgage
and Housing Corporation or by Genworth Financial.
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Note 12 (continued)

The following table summarizes the residential mortgage loans securitized by ATB:

For the years ended March 31 ($ thousands)
2010 2009

Proceeds, net of transaction fees g f//{///{/////f// $ 1,045,462
Retained interests - 61,486
Deferred servicing revenue (7 (6,265)

1,034 1,100,683
Residential mortgages securitized and sold 1,00 g 1,047,372
Gains on sale, net of transaction fees g 32710 $ 53,311

The following table summarizes the impact of securitization activities on the Consolidated Statement of Income:

For the years ended March 31 ($ thousands)

e wowm
Gain on sale, net of transaction fees g 32710 $ 53,311
Servicing revenues 3977 1,028
Other securitization loss 18414 (530)
Securitization income g 18273 $ 53,809
The following table summarizes certain cash flows received from the CMB program:
For the years ended March 31 ($ thousands)

2010 2009

Net proceeds from new securitizations 5 1001484 $ 1,045,462
Cash flows received on retained interests 13,852 5,773

The following tables outline the key assumptions used to measure the fair value of the retained interest and the
sensitivity of the resulting fair value to a change to the assumptions:

As at March 31 2010 2009
Expected weighted average life of mortgage pool in months 40 8 40.9
Prepayment rate 15.0% 15.0%
Excess spread 2 2.8%
Discount rate 3.3% 3.1%
As at March 31 2010 2009
Carrying amount of retained interest 55,546
Prepayment rate 15.0%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change (2,453)
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change (4,280)
Residual cash flows discount rate 3.1%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change (242)
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change (492)

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. Changes in fair value based on a variation in
assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption to the change in
fair value may not be linear. The effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value of the retained

interest is calculated without changing any other assumptions. Generally, the changes in one factor may result in
changes in another, which may magnify or counteract the sensitivity.
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Note 12 (continued)

The following table summarizes information on residential mortgages serviced by ATB:

As at March 31 ($ thousands)
/;/,i%///// 2009
Total residential mortgages being serviced g ///// //%// $ 8,366,473

.
Less morgages securitized /,///, 462,740 998,076
-

//// $ 7,368,397

Total residential mortgages on consolidated balance sheet $

NOTE 13 PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated amortization, except for land, which is carried at cost.
Buildings, computer equipment, other equipment, and leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The amortization period for building under capital lease corresponds to the lesser of
the useful life or lease term plus the first renewal option, if applicable. No amortization is calculated on premises and
equipment under construction or development until the assets are used. The estimated useful life for each asset class

is as follows:
Buildings
Buildings under capital lease
Computer equipment
Other equipment
Leasehold improvements

Up to 20 years

Up to 15 years

3 years

5 years

Lease term plus first renewal period, to a

maximum of 10 years

As at March 31 ($ thousands)

Accumulated Net Carrying Net Carrying

Cost  Amortization Value Value
Land $ 71546 § - § 7546 $ 7,546
Buildings 112,983 62,815 50,168 59,332
Buildings under capital lease ) 9,518 468 9,050 -
Computer equipment 60,012 352013 24799 27,313
Other equipment 43,280 31,882 113 % 10,621
Leasehold improvements 122,453 85,984 36,469 29,051
Computer equipment under development 20,150 - 50 21,877
Leasehold improvements under construction 29,251 - 19,783

$ 405193 § 216362 § \\\\\ 175,523

@ During the year ended March 31, 2010, ATB entered into a capital lease for a building.

Amortization expense charged to the consolidated statement of income for the year ended
March 31, 2010, for premises and equipment was $32,466 (2009: $29,755).

Gains and losses on the disposal of premises and equipment are recorded in the consolidated statement of income in
the year of disposal. When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of premises and
equipment may not be recoverable, ATB assesses whether the asset may have been impaired. The net carrying
value of such impaired assets is written down to their estimated fair value. There were no impairment write-downs
recognized during the year ended March 31, 2010 (2009: nil).
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NOTE 14 SOFTWARE AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Software and other intangibles are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. No amortization is calculated on software under construction or development
until the assets are used. The estimated useful life for software and other intangibles is three to five years, with
certain software licences having a useful life of 15 years. The majority of the software under development relates to
the current project to replace ATB’s banking system. ATB expects to amortize the majority of these costs over 15
years once the system is ready for use.

As at March 31 ) thousands

2009

/
Accumulate ////// ///

Cost  Amortization

Net Carrying

Value

Software $ 158785 $§ 97783 § 2 § 60468
Other intangibles 1316 256 -
Computer equipment under development 189,705 - 139,705 50,150

$ 299806 § 98,089 § 20$ 599,612

As a result of the adoption of the new Goodwill and Intangible Assets standard, the net carrying value of $ 201,767
(2009: $110,618) for software and other intangibles was reclassified from premises and equipment to software and
other intangibles in the consolidated balance sheet.

Amortization expense charged to the consolidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2010, for
software and intangibles was $21,952 (2009: $17,040).

When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of software and other intangibles may not
be recoverable, ATB assesses whether the asset may be impaired. The net carrying value of any impaired assets is
written down to its estimated fair value. There were no impairment write-downs recognized during the year ended
March 31, 2010 (2009: nil).

NOTE 15 OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following:

As at March 31 ($ thousands)
__2010 2009 _
Accrued interest receivable $ 114,600 $ 133,917
Cheques and other items in transit 56,700 34,100
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 40,540 65,831
Accrued pension-benefit asset (Note 19) 33419 21,445
Other 18,14 § 13,262
268,555
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NOTE 16 DEPOSITS

Deposit balances consist of the following

e

Personal & 1645167 8 3745507 & 2158971 6 1998050 5 430549 § ///// / . 208300

Business

7,133 $10,797,569

andother | 4,826,130 2,045,770 2:307,754 64701 50063 19,994 9,544,040 10,158,200
Wholesale . . 1011223 798,385 399193 399193 . e 2,925,387
S 6471297 § 5791207 § 5477948 S 2991338 § 879805 $ 639,554 S 327,028 S 22,579,167 $23881246

Total deposits presented above include $667,528 (2009: $502,961) denominated in U.S. funds.

As at March 31, 2010, deposits by various departments and agencies of the Government of Alberta included in the

preceding schedule total $23,600 (2009: $9,284).

The repayment of all deposits without limit, including accrued interest, is guaranteed by the Crown in right of Alberta
in respect of which the Crown assesses an annual deposit guarantee fee payable by ATB. For the year ended March

31, 2010, the fee was $23,706 (2009: $29,417).

NOTE 17 OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities consist of the following:

As at March 31 ($ thousands)
2010 2009

Accrued interest payable $ 125509 $ 159,485
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 388,635 195,107
Payments in lieu of tax payable (Note 27) 38,075 -
Cheques and other items in transit 16,500 7,300
Deposit guarantee fee payable 23,706 28,004
Due to clients, brokers, and dealers 16,998 7,334
Achievement notes (Note 29) 7,350 -
Accrued pension-benefit liability (Note 19) 6,659 6,048

$ 623432 $ 403,278
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NOTE18 SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

ATB privately places debentures with the Crown in right of Alberta. These debentures are subordinated to deposits
and other liabilities and are unsecured, non-convertible, non-redeemable, and non-transferable. They bear a fixed
rate of interest payable semi-annually.

Subordinated debentures consist of the following:

($ thousands)
Maturity date Interest rate | . o010 2009
June 30, 2009 3.8% 11,837
June 30, 2010 4.2% 15,785
June 30, 2011 4.6% 13,40 13,401
June 30, 2012 4.5% 15990 15,990
_$ / $ 57,013

The outstanding subordinated debentures were issued with an original term of five years in respect to ATB’s annual
deposit guarantee fee obligations. Subordinated debentures were not issued in 2010 or 2009 as the deposit
guarantee fee obligation was paid in cash for those years. ATB'’s obligation for the deposit guarantee fee for the year
ended March 31, 2010, is recorded in other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet (Refer to note 17).

As detailed in note 27, additional subordinated debentures will be issued to settle the current liability for ATB’s
payment in lieu of tax.

NOTE19 EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

ATB provides future benefits to current and past employees through a combination of defined benefit (DB) and
defined contribution (DC) plans.

ATB's current non-management employees participate in the Public Service Pension Plan (PSPP) with other Alberta
public-sector employees. The PSPP is a DB pension plan that provides benefits based on members’ years of service
and earnings. ATB provides its management employees with a registered pension plan (the ATB Plan) with DB and
DC provisions. ATB also provides a non-registered DB supplemental retirement plan (SRP) and other post-
employment benefits (OPEB) for designated management employees.

Effective July 15, 2006, ATB finalized arrangements with the Government of Alberta to assume pension obligations
relating to current ATB employees who participated in the PSPP prior to joining the ATB Plan (the PSPP take-on).
The arrangements formalized ATB’s commitment to providing combined pensionable service (CPS) benefits for
qualifying members whose CPS benefits were affected by the withdrawal of ATB from the Management Employees
Pension Plan.

Following execution of the PSPP take-on agreements, certain assets and liabilities were transferred from the PSPP
into the ATB Plan in respect of all employees promoted to management positions between January 1, 1994, and
December 31, 2005, who were employed by ATB on July 15, 2006. In addition, there are ongoing annual transfers of
obligations and assets in respect of employees promoted into management positions in the previous calendar year.

Accounting for Defined Benefit Plans — Registered, Supplemental, and Other

The DB portion of the ATB Plan, SRP, and OPEB obligations provide future employee benefits based on members’
years of service and highest average salary. Actuarial determination of the accrued benefit obligations uses the
projected benefit method pro-rated on service, which incorporates management'’s best estimate of long-term
investment return on plan assets, member salary growth and other cost-escalation factors, retirement ages of
employees, mortality, and other actuarial factors.

ATB determines the actuarial value of plan assets based on its best estimate of the expected long-term rate of return
and fair value of plan assets.

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report 279



ATB FINANCIAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Note 19 (continued)

Accounting for Public Service Pension Plan and Defined Contribution Plans

ATB accounts for its participation in the PSPP in the same way it accounts for the cost of the DC provisions of the
ATB Plan. In both cases, funding contributions are expensed as they become due and are recorded in salaries and
employee benefits in the consolidated statement of income. For the year ended March 31, 2010, expenses related to
the PSPP were $7,907 (2009: $7,290), and expenses related to DC provisions of the ATB Plan were $12,762 (2009:
$9,632).

Plan Valuations, Asset Allocation, and Funding

ATB measures its accrued benefit obligations and the fair values of plan assets for accounting purposes as at March
31 each year for the ATB Plan, SRP, and OPEB obligations. ATB makes regular funding contributions to the DB plan
according to the most recent valuation for funding purposes. The SRP and OPEB obligations are not pre-funded, and
such benefits are paid from ATB’s assets as they become due. The most recent actuarial valuation of the DB
provisions of the ATB Plan for funding purposes was performed as of December 31, 2008.

The DB plan’s investment policy sets targets for an acceptable range for the allocation of plan assets between equity,
debt, and other assets. The DB plan’s actual and target asset allocations are as follows:

Target 2010 Actual Target 2009 Actual
Normal Min-Max 2009 Normal Min-Max 2009
% %
Equities
Canadian 25 20-30 19 25 20-30 17
Foreign 45 40-50 41 45 40-50 35
70 60 70 52
Fixed Income
Canadian 30 20-40 40 30 20-40 48
Cash . 0-15 - - 0-15 -
100 100 100 100

Cash Payments

Total cash paid or payable for employee future benefits for the year ended March 31, 2010— consisting of cash
contributed by ATB in respect of the DB and DC provisions of the ATB Plan, cash payments made directly to
beneficiaries for the unfunded SRP, and cash contributed to the PSPP— was $41,222 (2009: $20,849). The cash
payments increased over the prior year as ATB made an additional contribution to improve the DB plans solvency
ratio.
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Note 19 (continued)
Net Accrued Benefit Asset (Liability)
The funded status and net accrued pension-benefit asset (liability) for the DB provisions of the ATB Plan and the

other pension obligations (which include the SRP, obligations recognized in respect of the CPS benefit obligation to
inactive plan members, and OPEB) consist of the following:

As at March 31 ($ thousands)

p 2009
Registered plan
Fair value of plan assets $ 111,247
Projected benefit obligation (133,118)
Plan funding deficit (21,871)
Unamortized past-service amendment 15,840
Unamortized actuarial net loss 65,206 27,476
Accrued pension-benefit asset $ 33419 ; $ 21,445
Supplemental and other
Unfunded projected benefit obligation, representing the plan funding deficit (7,929) (4,900)
Unamortized past-service amendment 1326 1,476
Unamortized actuarial net gain (56) (2,624)
Accrued pension-benefit liability 5 6,659) $ (6,048)

The net accrued benefit asset and liability are included in other assets and other liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet as appropriate (refer to Notes 15 and 17.)
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Note 19 (continued)

Change in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations

Changes in the estimated financial position of the DB provisions of the ATB Plan and of the SRP and OPEB

obligations consist of the following:

For the years ended March 31

Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Contributions from ATB

Contributions from employees

Actual return (loss) on plan assets

Benefits paid

Net transfer in - Public Service Pension Plan
Actual plan expenses

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year
Actuarial loss (gain)

Current service cost

Contributions from employees

Plan amendment - Public Service Pension Plan
Net transfer in - Public Service Pension Plan
Interest cost

Benefits paid

Projected benefit obligation at end of year

Defined Benefit Pension Expense

($ thousands)

Registered plan

Supplemental and other

2010 2009 2010 @ 2009

$ 111247 § 143,800

20,149 3,710 216
1,120 1126 ;
23181 (34,742) -
(5,095) (5,650) (216)
3,600 3,894 -
1,187 (891) -

§ 153015 § 111247 § /// $ ;

|

$ 133118 $ 151,063 § 4,///» 6,131
53,574 (30,075) 2323 (2,343)
1,406 1,740 653 895
1,120 1126 - -

90 1,583 . -

3,600 3,894 . .
11,054 9,437 457 433
5,095 (5,650) 404 (216)

$ 198867 $ 133118 $ 7929 $ 4,900

Benefit expense for the DB provisions of the ATB Plan and for the SRP and OPEB consists of the following:

For the years ended March 31

Current service cost (including provision for expenses)
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation

Plan amendments

Actual (return) loss on plan assets

Actuarial losses (gains)

Adjustments to recognize the long-term nature of
employee future-benefit costs:

Difference between actual and expected return on plan assets

Difference between actual actuarial losses (gains)
arising and actuarial losses (gains) amortized

Amortization of initial transition asset

Difference between actual past-service amendment
arising and past-service amendments amortized

Net pension-benefit expense recognized

282

($ thousands)

Registered plan

2010

5 2185
11,054

0
(23,181)
53,574

43, 7Q2

@©

L7175
-

8,170

Supplemental and other

-

2009

$ 2500 895
9,437 433
1,583 -
34,742 -
(30,075) (2,343)
18,187 (1,015)

2,350
172 150
$ 3,001 1,485
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Note 19 (continued)

Key Assumptions and Sensitivities

The significant assumptions used in the actuarial determination of projected benefit obligations and the related net
benefit expense are, on a weighted-average basis, as follows:

Accrued benefit obligation as at March 31
Discount rate at end of year
Rate of compensation increase ‘"

Defined benefit expense for the years ended March 31
Discount rate at beginning of year
Expected long-term return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase "
Average remaining service period of active employees
Average remaining service period of active employees
(2006 PSPP transfer)
(2007 PSPP transfer)
(2008 PSPP transfer)
(2009 PSPP transfer)
(2010 PSPP transfer)

Registered plan

2

3.1%

.
o

8.3%
71.3%
2.6%
8.5 years

10.6 years
11.2 years
11.2 years
11.0 years

9.5 years

Y The long-term weighted-average rate of compensation increase, including merit and promotion.

2009

8.3%
2.6%

6.2%
7.1%
4.4%
9.0 years

10.6 years
11.2 years
11.2 years
11.0 years

Supplemental and other

2009

0% 8.3%
A% 2.6%

6.2%

6.0%
12.0 years

The following table outlines the possible impact of changes in certain key weighted-average economic assumptions
used to measure the accrued pension-benefit obligations as at March 31, 2010, and the related expense for the year

then ended:

As at March 31, 2010 ($ thousands)
Registered plan Supplemental and other
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
obligation expense obligation expense
Discount Rate
Impact of:  1.0% increase $ (26,889) $ (2,043) $ (966) (121)
1.0% decrease $ 34,100 $ 2,458 § 1,205 147
Inflation Rate
Impact of:  1.0% increase $ 15,400 $ 1,760 $ 166 (28)
1.0% decrease $ (13,719) $ (1,577) $ (265) (1)
Rate of Compensation Increase
Impact of:  0.25% increase $ 1,252 § 170 $ 24 18
0.25% decrease $ (1,226) $ (137) $ (24) (17)
Expected long-term rate of return
on plan assets
Impact of:  1.0% increase $ - 8 (1,181) $
1.0% decrease $ - $ 1,181 $

This sensitivity analysis should be used with caution as it is hypothetical and the effect of changes in each significant
assumption may not be linear. Also, the sensitivities in each key variable have been calculated independently of
changes in other key variables, and actual experience may result in simultaneous changes to a number of key
assumptions. Changes in one factor could result in changes to another that may serve to amplify or reduce certain

sensitivities.
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NOTE 20 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are financial contracts whose value is derived from an underlying reference rate such
as an interest rate, a currency exchange rate, the price of an equity or debt security, or an equity or commodity index.

ATB enters into various over-the-counter derivative contracts in the normal course of business, including interest rate
swaps and options, equity and commodity options, and foreign-exchange and commodity forwards. ATB uses such
instruments for two purposes: for its risk management program and to meet the needs of ATB customers (referred to
as “non-trading” and “trading” portfolios, respectively).

ATB'’s corporate (or non-trading) derivative portfolio is not intended for speculative income generation but for
asset/liability management purposes—that is, to manage ATB's interest-rate, foreign-exchange, and equity- and
commodity-related exposures arising from its portfolio of investments and loan assets and deposit obligations.

ATB'’s trading (or “client derivative”) portfolio is not used to generate trading income through active assumption of
market risk, but rather is used to meet the risk management requirements of ATB customers. ATB does not accept
any net exposure to such derivative contracts (except for credit risk), as it either enters into offsetting contracts with
other financial institution counterparties or incorporates them into its own risk management programs.

ATB uses the following derivative financial instruments:
Swaps

Swaps are transactions in which two parties agree to exchange defined cash flows. ATB uses the following types of
swap contracts:

¢ Ininterest rate swaps, ATB exchanges fixed- and floating-rate interest payments with a counterparty based
on an agreed notional principal amount denominated in a single currency. These are used in the corporate
derivative portfolio to manage exposure to interest rate fluctuations, primarily arising from the investment,
loan, and deposit portfolios.

e In cross-currency swaps, ATB exchanges interest and principal payments in different currencies. These are
used in the corporate portfolio to manage ATB’s foreign-exchange risk.

Options

Options are transactions in which the party that writes an option contract charges the buyer a premium in exchange
for the right, but not the obligation, to either buy or sell a specified amount of currency or financial instruments at a
specified price on a future date or within a specified time period. ATB buys specialized forms of option contracts such
as interest rate caps, collars, and swap options, as well as equity- and commaodity-linked options direct from
counterparties in the over-the-counter market (i.e., not purchased on market exchanges). These are used in the
corporate derivative portfolio to manage exposure to interest rate and equity and commodity market fluctuations,
primarily arising from the loan and deposit portfolios. ATB also buys and sells (or writes) similar option contracts
relating to energy commodities in the client derivative portfolio.

Forwards

Foreign-exchange or commodity forwards are transactions conducted in the over-the-counter markets in which two
parties agree to either buy or sell a specified amount of a currency or security at a specific price or within a specified
time period. ATB uses foreign-exchange forward contracts in both its corporate and client derivative portfolios to
manage currency exposure, either arising from its own foreign-currency-denominated loans and deposits, or for its
customers. Commodity forward contracts are used only in the client derivative portfolio.

Accounting for Derivatives

All derivative financial instruments, including embedded derivatives, are classified as held for trading (HFT) and
measured at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet. Derivatives having positive fair value are presented as
derivative assets, and those having negative fair value are presented as derivative liabilities. Changes in the fair
value of derivative financial instruments are recorded in net income, unless the derivative qualifies for hedge
accounting as a cash flow hedge, in which case the changes in fair value are reflected in other comprehensive
income.
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Note 20 (continued)

Hedge Accounting

Hedge accounting is optional and allows recognition of the effective component of a hedging derivative in net income
at the same time as the hedged item, thus reducing income volatility. The change in fair value attributable to any
ineffective component of a hedging derivative is recognized in net income during the period of ineffectiveness.

For a derivative instrument to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship between the derivative (hedging)
instrument and the hedged item(s) must be designated and formally documented at inception. ATB must also
document an assessment of the effectiveness of the derivative instrument in offsetting changes in cash flows or fair
value of the hedged item, both at inception of the hedging relationship and on an ongoing basis. When ATB
designates a derivative as a hedge, it is classified as either a cash flow hedge or a fair value hedge. No derivative
instruments have been designated as fair value hedges as of March 31, 2010 (or as of March 31, 2009).

ATB's derivative instruments in cash flow hedges are intended to generate cash flows that offset the variability in
expected and/or anticipated cash flows from the hedged item. ATB uses various interest rate derivatives to manage
risk relating to the variability of cash flows from certain securities and loans as well as certain deposits. In a qualifying
cash flow hedge relationship, the effective portion of the change in fair value of the hedging derivative instrument is
recognized in other comprehensive income, and the ineffective portion in net income. Any such amounts recognized
in accumulated other comprehensive income are reclassified from other comprehensive income into net income in
the same period that the underlying hedged item affects net income.

The amount of other comprehensive income that is expected to be reclassified to the consolidated statement of
income over the next 12 months is $20,732 (2009: $70,839). This will be offset by gains and losses on assets and
liabilities that were hedged.

Embedded Derivatives

Embedded derivatives are components within a financial instrument or other contract that have features similar to a
derivative. Embedded derivatives with economic characteristics and risks considered not closely related to the
characteristics and risks of the host contract may need to be accounted for separately if a separate instrument with
the same terms would qualify as a derivative and if the host contract is not already measured at fair value.

ATB has identified embedded derivatives within certain extendible loan contracts and within all equity-linked and
commodity-linked deposit contracts. Any such embedded derivatives are not considered closely related to the host
contract and have been accounted for separately as derivative assets or liabilities.

Derivative-Related Credit Risk

Derivative financial instruments traded in the over-the-counter market are subject to credit risk of a financial loss
occurring if a counterparty defaults on its contractual obligation. ATB’s maximum credit risk in respect of such
derivatives is the fair value of all derivatives where ATB is in a favourable position. ATB endeavours to limit its credit
risk by dealing only with counterparties believed to be creditworthy and manages the credit risk for derivatives using
the same credit risk process applied to loans and other credit assets. Financial institution counterparties must have a
minimum long-term public credit rating of A-low/A3/A- or better. The exposure to credit risk on derivatives is also
reduced by entering into master netting agreements and collateral agreements with counterparties. To the extent that
any unfavourable contracts with the counterparty are not settled, they reduce ATB'’s net exposure in respect of
favourable contracts with the same counterparty.

2009-2010 Alberta Finance and Enterprise Annual Report 285



ATB FINANCIAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — MARCH 31, 2010

Note 20 (continued)

The fair value of derivative financial instruments, segregated between contracts in a favourable position (i.e., having
positive fair value) and contracts in an unfavourable position (i.e., having negative fair value) consists of the following:

As at March 31 ($ thousands)

010 @000 2009

Eavourable Unfavot Favourable Unfavourable
position position position

Contracts ineligible for hedge accounting

Intgrpetis(;cnrsate contracts s 2%: 5 %% $ 176 $ -

Swaps 4,736 (2,471)
233 4,912 2,471)
Embedded derivatives
Equity-and commodity-linked deposits - (45,930) - (16,766)
Other - (217) - (3)
- (46,147) - (16,769)
Foreign-exchange contracts
Forwards 6,451 (6,843) 5,331 (1,389)
Equity contracts
Options 48 405 - 16,764 -
Forward contracts
Commodities 86,937 (85,944) 93,072 (92,297)
Total fair value ineligible contracts S 142006 % (188,934) § 120,079 § (112,926)

Contracts eligible for hedge accounting
Interest rate contracts

Swaps 84,483 (7,958) 138,615 (14,592)

Total fair value eligible contracts 84,483 (7,958) 138,615 (14,592)
Total fair value $ 296509 % gﬁ 46,892) $ 258694 $§ (127,518)
Less impact of master netting agreement (7,958) (17,063)

Less impact of financial institution counterparty

collateral held (86,730) (103,730)

Residual credit exposure on derivatives to ATB $ 131821 $ 137,901

All of the residual credit exposure presented above relates to contracts with financial institution counterparties, except
for $33,022 which relates to client counterparties (2009: $24,664).
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Note 20 (continued)

Term to Maturity

The notional amounts of derivative instruments represent the underlying principal amount to which the specified rate
or price is applied in order to calculate the amount of cash flows to be exchanged and have varying maturity dates.
Notional amounts do not represent assets or liabilities and are not recorded in the consolidated balance sheet. The
remaining contractual terms to maturity for the notional amounts of all derivative instruments are as follows:

As at March 31 ($ thousands)

oo 2009
o

Ineligible for | Eligible for

hedge hedage Within 3to12 o5
accounting  accounting 3 Months Months /// ,/, ///,,/;;,, Total

Interest rate contracts ///////// //

Options % 5oesn 8 -5 2181 § 21333 § A0 / $ 89376

Swaps - 2.969 000 680,000 1,200000  1.08 4,166,000
Foreign exchange contracts

Forwards 1.184142 - 771,144 280,333 132 665 270,917
Equity contracts

Options 369 660 - 5,850 58,320 305,510 238,055
Forward contracts /

Commodities 1,622 390 - 25213 1,263,034 334,143 1,62 ,%% 1,204,847
Embedded derivatives .

Equity-and commodity-linked deposits 380615 - 5,680 57,406 267 529 330,615 243,389

Other 40177 - 1,192 5,436 33,549 40177 70,094
Total $ 3600893 § 2969000 $ 1491216 § 2885860 § 2192815 § 6569893 $ 6,282,678

In addition to the notional amounts of derivative instruments shown above, ATB has certain foreign-exchange spot
deals that settle in one day. These deals had notional amounts of $15,545 as at March 31, 2010 (2009: $26,515).

NOTE21 COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES, AND CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

Credit Instruments

In the normal course of business, ATB enters into various off-balance-sheet commitments to provide customers with
sources of credit. These may include letters of credit, letters of guarantee and loan guarantees, and commitments to
extend credit.

All of these credit arrangements are subject to ATB’s normal credit standards, and collateral may be obtained where
appropriate. The contract amounts represent the maximum credit risk exposure to ATB should the contracts be fully
drawn and any collateral held proves to be of no value. As many of these arrangements will expire or terminate
without being drawn upon, the contract amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

Letters of Credit

Standby letters of credit represent an irrevocable obligation to make payments to a third party if the customer is
unable to meet its financial or performance contractual obligations. In the event of a call on such commitments, ATB
has recourse against the customer.

Documentary and commercial letters of credit require ATB to honour drafts presented by third parties upon
completion of specific activities.
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Note 21 (continued)
Guarantees

Guarantees also represent an irrevocable obligation to make payments to a third party in certain situations.
Guarantees include contracts or indemnities that contingently require ATB to make payments (either in the form of
some asset or in the form of services) to another party based on changes in an asset, liability, or equity the other
party holds; failure of a third party to perform under an obligating agreement; or failure of a third party to pay its
indebtedness when due. The term of these guarantees varies according to the contracts and normally does not
exceed one year. In the event of a call on such commitments, ATB has recourse against the customer.

Commitments to Extend Credit

Commitments to extend credit represent undertakings by ATB to make credit available in the form of loans or other
financing for specific amounts and maturities, subject to certain conditions, and include recently authorized credit not
yet drawn down and credit facilities available on a revolving basis.

The contractual amounts of all such credit instruments are outlined as follows:

As at March 31 ($ thousands)

2010 2009
Guarantees 5 156,062 $ 170,254
Letters of credit 177,335 150,160
Commitments to extend credit 11,759,001 10,005,865

$ 12092398 $ 10,326,279

The amounts presented above in the current and comparative year for commitments to extend credit include demand
facilities of $8,835,193 (2009: $5,443,063). For demand facilities, ATB considers the undrawn portion to represent a
commitment to our customer; however, the terms of the commitment allow ATB to adjust the credit exposure if
circumstances warrant doing so. Accordingly, these demand facilities are considered to represent a lesser exposure
than facilities with extended commitment terms. In addition, credit facilities are contracted for a limited period of
usually less than one year and may expire or terminate without being drawn upon.

Pledged Assets

In the ordinary course of business, ATB grants a security interest in certain collateral (including securities, interest-
bearing deposits with financial institutions, and loans and accounts) to the Bank of Canada in order to participate in
clearing and payment systems and to have access to its facilities. ATB also pledges securities to Clearing and
Depository Services Inc. in order to participate in a settlement-agent credit ring.

As at March 31 ($ thousands)
2010 2009
Assets pledged to:
Bank of Canada 5 687377 $ 386,000
Clearing and Depository Services Inc. 14,000 14,000

$ 701377 S 400,000

At March 31, 2010, the total amount of pledged assets encumbered was $ 70,875 (2009: $44,250).

At March 31, 2010, ATB held $86,730 (2009: $103,730) in financial assets as collateral from financial institution
counterparties related to derivative contracts.
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Note 21 (continued)

Indemnification Agreements

In the normal course of operations, ATB enters into various agreements that provide general indemnification to the
other party. Examples of such agreements include service agreements, leasing agreements, clearing arrangements,
and service contracts. These indemnifications may require ATB, in certain circumstances, to compensate the other
party for costs incurred as a result of various contingencies. ATB also indemnifies directors and officers, to the extent
permitted by law, against certain claims that may be made against them as a result of their services to the company.
The terms of these indemnifications vary based on the contract, the nature of which prevents ATB from making a
reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount it could be required to pay to other parties. Historically, any
such amounts have not been significant. No amount has been accrued in the consolidated balance sheet as at March
31, 2010, and March 31, 2009, in respect of such indemnifications.

Contingent Liabilities

Various actions and legal proceedings arising from the normal course of business are pending against ATB.
Management does not consider the aggregate liability, if any, of these actions and proceedings to be material.

Margin-Funding Facility

As a participant of MAV 1 under the Montreal Accord, ATB must provide a margin-funding facility (MFF) to cover any
potential collateral calls associated with the leveraged super-senior trades underlying the Montreal Accord notes.
ATB has the same rank as the other participants in the MFF. This credit commitment totals $551,500 and matures in
July 2017. ATB does not receive any fee for providing this commitment. The advances that could be made under the
MFF are expected to bear interest at the bankers’ acceptance rate. All amounts advanced under the MFF will take
precedence over amounts payable on the notes issued under MAV 1.

Contractual Obligations

ATB has various obligations under long-term non-cancellable contracts, which include service contracts and
operating leases for buildings and equipment. The future minimum payments for such obligations for each of the next
five fiscal years and thereafter are outlined as follows:

As at March 31 ($ thousands)
2011 $ 127,620
2012 88,018
2013 39,585
2014 28,507
2015 12,663
2016 and thereafter 41,331
§ 337,724

The total expense for premises and equipment operating leases charged to the consolidated statement of income for
the year ended March 31, 2010, is $36,470 (2009: $27,856).

Major Capital Project

In 2008, the ATB Board approved a project to replace ATB’s banking system. Cumulative spending on the project to
March 31, 2010 was approximately $176,924. Although not committed contractually, ATB management intends to
complete this project in fiscal 2011-12 and expects to spend an additional $148,000. The final project costs may vary
depending on the final implementation date.
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NOTE 22 DISCLOSURE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
Salaries and Benefits

ATB is an agent of the Crown in right of Alberta and, as such, is required to disclose certain information prepared in
accordance with Treasury Board Directive 12/98 as amended. This directive applies to all departments, regulated
funds, provincial agencies, and Crown-controlled organizations. In accordance with the directive, the amounts
disclosed in the following table reflect amounts earned in the years ended March 31:

For the years ended March 31 ($ thousands)

2009

S

Other R
Base Variable @g cash
Salary ! current Deferred benefits ! Total
Chairman of the Board 5 - 3 - & -5 5 5
Board Members © - - - 435
President and Chief Executive Officer 502 202 204 43 1
Chief Risk Officer 241 0 53 18
Chief Financial Officer 247 71 40 24
Chief People and Marketing Officer 22 67 48 24
Executive Vice-President Retail Financial Services a2l 93 43 2
Executive Vice-President Corporate Financial Services v 83 55 60
Executive Vice-President Independent Business
and Agriculture © 115 95 68 242
Executive Vice-President and
President ATB Investor Services 201 153 113 20

(1) Base salary consists of all reqular pensionable base pay earned.

(2) Current variable pay is accrued based on goal attainment for the fiscal year but is paid after the fiscal year-end.

(3) Deferred variable pay is earned in the year, though payment is deferred for up to 33 months and depends on the employee’s
continued employment with ATB. The actual amount each employee receives appreciates or depreciates from the amount
reported above based on a specified methodology to reflect ATB’s actual financial performance over the next two fiscal
years.

(4) Other cash benefits consist of fees for attendance at meetings, retainers, honoraria, lump-sum payments, perquisite
allowances, and other direct cash remuneration.

(5) Other non-cash benefits consist of ATB’s share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of
employees, including statutory contributions, health care, parking, group life insurance, accidental disability and
dismemberment insurance, long-term disability plans, tuition, and professional memberships.

(6) The Board consists of 12 members plus the Chairman, whose remuneration is disclosed separately.

(7) The incumbent does not participate in either the registered retirement plan or the supplemental retirement plan, but does
receive other post-employment benefits.

(8) The position Executive Vice-President Independent Business and Agriculture was established in fiscal 2009-10. Other cash
benefits for this position include remuneration paid at hiring to compensate for benefits forgone from a previous employer.
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Note 22 (continued)
Retirement and Other Post-Employment Benefits

Retirement and other post-employment benefits presented in the Salaries and Benefits table above reflect the period
expense for pension and other post-employment benefit (OPEB) rights to future compensation. Executive officers
may receive such benefits through participation in either the defined benefit or defined contribution provisions of
ATB's registered pension plan (the ATB plan) together with participation in our non-registered defined benefit
supplemental retirement plan (SRP), or through other supplemental post-retirement benefit arrangements. (Refer to
note 19 for a detailed description of ATB’s accounting for its retirement plans.)

As at March 31 ($ thousands)
0w 2009
Registered plan mental /////%// Pri ice
service ////////
cost Total
President and Chief Executive Officer @ s 8 $ 429
Chief Risk Officer 9 79
Chief Financial Officer 9 60
Chief People and Marketing Officer 9 64
Executive Vice-President Retail Financial Services 9 38
Executive Vice-President Corporate Financial Services 9 66
Executive Vice-President Independent Business
and Agriculture 4
Executive Vice-President and
President ATB Investor Services 9 58

(1)  Asthe SRP and OPEB provided are unfunded obligations and are paid from operating revenues as they come due, none of
the SRP and OPEB costs represent cash payments in the period; they represent the period expense for rights to future
payments. These benefit costs represent the total estimated cost incurred in the years ended March 31 to provide annual
pension income over an actuarially determined post-employment period. Current-service cost is the actuarial present value of
the benefits earned in the fiscal year. Prior service and other costs for both SRP and OPEB may include amortization of
actuarial gains and losses, amortization of past-service amendments, and interest accruing on the accrued benefit obligation.

(2)  The incumbent does not participate in either the ATB plan or the SRP, but does receive OPEB.

The accrued SRP and OPEB obligation for each executive is as follows:

($ thousands)

Accrued Change in
obligation accrued
March 31, 2009 obligation

President and Chief Executive Officer " $ 655 $ 527
Chief Risk Officer 261 206
Chief Financial Officer 134 116
Chief People and Marketing Officer 166 203

Executive Vice-President Retail Financial Services 102 76

Ediﬁnﬁii gt Busnss ” 158 %
i

Executive Vice-President and

President Investor Services 149 167 \\

(1) The incumbent does not participate in either the ATB plan or the SRP, but does receive OPEB.

(2)  The position Executive Vice-President Independent Business and Agriculture was established in fiscal 2009-10 and does not
participate in the SRP.

(3)  The accrued obligation is the amount of funds that would need to be set aside today to meet the obligations in the future
based on predetermined assumptions. The discount rate was decreased from 8.3% on March 31, 2009 to s6.0% on March
31, 2010, because of changes in market interest rates. Consequently, there was a large increase in the accrued obligation on
March 31, 2010.

(4)

316
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NOTE 23 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, ATB provides normal banking services to various departments and agencies of
the Government of Alberta on terms similar to those offered to non-related parties (Refer to note 16). During the year,
ATB leased certain premises from the Government of Alberta and paid insurance premiums as a participant in the
Alberta Finance Risk Management Fund. For the year ended March 31, 2010, the total of these payments was $921
(2009: $881). ATB recognized a deposit guarantee fee payable to the Crown in right of Alberta in return for a
guarantee on all customer deposits and a payment in lieu of tax (Refer to note 16 and 27). ATB also has
subordinated debt outstanding with the Crown in right of Alberta (Refer to note 18).

ATB entered into a wholesale borrowing agreement with the Minister of Finance and Enterprise on November 24,
2003 (amended November 9, 2007). Under this agreement, the Minister of Finance and Enterprise acts as fiscal
agent of ATB Financial under the Financial Administration Act and is involved in raising wholesale deposits in the
marketplace.

ATB provides banking services to its directors on terms similar to those offered to non-related parties, and to its
officers and employees at preferential rates. The total outstanding balances of residential mortgages and loans to all
of these parties are as follows:

As at March 31 ($ thousands)
e
Residential mortgages 5 274041 $ 201,117
Personal 117,121 87,954
Credit card 15,909 13,965
Business and other 28,783 5,618
S 4%854 5 308654

NOTE24 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income are:

As at March 31 ($thousands)
2010 2009
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities and interest bearing deposits
with financial institutions, net of hedging activites $ 2703 $ 13,179
Net unrealized gains on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges 29,431 95,752
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 32,134 $ 108,931
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NOTE 25 INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest Rate Gap Analysis

Gap analysis involves the allocation of interest-rate-sensitive assets and interest-rate-sensitive liabilities into
categories according to their maturity or repricing date. Gaps can change significantly within a short period of time.
The impact of changes in interest rates on net interest income will depend upon the size and rate of change in
interest rates, the size and maturity of the total gap position, and management of these positions over time. ATB
actively manages its interest rate gap position to protect net interest income while minimizing risk. The following table
shows ATB’s interest rate gap position as at March 31:

Term to maturityire-pr

.

Within 3to12 Total within 1to5
3 months months 1 year ///// ars % e / Total
2010
Assets /
Cash $ 47382 8 - 5 47382 8 . 3 / 132 042 17
Effective yield 0.3% - 0.3% -
Securities and interest-bearing //
deposits with financial institutions 1662 520 114428 1,176,948 57,528 -
Effective yield 0.5% 10% 05% - -
Loans 15481 000 1/69608 17 D950 RO Blrrooy 52 596
Effective yield 3% 49% 3.3% 6.1% 46%
Other

17,180 902 1884123  19.075025 5235 157 52 596

Deposits 9.882 006 2886660 12 768666 5280774 - 4,620,727

Effective yield 0.6% 26% 1.0% 2.8% .
Other liabilities and equity - - - - -
Capital investment note - - - 224 994 -

Effective yield - - - 4.3% -
Subordinated debentures 15,785 - 15,185 29,391 -

Effective yield 429 - 4.2% 4.6% -

9.807 791 2886660 | 12784 451 5,535,159 -

On-balance sheet gap 120 4 1002537 6,200.574 300,002 52,506 8, . - |
Off-balance sheet gap 889,000 445 000 54 400) 54,400 -
Net gap $ 6304111 § § 5746574 § 243,098 \\\\\\\\\\\\\

As percentage of assets 24 8% . 22.6% . .
2009 (1)
Assets $ 18,336,038 $ 1,389,722 $19,725,760 $ 5,826,775 $ 66,497 $ 608,707 $ 26,227,739
Liabilities and equity 10,980,652 3,399,363 14,380,015 9,501,231 - 2,346,493 $ 26,227,739
On-balance sheet gap 7,355,386 (2,009,641) 5,345,745 (3,674,456) 66,497 (1,737,786) -
Off-balance sheet gap (2,902,404) 647,000 (2,255,404) 2,255,404 - - -
Net gap $ 4452982 § (1,362,641) $ 3,090,341 $ (1,419,052) $ 66,497 $ (1,737,786) $ -

As percentage of assets 17.0% (5.2%) 11.8% (5.4%) 0.3% (6.6%) -

) At March 31, 2009 the asset and liability side of securities sold under repurchase agreements have been included in the off-
balance-sheet gap with other hedging instruments because management uses these instruments for asset/liability gap management

purposes.

The effective yield represents the weighted average effective yield based on the earlier of contractual repricing and
maturity dates.
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Note 25 (continued)
Interest Rate Sensitivity

The following table provides the potential impact of an immediate and sustained 100-basis-point and 200-basis-point
increase and decrease in interest rates on ATB’s net income:

($ thousands)
2010 2009
Impact on net earninigs in succeeding year from:
Increase in interest rates of:
100 basis points 5 60583 $ 43,859
200 basis points //{% 87,421
Decrease in interest rates of: /

100 basis points (37,
200 basis points

(43,859)
(89,458)

NOTE 26 SEGMENTED INFORMATION

ATB has organized its operations and activities around the following three business segments or lines of business:

* Personal and Business Financial Services includes Retail Financial Services (RFS) and Independent
Business and Agriculture (IB&Ag) lines of businesses. In fiscal 2009-10, management determined that the
IB&Ag line of business would be separated from RFS to better serve bus<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>